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This Prospectus relates to the initial public offering (“IPO”) of Crown Asia Chemicals
Corporation 1 (“CROWN”, the “Company” or the “Issuer”), formerly, Crown Asia Compounders
Corporation, of One Hundred Fifty Eight Million (158,000,000) Common Shares (the “Offer
Shares”) with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share at the offer price of One Peso and
Forty-One Centavos (P1.41) per share (the “Offer Price”) or an aggregate Offer Price of Two
Hundred Twenty-Two Million, Seven Hundred Eighty Thousand Pesos (P222,780,000.00)
(the “Offer” or the “Offering”). The Offer Price of One Peso and Forty-One Centavos (P1.41)
per share was determined by the Company, in consultation with Abacus Capital & Investment
Corporation (“Abacus Capital”), the Company’s Issue Manager and Underwriter. See
“Determination of Offer Price” on page 55 of this Prospectus. The Offer Shares will represent
25.05% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company after the Offer. All of
the Offer Shares shall be primary shares to be taken from the existing authorized capital stock
of the Company. No secondary shares shall form part of the Offer.

The Offer Shares will be issued out of the existing authorized capital stock of the Company of
One Billion, Three Hundred Million Pesos (P1,300,000,000.00) divided into One Billion, Three
Hundred Million (1,300,000,000) Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per
share. At present, there are Four Hundred Seventy–Two Million, Eight Hundred Thousand
(472,800,000) Common Shares that are issued and outstanding. After the completion of the
Offer, the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company shall be Six Hundred
Thirty Million, Eight Hundred Thousand (630,800,000) Common Shares.

The Company shall cause its existing stockholders that own at least Ten Percent (10.00%) of
the outstanding shares of stock after the Offer to enter into an escrow agreement with an
escrow agent not to sell, assign, or in any manner dispose of their shares for a period of 180
days commencing on the listing date. Furthermore, shares that were issued and fully paid
within 180 days prior to the start of the Offer Period with a transaction price lower than that
of the Offer Price shall likewise be locked up for at least 365 days from the full payment of
said shares. Certain stockholders of the Company are subject to these lock-up requirements.
See the sub-section “Lock-Up” starting on page 61 of this Prospectus.
All Common Shares of the Company issued or to be issued pursuant to the Offer have, or upon
issuance will have, identical rights and privileges. Please refer to sub-section “Rights Relating
to the Common Shares” on page 44 of this Prospectus.

The Common Shares may be subscribed by eligible subscribers regardless of citizenship or
nationality, subject to the limits prescribed by Philippine laws on foreign ownership in certain
types of domestic companies. Please see the sections “Terms of the Offer” starting on page 17
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As approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting on March 4, 2014, and as approved by the shareholders during
its annual stockholders’ meeting on March 4, 2014, held immediately after the Board meeting.
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of this Prospectus and “Philippine Foreign Investment, Exchange Controls, and Foreign
Ownership” on page 200 of this Prospectus.

The Company expects to raise gross proceeds of Two Hundred Twenty-Two Million, Seven
Hundred Eighty Thousand Pesos (P222,780,000.00). The net proceeds from the Offer, after
deducting the issue management and underwriting fees, registration and licensing fees,
listing fees, taxes, and other related fees and expenses from the gross proceeds, are estimated
to amount to Two Hundred Three Million, Nine Hundred Eighty-Eight Thousand, Three
Hundred Sixty and 88/100 Pesos (P203,988,360.88). The net proceeds from the Offer will be
used for: (a) construction of Polypropylene Random Copolymer Type 3 (“PP-R”) and HighDensity Polyethylene (“HDPE”) manufacturing plant and warehouse, and purchase of
equipment; (b) debt retirement; (c) modernization of existing compounds and pipes plants;
and (d) working capital purposes.
The Company is authorized to distribute dividends out of its surplus profit, in cash, properties
of the Company, shares of stock, and/or securities of other companies belonging to the
Company. Dividends paid, in the form of cash or property, are subject to approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Dividends paid in the form of additional Common Shares are
subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders who own at
least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. Holders of outstanding
Common Shares as of a dividend record date will be entitled to the full dividends declared
without regard to any subsequent transfer or sale of such Common Shares. On March 4, 2014,
the Board of Directors of the Company approved its dividend policy wherein it shall distribute
to its stockholders as dividends, whether cash, property or stock, at least ten percent
(10.00%) of the Company's net income after tax for the previous fiscal year, subject to the
provision of sufficient funds for the implementation of the Company’s business plans,
operating expenses and budget, appropriation for expansion projects (as applicable), lenders'
requirements, appropriate reserves, and applicable laws. The Company declared cash
dividends of: (a) P5,000,000 in 2012 at P0.0500 per share representing a dividend rate of
109.89%; (b) P12,000,000 in 2013 at P0.0254 per share representing a dividend rate of
43.31%; (c) P7,000,000 in 2014 at P0.0148 per share representing a dividend rate of 14.07%;
and (d) P25,000,000 in January 2015 at P0.0529 per share representing a dividend rate of
50.25%. In addition, the Company declared stock dividends of 120,000,000 common shares
on September 5, 2014, representing 34.01% of the issued and outstanding shares prior to the
dividend declaration. These shares were issued on November 6, 2014. Refer to the section
“Dividends and Dividend Policy” on page 49 of this Prospectus.

The information contained in this Prospectus is publicly available and has been supplied by
the Company solely for the purpose of the Offer. Unless otherwise stated, the information
contained in this Prospectus is as of March 25, 2015. All information contained in this
Prospectus has been supplied by the Company, which accepts full responsibility for the
accuracy and completeness of the information contained herein. The Company confirms that,
after having made all reasonable inquiries, and to the best of its knowledge and belief, there
are no other material facts, the omission of which would make any statement in this
document misleading in any material respect. Neither the delivery of this document nor any
sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstance, create any implication that the
information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.
Abacus Capital, as the Issue Manager and Underwriter, represents and warrants that it has
exercised the level of due diligence required under existing regulations in ascertaining that all
material information appearing in this Prospectus are true and correct as of the date
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indicated herein. Abacus Capital also warrants and represents that, to the best of its
knowledge, and after exercising the appropriate due diligence review, there are no other
material facts, the omission of which would make any statement in the Prospectus, as a
whole, misleading. Except for failure to exercise the required due diligence review, Abacus
Capital assumes no liability for any information supplied in this Prospectus. Abacus Capital
will receive an underwriting fee from the Company based on a percentage of the gross
proceeds from the sale of the Offer Shares. The Offer will be underwritten on a firm
commitment basis at the Offer Price. Please refer to the section “Plan of Distribution” on page
58 of this Prospectus.

Prospective investors to the Offer Shares must conduct their own evaluation of the Company
and the terms and conditions of the Offer, including the merits and risks involved. Please refer
to the section entitled “Investment Considerations and Risk Factors” starting on page 24 of
this Prospectus. The readers of this Prospectus are further enjoined to consult their financial
advisers, tax consultants, and other professional advisers with respect to the acquisition,
holding, or disposal of the Offer Shares described herein.
Market and certain industry data used throughout this Prospectus were obtained from
internal surveys, market research, publicly available information, and industry publications.
Industry publications generally state that the information contained therein has been
obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and completeness of such
information are not guaranteed. Similarly, internal surveys, industry forecasts, and market
research, while believed to be reliable, have not been independently verified, and neither the
Company nor Abacus Capital makes any representation as to the accuracy of such
information.

This Prospectus includes certain forward-looking statements. The Company has based these
forward-looking statements largely on its current expectations and projections about future
events, and operating, market, and financial trends affecting its business. Words including,
but not limited to, “believes”, “may”, “will”, “estimates”, “continues”, “anticipates”, “intends”,
“expects”, “forecasts”, and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
In light of these risks and uncertainties associated with forward-looking statements, investors
should be aware that the forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this
Prospectus might not occur. The Company’s actual results could differ substantially from
those anticipated in the Company’s forward-looking statements. One should read this
Prospectus and the documents referenced in this Prospectus and filed as exhibits to the
Registration Statement, of which this Prospectus is a part, completely and with the
understanding that actual future results may be materially different from what the Company
expects. Forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified by these cautionary
statements.
On November 7, 2014, the Company filed a Registration Statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) covering the Offer Shares and the issued and outstanding
Common Shares of the Company not covered by the Offer in accordance with the provisions
of the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”).

On November 14, 2014, the Company filed an application with The Philippine Stock Exchange,
Inc. (“PSE”) for the listing of the issued and outstanding Common Shares (including the Offer
Shares). This application to list was approved on March 25, 2015 by the Board of Directors of
the PSE, subject to fulfillment of certain listing conditions. Such an approval is permissive
only and does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement by the PSE of the Offer
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Shares. Furthermore, the PSE assumes no responsibility in the correct nest of any statement
made or opinions expressed in this Prospectus. The PSE makes no representation as to the
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or in part on the contents of this Prospectus.
This Prospectus shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
securities other than those described herein, nor does it constitute an offer to sell or a
solicitation of an offer to buy the shares described herein in any jurisdiction in which such
offer or solicitation or sale is not authorized, or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make
such offer, solicitation, or sale.

No dealer, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by the Company or Abacus
Capital to issue any advertisement or to give information or make any representation in
connection with the Offer other than those contained in this document, and if issued, given or
made, such advertisement, information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorized by the Company or by Abacus Capital.
This Prospectus has been authorized for circulation and distribution only in the Philippines.
The distribution of this Prospectus and the Offer of the Offer Shares may be restricted by law
in certain jurisdictions. The Company and Abacus Capital require persons into whose
possession this Prospectus comes to inform them of, and observe all such restrictions.
Prospective investors should also inform themselves on any taxation or legislation affecting
them personally, and should consult their professional advisers with respect to the
acquisition or disposition of the Offer Shares.

For investor relation matters, investors may contact Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva, the Company’s
Investor Relations Officer, at (+632) 413-8032 to 33, telefax number (+632) 413-8034 local
111, and through her email address tpvillanueva@crownpvc.com.ph.

A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES HAS BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION BUT HAS NOT YET BEEN DECLARED
EFFECTIVE. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF
THE PURCHASE PRICE CAN BE ACCEPTED OR RECEIVED UNTIL THE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT HAS BECOME EFFECTIVE, AND ANY SUCH OFFER MAY BE WITHDRAWN OR
REVOKED, WITHOUT OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND, AT ANY TIME
PRIOR TO NOTICE OF ITS ACCEPTANCE GIVEN AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE. AN
INDICATION OF INTEREST IN RESPONSE HERETO INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR
COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND. THIS PROSPECTUS SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO
SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words or expressions
shall have the following meanings:

GLOSSARY OF TERMS RELATED TO THE OFFER
“Abacus Capital”
“Applicant”

“Application to Subscribe” or
“Application”
“AOI” and “By-Laws”
“Banking Day”

“BIR”
“Board of Directors” or “Board”
or “BOD”
“Book Value per Share”

“BSP”
“CAGR”

Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation, the
Company’s Issue Manager and Underwriter

A person, whether natural or juridical, who seeks to
subscribe to the Initial Public Offering by submitting
an Application to Subscribe under the terms and
conditions prescribed in this Prospectus
The application to subscribe to the Offer Shares

Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the
Company

Any of the days in a week, except Saturdays,
Sundays, and holidays, when banks are not required
to do, or are authorized by law to close for business
in Metro Manila
Bureau of Internal Revenue

The board of directors of the Company
The result of dividing the Total Stockholders’ Equity
account of the Company by the total number of
Common Shares issued and outstanding
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

Compounded Annual Growth Rate, the year-overyear growth rate of an investment over a specified
period of time. The compounded annual growth rate
is calculated by taking the nth root of the total
percentage growth rate, where n is the number of
years in the period being considered.
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“Certificate of Permit”

“Common Shares” or “Shares”

“Company”, “Issuer”, or
“CROWN”
“DST”
“EBITDA”
“Eligible Applicant”

“Escrow Bank”
“Government”
“IPO”
“LSI”

“Manual”
“Offer” or “Offering”

“Offer Period”

Certificate of Permit to Offer Securities for Sale,
issued by the SEC, is a document certifying that the
shares have already been registered with the SEC
and may already be offered for sale to the public,
subject to the full compliance with the provisions of
the SRC and its Amended Implementing Rules and
Regulations, Revised Code of Corporate Governance,
and other applicable laws and orders as may be
issued by the SEC.
The shares of common stock of the Company with a
par value of P1.00 per share, including the Offer
Shares
Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation (formerly, Crown
Asia Compounders Corporation)
Documentary Stamp Tax

Earnings Before Income Tax, Depreciation, and
Amortization
Any person of legal age or duly organized and
existing corporations, partnerships, or other
corporate entities applying to subscribe to the Offer
Shares, regardless of nationality
Security Bank Corporation – Trust Division

The Government of the Republic of the Philippines
Initial Public Offering

Local Small Investor, a share subscriber who is
willing to subscribe a minimum board lot or whose
subscription does not exceed P25,000.00
Manual of Corporate Governance

The Initial Public Offering of 158,000,000 primary
Common Shares of the Company subject to the terms
and conditions stated in this Prospectus and in the
Application to Subscribe
The period commencing at 9:00 a.m. on
April 10, 2015 and ending at 12:00 noon, on
April 17, 2015 unless extended by agreement
between the Company, Abacus Capital, and the PSE
2

“Offer Price”
“Offer Shares”
“P” or “Pesos”
“P&A”
“PCD Nominee”

“PDTC”
“PFRS”
“PSE”
“R.A.”
“Receiving Agent”
“SCCP”
“SEC”
“SRC”
“Stock Transfer Agent”
“Trading Day”
“Trading Participants” or “TPs”
“$” or “USD”
“VAT”

P1.41 per Offer Share

158,000,000 primary Common Shares of the
Company that are subject to the Offer

Philippine Peso, or lawful currency of the Republic of
the Philippines
Punongbayan and Araullo, the Company’s external
auditor
PCD Nominee Corporation, a corporation wholly
owned by PDTC whose sole purpose is to act as
nominee and legal title holder of all shares of stock
lodged in the PDTC
Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Republic Act

Professional Stock Transfer, Inc.

Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines
Securities and Exchange Commission of the
Philippines

R. A. No. 8799, otherwise known as The Securities
Regulation Code

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation – Stock
Transfer Processing Section
Any day on which trading is allowed in the PSE
The member brokers of the PSE
United States Dollar
Value-added Tax
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GLOSSARY OF OTHER TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
“ASTM”

“BPS”

ASTM International, known until 2001 as the American
Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM), is an
international standards organization that develops and
publishes voluntary consensus technical standards for
a wide range of materials, products, systems, and
services.

“CIP”

For PVC pipes, the BPS imposes standards for electrical
and potable blue pipes. Sanitary pipes are currently
not among the products requiring mandatory
certification.

“Compounds Group”
“CROWN Blue”
“Crown Electrical”

“CROWN Fuerza”

Bureau of Product Standards, the Philippine National
Standard Body deputized under the DTI. It promotes
standardization of a wide range of products for the
protection of consumers. Among its tasks are to
develop, promulgate, and implement standards. It has
its own testing center accredited by the Singapore
Accreditation Council. It also accredits other testing
centers.

Certification International Philippines, Inc. is the local
arm of Certification International, a multinational
company assessor based in the United Kingdom. CIP
has been providing management systems assessment
and has certified more than 900 Philippine and
multinational companies since 1995.
The Company’s business group involved in the
processing and sales of PVC compounds.

The Company’s PVC pipe product used for potable
(clean) water applications.
Crown Electrical is the Company’s line for PVC
electrical conduit pipes. The Company’s electrical
conduit pipes are assured to be self-extinguishing,
highly flame-retardant, has excellent insulation
resistance properties, uniform wall thickness,
diameter, and color, smooth interior and exterior
surfaces, and made from 100.00% virgin materials.

The Company’s HDPE pipe product used for high end
and industrial piping such as in factories and buildings.
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“CROWN Hi-Tech”

“CROWN Pressure Main Blue
(Watermain)”

“CROWN Sanitary”

“CROWN Sigma”
“Crown Supreme”

“CROWN Telecom”

“Crown Universal”

“Crownflex”

“Dealer”

“Distributor”

The Company’s PVC pipe product used for electrical
conduit applications. It is a thin-walled pipe that is
used in low to mid-rise buildings as well as residential
and commercial applications.

The Company’s PVC pipe product used for high
pressure waterworks, irrigation, and infrastructures.
In buildings, it is the conduit by which water source
from the government passes into the building
reservoir or pipelines.

The Company’s PVC pipe product used for sanitary
applications, which includes kitchen and toilet drain
waste and vents.
The Company’s HDPE pipe product used in natural gas
distribution and sewerage systems.
The Company’s PVC pipe product used for electrical
conduit applications. It is utilized by property
developers, contractors, and end-users that require
high end electrical pipes in their projects.

The Company’s PVC pipe product used as conduit by
which telecommunications wiring passes through to
reach the telecom outlet site.

The Company’s PVC pipe product with multi-purpose
use. It is a thin-walled economical pipe utilized by
housing projects and other value-engineered
applications.
The Company’s PVC pipe product used for electrical
conduit applications. It is a flexible, corrugated pipe
that comes in lengths of 25-100 meters utilized by
consumers, contractors, projects and other users that
require flexibility in their wiring and electrical
installations. It can be used indoors and outdoors as it
is UV-protected.
A retailer that has a store-front and carries various
construction materials and brands. It caters to general
walk-in customers but also makes delivery to valued or
volume customers.
A volume buyer with a commitment to carry
exclusively the CROWN brand for its PVC product line.
It is equipped with delivery vehicles and maintains its
own sales force. It may sell to wholesalers, dealers and
end-users and may cover certain regional areas.
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“DTI”
“DWV”

“Extruder”

“Field” or “Trade Sales”

“GIWICO”
“HDPE” 2

“HRLSD”
“IC”

“ISO”

“LTO”

2

Department of Trade and Industry

Drain-Waste-Vent, a part of a modern plumbing system
that removes sewage and graywater from a building
and regulates air pressure in the waste-system pipes,
facilitating flow.
The equipment that receives mixed
compounds, from which the final
products are forced out through
equipment setting, heat application,
process.

raw material
finished pipe
a calculated
and kneading

The marketing channel of the Company where pipe
products are sold to the usual trade channels that
include hardware dealers, wholesalers, and
distributors.
Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation, a
related party due to common stockholders

High-density
polyethylene,
a
polyethylene
thermoplastic made from petroleum. It has the
following properties: long-life cycle, chemical resistant,
weather & environmental stress resistant, high-flow
capacity, non-corrosive, tough, and flexible. It is often
the pipe of choice for trenchless applications such as
directional drilling and pipe bursting. It is also the
product of choice for gas pipelines and sewer and
water applications.
The Company’s Human Resources and Legal Services
Department

Integrated Circuit, an electronic circuit formed on a
small piece of semiconducting material, performing the
same function as a larger circuit made from discrete
components

International Organization for Standardization, an
international standard-setting body composed of
representatives from various national standards
organizations that promotes worldwide proprietary,
industrial, and commercial standards.
Land Transportation Office

Definition provided by the Company
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“Management”
“Marketing Group”

“Mixer”

“MTPA”
“PE”

“Pipes Group”

“PNS”

“Printer”

“PP-R” 3

3

Definition provided by the Company

The executive management of the Company

A group in the Company that visits architects,
engineers, and contractors to introduce the CROWN
pipe brand and keeps them abreast of new
developments and product lines under the brand. They
conduct seminars, product presentations, marketing,
and social events to maintain continuous business
relationships.
An equipment into which raw material ingredients that
have a specific formulation are fed and which mixes
said ingredients to form the compounded output that
is to be fed into the extruder.
Metric tons per annum

Polyethylene, a thermoplastic polymer considered to
be the most common plastic. The largest use for these
polymers is in packaging materials, like films and
foam; and bottles and other containers that can be
used in food, medical, and other consumer industries.
The Company’s business group involved in the
manufacture and sales of pipes. This group is further
divided into two (2) divisions: the PVC Pipes Division
and the PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division.

Philippine National Standards are documents
established by consensus through technical
committees and approved by the Bureau of Product
Standards that provides, for common and repeated
use, rules, guidelines or characteristics for activities or
their results, aimed at the achievement of the optimum
degree of order in a given context.

The equipment that is preset to print out the brand
name and other information onto the extruded pipe
products.

Polypropylene Random Copolymer Type 3, it is
thermoplastic
resins
produced
through
the
polymerization of propylene, with ethylene links
introduced in the polymer chain. It has the following
characteristics: convenient and practical, noncorrosive, easy to install, less noise flow rate, non-toxic
and lead free, abrasion resistant, and leak proof. It is
frequently utilized for hot and cold water facilities for
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“PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division”

commercial buildings, food and chemical, electronic
and other industrial pipe network, potable water
supply, air-conditioning pipelines, and residential
heating system.

“Projects Group”

Current products include Crown Fuerza and Crown
Sigma, and its corresponding fittings.

“Project Sales”

“PVC”

“PVC Compounds”

“PVC Pipes Division”

“QMS”

The Company’s pipe division involved in the
manufacture and sales of PP-R and HDPE pipes.
Currently, only HDPE products are being sold but PP-R
products will be sold starting mid-year 2015.

A group in the Company that focuses on specific
projects of construction and real property developers
by assessing the construction needs, securing bill of
materials, submitting bids and conducting follow
through activities to achieve sales objectives.

The marketing channel of the Company wherein the
Company’s pipe products are sold to residential
condominium projects, office space projects, standard
contractors. It also includes infrastructure projects
such as potable water, irrigation, and sewerage
projects for private subdivisions. Projects are
oftentimes awarded through bidding.

Polyvinyl Chloride, a tough, chemically resistant
synthetic resin made by polymerizing vinyl chloride
and used for a wide variety of products including
pipes, flooring, and sheeting.
A formulated mixture of PVC resins with other
chemicals such as plasticizers, stabilizers, lubricants,
and colorants, among others, depending on the
processing procedures and demands of the finished
product.
The Company’s pipe division involved in the
manufacture and sales of PVC pipes. Products include
Crown Blue, Crown Electrical, Crownflex, Crown
Sanitary, Crown Pressure Main Blue, Crown Telecom,
and Crown Universal, and all its corresponding fittings.

QMS Quality Management Systems Limited, an ISO
certifying body that assessed and approved CROWN an
ISO 9002:1994 on March 1, 1998 for having quality
administration systems as a manufacturer and
distributor of chemical compounds.
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“RoHS”

“SBC”

Restriction of Hazardous Substances, a standard that
aims to restrict certain dangerous substances
commonly used in electronic and electronic
equipment. Any RoHS compliant component is tested
for the presence of Lead (Pb), Cadmium (Cd), Mercury
(Hg), Hexavalent chromium (Hex-Cr), Polybrominated
biphenyls (PBB), and Polybrominated diphenyl ethers
(PBDE).

“Super Mixer”

Security Bank Corporation, one of the Company’s
creditors.

“Thermoplastic”

Sheering is the rubbing or smashing together of raw
material components during mixing.

“UL”

“uPVC”

“UV”

“Wholesaler”

“WTDRC”

A high-speed mixer capable of creating high
temperatures through sheering of raw materials alone.
Denoting substances (especially synthetic resins) that
can be melted to a liquid and remolded as it returns to
a solid state.

Underwriters Laboratories, a global independent
safety science company offering expertise across five
(5) key strategic businesses: Product Safety,
Environment – Information & Insights, Life & Health,
Verification Services, and Knowledge Services.
Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride, PVCs with no or very
little plasticizers. It is sometimes referred to as rigid
PVC.
Ultraviolet is an electromagnetic radiation with a
wavelength shorter than that of visible light but longer
than X-rays. It can cause chemical reactions - although
lacking the energy to ionize atoms, the energy of UV
photons can alter chemical bonds in molecules. It is
present in the sunlight.

A quantity buyer, not necessarily in the volume of a
distributor and carries different brands of PVC
products. It may also sell to dealers and end-users. It
has its own delivery fleet and sales personnel.
WT Derrick Realty Corporation, a related party due to
common stockholders
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PARTIES TO THE OFFER
The Issuer

Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation
Formerly, Crown Asia Compounders Corporation
Principal Office:
Manila Office:

Km. 33 MacArthur Highway
Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto
Bulacan

Suite 508 President Tower
81 Timog Avenue, Quezon City

Issue Manager and
Underwriter

Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation
2902 East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, Metro Manila

Legal Counsel to the Issue

Tan Venturanza Valdez
2704 East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, Metro Manila

Independent Auditors

Punongbayan & Araullo
20th Floor, Tower 1
The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City, Metro Manila

Escrow Bank

Security Bank Corporation – Trust Division
7th Floor, Security Bank Centre
6776 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Stock Transfer Agent

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Stock Transfer Processing Section
Ground Floor, West Wing, 221 Grepalife Building
Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City
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SUMMARY INFORMATION
The following information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the full text
of this Prospectus.
The Offer
The Company is offering for subscription One Hundred Fifty-Eight Million (158,000,000)
primary Common Shares to be issued out of the existing authorized capital stock, each with a
par value of P1.00 per share. The Offer Shares shall enjoy equal rank, preference, and priority
with the existing issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company. The Offer Shares
are being made available for subscription in the Philippines at an Offer Price of One Peso and
Forty-One Centavos (P1.41) per share.

The Company expects to raise gross proceeds of Two Hundred Twenty-Two Million, Seven
Hundred Eighty Thousand Pesos (P222,780,000.00). The net proceeds from the Offer, after
deducting the issue management and underwriting fees, registration and licensing fees,
listing fees, taxes, and other related fees and expenses from the gross proceeds, are estimated
to amount to Two Hundred Three Million, Nine Hundred Eighty-Eight Thousand, Three
Hundred Sixty and 88/100 Pesos (P203,988,360.88). The net proceeds from the Offer will be
used for: (a) construction of PP-R and HDPE manufacturing plant and warehouse, and
purchase of equipment; (b) debt retirement; (c) modernization of existing compounds and
pipes plants; and (d) working capital purposes.
The Offer Shares shall represent 25.05% of the Company’s total issued and outstanding
capital stock after the Offer. All of the Offer Shares shall be primary shares to be taken from
the existing authorized capital stock of the Company. No secondary shares shall form part of
the Offer.

The Offer Shares will be underwritten, on a firm basis, by Abacus Capital. The total fees to be
derived by Abacus Capital shall be based on a percentage of the gross proceeds from the sale
of the Offer Shares, is exclusive of out of pocket expenses and inclusive of amounts that will
be ceded to the Selling Agents.
The Company

The Company was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 10, 1989 as Crown
Asia Compounders Corporation. On September 29, 2014, the SEC approved the change of the
Company’s name to “Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation”. Its primary purpose is to engage in,
operate, conduct and maintain the business of manufacturing, importing, exporting, buying,
selling or otherwise dealing in, at wholesale and retail such goods as: plastic and/or synthetic
resins and compounds and other allied or related products/goods of same/similar nature,
and any and all equipment, materials supplies used or employed in or related to the
manufacture of such products. Its registered address and principal place of business is at Km.
33 MacArthur Highway, Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto, Bulacan, Philippines.
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At present, the Company is primarily engaged in the production of plastic compounds and
other related products such as polyvinyl chloride (“PVC”) pellets. The Company also
manufactures plastic pipes. The compounds and pipes are used directly and indirectly in the
construction and telecommunications industries.

The Company started commercial operations in 1990 with the trading of imported
Polyethylene (“PE”) compounds and paraffin waxes. In the same year, the Company started
the production and sales of PVC compounds at its plant in Guiguinto, Bulacan with just 22
employees. The said plant had an initial operating capacity of 1,800 metric tons per annum
(“MTPA”) of PVC compounds. The Company started exporting its PVC compounds in 1995. In
March 1, 1998, CROWN was assessed and approved by QMS Quality Management Systems
Limited (“QMS”), an ISO-certifying body, an ISO 9002:1994 certification for having quality
administration systems as a manufacturer and distributor of chemical compounds.
Capitalizing on its expertise in PVC formulation, CROWN expanded downstream into the
manufacture of industrial plastic pipes under the CROWN® pipes brand for electrical,
sanitary, potable water, and telecommunications applications. In 1998, the Company began
the production of PVC flexible electrical pipes using the latest German machinery and
technology at that time. Soon after, the Company’s range of product lines expanded further
with the introduction of PVC electrical conduit pipes and potable water pipes in 2000, and
sanitary pipes and fittings in 2002.
In 2003, CROWN saw the opportunity to expand the application of its PVC compounds beyond
wires and cables. It started to develop and market PVC compounds for use in integrated
circuit (“IC”) packaging tubes, films and bottles, as well as door and window profiles.

In 2006, the Company started to explore the HDPE market by engaging in marketing and
trading HDPE pipes and fittings under the CROWN brand to test the market. The HDPE pipes
were supplied by an HDPE pipes manufacturer and importer that manufactured the pipes and
imported the fittings. The HDPE products were marketed under the CROWN pipes brand
since they were produced following the strict specifications of the Company. The HDPE
products were subjected to quality assurance testing that ensured its conformity with
CROWN Pipes quality standards. After the favorable market acceptance of CROWN HDPE
pipes and fittings, the Company started manufacturing its own HDPE pipes in November 2013
utilizing one (1) of its existing extrusion machineries for this product line while the HDPE
fittings continued to be sourced from importers.

The Company also has expanded its lines to include pressure main distribution pipes and
telecommunication conduit pipes in 2006.
In its 25 years of operations, the Company has established CROWN® into a premium brand
that is committed to excellence in product quality, reliability and safety, thereby earning the
trust and confidence of architects, builders, and key players in the construction industry.

As of March 25, 2015, the Company has 137 regular employees, 36 probationary employees,
and 73 contractual employees, totaling 246 employees. The Company had an operating
capacity of 15,000 MTPA for its compounds business and 8,500 MTPA for its pipes business
as of the same date.
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The Company continues to update its ISO certifications in its continuing commitment to
maintain the highest level of quality in its operations and products. On June 26, 2012,
Certification International Philippines, Inc. (“CIP”), an ISO-certifying body, issued a
certification of registration to CROWN for its Pipes Group, certifying that CROWN operates a
quality management system that has been assessed as conforming to ISO 9001:2008
standards for the manufacture and distribution of unplasticized polyvinyl chloride (“uPVC”)
pipes for potable water, electrical, sanitary, pressure main pipes, multi-purpose pipes, and
distribution of pipe fittings, valid until June 25, 2015. In addition, on April 7, 2013, CIP issued
a certification of registration to the Company for its Compounds Group, certifying that
CROWN operates a quality management system that has been assessed as conforming to ISO
9001:2008 standards for the design, development, manufacture, and distribution of
thermoplastic compounds for various applications in the construction, telecommunications,
automotive, and packaging industries, valid until April 6, 2016. These ISO certifications are
valid for three (3) years.
The Company sells its plastic compounds to manufacturers of wires and cables, IC tubes, films
and sheets, bottles, among others. For the past three years, the Company sold 58.06% of its
compounds to the local market and the balance to the export market. On the other hand, the
Company sells its pipe products to the hardware dealers, wholesalers, and distributors
(“Field” or “Trade Sales”) and to bidded construction projects (“Project Sales”). Unlike the sale
of plastic compounds, the sales of the Company’s pipe products are 100.00% to the local
market.

In 2014, the Company generated revenues of P850.74 million and net income of P65.38
million. It had total assets of P829.05 million and total equity of P562.90 million.

The Company is owned by the Villanueva and Perez families that will collectively own 74.95%
of the Company after the Offering.

For a detailed discussion of the Company, please refer to section “The Company” section
starting on page 64 of this Prospectus.
Competitive Strengths
The Company’s competitive strengths include the following:
•
•
•
•

Established Track Record Resulting in Long-Term Customer Relationships;
Quality Products;
Unique Product Offerings; and
Established Operational Policies, Systems, and Procedures.

For a detailed discussion of the Company’s competitive strengths, please refer to section
“Competitive Strengths” section starting on page 66 of this Prospectus.
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Business Plan
The Company’s short-term business plans include the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continuous Improvements in and Modernization of Plant, Equipment, and Facilities
Increase Pipe Product Lines;
Increase Market Reach;
Research and Development;
Improvement of Business Processes and Sourcing of Raw Materials; and
Control Costs and Operating Expenses.

For a detailed discussion of the Company’s business strategies, please refer to section
“Business Plan” section starting on page 68 of this Prospectus.

Investment Considerations and Risk Factors

Before making an investment decision, prospective investors are advised to consider
carefully all the information contained in this Prospectus, including the following key points
characterizing the potential risks associated with an investment in the Offer Shares,
presented in the order of importance.
Risks relating to the Company and its Business

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Competition in the Compounds Business
Competition in the Pipes Business
Raw Material Cost and Availability
Operating or Process Failures and Quality Assurance
Labor Matters
Power Shortages
Implementation of Business Plans and Strategies
Centralized Facilities Location
Imitation or Infringement of the Company’s Intellectual Property Rights
Dependence on Members of Executive Committee
Related Party Transactions
Interests of Primary Stockholders may differ from Interests of other Stockholders

Risks relating to the Philippines
•
•
•
•
•

Political or Social Instability in the Philippines
Territorial and other disputes with China and a number of Southeast Asian countries
may disrupt the Philippine economy and business environment
Sovereign Credit Ratings of the Philippines
Volatility in the Value of Peso against the US Dollar and other Currencies
Occurrence of Natural Calamities
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Risks relating to the Offer and the Offer Shares
•
•
•
•
•

Listing of Offer Shares on the PSE
Trading and Liquidity
Market Volatility
Effect of Future Sales of Shares in the Public Market
Dividend Declarations and Pay-Out

Please refer to the section entitled “Investment Considerations and Risk Factors” beginning
on page 24 of this Prospectus, which, while not intended to be an exhaustive enumeration of
all risks, must be considered in connection with a purchase of the Offer Shares.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Summary Financial Information
The table below presents the summary of operating and financial information of the Company for
periods ending December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014, and as at December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014.
The summary financial data below are based on its audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (“PFRS”). The summary financial
information should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s reports and the financial statements and
notes thereto contained in this Prospectus and the sections entitled “Management’s Discussion”.
The information below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations or financial
condition of the Company.
Table 1: CROWN Summary of Comprehensive Income
Amounts in P millions
2012
Revenues
P812.04
Cost of Goods Sold
655.37
Gross Profit
156.67
Other Operating Expenses
107.00
Other Income (Charges)
(10.70)
Profit Before Tax
38.97
Tax Expense
11.26
Net Profit
P27.71
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.
Table 2: CROWN Summary of Financial Position
Amounts in P millions
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets - net
Total Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment – net
Deferred tax assets – net
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Liabilities and Equity
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payable
Total Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liability –net
Post-employment defined benefit obligation
Advances from stockholders
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Capital stock
Amounts for future stock subscription
Revaluation reserves
Retained earnings
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

2012
(Restated)
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2013
P801.82
628.53
173.29
103.86
1.64
71.07
21.32
P49.75

2014
P850.74
639.43
211.31
115.96
(1.63)
93.72
28.34
P65.38

2013
(Restated)

2014

P73.69
168.94
154.16
39.16
P435.95
P170.75
6.45
P177.20
P613.15

P 99.25
154.99
181.87
44.06
P480.18
P171.26
6.20
P177.46
P657.63

P34.32
212.38
303.78
53.75
P604.24
P214.93
9.88
P224.81
P829.05

P118.71
1.81
7.78
P128.30
P3.96
4.78
15.12
0.05
P23.90
P152.20
P10.00
342.80
26.27
81.88
P460.94
P613.15

P126.76
2.74
9.97
P139.47
P4.71
6.53
4.84
0.05
P16.14
P155.61
P352.80
29.60
119.62
P502.02
P657.63

P172.05
71.28
7.78
P251.10
P3.63
7.39
3.97
0.05
P15.05
P266.15
472.80
32.10
58.00
P562.90
P829.05

TERMS OF THE OFFER

Offer Shares

The Company is offering for subscription 158,000,000 primary
Common Shares to be issued out of the existing authorized capital
stock. The Offer Shares have a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per
share and enjoy equal rank, preference, and priority with the existing
issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company.

The Company shall allocate 31,600,000, or 20.00% of the Offer
Shares, among the PSE Trading Participants (“TPs”). Each TP shall
initially be allocated 239,000 Offer Shares (computed by dividing
31,600,000 Offer Shares among the 132 TPs) and subject to
reallocation as may be determined by Abacus Capital. A total of
15,800,000, or 10.00% of the Offer Shares, shall be allocated to the
Local Small Investors (“LSIs”). Abacus Capital will distribute
110,600,000 Offer Shares, or 70.00% of the Offer Shares, directly to
the general public.
At the completion of the Offer, the Offer Shares will comprise 25.05%
of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of 630,800,000.

Offer Price

The Offer Shares are being offered at the price of One Peso and FortyOne Centavos (P1.41) per Offer Share. Please see section
“Determination of Offer Price” on page 55.

Offer Period

The Offer Period shall commence at 9:00 a.m. of April 10, 2015 up to
12:00 noon of April 17, 2015. CROWN and Abacus Capital reserve the
right to extend or terminate the Offer Period at any time subject to
prevailing market conditions and the approval by the SEC and the
PSE.
Applications from Trading Participants and LSIs must be received by
the Receiving Agent not later than 12:00 noon of April 16, 2015.
Applications received thereafter or with incomplete documents will
be rejected.

The six (6)–day Offer Period shall be followed unless sooner
terminated or extended by the Company after obtaining SEC and PSE
approvals. If, for any reason, any day of the Offer Period is a nonBanking Day, the Offer Period shall automatically be extended to the
next succeeding Banking Day/s.

17

Payment Terms

The Offer Shares must be paid for in full upon submission of the
Application and the requisite attachments.
Payment for the Offer Shares shall be made either by: (a) a personal
or corporate check/s drawn against an account with a Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (“BSP”) authorized bank at any of its branches located in
Metro Manila; or (b) a managers’ or cashiers’ check issued by such
authorized bank.
Checks must be made payable to the order of “Crown Asia IPO”
crossed “Payee’s Account Only” and dated as of the date of the
Application.

Minimum Subscription

The Offer Shares may be subscribed at a minimum of 1,000 Offer
Shares and, thereafter, in multiples of 1,000 Offer Shares. No
application for multiples of any other number of Offer Shares shall be
considered.

Restriction on Issuance
and disposal of shares

In accordance with the Listing Rules for the Main and Small, Medium
and Emerging (“SME”) Boards of the PSE, the Company’s existing
stockholders who own at least 10.00% of the outstanding shares of
stock shall enter into an Escrow Agreement with an Escrow Agent
not to sell, assign, or in any manner dispose of their shares for a
period of 180 days commencing on the listing date. Furthermore,
shares issued and fully paid for within 180 days prior to the start of
the Offer Period, with a transaction price lower than that of the Offer
Price in the IPO shall likewise be locked up for at least 365 days from
full payment of said shares.

The Company declared stock dividends of 120,000,000 common
shares on September 5, 2014, representing 34.01% of the issued and
outstanding shares prior to the dividend declaration. Given that the
issuance is within the 180 days and that the issuance price (i.e. par
value) is transaction price lower than the IPO price, then all of the
existing stockholders of the Company prior to the IPO will be subject
to the Lock-Up requirement of 365 days from issuance of said shares.
Furthermore, some of the stockholders own at least 10.00% of the
Company’s total shareholdings prior to the IPO, and thus are also
subject to the 180 days lock-up period commencing on the listing
date.
The following are covered by the lock-up requirement:
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Shareholder

Summary of
Use of Proceeds

.

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Total

No of Shares
Subject to Lock-Up for
180 days
70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,279,999
35,279,999
264,599,996

No of Shares
Subject to Lock-Up
for 365 days
24,000,000
18,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
120,000,000

The gross proceeds from the Offer will amount to P222,780,000.00.
The net proceeds from the Offer, after deducting the estimated
related expenses to the Offer, will amount to P203,988,360.88 and
will accrue to the Company.

The net proceeds from the Offer will be used for the following, in
order of priority: (a) construction of PP-R and HDPE manufacturing
plant and warehouse, and purchase of equipment; (b) debt
retirement; (c) modernization of existing compounds and pipes
plants; and (d) working capital purposes. In the event that the actual
expenses relating to the Offer differ from the estimates, the actual net
proceeds may be higher or lower than the expected net proceeds.
Any increase or decrease in the net proceeds will be addressed by
corresponding adjustments to the Company’s provision for working
capital requirements.
Breakdown of Net Proceeds from Offer
Purpose

Amount

Construction of PP-R and HDPE
manufacturing plant and
warehouse, and Purchase of PPR and HDPE equipment
Debt retirement
Modernization of Existing
Compounds and Pipes Plants
Working capital purposes
Total
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Date of
Disbursement

66,200,000.00

2nd Quarter 2015

25,000,000.00

2nd Quarter 2015

43,800,000.00
68,988,360.88

P203,988,360.88

2nd Quarter 2015
Immediately after
offer

Eligible Applicant and
Restrictions on
Ownership

The Offer Shares may be subscribed to or held by any person of legal
age or duly organized and existing corporation, partnerships, or
other corporate entities regardless of nationality, subject to the
restrictions provided by law on foreign ownership of companies
engaged in certain activities, and to the Company’s and Abacus
Capital’s right to reject an application or reduce the number of Offer
Shares applied for subscription or purchase.

At present, the Company owns several parcels of land located in Bo.
Tuktukan, Municipality of Guiguinto, Province of Bulacan. The
Philippine Constitution and related statutes limit foreign ownership
in a domestic corporation that owns real property to a maximum of
40.00% of its outstanding capital stock entitled to vote. Accordingly,
said domestic corporation cannot allow the issuance or the transfer
of shares to persons other than Philippine Nationals and cannot
record transfers in its books if such issuance or transfer would result
in the Company ceasing to be a Philippine National for purposes of
complying with the restrictions on foreign ownership described
above.
Dividends

The Company is authorized to distribute dividends out of its surplus
profit. Dividends paid in the form of cash or property is subject to
approval of the Company’s Board of Directors. Dividends paid in the
form of additional shares are subject to the approval of the
Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders that own at least
two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company.
Holders of outstanding Common Shares as of a dividend record date
will be entitled to full dividends declared without regard to any
subsequent transfer of such shares.
Cash Dividend Payout: 2012 – March 2015
Year
2012
2013
2014

January 2015

Declaration
Date

Record
Date

Dec. 4, 2012

Nov. 30, 2012

Mar. 4, 2014

Mar. 31, 2014

May 16, 2013
Dec. 9, 2013

Jan. 16, 2015

May 16, 2013

Nov. 30, 2013
Jan. 15, 2015

Payment
Date

Dec. 27, 2012

May 31, 2013

Dec. 19, 2013

May 30, 2014
Jan. 30, 2015

Feb. 25, 2015

P5,000,000

Cash
Dividends
per Share
P0.0500

7,000,000

P0.0148

Amount

7,000,000
5,000,000

12,500,000
12,500,000

P0.0148
P0.0106
P0.0264
P0.0264

Dividend
Rate
109.89%
43.31%
14.07%
50.25%

In the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and
stockholders on September 5, 2014, it was approved that the
Company would issue out 34.01% stock dividends. Subsequently, the
Board of Directors in their meeting on November 3, 2014 set the
distribution date of the stock dividends to November 6, 2014.

On March 4, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved
its dividend policy wherein it shall distribute to its stockholders as
dividends, whether cash, property or stock, at least ten percent
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(10.00%) of the Company's net income after tax for the previous
fiscal year, subject to the provision of sufficient funds for the
implementation of the Company’s business plan, operating expenses
and budget, appropriation for expansion projects (as applicable),
lenders' requirements, appropriate reserves and applicable laws.
For further discussion, refer to the section “Dividends and Dividend
Policy” on page 49 of this Prospectus.
Application and
Acceptance

Application forms to subscribe for the Offer Shares may be obtained
from Abacus Capital or from any TP.

All applications (the “Application”) shall be evidenced by the
Application to Subscribe form, duly executed in each case by an
authorized signatory of the Applicant and accompanied by:
a. one (1) completed signature card;
b. the corresponding payment for the Offer Shares covered by the
Application;
c. photocopy of two (2) valid identification cards (IDs) for each
signatory, one (1) of which should be a government ID; and
d. all other required documents.

Applications must be received by the Receiving Agent from the TPs
and LSIs not later than 12:00 noon of April 16, 2015. Applications
received thereafter or without the required documents will be
rejected.
Other Documentary
Requirements for
Corporate Applicants

If the Applicant is a corporation, partnership, or trust account, the
Application must be accompanied by the following documents:

a. a certified true copy of the Applicant’s latest Articles of
Incorporation and By-Laws;
b. a certified true copy of the SEC Certificate of Registration of the
Applicant and other constitutive documents, duly certified by its
Corporate Secretary; and
c. a duly notarized Corporate Secretary’s certificate that sets forth:
(i) the resolution of the Applicant’s Board of Directors authorizing
the purchase of the Offer Shares subject of the Application and
designating signatories for the purpose; and
(ii) the specimen signatures of such designated signatories
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Requirements for NonResident Individual or
Foreign Corporate and
Institutional Applicants

In addition to the requirements for corporate applicants, nonresident individuals or foreign corporate and institutional Applicants
are required to submit together with the Application, a
representation and warranty stating that their investing in the Offer
Shares being applied for will not violate the rules and jurisdiction of
incorporation and organization and that they are allowed to acquire
or invest in the Offer Shares.

Right to Accept/Reject/
Scale down
Applications

The actual number of Offer Shares subject of the Application shall be
subject to confirmation by Abacus Capital and the final approval of
the Company. The Company and Abacus Capital reserve the right to
accept, reject, or scale down the number and amount of Offer Shares
covered by the Application. The Company and Abacus Capital have
the right to reallocate available Offer Shares in the event that the
Offer Shares are insufficient to satisfy the total applications received.
The Offer Shares will be allotted in such a manner as the Company
and Abacus Capital, in their sole discretion, may deem appropriate,
subject to the distribution guidelines of the PSE. Applications
received after the expiration of the Offer Period or any extension
thereof or Applications with incomplete requirements shall be
rejected. Applications where checks are dishonored upon first
presentation and Applications that do not comply with the terms of
the Offer shall be rejected. Any payment received pursuant to the
Application does not mean approval or acceptance by the Company of
the Application. Notwithstanding the acceptance of any Application,
the actual subscription of the Offer Shares by the Applicant will be
effected only upon the Listing of the Offer Shares at the PSE.

Refunds

In the event that the number of Offer Shares to be received by an
Applicant, as confirmed by Abacus Capital, is less than the number
covered by its Application, or if an Application is rejected by the
Company, it shall refund, without interest, via check payable to the
Applicant (or in case of joint Applicants to the first named Applicant)
and crossed “Payee’s Account Only”, within five (5) Banking Days
from the end of the Offer Period, all, or a portion of the payment
corresponding to the number of Offer Shares wholly or partially
rejected.
Such refund check shall be made available for pickup at Abacus
Capital’s offices five (5) days after the end of the Offer Period. Refund
checks that remain unclaimed after thirty (30) days from the date
such checks are made available for pickup shall be mailed at the
Applicant’s risk to the address indicated in the Application.
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Registration and
Lodgment of Shares with
the PDTC

All shares are required to be lodged with the Philippine Depository and
Trust Corporation (the “PDTC”). The Applicants must provide the
required information in the space provided in the Application to effect
the lodgment. The PDTC will process the lodgment of the Offer Shares at
least one (1) trading day prior to the listing date. The Offer Shares will
be lodged on the listing date.
The Applicant may request for the uplifting of their shares and to
receive stock certificates evidencing their investment in the Offer Shares
through his/her broker after the listing date. Any expense to be incurred
by such issuance of certificates shall be borne by the Applicant.

Issuance and Transfer
Taxes

All fees of the Stock Transfer Agent, documentary stamp or other taxes,
and other expenses that may be incurred in connection with the sale of
the Offer Shares and the lodgment of the shares, shall be for the account
of the Company.

Registration of Foreign
Investments

The BSP requires that investments in shares of stock funded by inward
remittance of foreign currency be registered with the BSP if the foreign
exchange needed to service capital repatriation or dividend remittance
will be sourced from the banking system. The registration from the BSP
of all foreign investments in the Offer Shares will be the responsibility of
the foreign investors. See “Philippine Foreign Investment, Exchange
Controls, and Foreign Ownership” on page 200 of this Prospectus.

Listing and Trading

It is expected that the Offer Shares shall be listed on the PSE on
April 27, 2015 (“Listing Date”), and trading is expected to commence on
the same date.
In the event that the shares are not listed in the PSE for any reason,
CROWN shall return the payments made by the Applicants for the Offer
Shares under their respective Applications without interest.

Expected Timetable

The expected timetable of the Offer is scheduled as follows:
Pricing Date:
Offer Period:
Submission of Firm Order and
Commitments by Trading Participants:
Deadline of Submission of Applications:
Trading Participants and LSIs
Underwriter
PDTC Processing of Lodgment of Shares:
Listing Date and Commencement
of Trading on the PSE:
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March 26, 2015
April 10 - 17, 2015
April 14, 2015
April 16, 2015
April 17, 2015
April 24, 2015

April 27, 2015

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS AND RISK FACTORS
Before making an investment decision, prospective investors should carefully consider the risks
described below in addition to the other information set forth in this Prospectus. However, this
section does not purport to disclose all risks and other significant aspects of investing in the
Offer Shares. Investors deal in a range of investments, each of which may carry a different level
of risk. The occurrence of any of the events discussed below and any additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that are currently considered immaterial
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects and may cause the market price of the Offer Shares to fall significantly.
The price of securities can and does fluctuate, and any individual security may experience
upward or downward movements or may even become valueless. There is an inherent risk that
losses may be incurred rather than profit made as a result of buying and selling securities. Past
performance is not a guide to future performances. There is an extra risk of losing money when
securities are bought from smaller companies. There may be a big difference between the buying
and selling price of these securities.
The Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The
Company’s actual results may differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking
statements as a result of factors that may include, but are not limited to, those discussed below.
Certain terms used in this description of risk factors are defined elsewhere in this Prospectus.
An investor should seek professional advice if he or she is uncertain of, or has not understood any
aspect of the securities to be invested in or the nature of risks involved in trading of securities,
especially in the trading of high-risk securities. Investors should undertake independent research
regarding the Company and the trading of securities before commencing any trading activity
and may request all publicly available information regarding the Company and the Offer Shares
from the SEC. Each investor should consult his/her own counsel, accountant, and other advisors
as to legal, tax, business, financial, and other related aspects of an investment in the Offer
Shares.
The following risks are listed in the order of importance and discuss fully the factors that make
the offering speculative or risky.
Risks relating to the Company and its Business
Competition in the Compounds Business
The Company’s compounds business is subject to competition against international,
regional, and Philippine manufacturers, which include D&L Industries, Inc., Tosoh Polyvin
Corporation, and Elastobest Manufacturing Corporation. Other existing or potential
competitors may have substantially greater operating, financial, marketing, and other
resources than the Company that would allow them to undertake more aggressive
marketing and to react more quickly and effectively to changes in the markets and in
consumer preferences. Furthermore, the existence of suppliers of PVC compounds outside
of the Philippines poses a risk to the Company as most of its clients are also foreign
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companies that have easy access to the international market. Any increase in the level of
competition in the compounds business that would result in the Company’s clients
shifting to these other suppliers could adversely affect the Company's business, operating,
and financial condition.

The Company believes that its high quality compounds as well as its established and longstanding relationships with its current compounds customers make the Company less
vulnerable to such competitive pressures as compared to other domestic compound
companies. In the Company’s experience, its customers do not change suppliers for
compounds often, or abruptly. Once a supplier is accredited, the customers tend to stay
with the same company for some time. Furthermore, the Company’s unique selling
proposition is its ability to customize the compounds according to its clients’ specific
formulation. Only the Company and a few other compounders are willing to do this
service given the relatively low volume for such special formulations that customers
order.
Competition in the Pipes Business

The Company’s pipes business is subject to more intense competition against local,
regional, and international manufacturers, which include Neltex Development Company,
Inc., Moldex Products, Inc., Atlanta Industries, Inc., and Emerald Vinyl Corporation. The
competitive pressure among PVC pipe manufacturers here and abroad brings about pricecutting. Furthermore, the prospective implementation of a zero tariff regime by 2015
pursuant to the Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) Free Trade Agreement
may also result in the entry of regional players in the Philippine market. This situation
could further exacerbate the competitive pressure and may significantly reduce the
Company's cost advantages and profitability. Given the industry’s competitive nature,
buyers have the power to go for the products offered at the lower price. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to maintain its market share since its Class A pipe
products tend to have a premium price over others in the market. This situation could
have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations and financial
condition.

There may also be instances when pipes are smuggled into the Philippines. These
smuggled products may be manufactured at lower costs and may be sourced from
jurisdictions where the quality standards imposed on such products are less stringent. In
addition, these smuggled products are not subjected to the proper taxes and duties, and
thus may be sold in the market at lower prices than the corresponding products of the
Company. This situation could result in decreased market share for the Company's
products. There can be no assurance that the smuggling of competing materials by third
parties will not increase, and any continued or increased smuggling could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's results of operations and financial condition.
The Company believes that its high quality pipe products protect it from competitive
pressures from other pipe manufacturers in the Philippines, particularly in projects that
require high quality products over lower quality pipes. The Company continually seeks
product accreditations with architectural firms, construction companies, and leading
property developers so that its pipe products become the preferred choice for their
respective projects. With the use of the Company’s pipe products in major property
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development projects, it believes that consumers will recognize the CROWN® brand and
patronize it as well. The Company’s major customers in Project Sales include the major
construction and property development companies, as well as proponents and
contractors of major Public-Private Partnership (PPP) projects.
Furthermore, the Company maintains a strategic level of its pipes and fittings inventory.
This enables the Company to supply the needs of its customers promptly, eliminating the
lead time required to import products to meet customers’ demands compared to some of
the pipe suppliers in the Philippines, especially on the HDPE line.
Raw Material Cost and Availability

The Company's margins depend on the selling prices that the Company is able to charge
for its products and the costs of the raw materials and other inputs that it requires to
produce these products. The primary raw materials that the Company utilizes in the
manufacture of its products include PVC resins, polymers, stabilizers, and plasticizers. The
prices of these primary raw materials represent a substantial portion of the Company's
costs. The price of these raw materials are influenced by factors that the Company cannot
control, such as market conditions, general global economic conditions, production
capacity in the markets, production constraints on the part of the Company's suppliers,
fluctuations in oil or other commodity prices, infrastructure failures, political conditions,
weather conditions, regulations and other factors.
In addition, the raw materials that the Company requires may be unavailable in adequate
quantities at commercially reasonable terms in the future. Furthermore, any late
deliveries of strategic raw materials may cause delays in the completion of certain of the
Company's products or product components. In particular, the current congestion
situation in Manila’s primary seaports has caused delays in the withdrawal and release of
imported products, including certain raw materials that the Company uses for the
production of both compounds and pipe products. Operational interruptions resulting
from supply shortages, or delayed deliveries of certain raw materials can adversely affect
the Company's profitability.

To protect itself against adverse movements in the prices of raw materials, the Company
usually maintains a raw materials inventory equivalent to around 45-60 days of
production. Also, in the event that any of the Company's suppliers is subject to a major
production disruption or is unable to meet its obligations under existing supply
arrangements, the Company can purchase such inputs from any of its other accredited
local and foreign suppliers that the Company had already dealt with in the past. The
Company also has a list of approved alternative materials that can substitute the raw
materials it currently uses.
Operating or Process Failures and Quality Assurance

PVC pipes dominate the plastic pipes market with significant application in the
construction and building industry. Given the increasing competition in plastic pipes
market, the quality of the products will need to adhere to certain standards to ensure its
reliability and effectiveness.
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Any problems that the Company may incur in relation to the quality of its products can
affect how the Company’s customers perceive its products. This situation could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, operations, and financial condition.

The Company has established quality assurance and control procedures for both its
Compounds and Pipes Groups. It has dedicated quality assurance laboratories and
competent and professional staff for each of its quality assurance departments in the
Compounds and Pipes Groups. In addition, for its Pipes Group, CROWN pipes undergo
additional testing externally through the project-clients’ technical consultants and/or
accredited laboratories. This quality control process enables the Company to bid for
projects that require compliance with these stringent quality standards.
The Company’s CROWN Electrical and CROWN Blue product lines are certified by the
Bureau of Product Standards (“BPS”), whereby these products follow the Philippine
National Standards (“PNS”). These standards are patterned after internationally observed
standards like the International Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) and American
Society for Testing and Materials (“ASTM”).

Furthermore, in the Company’s continuing commitment to maintain the highest level of
quality in its operations and products, the Company owns and continues to update its ISO
certifications, certifying that CROWN operates a quality management system that has
been assessed as conforming to ISO 9001:2008 for the manufacture and distribution of
both compounds and uPVC products. These assure the Company of high quality products
for delivery to its customers. The ISO certifications are valid for three (3) years. The ISO
certification for the Pipes Group is valid until June 25, 2015, while the ISO certification for
the Compounds Group is valid until April 6, 2016.
Labor Matters

As of March 25, 2015, the Company has 137 regular employees, 36 probationary
employees, and 73 contractual employees, totaling 246 employees.

As with labor intensive industries, the Company may be exposed to the risk of industrial
or labor disputes, as what happened sometime in the second half of 2012 when the
Company experienced downtime on some machineries that were misused by some
personnel.
To help insulate itself from similar incidents in the future, the Company has undertaken
the following measures:

(a) Lessen the dependence on regular, rank and file employees by also engaging
contractual employees. The Company has existing agreements with two (2)
independent job contractors namely (i) Direct Sales Support & Personnel Services Inc.
and (ii) Metro Jobs & Payments Solutions Inc. for the supply to the Company of
services generally performed by these contractors in the usual line of their business,
including but not limited to, providing temporary and substitute services for absent
employees, additional work required by seasonal increases in the demand for the
Company’s products and services, and other exigencies. These two companies provide
workers that are deployed to the production department, motorpool, engineering
27

department, and warehouse. Both agreements were renewed on June 11, 2014 and
will end on June 10, 2015 unless sooner terminated by either party for any reasonable
cause with prior written notice of at least fifteen (15) days.

(b) Adoption of a policy in December 2013, that for the Company’s Production
Department, only licensed mechanical or electrical engineers are to be allowed to
access the equipment, from the set up of the equipment parameters at the start of
every shift up to the running of the production lines to ensure output quality. With this
policy, the intervention by rank and file employees is limited to handling the finished
goods at the end of each production line.
The Company’s management (“Management”) believes that current relations with its
employees and workers are generally good and cordial. At present, the Company’s regular
employees are not unionized and none of its employees is under any collective bargaining
agreement.
See the section entitled “Employees” on page 115 of this Prospectus.
Power Shortages

The Company has been relying primarily on mainstream power for the production of
compounds and PVC pipes that requires a significant amount of stable power load for its
24-hour operations. Based on forecasts made in October 2014, the Department of Energy
expects power supply shortages of about 900 megawatt (MW) in the Luzon grid in 2015, a
revision from the previous assessment of 600-800 MW deficit, due to the delay in the 150
MW coal plant expansion of DMCI and the effect of the mild El Niño weather disturbance. 4

Any downtime of the Company's operations over an extended period, due to power
interruptions, would have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
operations, and financial condition.

At present, the Company has a standby generator set to partially address the prospective
power shortage that will affect the country starting 2015. The Company is also assessing
the purchase and installation of additional standby generator sets to increase its auxiliary
power capacities in the event of power outages.
Implementation of Business Plans and Strategies

4

The Company's future financial performance and success largely depend on its ability to
implement its business strategies successfully. There can be no assurance that the
Company will successfully implement the business strategies described in this Prospectus
or those to be developed by its Management, or that implementing these strategies will
sustain or improve and not harm its results of operations in targeted sectors. The
Company's business strategies are based on assumptions about future demand for its
current products and the new products and applications it is developing, as well as on its
continuing ability to produce its products profitably. The Company's ability to implement

http://www.msn.com/en-ph/news/other/doe-eyes-add%E2%80%99l-447-mw-capacity-by-march/ar-BB8VXMa
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its business strategies depends on, among other things, its ability to finance its operations
and product development activities, maintain high quality and efficient manufacturing
operations, respond to competitive and regulatory changes, access quality raw materials
in a cost-effective and timely manner, and retain and attract highly-skilled technical,
managerial, marketing and finance personnel.

In order to ensure that the Company remains focused on meeting its business plans and
strategies, it has an active Executive Committee (“ExeCom”) that meets regularly to
review the business plan and operations status, as well as craft and review policies,
review Human Resource concerns, and address other matters that warrant immediate
attention. The ExeCom also discusses market developments with the sales and marketing
groups to update actions being undertaken by competitors and how best to address these
matters. Furthermore, the Compounds and Pipes Groups’ general managers regularly
meet with major buyers and customers to assess their needs, concerns, and issues with
the Company, if there are any. The feedback received helps the ExeCom assess whether
changes or adjustments in the business plan will be necessary to meet the established
objectives and targets. With a regular review of plans relative to actual results, the
ExeCom makes the necessary adjustments or corrective measures to ensure that the
Company comes back on track with its plans.
Centralized Facilities Location

The Company's facilities are subject to hazards inherent in manufacturing and related use,
storage, transportation and disposal of raw materials, products and wastes, including but
not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

facility leaks and ruptures;
fires and explosions;
accidents;
mechanical failures;
unplanned production or power outages;
unpermitted discharges or releases of toxic or hazardous substances or gases;
other environmental risks; and
sabotage or terrorist attacks.

These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, catastrophic damage to, or
destruction of, property and equipment and environmental contamination or other
damage, and may result in a suspension of operations and the imposition penalties and
fines.
All of the Company's manufacturing and production facilities are located in Bo. Tuktukan,
Guiguinto, Bulacan. As a result, the Company is subject to significant risks associated with
companies with facilities located in a single area. For example, if Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto,
Bulacan experiences floods due to strong rains, or unplanned power outages, the
Company's facilities may not be able to function and this will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's operations. Moreover, the Company's main facilities are located
in a residential and commercial area in Guiguinto, Bulacan and any hazards the Company
is subject to may affect the residents and other enterprises in the area as well.
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Any extended shutdown of the Company's operating facilities as a result of any of the
abovementioned factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
operating and financial condition.

The Company has never experienced any work stoppage or shut down due to flooding in
its immediate area. Nevertheless, in 2014, the Company commissioned the design and
construction of a flood control system for the entire Bulacan compound. In this system,
rainwater from the roofing and surface water flow through existing canals to the
constructed cistern tank at the lowest portion of the Bulacan compound. If the water level
in the cistern tank rises to a certain height setting, the water automatically gets pumped
out to the flood control canals that run from the cistern tank and out to the municipal
drainage pipes outside the compound. Furthermore, the PP-R and HDPE pipe plant and
warehouses being constructed (where a portion of its funding will be coming from the
proceeds of the IPO) were also designed to have its own flood control system whereby its
floors are elevated and canals are built inside the buildings to drain water to the cistern
tank.

Furthermore, the plant layout is such that there are separate and distinct buildings
allotted for the manufacture and warehousing of the Company’s products. These include
two (2) compounds manufacturing plants, three (3) compounds warehouses, two (2)
pipes manufacturing plants, and four (4) pipes warehouses. This also mitigates the risk of
incidents from happening in the entire Bulacan compound.
Imitation or Infringement of the Company’s Intellectual Property Rights

The Company’s “CROWN”, “CROWN SUPREME”, “CROWN BLUE”, “CROWNFLEX”,
“ENDURO WITH CROWN DEVICE”, “HI TECH WITH CROWN LOGO”, “PETROVIN & CROWN
DEVICE”, “CROWN EXTREME”, “TECHNOVINYL & CROWN DEVICE WITHIN THE CIRCLE”,
and “CROWN UNIVERSAL” trademarks under license are very well established in the
Philippines, and these trademarks are used in the marketing and promotion of Crown
PVC, HDPE, and PP-R pipe products to the general public. Please refer to the sub-section
entitled “Trademarks and Copyrights” of this Prospectus for more details.
In the event that the Company’s trademarks under license are imitated or otherwise
infringed, the Company’s reputation and business may be adversely affected. There can be
no assurance that these trademarks will not be susceptible to imitation or other
infringement. In the event that the Company initiates legal or other proceedings to enforce
its intellectual property rights, there can be no assurance that it will succeed in such
proceedings or be able to obtain favorable outcomes at a reasonable cost or at all.

The Company has its own Legal Department and full-time lawyers that can handle such
legal action. Thus, legal expenses can be kept under control should a litigation matter
arise. Furthermore, the Intellectual Property Office closely coordinates with the National
Bureau of Investigation (NBI), which apprehends infringement violators, thus the
Company believes that infringement cases can be easily resolved.
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Existence of other Companies that Use “Crown Asia” in their Corporate Name
The Company was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 10, 1989 as
“Crown Asia Compounders Corporation”. On September 29, 2014, the SEC approved the
change of the Company’s name to “Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation”.

The Company acknowledges that as of the date of this Prospectus, other companies have
valid registrations with the SEC with the words “Crown Asia” as part of their corporate
names. This includes a prominent subsidiary of a major listed property development
corporation incorporated on August 31, 1995 but is engaged mainly in the development of
residential subdivisions and construction of housing and condominium units in the
Philippines, an industry totally different from that of the Company.
The Management confirms that the Company is not in any way connected to these other
companies, especially the subsidiary of a prominent listed property company.

The Company's business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected by the use of “Crown Asia” by other companies or if the Company
was restricted from using such corporate name because the Company believes that the
reputation and track record it has established under its corporate name is key to its future
growth. To date, however, the Company has not been made party, nor threatened to be
made party, to any action arising from its use of “Crown Asia” as part of its corporate
name.
Dependence on Members of Executive Committee

The Company has and will continue to depend on the continued individual and collective
contributions and services of its senior management team comprised of Mr. Walter H.
Villanueva, Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva, Mr. Nicasio T. Perez,
Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva, Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva, and Mr. Hans Joseph T.
Perez, collectively known as the Executive Committee (ExeCom). Their responsibilities
include discussion and resolution of operational and human resource issues, drafting of
necessary policies to enhance operational and control systems, review of the current
systems that require updating, and other relevant matters that may, can, or will affect the
Company. Furthermore, the ExeCom approves the salary adjustments of Company
employees after reviewing job performances submitted by the departmental managers
annually.

The Company believes that it has enough managerial talent that can be tapped to fill in
possible vacancies in the ExeCom. The members of the ExeCom are subject to election by
the Board of Directors, and, thus, there is no exclusivity for the incumbent members to
stay in the position. The Company believes that there are other officers that can be tapped
to become members of the ExeCom. Furthermore, the Company has been hiring
professional managers that are not family members, to manage key activities within the
Company. The Company believes that the loss of one or a few existing ExeCom members
will have no material adverse impact on the Company’s business, operations, and financial
condition.
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Related Party Transactions
A portion of the businesses undertaken, and the products distributed by the Company are
conducted or manufactured by companies owned or controlled by the Villanueva-Perez
Family. The operations of certain companies owned and controlled by the VillanuevaPerez Family are interdependent. These related transactions include those described
under “Related Party Transactions” and in the notes to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. In the future, the Company
may continue to enter into transactions with companies directly or indirectly controlled
by or associated with the Villanueva-Perez Family for as long as the transactions continue
to inure to the benefit of the Company.
The Company treats its related parties just like any other supplier. The terms and
conditions should be competitive and are all done on an “arms-length” basis. In the event
the said related parties cannot service the requirements of the Company, it will turn to
other suppliers that have been duly accredited by the Company.
Interests of Primary Stockholders may differ from Interests of other Stockholders

Through direct and indirect interests, the Villanueva-Perez Family effectively controls the
Company. Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva,
and Mr. Nicasio T. Perez, along with other second-generation members of the VillanuevaPerez Family, serve in various capacities as directors of the boards and officers of CROWN.
These positions allow the Villanueva-Perez Family to control shareholder decisions and
exercise significant control over board decisions in CROWN.

On September 5, 2014, the Company adopted its Manual of Corporate Governance
(“Manual”), which provides the framework of rules, systems, and processes that governs
the performance of the Board of Directors and Management of their respective duties and
responsibilities to stockholders and other stakeholders. This is in pursuit of transparency,
accountability, fairness, and integrity." The Company’s Manual under Section 7
Shareholders Benefit spells out the provisions for investor rights and protection.
Furthermore, Article VIII of the By-laws prohibits relatives of Board members up to the
fourth civil degree of consanguinity to sit in the Board if he/she has business interest
similar to or in direct competition with the business of the Company.

In addition, the Company has two (2) independent directors in its Board. Both have
established professional track records and work experiences in the field of finance,
banking, and marketing. Both directors are also accomplished professionals in their
respective fields.

Also, the Company had long adopted A Code of Business Conduct that sets the standards of
ethical business practices, protecting integrity and values with third parties, proper
conduct outside the Company, outside business activities, non-competition with the
Company’s business, handling of confidential information, and protection of Company’s
resources.
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Risks relating to the Philippines
Political or Social Instability in the Philippines
The Philippines has from time to time experienced political and social instability. The
Philippine Constitution provides that, in times of national emergency, when the public
interest so requires, the Government may take over and direct the operation of any
privately-owned public utility or business. In the last few years, there were instances of
political instability, including public and military protests arising from alleged misconduct
by the previous administration.

The Priority Development Assistance Fund (PDAF) scam, also called the pork barrel scam,
is a political scandal involving the alleged misuse by several members of the Congress of
the Philippines of their PDAF, a lump-sum discretionary fund granted to each member of
Congress for spending on priority development projects of the Philippine government,
mostly on the local level. The scam’s mastermind is said to be the businesswoman Janet
Lim-Napoles who was pointed out as the leader by Benhur K. Luy, her second cousin and
former personal assistant. 5 Initially centering on Napoles' involvement in the 2004
Fertilizer Fund scam, the government investigation on Luy's testimony has since
expanded to cover Napoles' involvement in a wider scam involving the misuse of PDAF
funds from 2003 to 2013. This type of instability and any other potential instability could
have an adverse effect on the Philippine economy, the Company’s business, and the
Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

On July 1, 2014, the Philippine Supreme Court declared that certain acts done in
furtherance of the Disbursement Acceleration Program (DAP) of the Executive Branch,
National Budget Circular No. 541 and related executive issuances were unconstitutional
for having violated the doctrine of separation of powers particularly, (a) the withdrawal of
unobligated allotments and the declaration of such withdrawn unobligated allotments and
unreleased appropriations as “savings” without having complied with the statutory
definition of savings under the General Appropriations Act, (b) the cross-border transfers
of the savings of the Executive to augment appropriations of other offices outside the
Executive; and (c) the funding of projects, activities and programs that were not covered
by any appropriation in the General Appropriations Act. The Supreme Court also declared
as void the use of un-programmed funds despite the absence of a certification by the
National Treasurer that the revenue collections exceeded the revenue targets for noncompliance with the conditions in the relevant General Appropriations Acts.
No assurance can be given that the political environment in the Philippines will stabilize
and any political or social instability in the future could result in inconsistent or sudden
changes in regulations and policies that affect the Company or its partners, which could
have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

5

Lawas, Hector (April 5, 2013). "NBI pressing abduction quiz". People's Journal (Philippine Journalists, Inc.).
Retrieved August 19, 2013.
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Territorial and other disputes with China and a number of Southeast Asian countries
may disrupt the Philippine economy and business environment
The Philippines, China, and several Southeast Asian nations have been engaged in a series
of long-standing territorial disputes over certain islands in the West Philippine Sea, also
known as the South China Sea. Despite efforts to reach a compromise, a dispute arose
between the Philippines and China over a group of small islands and reefs known as the
Scarborough Shoal. In April and May 2012, the Philippines and China accused one another
of deploying vessels to the shoal in an attempt to take control of the area, and both sides
unilaterally imposed fishing bans at the shoal during the late spring and summer of 2012.
These actions threatened to disrupt trade and other ties between the two countries,
including a temporary ban by China on Philippine banana imports, as well as a temporary
suspension of tours to the Philippines by Chinese travel agencies. Since July 2012, Chinese
vessels have reportedly turned away Philippine fishing boats attempting to enter the
shoal, and the Philippines has continued to protest China’s presence there. In January
2013, the Philippines sent notice to the Chinese embassy in Manila that it intended to seek
international arbitration to resolve the dispute under the United Nations Convention on
the Law of the Sea. China has rejected and returned the notice sent by the Philippines
requesting arbitral proceedings. Chinese vessels have also recently confronted Philippine
vessels in the area, and the Chinese government has warned the Philippines against what
it calls provocative actions. Recent talks between the Philippines and the United States of
America about increased American military presence in the country, particularly through
possible American forays into and use of Philippine military installations, may further
increase tensions.

In early March 2013, several hundred armed Filipino-Muslim followers of Sultan Jamalul
Kiram III, the self-proclaimed Sultan of Sulu from the south of the Philippines, illegally
entered Lahad Datu, Sabah, Malaysia in a bid to enforce the Sultan of Sulu’s historical
claim on the territory. As a result of the illegal entry, these followers engaged in a threeweek standoff with the Malaysian armed forces, resulting in casualties on both sides.
Clashes between the Malaysian authorities and followers of the Sultan of Sulu have killed
at least 98 Filipino-Muslims and 10 Malaysian policemen since March 1, 2013. In addition,
about 4,000 Filipino-Muslims working in Sabah have reportedly returned to the southern
Philippines.
On May 9, 2013, a Philippine Coast Guard ship opened fire on a Taiwanese fisherman’s
vessel in a disputed exclusive economic zone between Taiwan and the Philippines, killing
a 65-year old Taiwanese fisherman. Although the Philippine government maintained that
the loss of life was unintended, Taiwan imposed economic sanctions on the Philippines in
the aftermath of the incident. Taiwan eventually lifted the sanctions in August 2013 after a
formal apology was issued by the Government of the Philippines. However, the incident
has raised tensions between the two countries.
Should territorial disputes between the Philippines and other countries in the region
continue or escalate further, the Philippines and its economy may be disrupted and the
Company’s operations could be adversely affected as a result. In particular, further
disputes between the Philippines and other countries may lead to reciprocal trade
restrictions on imports or suspension of visa-free access and/or OFW permits.
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Sovereign Credit Ratings of the Philippines
In 2013, the Company experienced three (3) credit ratings upgrade. The sovereign credit
ratings of the Government directly and adversely affect companies resident in the
Philippines as international credit rating agencies issue credit ratings by reference to that
of the sovereign. No assurance can be given that Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or any other
international credit rating agency will not downgrade the credit ratings of the
Government in the future and, therefore, of Philippine companies. Any of such
downgrades could have an adverse impact on the liquidity in the Philippine financial
markets, and the ability of the Government, Philippine companies including CROWN, to
raise additional financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which
such additional financing is available.
Volatility in the Value of Peso against the US Dollar and other Currencies

Historically, the Philippines has experienced volatility in the exchange rate between the
Philippine peso and the U.S. dollar, as well as against other currencies. The Philippines has
also experienced volatility of the prices of shares traded on the domestic stock market. We
cannot assure prospective investors that one or more of these factors will not negatively
impact Philippine consumers’ purchasing power or product preferences, which could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations.
Occurrence of Natural Calamities

The Philippines has experienced a significant number of major natural calamities over the
years, including typhoons, volcanic eruptions and earthquakes.

In 2013 alone, the Philippines suffered a powerful tropical cyclone and a deadly
earthquake that killed thousands and left billions of pesos in damage to infrastructure and
properties. In October 2013, an earthquake with 7.2 magnitude struck the provinces of
Bohol and Cebu, killing more than 200 people and displacing tens of thousands of
residents. In the month after, Typhoon Yolanda, the deadliest Philippine typhoon on
record, hit the Philippines, killing at least 6,268 people.
Natural calamities may disrupt the Company’s ability to deliver its products to the affected
areas. The Philippines has also experienced power outages from power generation
shortages and transmission problems, and from disruptions such as typhoons and floods.
These types of events may materially disrupt and adversely affect the Company’s business
and operations. The Company cannot assure prospective investors that the insurance
coverage the Company maintains will adequately compensate it for all damages and
economic losses resulting from natural catastrophes, including possible business
interruptions.
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Risks relating to the Offer and the Offer Shares
Listing of Offer Shares on the PSE
The subscribers of the Offer Shares are required to pay in full for their subscription upon
submission of their Applications during the Offer Period. Although the PSE has approved
the Company’s application to list the Offer Shares, there can be no guarantee that listing
will occur on the set Listing Date or at all. Delays in the commencement of trading in
shares of the PSE have occurred in the past. If the PSE does not list the Offer Shares, the
market for the Offer Shares will be illiquid and stockholders may not be able to trade the
Offer Shares. However, they would be able to sell their shares by negotiated sale. This may
materially and adversely affect the value of the Offer Shares.
Trading and Liquidity

The Company’s common stock will be traded on the PSE. The trading of the Offer Shares,
however, is not expected to commence until 10 calendar days after the end of the Offer
Period, thereby making an investment in the Offer Shares illiquid during those 10
calendar days. There can be no assurance that a holder of the Offer Shares will be able to
dispose of such Offer Shares in a timely manner. As a result, a holder of such Offer Shares
may not be able to take full advantage of market gains during periods of share price
increases and conversely, may not be able to limit losses during periods of sharp price
declines.
Market Volatility

The market price of securities fluctuates, and it is impossible to predict whether the price
of such securities will rise or fall. An individual security may experience upward or
downward movements, and may even lose its entire value. There is an inherent risk that
losses may be incurred rather than profits made as a result of buying and selling
securities. There may also be a substantial difference between the buying price and the
selling price of each security.

Historical price performance is not a guide for future price performance and there may be
a big difference between the purchase price of the securities and the eventual price at
which these securities are sold. The market price of the Offer Shares will be influenced by,
among other factors, the Company’s financial position, results of operations, and overall
stock market conditions, as well as Philippine economic, political, and other factors.
Effect of Future Sales of Shares in the Public Market

In order to finance the expansion of the Company's business and operations, the Board
will consider the funding options available to them at the time, which may include the
issuance of new Shares. If additional funds are raised through the issuance of new equity
or equity-linked securities by the Company other than on a pro rata basis to existing
stockholders, the percentage ownership of the stockholders may be reduced, stockholders
may experience subsequent dilution and/or such securities may have rights, preferences
and privileges senior to those of the Offer Shares.
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Further, the market price of the Shares could decline as a result of future sales of
substantial amounts of the Shares in the public market or the issuance of new Shares, or
the perception that such sales, transfers or issuances may occur. This could also materially
and adversely affect the prevailing market price of the Shares or the Company's ability to
raise capital in the future at a time and at a price it deems appropriate.

The PSE rules require an applicant company to cause its existing stockholders owning at
least 10.00% of the outstanding shares of the Company not to sell, assign or in any
manner dispose of their shares for a period of 180 days after the listing of the shares. To
implement this lock-up requirement, the PSE requires the applicant company to enter into
an escrow agreement with the trust department or custodian unit of an independent and
reputable financial institution for the physical lock-up of the shares. The Selling
Shareholder is covered by this lock-up requirement. After the lapse of the lock-up period,
the Company, the Selling Shareholder, and the escrow agent will cause the lodgment of the
shares previously locked-up with the PDTC through a PCD Participant in compliance with
the rules on lodgment of the securities of the PSE.
Except for such restrictions, there is no restriction on the Company's ability to issue
Shares or the ability of any of the Company's stockholders to dispose of, encumber or
pledge, their Shares, and there can be no assurance that the Company will not issue Shares
or that such stockholders will not dispose of, encumber, or pledge their Shares.
Dividend Declarations and Pay-Out

There is no assurance that the Company can or will declare dividends on the Shares in the
future. Future dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend
upon the Company's future results of operations and general financial condition, capital
requirements, its ability to receive dividends and other distributions and payments from
its subsidiaries, foreign exchange rates, legal, regulatory and contractual restrictions, loan
obligations, and other factors the Board may deem relevant.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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USE OF PROCEEDS
The gross proceeds from the Offer will amount to P222,780,000.00. The net proceeds from
the Offer of the Offer Shares, after deducting the estimated related expenses to the Offer, will
amount to P203,988,360.88 and will accrue to the Company.
The following table shows the breakdown of the Offer proceeds:
Table 3: Breakdown of Proceeds from Offer
Particulars
Gross Proceeds
Estimated Offer Expenses
Total

Amount
P222,780,000.00
18,791,639.12
P203,988,360.88

The subsequent table shows the estimated breakdown of the expenses to the Offer:
Table 4: Breakdown of Estimated Offer Expenses
Particulars
Issue Management and Underwriting Fees and Selling Commission
Taxes
Estimated Legal and Audit Fees
PSE Listing and Processing Fees
SEC Registration and Filing Fees
Estimated Stock Transfer Agency Fees
Estimated Receiving and Escrow Bank Fees
PDTC Processing Fees
Estimated Other Related Expenses
Total

Amount
P6,683,400.00
5,245,600.00
3,600,000.00
1,052,159.36
655,676.85
150,000.00
150,000.00
54,802.91
1,200,000.00
P18,791,639.12

The estimated other related expenses are broken down as follows:

Table 5: Breakdown of Estimated Other Related Expenses
Particulars
Amount
Estimated Printing of Selling Materials
P500,000.00
Estimated Roadshow presentation expenses
300,000.00
Estimated Publication Fees
200,000.00
Estimated Out-of-Pocket Expenses
200,000.00
Total
P1,200,000.00

The Company will deposit in escrow the net proceeds of the Offer to be released based on the
schedule of disbursements in accordance with the work program disclosed herein.
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The net proceeds from the Offer will be used for the following, in order of priority and subject
to the succeeding paragraph: (a) construction of PP-R and HDPE manufacturing plant and
warehouse, and purchase of equipment; (b) debt retirement; (c) modernization of existing
compounds and pipes plants; and (d) working capital purposes.
The following table shows the allocation of the net proceeds based on an Offer Price of P1.41
per share.
Table 6: Breakdown of Net Proceeds from Offer

Purpose

Amount

Construction of PP-R and HDPE
manufacturing plant and warehouse,
and Purchase of PP-R and HDPE
equipment
Debt retirement
Modernization of Existing
Compounds and Pipes Plants
Working capital purposes
Total

Date of
Disbursement

P66,200,000.00

2nd Quarter 2015

25,000,000.00

2nd Quarter 2015

43,800,000.00
68,988,360.88

P203,988,360.88

2nd Quarter 2015
Immediately after
offer

In the event that the actual expenses relating to the Offer differ from the above estimates, the
actual net proceeds may be higher or lower than the expected net proceeds set forth above.
This may arise in the event that the quotations provided by the supplier/s change in
amount/s due to the appreciation of Peso, renegotiation of prices, and/or availability of other
suppliers that can offer same quality of work or service at a lower cost. Any increase or
decrease in the net proceeds will be addressed by corresponding adjustments to the
Company’s provision for working capital requirements.
Construction of PP-R and HDPE Manufacturing Plant and Warehouse, and Purchase of
PP-R and HDPE Equipment
In 2006, the Company entered the HDPE market through marketing and trading HDPE
pipes and fittings under the CROWN brand. The HDPE pipes sold were supplied by a pipes
manufacturer and importer that manufactured the HDPE pipes and imported the fittings.
After the favorable market acceptance of CROWN HDPE pipes and fittings, the Company
started manufacturing its own HDPE pipes in November 2013 utilizing one (1) of its
existing extrusion machineries for this product line while the HDPE fittings continued to
be sourced from importers. The level of production proved to be insufficient to maintain
ideal stock levels to meet the growing customers’ orders. As such, the Management
decided to increase HDPE production, which requires the establishment of a dedicated full
production line.

The Company also decided to diversify further its product lines to include PP-R pipes and
fittings as construction projects are expected to continue to come on-line over the next
several years with the foreseen demand in the construction sector. Furthermore, the
39

Company decided to be the first to embark on the manufacture of a complete line of PP-R
fittings in the Philippines. It should be noted that even though there are PP-R pipe
manufacturers in the Philippines, they do not manufacture their own PP-R fittings and
instead just import these. The Company’s plan to manufacture its own PP-R fittings will
ensure a perfect fit with the Company’s PP-R pipes while maintaining the quality standard
and ready availability to serve the needs of its customers promptly.
The Company estimates the cost to construct the PP-R and HDPE manufacturing and
warehouse facilities and to purchase the PP-R and HDPE equipment to amount to P111.08
million. The construction of the plant and warehouse is estimated to cost about P73.48
million and the purchase of the equipment to cost about P37.61 million.

The new manufacturing facilities will have capacities of 4,800 MTPA for its PP-R line and
4,500 MTPA for its HDPE line. These will be situated on the adjacent lot to be acquired
from Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation (“GIWICO”), a related party. The
estimates for the cost of the construction of the PP-R and HDPE plant and warehouse are
as follows:

Table 7: PP-R and HDPE Pipes Plant and Warehouse Cost Estimate
Particulars
PP-R/HDPE Plant
PP-R/HDPE 2-Storey Warehouse
Electrical Related Expense
Total PP-R and HDPE Pipes Plant and Warehouse Cost Estimate

Amount in PHP
₱19,569,180
43,155,488
10,751,927
₱73,476,595

The equipment to be purchased will include extruders, mixers, moulds, printer, and all
necessary peripheral machine parts. This endeavor will also require the acquisition of 169
metal moulds. The estimates for the cost of the equipment are as follows:

Table 8: PP-R and HDPE Pipes Equipment Cost Estimate 6
Particulars
PP-R Pipes
PP-R fitting moulds
PP-R Pipe produce lines
Horizontal mixer
PP-R Pipe Equipment Subtotal
HDPE Pipes
HDPE Pipe screw line
Complete peripheral machine parts
Ink jet printer
HDPE Pipe extruders
HDPE Pipe Equipment Subtotal
Total PP-R & HDPE Pipes Equipment Cost Estimate

6

Amount

Amount in PHP

$560,000
130,000
3,700
693,700

₱24,988,021
5,800,791
165,099
₱30,953,911

$116,000
27,443
3,250
2,400
$149,093
$842,793

₱5,176,090
1,224,547
145,020
107,092
₱6,652,748
₱37,606,660

Exchange Rates are 30-day averages as of January 31, 2015: US$:PHP at 44.6215
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The Company is earmarking P73.00 million from the IPO proceeds to construct the PP-R
and HDPE pipes plant and warehouse and P37.00 million from the IPO proceeds to
purchase the PP-R and HDPE pipes equipment. In the event that the actual costs of
constructing the plant and warehouse and purchasing the equipment exceed the
earmarked amounts, the difference will be sourced from internally generated funds.

On October 20, 2014, the Company availed of a P22,750,000.00 loan from Security Bank
Corporation (“SBC”) for the downpayment of its purchase of PP-R and HDPE equipment.
On October 21, 2014, the Company availed of a P21,050,000.00 loan from the same bank
for the construction of the PP-R and HDPE manufacturing and warehouse facilities. In this
regard, the Company earmarks P66,200,000.00 from the proceeds of the IPO to fully fund
the remainder of the estimated cost to construct the PP-R and HDPE manufacturing and
warehouse facilities and equipment, to be disbursed immediately after the IPO.
Debt Retirement

The Company has a credit facility from SBC in the form of an omnibus line of
P110,000,000.00. The line covers a loan line, letter of credit and trust receipt line, and
domestic bills of purchase line. Loan availments are covered by Promissory notes with
maturities up to 180 days and renewable for subsequent terms of up to 180 days. Interest
rates follow the approved rate for the Company and interest charges are collected on a
monthly basis. Interest rates may be adjusted based on prevailing market trends.

Current outstanding and unpaid drawings of the Company on the SBC credit facility
amounts to Forty Three Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos (P43,800,000.00) as of
March 25, 2015. The details of the loan balance are shown below, presented in the order
of maturities:
Table 9: SBC Loan Details as of March 25, 2015
Value Date

Maturity Date

Amount

Interest
Rate

October 21, 2014

May 19, 2015

P21,050,000.00

4.25%

October 20, 2014

April 17, 2015

P22,750,000.00

4.25%

Total

P43,800,000.00

Purpose
Construction
Expense related to
PP-R and HDPE
Manufacturing
Plant
Purchase of PP-R
and HDPE
Equipment

The Company is allocating Forty Three Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos
(P43,800,000.00)of the net proceeds to settle its short-term obligations with SBC.

The Company intends to roll all loans from SBC maturing prior to the receipt of proceeds
from the IPO. The proceeds from the IPO allocated to the retirement of debt with SBC will
cover the entire loan balance with the said bank.
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Modernization of Existing Compounds and Pipes Plants
The Company continuously upgrades and modernizes its plants to ensure the smooth
operation of its business, having spent P43.72 million, P20.96 million, and P63.40 million
in 2012, 2013, and 2014 in capital expenditures, respectively. In this regard, the Company
is earmarking P25.00 million to acquire new equipment, which includes extruders, shrink
film line, die cutter, power quality analyzer, and data logger.
The estimates for the compounds and pipes equipment are as follows:
Table 10: PVC Pipes and Compounds Equipment Cost Estimate 7
Particulars
Amount
Compounds
Parallel type twin screw extruder
$210,000
Shrink film line
$45,500
Pneumatic die cutter set
€4,393.00
Power quality analyzer
Data logger
Compounds Equipment Subtotal
PVC Pipes
PVC pipe extruder line
$280,620
PVC Pipes Equipment Subtotal
Total Compounds and PVC Pipes Equipment Cost Estimate

Amount in PHP
₱9,370,508
2,030,277
231,386
437,696
190,000
₱12,259,866
₱12,521,676
₱12,521,676
₱24,781,542

In the event that the actual costs of purchasing the equipment exceed the earmarked
amount, the difference will be sourced from internally generated funds.
Working Capital Purposes

The Company intends to allocate the balance of the net proceeds amounting to
approximately P68.99 million for the general working capital requirements of CROWN.

As with all manufacturing businesses, the majority of working capital are used up to
maintain sufficient level of raw materials inventory to ensure no disruption in the
production of finished goods and likewise to sustain adequate level of finished products to
deliver to customers in a timely manner.

The requirements for working capital are also to sustain funds flow. Sales to customers
are mostly on credit terms of not more than 90 days before most receivables are
converted to cash. On the other hand, the Company adheres to a prompt payment policy to
settle obligations to suppliers.

7

Exchange Rates are 30-day averages as of January 31, 2015: US$:PHP at 44.6215 and Euro:PHP at 52.6714
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Furthermore, since the new PP-R and HDPE manufacturing and warehouse facilities will
operate 24/7, it will incur additional manufacturing and operating overhead such as
salaries, electricity, and repairs among others. As the Company also has to embark on an
aggressive campaign to introduce the new products, additional marketing and advertising
costs will be incurred. More sales personnel will likewise be employed to ensure market
penetration and cover wider areas.
In the event of any deviation or adjustment in the planned use of proceeds, CROWN shall
inform the SEC and the PSE in writing thirty (30) days before such deviation or adjustment is
implemented. Any material or substantial adjustments to the use of proceeds, as indicative
above, should be approved by CROWN’s Board of Directors and disclosed to the PSE. In
addition, CROWN shall submit via the PSE’s Electronic Disclosure Generation Technology
(“PSE EDGE”) the following disclosure to ensure transparency in the use of proceeds:

a. Any disbursements made in connection with the planned use of proceeds from the
Offer;
b. Quarterly Progress Report on the application of the proceeds from the Offer on or
before the first 15 days of the following quarter;
c. Annual summary of the application of the proceeds on or before January 31 of the
following year; and
d. Approval by CROWN’s Board of Directors of any reallocation on the planned use of
proceeds.

CROWN shall submit an independent auditor’s certification on the accuracy of the
information reported by CROWN to the PSE in CROWN’s quarterly and annual reports as
required in items (b) and (c) above.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
The following description of the Company’s capital stock does not purport to be complete or to
give full effect to the provisions of law and is in all respects qualified by reference to the
applicable provisions of the Company’s Amended Articles and By-Laws.
Share Capital
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company’s authorized capital stock is
P1,300,000,000.00, consisting of 1,300,000,000 Common Shares with a par value of P1.00 per
share, of which 472,800,000 Common Shares are issued and outstanding.

Subject to the approval of the SEC, the Company may increase or decrease its authorized
capital, provided that the increase or decrease is with the approval of a majority of the Board
of Directors and by its stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding
capital stock of the Company.
After the completion of the Offer, 48.52% of the Company’s authorized capital stock shall be
issued and outstanding.
Rights Relating to the Common Shares
Voting Rights
Each Common Share entitles the holder to one (1) vote.

At each meeting of the stockholders, every stockholder entitled to vote on a particular
question or matter involved shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each share of stock
standing in his name in the books of the Company at the time of the closing of the transfer
books for such meeting.

In the election of Directors, each stockholder, in person or by proxy, is entitled to such
number of votes as is equivalent to the product of the number of Common Shares owned
by him multiplied by the number of Directors to be elected. The stockholder may
cumulate his votes in favor of one (1) or more candidates as he may see fit. A Director may
also be removed by the vote of stockholders representing two-thirds (2/3) of the
outstanding voting shares.
Voting rights cannot be exercised with respect to shares declared delinquent or treasury
shares, or if a shareholder has elected to exercise his appraisal right.
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Pre-emptive Rights
The Corporation Code provides that all stockholders of a stock corporation will enjoy preemptive right to subscribe to all issues or disposition of shares of any class, in proportion
to their respective shareholdings, unless such right is denied by the articles of
incorporation or an amendment thereto. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation,
pre-emptive rights are denied as to all issuances or dispositions of the Company’s
Common Shares.
The Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation state that:

“No stockholder shall have a right to purchase or subscribe to any additional share of
the capital stock of the corporation whether such shares of capital stock are now or
hereafter authorized, whether or not such stock is convertible into or exchangeable for
any stock of the Corporation or of any other class, and whether out of the number of
shares authorized by the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation as originally
filed, or by any amendment thereof, or out of shares of the capital stock of any class of
the Corporation acquired by it after the issue thereof; nor shall any holder of any such
stock of any class, as such holder, have any right to purchase or subscribe for any
obligation which the Corporation may issue or sell that shall be convertible into, or
exchangeable for, any shares of the capital stock of any class of the Corporation or to
which shall be attached or appertain any warrant or warrants or any instrument or
instruments that shall confer upon the owner of such obligation, warrant or
instrument the right to subscribe for, or to purchase from the Corporation, any shares
of its capital stock of any class.
The Board of Directors may, from time to time, grant stock options, issue warrants or
enter into stock purchase reciprocal investments, private placements, joint ventures,
or similar agreements for purpose necessary or desirable for the Corporation and
allocate, issue, sell or otherwise transfer, convey or dispose of shares of stock of the
Corporation of a class or classes and to such persons or entities to be determined by
the Board, including, but not limited, to employees, officers and directors of the
corporation.
The foregoing shall be printed on the stock certificates of the Corporation."

Dividend Rights

Dividends may be declared from the unrestricted retained earnings of the Company at
such time and in such percentage or amount as the Board of Directors may deem proper.
No dividend shall be declared that will impair the capital stock of the Company.

Under Philippine law, a corporation can only declare dividends to the extent that it has
unrestricted retained earnings that represent the undistributed earnings of the
corporation that have not been allocated for any purpose. A corporation may pay
dividends in cash, in property or by the issuance of shares. Stock dividends may only be
declared and paid with the approval of stockholders representing at least two-thirds of
the issued and outstanding capital stock of the corporation voting at a stockholders’
meeting duly called for the purpose.
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The Corporation Code requires, as a general rule, that a corporation with retained
earnings in excess of 100.00% of its paid-in capital declares and distributes as dividends
the amount of such surplus. Notwithstanding this requirement, a corporation may retain
all or any portion of such surplus in the following cases: (a) when justified by definite
expansion plans approved by the board of directors of the corporation; (b) when the
required consent of any financing institution or creditor to such distribution has not been
secured; or (c) when retention is necessary under special circumstances, such as when
there is a need for special reserves for probable contingencies.
Please see further discussion under “Dividends and Dividend Policy”.
Appraisal Rights

The Corporation Code grants a shareholder a right of appraisal in certain circumstances
where he has dissented and voted against a proposed corporate action, including:

a. An amendment of the articles of incorporation that has the effect of adversely
affecting the rights attached to his shares or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence;
b. The sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposal of all or
substantially all the assets of the corporation; and
c. A merger or consolidation.

In any of these circumstances, the dissenting shareholder may require the Company to
purchase its shares at a fair value, which in default of agreement is determined by three
disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named by the shareholder, one by the
Company, and the third by the two thus chosen. In the event of a dispute, the SEC will
determine any question about whether a dissenting shareholder is entitled to this right of
appraisal. This remedy will only be available if the Company has unrestricted retained
earnings sufficient to support the purchase of the shares of the shares of the dissenting
stockholders. From the time the shareholder makes a demand for payment until the
Company purchases such shares, all rights accruing on the shares, including voting and
dividend rights, shall be suspended, except the right of the shareholder to receive the fair
value of the share.
Access to Corporate Books and Records

Stockholders have the right to inspect the books and records of the Company, including
the minutes of all Board and stockholders’ meetings, and records of business transactions
of the Company. However, the right of inspection may be denied if the shareholder
seeking to examine the corporate records is not acting in good faith or for a legitimate
purpose in making the demand for inspection or has improperly used any information
secured through any prior examination of the records of such corporation or any other
corporation.
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Liquidation Rights
Each shareholder is entitled to a pro rata share in the assets of the Company available for
distribution to the stockholders in the event of dissolution, liquidation and winding up,
subject to the superior rights of the creditors of the Company.
Derivative Rights

Philippine law recognizes the right of a shareholder to institute proceedings on behalf of
the Company in a derivative action in circumstances where the Company itself is unable
or unwilling to institute necessary proceedings to redress wrongs committed against the
Company or to vindicate corporate rights such as, for example, where the directors
themselves are the malefactors.

Treasury Shares

Subject to the authorization of the SEC, the Company may acquire its own Common Shares,
provided that, it has unrestricted retained earnings to pay for the Common Shares to be
acquired or purchased and only for a legitimate corporate purpose/s.

The Common Shares repurchased by the Company shall become treasury shares that may
again be disposed of at a reasonable price as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. These
treasury shares have neither voting rights nor dividend rights as long as they remain as
treasury shares.
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company does not hold any treasury shares.
Other Securities
The Company has not issued any other form of securities other than its Common Shares.
Transfer of Common Shares
All transfer of legal title to the Common Shares must be evidenced by a transfer document in a
form acceptable to the Company, and must be registered in the share register of the Company.
The law does not require the transfer of the Common Shares to be effected through the PSE.
However, off-exchange sales will subject the transferor to a capital gains tax that is
significantly greater than the share transfer tax applicable to sales effected through the PSE.
All sales of Common Shares listed on the PSE must be effected through a licensed stockbroker
in the Philippines. No share of stock against which the Company holds unpaid claims, like
unpaid subscriptions due and payable shall be transferable in the books of the Company. In
case of delinquent shares, no stock certificate, either physical or electronic, shall be issued to
a shareholder until the full amount of his/her subscription together with interest and
expenses, if any is due, has been paid.
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Stock Transfer Agent
The Company’s stock and transfer book is maintained at the principal office of the Company’s
stock transfer agent, Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation – Stock Transfer Processing
Section.
Changes in Control
There are no existing provisions in the amended Articles of Incorporation and amended ByLaws of the Company, which may cause delay, deferment, or in any manner prevent a change
in control of the Company.
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DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company is authorized to distribute dividends out of its surplus profit, in cash, properties
of the Company, shares of stock, and/or securities of other companies belonging to the
Company. Dividends paid in the form of cash or property is subject to approval of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Dividends paid in the form of additional shares are subject to
the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders that own at least twothirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. Holders of outstanding Common
Shares as of a dividend record date will be entitled to full dividends declared without regard
to any subsequent transfer of such shares.

On March 4, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved its dividend policy
wherein it shall distribute to its stockholders as dividends, whether cash, property or stock, at
least ten percent (10.00%) of the Company's net income after tax for the previous fiscal year,
subject to the provision of sufficient funds for the implementation of the Company’s business
plan, operating expenses and budget, appropriation for expansion projects (as applicable),
lenders' requirements, appropriate reserves and applicable laws.
From 2012 to March 2015, the Company declared cash dividends as follows:

Table 11: Cash Dividend Payout: 2012 – March 2015
Year
2012

Declaration
Date

Record
Date

Dec. 4, 2012
May 16, 2013
Dec. 9, 2013
Mar. 4, 2014

Nov. 30, 2012
May 16, 2013
Nov. 30, 2013
Mar. 31, 2014

Payment
Date

Dec. 27, 2012
May 31, 2013
2013
Dec. 19, 2013
2014
May 30, 2014
Jan. 30, 2015
January 2015
Jan. 16, 2015
Jan. 15, 2015
Feb. 25, 2015
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

Amount
P5,000,000
7,000,000
5,000,000
7,000,000
12,500,000
12,500,000
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Cash
Dividends
per Share
P0.0500
P0.0148
P0.0106
P0.0148
P0.0264
P0.0264

Dividend
Rate
109.89%
43.31%
14.07%

50.25%

In the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders on September 5, 2014,
it was approved that the Company would issue out 34.01% stock dividends. Subsequently, the
Board of Directors in their meeting on November 3, 2014 set the distribution date of the stock
dividends to November 6, 2014. The effect of such issuance is as follows:
Name
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie Lee Peñaranda
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Total

No. of
Shares
Before Stock
Dividends
70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
1
1
352,800,000

Additional
Shares
via Stock
Dividends
24,000,000
18,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
0
0
120,000,000

No. of
Shares
After Stock
Dividends
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
472,800,000
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Amount
Subscribed
and Paid-Up
(in P0.00)
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
472,800,000

HISTORY OF SHARE ISSUANCES
Below is the history of the Company’s Common Share issuances and subscriptions from the date
of incorporation up to the present.

The Company was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 10, 1989 with an
authorized capital stock of Ten Million Pesos (P10,000,000.00) divided into One Hundred
Thousand (100,000) Shares with a par value of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00) per share. The
following are the incorporators of the Company with the number of shares and amount originally
subscribed and paid-up:
Name

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Wilson H. Villanueva
Total

Nationality

No. of Shares

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

5,000
2,500
2,500
2,500
2,500
2,500
1,250
1,250
1,250
1,250
2,500
25,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
500,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
125,000
125,000
125,000
125,000
250,000
2,500,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
125,500
62,500
62,500
62,500
62,500
62,500
31,250
31,250
31,250
31,250
62,500
625,500

The balance on the unpaid amount on the subscribed shares was subsequently paid by all the
stockholders. Consequently, the stock certificates covering the Twenty Five Thousand (25,000)
shares were issued on May 12, 1990. Further, on June 8, 1990, the Company issued additional
shares to its stockholders as follows:
Name
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Wilson H. Villanueva
Total

Nationality

Additional
No. of Shares

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

15,000
12,500
7,500
7,500
7,500
7,500
3,750
3,750
3,750
3,750
2,500
75,000

Additional
Amount
Subscribed
and Paid-up
(in P0.00)
1,500,000
1,250,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
375,000
375,000
375,000
375,000
250,000
7,500,000

Total
No. of Shares
20,000
15,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
100,000

Total
Amount
Subscribed
and Paid-up
(in P0.00)
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
10,000,000

Consequently, the stock certificates covering the Seventy Five Thousand (75,000) shares were
issued on the same date.
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On January 25, 2013, the SEC approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of the
Company, from Ten Million Pesos (P10,000,000.00) divided into One Hundred Thousand
(100,000) Shares with a par value of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00) per share to One Billion,
Three Hundred Million Pesos (P1,300,000,000.00) divided into One Billion, Three Hundred
Million (1,300,000,000) shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share. Shown below is
the adjusted shareholdings of the stockholders from a par value of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00)
per share to One Peso (P1.00) per share:
Name

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Heirs of Wilson H. Villanueva
Total

Nationality

No. of Shares

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
10,000,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
10,000,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
10,000,000

Out of the increase in authorized capital stock, Three Hundred Forty Two Million, Eight Hundred
Thousand Pesos (P342,800,000.00) worth of shares have been subscribed and fully paid for
through the assignment of stockholders’ advances to the Company for a total subscription price of
Three Hundred Forty Two Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos (P342,800,000.00). The
resulting ownership structure after the increase in authorized capital stock is as follows:
Name

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Heirs of Wilson H. Villanueva
Total

Nationality

No. of Shares

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
352,800,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
352,800,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
352,800,000

Consequently, the stock certificates covering the Three Hundred Forty Two Million, Eight
Hundred Thousand (342,800,000) shares were issued on the same date.

In accordance with the Extrajudicial Settlement of the estate of Wilson H. Villanueva dated March
7, 2011 executed by and among his heirs, namely Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva, Michael Warren P.
Lee Villanueva, Johanns P. Lee Villanueva, and Natalie V. Peñaranda, the resulting ownership
structure after the Company recorded the transfer in the names of the said heirs and after the
increase in authorized capital stock is as follows:
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Name

Nationality

No. of Shares

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Total

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
352,800,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
352,800,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
70,560,000
52,920,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
352,800,000

On May 16, 2013, stockholders Walter H. Villanueva and Eugene H. Lee Villanueva assigned their
One (1) share each to Derrick P. Villanueva and Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva, respectively, as
qualifying shares for directorship. The corresponding stock certificates covering the two (2)
shares were issued on the same date. The resulting ownership structure after the increase in
authorized capital stock and the assignment of qualifying shares is as follows:
Name

Nationality

No. of Shares

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Total

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
1
1
352,800,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
1
1
352,800,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
1
1
352,800,000

In the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders on September 5, 2014, it
was approved that the Company would issue out 34.01% stock dividends. Subsequently, the
Board of Directors in their meeting on November 3, 2014 set the distribution date of the stock
dividends to November 6, 2014. The resulting ownership structure after the distribution of the
stock dividends on November 6, 2014 is as follows:
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Name

No. of Shares
Before Stock
Dividends

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Total

70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,280,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
17,640,000
8,820,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
2,940,000
1
1
352,800,000

Additional
Shares
via Stock
Dividends
24,000,000
18,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
120,000,000

No. of Shares
After Stock
Dividends
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
472,800,000

Amount
Subscribed and
Paid-Up
(in P0.00)
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,280,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
472,800,000

Consequently, the stock certificates covering the One Hundred Twenty Million (120,000,000)
shares were issued on the same date.

Further, in the same joint meeting on September 5, 2014, the Company’s stockholders elected and
appointed Mrs. Marie Therese G. Santos and Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto as their independent
directors. Their qualifying shares were assigned by stockholders Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva and Mr.
Nicasio T. Perez, respectively. Thus, the resulting ownership structure is as follows:
Name

Nationality

No. of Shares

Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Marie Therese G. Santos
Ernesto R. Alberto
Total

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,279,999
47,279,999
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
1
1
472,800,000

Amount
Subscribed
(in P0.00)
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,279,999
47,279,999
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
1
1
472,800,000

Amount
Paid-up
(in P0.00)
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,279,999
47,279,999
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
1
1

Consequently, the stock certificates covering the two (2) shares were issued on the same date.
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DETERMINATION OF OFFER PRICE
The Offer Shares are being offered at the Offer Price of One Peso and Forty-One Centavos
(P1.41) per share. Prior to the Offer, there has been no public trading market for the Offer
Shares. The Offer Price was established by the Company in consultation with Abacus Capital.
The factors considered in determining the Offer Price were the following:

a. The Company’s capability to generate and increase revenues of its current operations;
b. The Company’s capability to prospective revenues based on its business plans;
c. The estimates of the potential incremental revenues on the Company’s expansion
plans;
d. The additional capital required by the Company for its expansion plans;
e. The dilution of the existing stockholders;
f. The prevailing market conditions; and
g. The market price of listed comparable companies in the PSE and in foreign stock
exchanges.
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CAPITALIZATION
The following table sets out the capitalization of the Company based on the audited financial
statements as of December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014, as adjusted to reflect the issuance of the
Offer Shares at the Offer Price of P1.41 per share, after deducting estimated fees and expenses
from the Offer. See “Use of Proceeds” for the breakdown of the estimated fees and expenses.
Table 12: CROWN Capitalization
Amounts in Pmillions
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings short term
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Advances from stockholders
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Amounts for future stock subscription
Retained earnings
Total Capitalization

2012
P1.81

3.96
0.05
10.00
342.80
81.88
P440.49

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

2013
P2.74

4.71
0.05
352.80
119.62
P479.92

2014
P71.28

3.63
0.05
472.80
58.00
P605.76

Pro-Forma
2014
P71.28

3.63
0.05
630.80
64.78
39.21
P809.75

For additional information, refer to the financial statements and accompanying notes
included in Annex I of this Prospectus.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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DILUTION
As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s net tangible book value is P562,559,047.00 or P1.19
per share. The net tangible book value represents total assets less its total liabilities and
trademarks. The Company’s net tangible book value per share represents its net tangible
book value divided by the number of common shares outstanding.
After giving effect to the increase in the Company’s total assets to reflect its receipt of the net
proceeds of the Offer amounting to approximately P203,988,360.88 and the addition of
158,000,000 primary Common Shares subject of the Offer, the Company’s pro forma net
tangible book value would be P766,547,407.88 or P1.22 per share. This represents an
immediate increase of P0.03 per share to existing stockholders and dilution of P0.19 per
share to the investors participating in the Offer.

Dilution in pro-forma net tangible book value per share represents the estimated difference
between the Offer Price and the approximate pro-forma net tangible book value per share
immediately following the completion of the Offer.
The following table illustrates dilution on a per Share basis based on an Offer Price of P1.41
per Offer Share:

Table 13: Dilution

Offer Price per Share

P1.41

Pro-forma Net-Tangible Book Value per Share after the Offer

P1.22

Net Tangible Book Value per Share as at December 31, 2014

Increase per share to Existing Stockholders attributable to the Offer
Net Tangible Book Value Dilution per Share to IPO Investors

(a)

P1.19

(b)

P0.03

(d=c-b)

P0.19

(c)

(e=a-c)

The following table sets out the shareholdings, and percentage of shares outstanding, of
existing and new stockholders of the Company immediately after completion of the Offer:
Table 14: Shares Outstanding after Offer
Number of Shares
Existing stockholders
472,800,000
New investors
158,000,000
Total
630,800,000

Percentage
74.95%
25.05%
100.00%

See also “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Offer and the Offer Shares – Effect of Future
Sales of Shares in the Public Market” on page 36 of this Prospectus.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
The Company is offering to the public One Hundred Fifty-Eight Million (158,000,000) primary
Common Shares with a par value of P1.00 per share, which are being made available for
subscription in the Philippines at the Offer Price of One Peso and Forty-One Centavos (P1.41)
per share. The Offer Shares will be issued out of its existing authorized capital stock of One
Billion, Three Hundred Million Pesos (P1,300,000,000.00) divided into One Billion, Three
Hundred Million (1,300,000,000) Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per
share. The Offer Shares will represent 25.05% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares
of the Company after the Offer. All of the Offer Shares shall be primary shares to be taken
from the existing authorized capital stock of the Company. No secondary shares shall form
part of the Offer.
Distribution of the Offer
Pursuant to the rules of the PSE, the Company will make available Thirty One Million, Six
Hundred Thousand (31,600,000) Offer Shares comprising 20.00% of the Offer for distribution
to the TPs. The total number of Offer Shares allocated to the TPs will be distributed following
the procedures indicated in the implementing guidelines for the Offer Shares to be distributed
by the PSE.

TPs who take up the Offer Shares shall be entitled to a selling commission of one percent
(1.00%) of the Offer Shares taken up and purchased by the relevant Trading Participant. The
selling commission, less withholding taxes of 10.00%, will be paid to the TPs within eight (8)
banking days after the Listing Date.
The TPs may be allowed to subscribe for their dealer accounts provided that, if they opt to sell
the Offer Shares to the clients during the Offer Period, it must be at a price not higher than the
Offer Price per share. Likewise, the TPs are prohibited from selling the Offer Shares after the
end of the Offer Period and before the Listing Date.

The Company will make available Fifteen Million, Eight Hundred Thousand (15,800,000)
Offer Shares, or 10.00% of the Offer, shall be made available to LSIs. An LSI is defined as a
share subscriber who is willing to subscribe a minimum board lot or whose subscription does
not exceed P25,000.00. Should the total demand for the Offer Shares in the LSI program
exceed the maximum allocation, Abacus Capital shall allocate the Offer Shares by balloting,
except when LSI demand is five times (5.0x) or more than the initial allocation, which will
increase the allocation to 15.00% of total Offer.
Abacus Capital will distribute One Hundred Ten Million, Six Hundred Thousand
(110,600,000) Offer Shares, or 70.00% of the Offer Shares, directly to the general public.
Abacus Capital has agreed to underwrite the whole Offer on a firm basis. Prior to closing of
the Offer, any allocation of Offer Shares not taken up by the TPs and the LSIs shall be
subscribed and/or distributed by Abacus Capital to their clients or the general public in the
Philippines.
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To facilitate the Offer, the Company has appointed Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation
as the Issue Manager and Underwriter for the IPO.
The Issue Manager and Underwriter
Abacus Capital was incorporated in the Philippines on January 6, 1995. It has an authorized
capital stock of P600,000,000.00, of which P500,000,000.00 represents its paid-up capital.
The SEC granted it registration and authorization to act as an investment house, valid unless
suspended or revoked for cause or cancelled by the SEC or voluntarily surrendered by the
registrant, allowing Abacus Capital to act as issue manager and underwriter.

Abacus Capital is a culmination of a group of Filipino businessmen and entrepreneurs’
objective to further their presence in the Philippine capital markets after years of success in
the stock brokerage business. Since it started operations in 1995, Abacus Capital had actively
participated in a number of initial public offering transactions. As a full-service investment
house, Abacus Capital provides the full line of corporate finance and merchant banking
products and services.

Abacus Capital, as the Issue Manager and Underwriter, represents and warrants that it has
exercised the level of due diligence required under existing regulations in ascertaining that all
material information appearing in this Prospectus are true and correct as of the date
indicated herein. Abacus Capital also warrants and represents that, to the best of its
knowledge, after exercising the appropriate due diligence review, there are no other material
facts, the omission of which would make any statement in the Prospectus, as a whole,
misleading. Except for failure to exercise the required due diligence review, Abacus Capital
assumes no liability for any information supplied in this Prospectus.

Abacus Capital does not have any direct or indirect interest in the Company or in any
securities thereof, including options, warrants, or rights thereto. Furthermore, it does not
have any relationship with the Company other than as the Issue Manager and Underwriter for
the Offer. Abacus Capital also has no direct relations with the Company in terms of ownership
by either their respective major stockholders, and has no right to designate or nominate any
member of the Company’s board of directors.
There is no contract or arrangement existing between the Company, Abacus Capital, or any
other third party whereby Abacus Capital may return any unsold securities from the Offer.
Underwriting Commitment
The Offer will be underwritten on a firm commitment basis at the Offer Price. Abacus Capital
and the Issuer will enter into, on or before the start of the Offer Period, an Underwriting
Agreement wherein Abacus Capital will agree to subscribe for, or procure subscribers for the
Offer Shares.
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The Underwriting Agreement is subject to certain conditions and is subject to termination by
Abacus Capital if certain circumstances, including force majeure, occur on or before the time
the Shares are listed on the PSE. In addition, the Underwriting Agreement is conditional on
the Offer Shares being listed on the PSE on or before the stipulated Listing Date, or at such
other date as Abacus Capital and the Company may agree on. Under the terms and conditions
of the Underwriting Agreement, the Company has agreed to indemnify Abacus Capital in
respect of any breach of warranty by the Company as contained therein.
Underwriting Fees
The issue management, underwriting fee, and selling commission to be derived by Abacus
Capital from the Offer shall be based on an underwriting fee equivalent to three percent
(3.00%) of the gross proceeds of the Offer. A portion of the selling commission will be ceded
to the Selling Agents as compensation for their services during the selling phase of the IPO
process.

All reasonable out-of-pocket expenses to be incurred by Abacus Capital in connection with
the Offer shall be for the account of the Company.
Relationship with the Issuer
No relationship exists between Abacus Capital and the Company other than as stated in the
Underwriting Agreement entered into by both parties.
The Selling Agents
The TPs shall act as Selling Agents for the Issue, pursuant to the distribution guidelines of the
PSE. The TPs who take up Offer Shares shall be entitled to a selling commission of one percent
(1.00%) of the Offer Shares taken up and purchased by the relevant TPs. The selling
commission, less withholding taxes of 10.00%, will be paid to the TPs within eight (8)
banking days after the Listing Date.
Finders
There are no finders involved in this Offer.
(This space was intentionally left blank)
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
The following table presents the ownership structure of the Company as of the date of this
Prospectus, and the expected ownership structure immediately following the completion of
the Offer:

Table 15: Pre and Post IPO Ownership Structure
Shareholder
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Marie Therese G. Santos
Ernesto R. Alberto
Public
Total

Nationality
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Shares owned Prior
to the Offer
Number of
Percent to
Shares
Total
94,559,999
20.00%
70,919,999
15.00%
47,280,000
10.00%
47,280,000
10.00%
47,279,999
10.00%
47,279,999
10.00%
23,640,000
5.00%
23,640,000
5.00%
23,640,000
5.00%
23,640,000
5.00%
11,820,000
2.50%
3,940,000
0.83%
3,940,000
0.83%
3,940,000
0.83%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
0.00%
472,800,000
100.00%

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

Shares owned
After the Offer
Number of
Percent to
Shares
Total
94,559,999
14.99%
70,919,999
11.24%
47,280,000
7.50%
47,280,000
7.50%
47,279,999
7.50%
47,279,999
7.50%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
11,820,000
1.87%
3,940,000
0.62%
3,940,000
0.62%
3,940,000
0.62%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
1
0.00%
158,000,000
25.05%
630,800,000
100.00%

Lock-Up
Pursuant to the Listing Rules for the Main and Small, Medium and Emerging (“SME”) Boards
of the PSE, the Company’s existing stockholders who own at least 10.00% of the outstanding
shares of stock shall enter into an escrow agreement with an escrow agent not to sell, assign,
or in any manner dispose of their shares for a period of one hundred (180) days after Listing
Date.

Furthermore, shares issued and fully paid for within one hundred (180) days prior to the
start of the Offer Period, with a transaction price lower than that of the Offer Price in the IPO
shall likewise be locked up for at least three hundred sixty five (365) days from full payment
of said shares.
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On September 5, 2014, the Company declared stock dividends of 120,000,000 common
shares, representing 34.01% of the issued and outstanding shares prior to the dividend
declaration. These shares were issued on November 6, 2014. Given that the issuance is within
the 180 days and that the issuance price (i.e. par value) is transaction price lower than the
IPO price, then all of the existing stockholders of the Company prior to the IPO will be subject
to the Lock-Up requirement of 365 days from issuance of said shares. Furthermore, some of
the stockholders own at least 10.00% of the Company’s total shareholdings prior to the IPO,
and thus are also subject to the 180 days lock-up period commencing on the Listing Date. The
following are covered by the lock-up requirement:
No of Shares
Subject to
Lock-Up for
180 days
70,559,999
52,919,999
35,280,000
35,280,000
35,279,999
35,279,999
264,599,996

Shareholder
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Walter H. Villanueva
Jefferson T. Sy
Christie T. Perez
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Oscar T. Perez
Gloria P. Go
Meda T. Perez
Sofia P. Po
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Total

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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No of Shares
Subject to
Lock-Up for
365 days
24,000,000
18,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
120,000,000

INTERESTS OF NAMED EXPERTS AND INDEPENDENT COUNSEL
Legal Counsel
Legal matters in connection with the Offer have been passed upon for the Company by Tan
Venturanza Valdez, the Legal Counsel to the Issue. The said counsel has no shareholdings in
the Company, or any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to
subscribe to the securities of the Company, in accordance with the standards of independence
required in the Code of Professional Responsibility and as prescribed by the Supreme Court of
the Philippines.

Tan Venturanza Valdez does not have and will not receive any direct or indirect interest in
the Company or in any of the Company’s securities (including options, warrants or rights
thereto) pursuant to, or in connection with the Offer Shares, and has not acted as promoter,
underwriter, voting trustee, or as CROWN employees.
Independent Auditors

The Audited Financial Statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013,
and 2014, including the notes thereto that are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus,
have been reviewed without qualification by Punongbayan & Araullo (“P&A”), auditors as
stated in their reports appearing herein.
There have been no disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures between the
Company and its current independent auditors for calendar years 2012, 2013, and 2014. P&A
has neither shareholdings in the Company nor any right, whether legally enforceable or not,
to nominate persons or to subscribe for the securities in the Company. P&A has no, and will
not receive any, direct or indirect interest in the Company or in any securities pursuant to or
in connection with the Issue in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines set by the Board of Accountancy and approved by the
Professional Regulation Commission.

The Company’s Audit Committee will review and approve the scope of audit work of the
independent auditor and the amount of audit fees. The amount will then be presented for
approval by the stockholders in the annual meeting. The scope of and amounts of any service
rendered by the independent auditors other than the audit and preparation of financial
statements, are subject to review and approval by the Audit Committee.
P&A does not have and will not receive any direct or indirect interest in the Company or in
any of the Company’s securities (including options, warrants or rights thereto) pursuant to,
or in connection with the Offer Shares, and has not acted as promoter, underwriter, voting
trustee, or as CROWN employees.
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THE COMPANY
The following discussion of the Company’s business contains forward-looking statements, which
involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results may differ materially from those
anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not
limited to, those set forth under “Investment Considerations and Risks Factors” and elsewhere in
this Prospectus.
History and Development
The Company was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 10, 1989 as Crown
Asia Compounders Corporation. On September 29, 2014, the SEC approved the change of the
Company’s name to “Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation”. Its primary purpose is to engage in,
operate, conduct and maintain the business of manufacturing, importing, exporting, buying,
selling or otherwise dealing in, at wholesale and retail such goods as; plastic and/or synthetic
resins and compounds and other allied or related products/goods of same/similar nature,
and any and all equipment, materials supplies used or employed in or related to the
manufacture of such products. Its registered address and principal place of business is at Km.
33 MacArthur Highway, Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto, Bulacan, Philippines.
At present, the Company is engaged in the production of plastic compounds, pipes, and
related products for direct and indirect use in the construction and telecommunications
industries. Specifically, it is engaged in the production of plastic compounds and PVC pellets,
and the manufacture of plastic pipes.

The Company started commercial operations in 1990 with the trading of imported PE
compounds and paraffin waxes. In the same year, the Company started the production and
sales of PVC compounds at its plant in Guiguinto, Bulacan with an operating capacity of 1,800
MTPA of PVC compounds with just 22 employees. The Company started exporting its PVC
compounds in 1995.
On March 1, 1998, CROWN was assessed and approved by QMS an ISO 9002:1994
certification for having quality administration systems as a manufacturer and distributor of
chemical compounds.

Capitalizing on its expertise in PVC formulation, CROWN expanded downstream into the
manufacture of industrial plastic pipes under the CROWN® pipes brand for electrical,
sanitary, potable water, and telecommunications applications.
In 1998, the Company began the production of PVC flexible electrical pipes using the latest
German machinery (Battenfeld and Fränkische) and technology at that time. Soon after, the
Company’s range of product lines expanded further with the introduction of PVC electrical
conduit pipes and potable water pipes in 2000, and sanitary pipes and fittings in 2002.
In 2003, CROWN saw the opportunity to expand the application of its PVC compounds beyond
wires and cables. It started to develop and market PVC compounds for use in IC packaging
tubes, films and bottles, as well as door and window profiles.
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In 2006, the Company started to explore the HDPE market by engaging in marketing and
trading HDPE pipes and fittings under the CROWN brand to test the market. The HDPE pipes
were supplied by an HDPE pipes manufacturer and importer that manufactured the pipes and
imported the fittings. The HDPE products were marketed under the CROWN pipes brand
since they were produced following the specifications of the Company. The HDPE products
were subjected to quality assurance testing that ensured its conformity with CROWN Pipes
quality standards. After the favorable market acceptance of CROWN HDPE pipes and fittings,
the Company started manufacturing its own HDPE pipes in November 2013 utilizing one (1)
of its existing extrusion machineries for this product line while the HDPE fittings continued to
be sourced from importers.

The Company also has expanded its lines to include pressure main distribution pipes and
telecommunication conduit pipes in 2006.
In its 25 years of operations, the Company has transformed CROWN® into a premium brand
that is committed to excellence in product quality, reliability and safety, thereby earning the
trust and confidence of architects, builders, and key players in the construction industry.

As of March 25, 2015, the Company has 137 regular employees, 36 probationary employees,
and 73 contractual employees, totaling 246 employees. The Company also has an operating
capacity of 15,000 MTPA for its compounds business and 8,500 MTPA for its pipes business.
The Company continues to update its ISO certifications in its continuing commitment to
maintain the highest level of quality in its operations and products. On June 26, 2012, CIP
issued a certification of registration to CROWN for its Pipes Group, certifying that CROWN
operates a quality management system that has been assessed as conforming to ISO
9001:2008 standards for the manufacture and distribution of unplasticized polyvinyl chloride
(“uPVC”) pipes for potable water, electrical, sanitary, pressure main pipes, multi-purpose
pipes, and distribution of pipe fittings, valid until June 25, 2015. In addition, on April 7, 2013,
CIP issued a certification of registration to the Company for its Compounds Group, certifying
that CROWN operates a quality management system that has been assessed as conforming to
ISO 9001:2008 standards for the design, development, manufacture, and distribution of
thermoplastic compounds for various applications in the construction, telecommunications,
automotive, and packaging industries, valid until April 6, 2016. These ISO certifications are
valid for three (3) years.
The Company sells its plastic compounds to manufacturers of wires and cables, IC tubes, films
and sheets, bottles, among others. For the past three years, the Company sold 58.06% of its
compounds to the local market and the balance to the export market. On the other hand, the
Company sells its pipe products purely to the local market.
In 2014, the Company generated revenues of P850.74 million and net income of P65.38
million. It had total assets of P829.05 million and total equity of P562.90 million.

The Company is owned by the Villanueva and Perez families, collectively owning 74.95% of
the Company after the Offering.
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Since its incorporation, CROWN has not been the subject of any bankruptcy, receivership, or
similar proceedings. For the last three (3) years prior to this Prospectus and to date, the
Company has not undergone any material reclassification, or purchase or sale of a significant
amount of assets not classified as ordinary.
Corporate Vision Mission Statements
The corporate vision statement of the Company is:

“To be the most highly regarded and leading supplier of quality construction products
in the Philippines and international markets.”

The corporate mission statement of the Company is:

“To strive for market leadership in the Philippines by offering innovative and
technologically up-to-date construction products that meet or exceed both national
and international standards, thus ensuring quality, reliability, and value for money
for our customers, and upholding a nurturing environment for our employees where
talents are developed, while always managing the business professionally and with
integrity for good returns to our shareholders.”

Corporate Core Values
The following are the guiding principles of the Company that guides its internal conduct as
well as its relationship with the external world:

C
R
O
W
N

–

Commitment to integrity in generating profitable returns

–

World class products that are innovative and of the latest technology

–
–

Reputation for quality, reliability, and value for money

Outstanding products that meet or exceed national and international standards

– Nurturing of our employees so that they can develop their talents while working
towards a common goal

Competitive Strengths

Established Track Record Resulting in Long-Term Customer Relationships
The Company has 25 years of operating history in the Philippines, offering high quality
products, reliable and responsive customer service, and value for money prices that has
resulted in a customer base comprising some of the largest Philippine and multinational
corporations in the construction, telecommunications, automotive, and packaging
industries. More importantly, the Company believes that its experience and track record
have enabled it to foster long-standing and collaborative relationships with most of its
major customers, some of whom the Company has served for nearly 25 years. The
Company believes that the strong relationship it has with customers has been a key driver
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of its growth over the past years, allowing it to steadily increase the products sold to longstanding customers, as well as presenting numerous cross-selling opportunities across its
product portfolio to such customers.
Quality Products

The Company has established quality assurance and control procedures for both its
Compounds and Pipes Groups. It has dedicated quality assurance laboratories, and
competent and professional staff for each of its quality assurance departments in the
different groups.
The Company’s CROWN Electrical and CROWN Blue product lines are certified by the BPS,
whereby these products follow the PNS. These standards are patterned after
internationally observed standards like the ISO and ASTM.
Furthermore, in the Company’s continuing commitment to maintain the highest level of
quality in its operations and products, the Company owns and continues to update its ISO
certifications, certifying that CROWN operates a quality management system that has
been assessed as conforming to ISO 9001:2008 for the manufacture and distribution of
both compounds and uPVC products. These assure the Company of high quality products
for delivery to its customers.
Unique Product Offerings

The Company’s products have unique selling propositions.

Advanced Technical Expertise for Custom Production of Compounds

The Company believes that it is able to leverage its technical expertise and know-how
to adjust and tailor its products using proprietary formula according to its customers'
specifications and requirements. This capability allows the Company to respond
quickly to requests for high quality customized compounds and PVC pellets suited for
various applications like window profiles, door profiles, IC packaging tubes, wires and
cables, and container packaging.
Offering of UV-Protected Pipes and Customized Production of Pipes

CROWN manufactures pipes using a proprietary formulation for protecting its sanitary
and flexible electrical pipes from ultraviolet (“UV”) rays, which tend to deteriorate the
structural integrity of the pipes and fittings. This extends the life of these pipes
resulting in cost savings to the user. Furthermore, CROWN also has the expertise to
tailor-fit PVC pipe specifications to customer requirements.

Established Operational Policies, Systems, and Procedures

In light of CROWN’s core values, the Company has established operational policies,
systems, and procedures that allow it to conduct its business efficiently towards its
mission to attain market leadership in the Philippines. These involve the full
documentation of the management system, including processes, procedures, and
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employee responsibilities, greater employee quality awareness, enhanced internal
communication as employees are part of the quality management process, and increased
operational efficiency and productivity. 8

As a result of these operational policies, systems, and procedures in place, the Company
was certified as operating a quality management system conforming to ISO 9002 as early
as in 1998 for its compounds business. The Company maintains this certification for both
its Compounds and Pipes Groups, having ISO 9001:2008 certifications for both these
groups. The Company’s compliance with the requirements for ISO 9001 certification is a
testament that the Company’s quality systems are in place within the organization. For
many international companies, ISO 9001 is seen as a key to doing business in global
markets and improving competitiveness, particularly since for many regulated products
in the European Union, ISO 9001 registration is a requirement.
One of the most significant benefits for being ISO 9001:2008 certified include competitive
advantages over competitors with no certifications especially in global trade. Companies
with ISO 9001:2008 certificates are perceived to have higher quality products and have
quality system set in place, thus customer quality audits are reduced.
Business Plan
The Management has established a business plan for the Company that will take advantage of
the bullish construction sector and remain competitive in light of the forthcoming ASEAN
Free Trade Area (AFTA) implementation in 2015.
The key elements of the Company’s business plan include:

Continuous Improvements in and Modernization of Plant, Equipment, and Facilities

CROWN aims to be the gold standard in PVC pipes and fittings. In order to achieve this, the
Company continuously improves and modernizes its PVC pipes facilities. The Company is
currently upgrading its PVC pipes plant and has already ordered new machineries that
include an extruder, a corrugator, mixers, molds, and peripheral machine parts. These
additional machineries will add capacity to the production lines and production volume to
the Company’s PVC fittings line. This will also allow the consistent production of high
quality products.
For its Compounds business, the Company intends to purchase additional machineries in
light of the Compounds Group’s plan to manufacture PE and PVC compounds meant for
industrial applications.

The Company spent P43.72 million, P20.96 million, and P63.54 million in additional
capital expenditures during the years 2012, 2013, and 2014, respectively.

8
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Increase Pipe Product Lines
The Company has decided to diversify its product lines by adding PP-R and HDPE pipes
and fittings to its offered products.

CROWN had been selling and marketing HDPE pipes and fittings under the brand CROWN
HDPE since 2006. In the beginning, the Company traded HDPE pipes and fittings. The
HDPE pipes were supplied by an HDPE pipes manufacturer and importer that
manufactured the pipes and imported the fittings. The HDPE products were marketed
under the CROWN pipes brand since they were produced following the specifications of
the Company. After the favorable market acceptance of CROWN HDPE pipes and fittings,
the Company started manufacturing its own HDPE pipes in November 2013 utilizing one
(1) of its existing extrusion machineries for this product line while the HDPE fittings
continued to be sourced from importers. The level of production proved to be insufficient
to maintain ideal stock levels to meet the growing customers’ orders. As such,
Management decided to increase its HDPE production which will require the
establishment of a dedicated full production line.
HDPE is known for its large strength-to-density ratio. The density of HDPE can range from
0.93 to 0.97 g/cm3. It is harder and more opaque and can withstand higher temperatures.
HDPE is accepted as the pipe of choice for trenchless applications such as directional
drilling and pipe bursting, and it is the product of choice for gas pipelines. HDPE was first
used for gas pipelines in the 1960s and has been used for sewer and water applications
for more than 30 years.

The Company also decided to include PP-R pipes in its product line. This type of pipe is
gaining popularity in the market as an alternative to galvanized iron pipes for buildings
and homes, as these pipes can withstand water pressure as well as hot and cold
temperatures. Furthermore, in keeping with its passion for innovation, the Company plans
to be the pioneer in the Philippines in manufacturing PP-R fittings. While other pipes
suppliers in the Philippines have started offering PP-R pipes and fittings already, there is
no Philippine company that manufactures its own complete line of PP-R fittings. Most PPR fittings under the competitors’ brands are imported, which gives rise to quality control,
proper fit, and availability issues. With the local production of the fittings, the Company
will address these issues head on as it sets out to assure the construction industry of a
reliable supply of PP-R fittings with the utmost reliability and quality.
PP-R is a type of thermoplastic polyolefin that can be processed into pipes and fittings
with superior chemical and physical properties. PP-R pipes and fittings are most reliable
in plumbing and water supply plants due to their chemical features that ensure the
plumbing to have a perfect seal tight system. PP-R pipes are eco-friendly and temperature
resistant.

PP-R is frequently utilized for hot and cold water facilities for commercial buildings, food
and chemical, electronic and other industrial pipe network, potable water supply, airconditioning pipelines, and residential heating system.
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The Company is set to construct a PP-R pipes and fittings manufacturing and warehouse
facility on the adjacent lot next to its current manufacturing and warehouse facilities for
its compounds and PVC pipes in Guiguinto, Bulacan.
Increase Market Reach

For the Pipes Group, CROWN is increasing its presence in the Philippines through various
strategies in response to the upbeat growth forecast for construction in the residential,
commercial, and industrial sectors in the whole country.

The Visayas-Mindanao market is presently being serviced directly from the Davao depot,
which was specifically selected for its strategic location.

Nationwide, the Company will undertake a more aggressive marketing and sales strategy.
One of these is forging strategic partnerships with reputable wholesalers in key market
regions. More aggressive promotions are in the pipeline such as advertising in
newspapers and industry magazines and sponsorships to architectural and engineering
activities, among others. The Company will also continue its Customer Loyalty awards,
which it started three (3) years ago.
CROWN also plans to increase its sales force to cover larger areas and trade channels
nationwide. The following discusses the plans for each of the Company’s pipes divisions.
PVC Pipes Division

The PVC Pipes Division is planning to add 15 regular employees to its Sales and
Marketing Department. This will be comprised of seven (7) Field Sales
Representatives, seven (7) Marketing Business Development Specialists, and one (1)
Area Sales Supervisor.
The Field Sales Representatives will be deployed to Cagayan De Oro, Davao, Western
Visayas, Eastern Visayas, and North Luzon. They will be in charge of directly selling the
Company’s PVC pipe products to trade outlets within his/her assigned geographical
sales area.
The Marketing Business Development Specialists will be in charge of conducting
marketing and business development calls on architects, real estate developers, and
firms/persons involved in design engineering consulting, project management, and/or
construction management, in order to actively promote the use of the Company's PVC
pipe products in their construction projects.

Lastly, the Area Sales Supervisor will be responsible for all trade sales & marketing
activities in the assigned geographical area of operation. He/She will be accountable
for the overall sales volume, margin profitability, and sales collection performance in
his/her geographic sales area and the attainment of established goals & objectives,
sales quotas, and budgets. He/She will also establish and maintain mutually-beneficial
business relationships with key and strategic customers in his/her geographic sales
area.
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PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division

The PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division is also planning to add 15 to 19 regular employees
composed of one (1) Sales & Marketing Manager, five (5) Field Sales Representatives,
six (6) to ten (10) Marketing Business Development Officers (MBDOs), one (1)
Marketing Business Development Manager, and (2) Sales & Marketing Admin
Assistants.

The Sales & Marketing Manager will be accountable and responsible for the attainment
of field sales revenues against targets/plans as approved by the General Manager, the
timely and complete collection of trade & project accounts receivables as well as the
growth of the business through solicitation and development of new customer
accounts. He/She will also be in charge of preparing sales plans, forecasts, targets,
quotas and department expense budgets.

The Field Sales Representative will be accountable for the attainment of sales quotas
and revenue targets as determined and approved by the Sales & Marketing Manager.
He/She will be in charge of establishing good and productive business relationships
with key and strategic customer accounts in his/her geographical area. They will be
deployed to Metro Manila, North Luzon, South Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao.

The MBDOs will be responsible for marketing PP-R and HDPE products to sanitary
contractors, designers, engineers, architects, etc. They will not actively sell the
products but only market it – the products shall be available through the Company’s
customers who sell the Company’s PP-R and HDPE products. The MBDOs’ will be
deployed in the Greater Manila Area.
The MBDOs will be supervised by Marketing Business Development Manager.

Lastly, the Sales & Marketing Admin Assistants will be in charge of receiving
customers’ inquiries and orders. He/She will be in charge of preparing, coordinating,
and monitoring customer quotations.

Research and Development

CROWN sees itself as a forerunner in innovation in the Philippine market. One of the
results of its Research and Development (R&D) efforts in the Pipes Group is the UVprotected exposed sanitary and flexible electric PVC pipes.

CROWN intends to allocate more resources into R&D activities that will develop enhanced
product offerings that will capitalize on durability, ensure user confidence and address
the needs of the Philippine market, and, eventually, of the served export market.

Moving forward, the Company’s Compounds Group will start exploring industrial
applications. It will start developing PE black compounds for new applications, such as
telecom and power cable applications, and PVC compounds for applications such as wall
paneling and park benches. Research will be done to manufacture PVC compounds for
medical bags and tubings.
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Improvement of Business Processes and Sourcing of Raw Materials
The Company clearly defines its operational policies, systems, and procedures to ensure
adherence to orderly performance of duties and responsibilities of all departments and
personnel to attain operational efficiency. This process starts with the hiring of
professional personnel in all departments through focused recruitment and screening by
the Human Resources department. The Company maintains its own internal audit, legal
services, engineering and maintenance, human resource, and motor pool departments.
These policies, systems and procedures are being reviewed regularly for correction or
improvements. Furthermore, the Company continues to study and adopt more effective
business processes and more responsive organizational structures.

Through tradeshows conducted in the Philippines and abroad, supplier visits, and
newsletters, the Company keeps abreast of the latest developments in its main raw
materials, enabling the Company to source for better quality materials.

CROWN has an established purchasing procedure that includes the careful canvassing of
raw materials and supplies, which translates to cost savings for the Company.
Control Costs and Operating Expenses

The Company will continue to control the costs and operating expenses to result in more
profit. The Company implements lean manufacturing principles to streamline operations,
improve efficiency, and reduce costs. Some of the principles of lean manufacturing that
the Company implements include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Careful canvassing of raw materials and supplies;
Streamline production systems to reduce redundant processes;
Improve planning of delivery schedules to save on fuel and personnel costs;
Reduce overtime costs without sacrificing efficiency;
Careful review of the requirements for contractual workers, depending on the
seasonal demands for the pipes; and
Transition from traditional lighting systems to LED lighting inside the plants.

Business Strategies
In the near to medium term, the Company’s business plans focus on the pursuit of expansion
opportunities and the development of the PP-R and HDPE Pipes business.
Purchase Land in Guiguinto, Bulacan

The Company plans to diversify by manufacturing and offering PP-R and HDPE pipes as
well as to be the first to manufacture a complete line of PP-R fittings in the Philippines. In
this regard, in 2012, the Company negotiated with GIWICO to acquire the 5,462 sqm.
vacant lot adjacent to the Company’s current manufacturing and warehouse facilities in
Guiguinto, Bulacan. The negotiated price was P33,800,000.00, and as of December 31,
2014, P24,800,000.00 was already paid to GIWICO in the form of advances, pending the
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signing of the Contract of Sale. The balance of P9,000,000.00 shall be paid to GIWICO from
internally generated funds.

Construction of PP-R and HDPE Manufacturing Plant and Warehouse, and Purchase of
PP-R/HDPE Equipment
The Company has already started constructing PP-R and HDPE plant in the adjacent lot to
be bought from GIWICO. It has also already purchased a portion of the necessary
equipment for this endeavor. The equipment purchased includes extruders, mixers,
printer, all necessary peripheral machine parts, and 169 metal moulds. The plant will have
a capacity of 4,800 MTPA for its PP-R line and 4,500 MTPA for its HDPE line.
Introduce and Market CROWN PP-R and HDPE Pipes and Fittings

The PP-R and HDPE pipes and fittings will be marketed and sold through the same trade
channels of its PVC pipes and fittings. The Company will conduct regular promotions to
established customers through direct marketing, getting endorsements from architects,
engineers, and designers, employment of aggressive pricing strategies, and offering of
special deals with current trade partners and prospective new customers. The Company
also plans to have a separate sales and marketing team for its PP-R and HDPE pipes and
fittings that will cover Luzon, and also Visayas and Mindanao.
Upgrade and Modernize Existing Compounds and PVC Plants

The Company continuously upgrades and modernizes its plants to ensure the smooth
operation of its business. For the past three years, the Company has spent P43.72 million,
P19.60 million, and P60.51 million in 2012, 2013, and 2014 in capital expenditures,
respectively. Moving forward, the Company plans to continue with this strategy. It is
currently earmarking P25.00 million to acquire new equipment, which includes extruders,
shrink film line, die cutter, power quality analyzer, and data logger.
Products and Services
CROWN derives its revenues from the operations of its two (2) business groups, namely the
Compounds Group and the Pipes Group. The Pipes Group is further divided into two (2)
divisions: the PVC Pipes Division and the PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division, with the PP-R Pipes
expected to start contributing to revenues in the second half of 2015.
PVC, the base product of the Company, is the third-most widely produced polymer after
polyethylene and polypropylene. 9 PVC is widely used in construction because it is said to be
more effective than traditional materials such as copper, iron, or wood in pipe and profile
applications. It can be made softer and more flexible by the addition of plasticizers, the most

9

M. W. Allsopp, G. Vianello, "Poly(Vinyl Chloride)" in Ullmann's Encyclopedia of Industrial Chemistry, 2012, WileyVCH, Weinheim. doi:10.1002/14356007.a21_717
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widely used being phthalates. In this form, it is also used in plumbing, electrical cable
insulation, inflatable products, and many applications in which it replaces rubber. 10
The Company’s revenues from its two (2) major product lines are as follows:
Figure 1: CROWN Revenues
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A discussion of the Company’s two (2) main product lines is presented below.
Compounds

The Company started its commercial operations in 1990 with the trading of imported PE
compounds and paraffin waxes. In the same year, the Company started the production and
sales of PVC compounds. In 1998, the Company was granted the ISO 9002:1994
certification, attesting to its adherence to quality standards.
For the year ending December 31, 2014, sales from PVC compounds amounted to P556.80
million, or 65.45% of revenues.

For the past three (3) years, the total PVC compounds accounted for 63.99% of the total
revenues for the said three (3) year period. During the same period, the Company’s total
sales for PVC compounds were skewed towards local customers accounting for 58.08% of
total PVC compounds sales while exports accounted for the balance of 41.92%, as shown
in the following figure.

10

W. V. Titow (31 December 1984). PVC technology. Springer. pp. 6–. ISBN 978-0-85334-249-6. Retrieved 6 October
2011.
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Figure 2: CROWN Compound Sales Markets
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The following shows samples of the Company’s compounds and its applications:

Table 16: CROWN Compounds with Description 11

Wires and Cables

CROWN’s Wire and Cable PVC
compounds for building, telecom and
automotive applications are developed
to comply with PNS and International
Standards like Restriction of Hazardous
Substances (“RoHS”) and Underwriters
Laboratories (“UL”). CROWN has been
able to provide high standard PVC
compounds for specific applications
including flame retardant compounds,
high insulation resistance compounds,
CT-rated and low smoke emitting
compounds and sunlight/UV resistant
compounds.

11

Pictures and descriptions are from the Company’s website (http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/)
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Table 16: CROWN Compounds with Description 11

IC Tubes

CROWN’s IC Tube PVC compounds are
specially designed to protect IC chips.

Films

CROWN’s Film PVC compounds are
developed for cap seals, shrink films,
labels,
and
other
packaging
applications.

Bottles

CROWN’s Bottle PVC compounds are
developed
for
food
contact
applications and are designed to either
have high, medium, and low impact
properties.

Customized Compounds

CROWN’s Research and Development
team helps in finding the right
compound to suit its customer’s needs,
depending
on
each
customer’s
specifications.

76

For the past three (3) years, the Company’s main market for its compound products are
for wires and cables, accounting for 79.77% of total compounds sales, followed by IC
packaging tubes accounting for 7.60%, films and sheets for 6.13%, bottles for 6.06%, and
others for 0.44% for the said three (3) year period.
The following shows the contribution to compound sales of its different product
applications for the full years of 2012 to 2014.
Figure 3: CROWN Compound Sales per Application
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Pipes
In 1998, the Company expanded downstream into the manufacture of pipes under the
CROWN® PIPES for electrical, sanitary, potable water, and telecommunications
applications, capitalizing on its expertise in PVC formulation. It started with the
production of CROWNFLEX® PVC flexible electrical pipes using the latest German
machinery and technology at that time. Soon after, the Company’s range of product lines
grew with the introduction of CROWN® PVC electrical conduit pipes and CROWN® Blue
Water potable pipes in 2000, and CROWN® sanitary pipes and fittings in year 2002. This
group is divided into two (2) divisions: PVC Pipes Division and PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division.
In 2006, the Company started to offer HDPE pipes and fittings under the CROWN HDPE
brand.
In the year 2014, sales from the Pipes Group amounted to P293.93 million, or 34.55% of
total sales for the year.
All of the Company’s pipes and fittings sales are for the Philippine market.
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PVC Pipes

PVC is one of the most popular plastic materials used in building and construction. It is
used in drinking water and waste water pipes as it provides a modern alternative to
traditional materials such as metal. PVC is generally lighter, less expensive, and offer
many benefits to wit: 12
Strength and Lightweight

The key technical advantages of PVC include its light weight, high abrasion
resistance, and good mechanical strength and toughness. Due to this, PVCs are easy
to install and can be cut, shaped, welded, and joined easily in a variety of styles.
Furthermore, its light weight reduces manual handling difficulties.
Durability and Cost-Effectiveness

PVC is resistant to weathering, chemical rotting, corrosion, shock, and abrasion. It
is estimated that more than 75.00% of PVC pipes will have a life of more than 40
years with potential in-service lives of up to 100 years.
PVC, therefore, provides excellent cost-performance advantages given these
physical and technical properties.
Safety

PVC is non-toxic. It is a safe material and a socially valuable resource that has been
used for more than half a century. It is also the world’s most researched
international standards for safety and health. For example, the study 'A discussion
of some of the scientific issues concerning the use of PVC’ by the Commonwealth
Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation (CSIRO) in Australia concluded in
2000 that PVC, in its building and construction applications, has no more effect on
the environment than its alternatives.
Fire resistance

Like all other organic materials used in buildings, including other plastics, wood,
textiles etc., PVC products will burn when exposed to a fire. PVC products,
however, are self-extinguishing, i.e. if the ignition source is withdrawn they will
stop burning. Because of its high chlorine content, PVC products have inherent fire
safety characteristics. As PVC is difficult to ignite, heat production is comparatively
low and it tends to char rather than generate flaming droplets.
The following are the various types of PVC pipes and fittings being offered by the
Company:
12

http://www.pvcconstruct.org/en/p/material
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Crown Blue
Crown Blue is the Company’s PVC potable pipes and
fittings. The Company’s potable pipes and fittings are
assured to be extra strong and safe, high pressure
resistant, non-corrosive, has smooth internal and
external surfaces, and made from 100.00% virgin
materials.
The pipes are available in the following sizes, following PNS-65 Series-8.

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

The Crown Blue fittings are available in the following sizes and types:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/
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Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Crown Electrical
Crown Electrical is the Company’s line for PVC electrical
conduit pipes. The Company’s electrical conduit pipes are
assured to be self-extinguishing, highly flame-retardant,
has excellent insulation resistance properties, uniform
wall thickness, diameter, and color, smooth interior and
exterior surfaces, and made from 100.00% virgin
materials.

The Company offers two (2) types of electrical pipes, namely the Crown Supreme,
which is the high impact thick wall electrical pipe, and Crown Hi-Tech, which is the
thin wall electrical pipe.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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The following are the Crown Supreme Electrical pipes properties:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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The following are the Crown Hi-Tech Electrical pipes properties:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Crown Electrical’s pipe fittings and accessories are as follows:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Crownflex
Crownflex is the Company’s line for PVC flexible
electrical pipes. The Company’s flexible electrical pipes
are UV protected, characterized by its strength,
convenience, flexibility, and high safety standard,
especially against weather elements. It has uniform wall
thickness and diameter and is impact and crashresistant. It is made with high grade PVC material, selfextinguishing, highly resistant to flame, and has uniform
material distribution to avoid breakage. These pipes are
available in the sizes shown below.
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Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

The Company offers two (2) types of fittings for the flexible electrical pipes, namely
the Female Pipe and Flex Adapter (with Bushing) and the Double Purpose Coupling
(Connection), as shown below.

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Crown Sanitary
Crown Sanitary is the Company’s line for Drain-WasteVent (“DWV”) PVC sanitary pipe. The Company’s DWV
sanitary pipes are UV protected, characterized by its
durability and quality, especially against weather
elements. These pipes are available in three (3)
categories, namely Series 500, which is thin wall, Series
600, which follows ASTM, and Series 1000, which also
follows ASTM.
The following are the sizes of the Crown Sanitary line.
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Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/
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The Company also offers fittings for its Crown Sanitary line, as shown below:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Crown Pressure Main Blue
The Company’s PVC pipe product used for high pressure waterworks, irrigation,
and infrastructures. In buildings, it is the conduit by which water source from the
government passes into the building reservoir or pipelines.

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

87

Crown Telecom
The Company’s PVC pipe product used as conduit by which telecommunications
wiring passes through to reach the telecom outlet site.

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Crown Universal
Crown Universal is the Company’s multi-purpose PVC pipe with thin wall. These
pipes do not conform to BPS standards and are intended for temporary usage
during the early stages of construction. These pipes are lower priced but are yet
characterized by its strength and durability. Its sizes are as follows:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Crown Universal’s diameter fits both electrical and blue fittings.
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HDPE Pipes and Fittings

Aside from pipes made of PVC, the Company
also sells its own HDPE pipes and fittings
under the CROWN HDPE brand. In 2006, the
Company started to explore the HDPE
market by engaging in marketing and
trading HDPE pipes and fittings under the
CROWN brand to test the market. The HDPE
pipes were supplied by an HDPE pipes
manufacturer
and
importer
that
manufactured the pipes and imported the
fittings.

The HDPE products were marketed under the CROWN pipes brand since they were
produced following the strict specifications of the Company. The HDPE products were
subjected to quality assurance testing that ensured its conformity with CROWN Pipes
quality standards. After the favorable market acceptance of CROWN HDPE pipes and
fittings, the Company started manufacturing its own HDPE pipes in November 2013
utilizing one (1) of its existing extrusion machineries for this product line while the
HDPE fittings continued to be sourced from importers.

HDPE is known for its large strength-to-density ratio. The density of HDPE can range
from 0.93 to 0.97 g/cm3. It is harder and more opaque and can withstand higher
temperatures. HDPE is accepted as the pipe of choice for trenchless applications such
as directional drilling and pipe bursting, and it is the product of choice for gas
pipelines. HDPE was first used for gas pipelines in the 1960s and has been used for
sewer and water applications for more than 30 years. The major qualities of HDPE
include: 13
Flexibility

HDPE can be curved, making it especially useful when installing water pipes in
residential areas. Smaller diameters can also be coiled, allowing for easy transport
and eliminating the need for field joining. Its flexibility makes it less susceptible to
damage during earthquakes. This makes the use of HDPE highly practical in many
areas such as agriculture, irrigation, sewerage and infrastructure projects.
Corrosion Resistance

HDPE is a dielectric material and a non-conductor, thus, it is impervious to
corrosion, the largest contributor to infrastructure deterioration.
13

http://msdssearch.dow.com/PublishedLiteratureDOWCOM/dh_0048/0901b803800484de.pdf?filepath=plastics_na/pdfs
/noreg/305-03066.pdf&fromPage=GetDoc
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Abrasion Resistance
Polyethylene’s long molecular structure has more of a trampoline effect when it
comes in contact with abrasive particles, extending the life of the pipe.
Chemical Resistance

Polyethylene is chemically inert. This means that it does not contribute nutrients to
further microbial growth. It is also less susceptible to changes in pH levels.
Smoothness

Polyethylene’s smooth surface provides good hydraulic characteristics while
reducing the likelihood of biological or chemical materials adhering to the pipe.
Heat Fusion

HDPE has the ability to be heat-fused, which provides a strong and leak-free seal.
CROWN HDPE is characterized by its toughness
and flexibility, chemical resistance with thermal
properties, weather and environmental stress
resistance, non-corrosive properties, and high
flow capacities.
The Company’s brands under its HDPE pipe
products are CROWN Fuerza with a PE 100
designation and CROWN Sigma with PE 80. These
designations are based on the long-term strength
of its materials, known as the minimum strength
requirement (MSR). 14

The MSR is determined by performing long-term pressure testing on the test data,
which allows for the prediction of the minimum strength for a specific service lifetime.
The data is extrapolated to predict the minimum strength at 20°C and at the specified
50 year design lifetime. 15 The following are the designations based on the long-term
strength of the type of material used: PE 32, PE 40, PE 63, PE 80, and PE 100. 16

14

http://www.pe100plus.com/PE-Pipes/model/Materials/mrs/What-is-the-meaning-of-the-designations-PE80-and-PE100,i254.html
http://www.pe100plus.com/PE-Pipes/model/Materials/mrs/What-is-the-meaning-of-the-designations-PE80-and-PE100,i254.html
16
http://www.engineeringtoolbox.com/pe-pressure-grades-d_668.html
15
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The Company’s HDPE pipe properties and sizes are as follows:

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/
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The following are the HDPE fittings, available in all the sizes shown above.

Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/
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Source: http://crownpvc.com.ph/eng/

The Company plans to expand its HDPE business to meet the growing orders from
customers through the addition of a manufacturing plant to be constructed on the
adjacent lot next to its current PVC compounds and pipes manufacturing and
warehouse facilities in Guiguinto, Bulacan.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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The following is a chart showing the distribution of the Company’s pipes and fittings
products against total pipes revenues.
Figure 4: CROWN Pipes Sales

Sanitary
100%
90%

Electrical

Blue

HDPE

Others

3.76%
3.67%
7.39%

4.84%
3.15%
6.80%

40.61%

36.55%

44.57%

48.66%

44.23%

2012

2013

2014

5.86%
2.70%
6.51%

80%
70%
60%

40.70%

50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

New Product Line: PP-R Pipes and Fittings

The Company has also decided to include PP-R pipes and fittings in its product line.
This pipe is gaining popularity in the market as an alternative to galvanized iron pipes
for buildings and homes, as these pipes can withstand water pressure as well as hot
and cold temperatures. Furthermore, in keeping with its passion for innovation, the
Company plans to be the pioneer in the Philippines in manufacturing PP-R fittings.
While other pipes suppliers in the Philippines have started offering PP-R pipes and
fittings already, there is no Philippine company that manufactures its own complete
line of PP-R fittings. Most PP-R fittings under the competitors’ brands are imported,
which gives rise to quality control, proper fit, and availability issues. With the local
production of a complete line of these fittings, the Company will address these issues
head on as it sets out to assure the construction industry of a reliable supply of PP-R
fittings with the utmost reliability and quality.
PP-Rs or Polypropylene random copolymers are thermoplastic resins produced
through the polymerization of propylene, with ethylene links introduced in the
polymer chain. Because of its chemical features and fusion welding, PP-Rs are most
reliable in plumbing and water supply plants, and ensures a substantially better seal
tight system. They are also eco-friendly with no heavy metal content such as lead.

PP-R Pipes can be used for the following:
•
•
•
•

Residential cold and hot water system;
Underground heating system;
Conveyor of industrial water and chemical materials;
Sanitary and pure water pipelines;
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•
•
•

Hot water recycling system;
Compressed air pipelines; and
Other industrial and agricultural pipelines.

Suppliers
The Company sources its raw materials from both local and foreign sources, with local
suppliers accounting for 62.55% over the past three (3) years cumulatively and the remaining
37.45% accounted for by foreign suppliers composed of companies from Taiwan, Malaysia,
and Thailand, among others. For the past three (3) years, total purchases from Philippine
Resins Industries, Inc., a local supplier, accounted for 48.58% of total raw materials
purchased and total purchases from UPC Tech Corporation, a Taiwanese supplier, accounted
for 16.50% of total raw materials purchased for the said three (3) year period.
To protect itself against adverse movements in the prices of raw materials, the Company
usually maintains a raw materials inventory equivalent to around 45-60 days of production.
In addition, in the event that any of the Company's suppliers is subject to a major production
disruption or is unable to meet its obligations under existing supply arrangements, the
Company can purchase such inputs from any of its other accredited local and foreign
suppliers that the Company has already dealt with in the past. The Company also has a list of
approved alternative materials that can substitute the raw materials it currently uses.
Table 17: Suppliers
Name
Philippine Resins Industries Inc
UPC Tech. Corp.
Others
Total

Country
Philippines
Taiwan
Mixed

2012
61.53%
18.39%
20.09%
100.00%

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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2013
44.68%
16.64%
38.68%
100.00%

2014
45.27%
15.46%
39.27%
100.00%

Products Process Flow
Compounds
Figure 5: CROWN Compounds Production Flow

The Compounds Group designs and formulates PVC compounds based on requirements
supplied by the customer in terms of physical and electrical properties (e.g. color, specific
gravity, tensile strength, temperature tolerance, etc.). Upon the approval of the customer,
new product codes are created and registered internally as a valid finished product item.
Such registered product codes can now be used by Production Planning for production
scheduling, by Warehouse and Physical Distribution for inventory tracking, by Accounting
for product cost build-up and by Sales for product sales and order processing.

The manufacture of PVC compounds starts with the careful selection of raw materials
prior to purchase. Once purchased, delivered items are inspected on-site by warehouse
personnel. A strict “No Certificate of Analysis (COA), No Acceptance” policy is
implemented by the group to ensure that only the correct materials are delivered.
Prequalification is made by the Technical Department to ensure that only quality
materials are accepted. Approved materials are stored and inventory is being controlled
by the Warehouse Department until an issuance has been requested for production use.
The production process starts with the mixing of pre-weighed raw materials into the
super mixers using approved mixing sequence dependent on the product to be produced.
Based on time and temperature intervals, product shall be discharged and conveyed to the
extruder for compounding and pelletizing. Established parameters used in extrusion are
based on the thermal rating and other essential product properties. For purposes of
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control, machines are dedicated to run based on specific product grades and/or color.
After extrusion, the pelletized compounds are conveyed to the pellet cooler to prevent
moisture build-up before being transported to the pellet silo in preparation for packing.
Operators pack the pelletized compounds in either 25 kilogram sacks or in 500 or 800
kilogram jumbo bags before transferring to the Warehouse Department for proper
storage until scheduled for delivery.
The production processes are carried out by qualified operators and continuously
monitored and controlled via documented process control parameters to ensure that the
specified product requirements are met. In-line inspection during manufacturing is
carried out in order to verify product conformity at critical stages in the production line.
No finished products are dispatched for eventual delivery until final inspection and test
activities are conducted by a technical analyst to ensure conformance to the required
product specifications.

The Compounds Group ensures that products are handled and transported to the
customers in good condition and at the specified time through established delivery
procedures. The quality of products produced is guaranteed based on Certificate of
Quality (COQ) issued to the customers during delivery.
PVC Pipes

The Company’s process flow for its PVC pipes products is as follows:
Figure 6: CROWN PVC Pipes Process Flow
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The process of manufacturing uPVC pipes begins with the purchase of raw materials.
These raw materials are stored in the Raw Materials warehouse. These materials are preweighed and issued to the Production Department for compounding, wherein it will mix
the raw materials in a super mixer, homogenizing the components to form the uPVC
compound. These compounded materials are bagged and transferred back to the Raw
Materials warehouse.

Based on a pre-planned production schedule, the uPVC pipe compound is issued back to
the Production Department for the manufacture of uPVC pipes. The extruder is
responsible for the compression, plastication, and forming of the uPVC compound, turning
it from powder form into a substance with gel-like consistency. This plasticated material
is then continuously forced through a die and formed into the circular pipe shape. The
pipe is then inserted into a calibrator tank wherein it is both vacuum-formed into its exact
shape and cooled by the cooling tank. Proper markings are indicated on the pipe by using
a printer. The pipe, which is continuously drawn by the haul-off machine is cut to its
appropriate length. It is then heated and socketed in the socketing machine, forming the
pipe's hub.
During the entire uPVC pipe manufacturing process, line engineers conduct hourly Quality
Control procedures to ensure the product quality follows strictly the standards and
specifications. All finished goods are then tested by the Quality Assurance Department for
mechanical and chemical conformance based on PNS, ASTM, and ISO standards. The
finished uPVC pipes are transferred into the Warehouse Department. Upon receipt of an
order from a customer, the uPVC pipes are prepared and issued to the Physical
Distribution Department for loading and delivery.
HDPE Pipes

The manufacture of CROWN HDPE pipes follows the ensuing process flow. Some stages of
the process depend on the size of the HDPE pipes to be produced.
Figure 7: CROWN HDPE Pipes Process Flow: 75mm and below
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The first step is the purchasing of raw materials from suppliers. These raw materials are
pre-weighed and inspected upon delivery to the warehouse. Upon request, the raw
materials are issued to the Production Department for mixing, and, after which, the
compounds are transferred back to the Warehouse Department.

The actual manufacturing starts with the Production Department requesting for the
compounded raw materials from the Warehouse Department. The raw materials are fed
into the extruder’s hopper that will plasticize the materials, after which the extruder’s
barrel will extrude melted plastic. Simultaneously, the co-extruder will extrude resins to
place line marking in the outer surface of the melted plastic to indicate the HDPE pipe’s
usage that may be for gas, potable water, and non-potable water. This goes into the
vacuum calibrator to produce the standard dimensional specification of the pipe. The pipe
goes into the cooling tanks to lessen the high-temperature of the pipe and to attain the
desired diameter. Once the desired diameter is attained, proper markings are printed onto
the pipe. The haul-off machine pulls the pipe into the coiler after which it will be cut to its
standard length, which subsequently goes to the material piling frame. The Quality
Assurance Department checks the HDPE pipes for conformance with standard
specifications. The finished product will be stored in the warehouse. Upon customer
order, the Warehouse Department issues the finished goods to the Logistics Department
for loading and delivery.
Figure 8: CROWN HDPE Pipes Process Flow: 90mm and above

The first step is the purchasing of raw materials from suppliers. These raw materials are
pre-weighed and inspected upon delivery to the warehouse. Upon request, the raw
materials are issued to the Production Department for mixing, and, after which, the
compounds are transferred back to the Warehouse Department.

The actual manufacturing starts with the Production Department requesting for the
compounded raw materials from the Warehouse Department. The raw materials are fed
into the extruder’s hopper that will plasticize the materials, after which the extruder’s
barrel will extrude melted plastic. Simultaneously, the co-extruder will extrude resins to
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place line marking in the outer surface of the melted plastic to indicate the HDPE pipe’s
usage that may be for gas, potable water, and non-potable water. This goes into the
vacuum calibrator to produce the standard dimensional specification of the pipe. The pipe
goes into the cooling tanks to lessen the high-temperature of the pipe and to attain the
desired diameter. Once the desired diameter is attained, proper markings are printed onto
the pipe. The haul-off machine pulls the HDPE pipe into the cutter to size it to its standard
length before it goes to the material piling frame. The Quality Assurance Department
checks the HDPE pipes for conformance with standard specifications. The finished
product will be stored in the warehouse. Upon customer order, the Warehouse
Department issues the finished goods to the Logistics Department for loading and
delivery.
Quality Assurance
The Company’s Compounds and Pipes Groups have their own respective Quality Assurance
departments. It has established quality assurance and integrated control procedures with
dedicated quality assurance laboratories and competent and professional staff.

Quality assurance starts from the procurement of raw materials. A Certificate of Analysis is
required from suppliers during the delivery of raw materials. The delivery is inspected for
conformity to specifications and for intact packaging. Samples are immediately tested before
being given the green tag to be released for production. The storage areas for raw materials
are designed and inspected to ensure optimum protection against harmful elements that may
cause contamination or damage.

The transport of raw materials to the production area and of the finished products to the
warehouse follow proper handling procedures. Finished products are tagged with batch
numbers for easy identification.
Samples of finished products are tested for quality conformance in the laboratory.
Sales
Compounds

The Company has 25 years of operating history in the Philippines, offering high quality
products, reliable and responsive customer service, and value for money prices that has
resulted in a customer base comprising some of the largest Philippine and multinational
corporations in the construction, telecommunications, automotive, and packaging
industries. Certain members of the Management have had more than 25 years of
experience in selling compounds to customers, even preceding their pre-Crown Asia days,
and have kept these relationships established up to the present. In addition, the Company
procures new customers through referrals from current clients and by searching from
available market information.
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The rapport with the customers is quite close since the formulation and specifications of
the compounds required by each customer is unique. In the Company’s experience, its
customers do not change suppliers for compounds often. Once a supplier is accredited, the
customers tend to stay with the same compounds manufacturer for some time, especially
when the quality is consistent and the price is competitive.

Two (2) compounds customers accounted for at least 20.00% of the Company’s
compounds sales for the past three (3) years. Both of these customers are also the
Company’s customers since the 90s. Exito Electronics Co Ltd., Taiwan has been a customer
of the Company since 1995 while American Wire & Cable Co., Inc. has been the Company’s
customer since 1990. The Company’s remaining top customers in 2014, excluding
Powerline Products Limited, have also been with the Company since 1990. Each
customer’s contribution to sales varies year over year, with a decrease in one of the
Company’s customers matched by an increase in the others.

For the past three (3) years, the Company sold its compounds both locally and
internationally, with the three (3) -year total local sales accounting for 58.06% of total
compounds sales and international sales accounting for 41.94% of total compounds sales.
In 2014, local sales accounted for 56.95% of total compounds sales, while international
sales accounted for the balance of 43.05%.
Moving forward, the Company’s Compounds Group will start exploring industrial
applications. It will start developing polyethylene (“PE”) black compounds for new
applications, such as telecom and power cable applications, and PVC compounds for
applications such as wall paneling and park benches. Research will be done to
manufacture PVC compounds for medical bags and tubings.
Pipes

The Company sells all its pipe products to the local market, through Field/Trade Sales and
Project Sales.
Field/Trade Sales

Field, or Trade Sales, is the marketing channel of the Company where pipe products
are sold to the usual trade channels that include hardware dealers, wholesalers, and
distributors. The Company offers various arrangements to its Field/Trade Sales
customers, including cash-on-delivery (COD) basis and terms ranging from 30 to 90
days.

Revenues from Field/Trade Sales cumulatively accounted for 51.41% for the past
three (3) years, and 48.37% in 2014 alone.
Project Sales

Project Sales is the marketing channel of the Company wherein the Company’s pipe
products are sold to residential condominium projects, housing projects, office space
projects, malls, resorts, and general contractors. It also sells to infrastructure projects
such as potable water, irrigation, and sewerage projects for airports, private
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subdivisions, expressway, and even golf clubs. The procurement for pipes for this
channel is often times done through bidding. The Company does project billing with an
initial up-front payment of the contract price, and each delivery will involve crediting
the balance on a pro-rata basis relative to the corresponding volume delivered.
Revenues from Project Sales cumulatively accounted for 48.59% for the past three (3)
years, and 51.63% in 2014 alone.
The Company intends to further undertake a more aggressive marketing and sales
strategy for the Pipes Group. One of these strategies involves forging partnerships with
reputable wholesalers in key regional markets. More aggressive promotions are also in
the pipeline such as advertising in newspapers and industry magazines and sponsorships
to architectural and engineering activities, among others. The Company will also continue
its Customer Loyalty awards, which it started three (3) years ago. CROWN also plans to
increase its sales force to cover larger areas and trade channels nationwide.
Competition
Compounds
The Company’s customers also get from other suppliers of compounds. These companies
include: D&L Industries, Inc. (D&L), Tosoh Polyvin Corporation (Tosoh), and Elastobest
Manufacturing Corporation (Elastobest).

Certain members of the Management have had more than 25 years of experience in selling
compounds to customers, even preceding their pre-Crown Asia days, and have kept these
relationships established up to the present. In addition, the Company procures new
customers through referrals from current clients and by searching from available market
information.
The Company believes that it can effectively compete with other compounders in the
country through its 25 years of quality products, reliable and responsive customer service,
and value for money prices.
Pipes

The Philippine PVC pipes industry is very fragmented, with many small manufacturers
and many distributors of imported PVC pipes. Furthermore, the products that are
available in the market vary in quality and price points. The two (2) major players in the
PVC pipes industry are Neltex Development Company, Inc. (Neltex) and Moldex Products,
Inc. (Moldex). These two (2) companies are the oldest and the biggest in the PVC industry,
with sales for 2013 amounting to P1.65 billion and P1.02 billion, respectively. Amongst all
the players in the market, the Company has identified Emerald Vinyl Corporation
(Emerald) and Atlanta Industries, Inc. (Atlanta) to be its closer competitors, with
Emerald’s sales for 2013 amounting to P1.04 billion and Atlanta sales for 2013 amounting
to P1.03 billion, respectively. Although these companies offer other different products on
102

top of the PVC pipes they offer, the Company identifies them to be in the same major
market. Refer to “Industry and Competition” section on page 120 for more discussion.
Emerald Vinyl Corporation

Emerald Vinyl Corporation was incorporated on December 22, 1976. It is engaged in
the manufacture of numerous plastic products such as but not limited to PVC pipes,
receptacles, conduit pipes, water, and electrical pipes.
Atlanta Industries, Inc.

Atlanta Industries, Inc. was registered with the SEC on September 1, 1978. Its primary
purpose is to engage in the manufacture of PVC pipes and fittings. It also manufactures
PE pipes. It has an annual capacity of 18,000 MT of PVC and PE pipes. It also has a
factory in Guangzhou, China with an annual capacity of 6,000 MT for PVC pipes and
1,500 MT for PE pipes.
Customers
Compounds
The Company sells its compounds to manufacturers of wires and cables, IC tubes, films
and sheets, and bottles, among others. The following shows the distribution of the
Company’s customer groups for its compounds business over the past three (3) years.
Figure 9: CROWN Customer Groups Distribution: Compounds
1.16%
5.30%
5.78%
6.00%
Wires & Cables
IC Tubes
Films & Sheets
Bottles
Others

81.76%
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The table below shows the percentage of revenues derived from the top customers of the
Compounds Group.

Table 18: Top Compounds Customers’ Contribution to Compounds Revenues
Name
2012
2013
Powerline Products Limited
0.00%
11.96%
American Wire & Cable Co., Inc.
30.07%
30.42%
Columbia Wire & Cable Corporation
0.00%
0.00%
Exito Electronics Co Ltd., Taiwan
34.15%
24.75%
Phelps Dodge Phils. Energy Products Corp.
8.14%
7.35%
Others
20.76%
20.03%
Total
100.00%
100.00%

2014
32.39%
12.72%
12.06%
2.89%
2.85%
27.13%
100.00%

From 2012 to 2014, Exito Electronics Co. Ltd., Taiwan accounted for 34.15%, 24.75%, and
2.89% of the Company’s total compound sales. The decline in sales to Exito Electronics
Co., Ltd., Taiwan was offset by sales to Powerline Products Limited, also from Taiwan,
which accounted for 32.39% of the Company’s compound revenues in 2014, versus
11.96% in 2013, and none in 2012. These two (2) are export customers. For the local
market, American Wire & Cable Co., Inc., an American company based in Parañaque City,
accounted for 30.07%, 30.42%, and 12.72% of the Company’s compound revenues from
2012 to 2014.

In the Company’s experience, its customers do not change suppliers for compounds often,
or abruptly. Once a supplier is accredited, the customers tend to stay with the same
compounds manufacturer for some time. In fact, Exito Electronics Co., Ltd. has been
dealing with the Company since 1995 and American Wire & Cable Co., Inc. has been
dealing with the Company since 1990.
Furthermore, the Company’s unique selling proposition is its ability to customize the
compounds according to its clients’ specific formulation. Only the Company and a few
other compounders are willing to do this service given the relatively low volume levels for
such special formulations that customers order.
Pipes

The Company’s customers for its pipes and fittings are composed of Field/Trade Sales at
51.41% and Project Sales at 48.59% of cumulative pipes sales for the past three (3) –year
period.
The following shows the distribution of the customer groups of the Company for its pipes
business in the past three (3) years. None of the Company’s customers account for at least
20.00% of the Company’s total pipes revenues for the last three (3) years.
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Figure 10: CROWN Customer Groups Distribution: PVC Pipes and Fittings
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Business Development
For the Company’s Pipes business, its Marketing Group is tasked to visit architects, engineers,
and contractors to introduce the CROWN pipe brand and keeps them abreast of new
developments and product lines under the brand. They conduct seminars, product
presentations, marketing, and social events to maintain continuous business relationships.

It also has a Projects Group that is focused on specific projects of construction and real
property developers by assessing the construction needs, securing bill of materials,
submitting bids and conducting follow through activities to achieve sales objectives.

The Company also participates in local tradeshows to keep pace with the developments in the
industry and to create wider public awareness of Crown pipe products. This is also the venue
to develop new relationships and to keep in touch with existing customers. The tradeshows
that the Company regularly participates include the following:
•
•
•
•
•

CONEX – short for Convention Exhibit, this is an annual construction exhibit organized
by the United Architects of the Philippines (UAP)
IIEE National Convention – annual convention for electrical engineers organized by
The Institute of Integrated Electrical Engineers of the Philippines
PSME National Convention – annual convention for mechanical engineers organized by
the Philippine Society of Mechanical Engineers
PSSE National Convention – annual convention for sanitary engineers organized by
The Philippine Society of Sanitary Engineers, Inc.
PSPE Conference – annual conference for plumbing engineers organized by the
Philippines Society of Plumbing Engineers (PSPE) Inc.
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The Company also undertakes marketing of the Company’s products through advertising in
broadsheet newspapers and promotions for its Pipes business.

For the Compounds business, the Company makes presentations and holds one-on-one
discussions with old and new customers to maintain rapport and establish new business.
The Company spent the following business development expenses for the past three (3)
years.

Table 19: CROWN Business Development Expenses: 2012 –2014
2012
2013
Business Development
P53,351,512
P31,112,880
Sales
812,041,392
801,819,234
Percentage to Sales
6.57%
3.88%

2014
P73,078,103
850,741,623
8.59%

Research and Development
The Company conducts R&D regularly, with the objective of developing enhanced product
offerings that will capitalize on durability, ensure user confidence, and to address the needs of
the Philippine market, and of the served export market for compounds. The R&D is being
conducted in the same laboratories and personnel of the Quality Assurance (QA) Departments
in each Group.
The following shows the R&D expenses of the Company for the past three (3) years.

Table 20: CROWN R&D Expenses: 2012 –2014
2012
Research & Development
P3,401,654
Sales
812,041,392
Percentage to Sales
0.42%

2013
P4,003,684
801,819,234
0.50%

2014
P4,222,480
850,741,623
0.50%

Organizational Structure
The Company is divided into four (4) major groups, with three (3) comprising the different
businesses of the Company (i.e. Compounds, Pipes, and PP-R/HDPE) while the last group is
composed of the Company’s Head Office functions. The following discusses each group and
division as of March 25, 2015.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Compounds Group
Figure 11: Compounds Group Organizational Structure

Sales

Sales and Marketing Department
This department is responsible for selling PVC compounds directly to its industrial
customers as intermediate products (i.e. those that serve as raw materials to their
operations). This department provides technical assistance to customers in
defining new formulations of PVC compounds, which the Compounds Group can
develop to enhance the physical properties of customers’ end products. This
department is headed directly by Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva – Compounds
General Manager.

Plant Operations

Production and Maintenance Department

This department is responsible for the manufacturing of PVC compounds in
accordance with established production schedules, output quotas, raw material
yields, finished goods quality targets, production cost budgets and machine
utilization goals. It is also responsible for the preventive maintenance and the
emergency response repair of all production machinery and equipment, as well as
for and the validation of all test and measurement equipment in order to ensure
their accuracy. This department is headed by Engr. Reynaldo M. Celestino –
Assistant Production Manager.
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Warehouse and Physical Distribution Department (WPD)
This department is broken down into two (2) groups: the warehouse and the
physical department groups.

Warehouse is responsible for the warehousing operations – from receiving,
storing, and releasing of all inventoriable goods, including materials, supplies, and
finished goods. This department is accountable for the inventory’s safe-keeping
and accuracy of inventory records. It is headed by Ms. Jennifer L. Galang – WPD
Supervisor for Warehouse.

Physical distribution is responsible for the distribution of the division’s products to
its customers in a manner that ensures on-time and complete delivery, whether by
land, sea, or air. This also ensures that delivery routes are scheduled in such a way
that minimizes overall cost to serve (e.g. truck utilization, gas and oil expenses, toll
fees, drivers’ overtime, etc.). This group is headed by Ms. Jocelyn D. S. Secretario –
WPD Supervisor for Physical Distribution.
Technical Department

This department is responsible for developing product quality standards for the
manufacture of quality finished goods. It conducts quality control evaluations on
non-conforming output and recommends proper disposition such as rework, scrap,
or product downgrade. It also provides technical analysis and evaluation to
address product quality complaints from customers and determines root causes in
order to fully eliminate or minimize any future recurrence. This department also
conducts research and development activities to develop new products for
customer applications. This department is headed by Engr. Joydet B. Cacabelos –
Technical Manager.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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PVC Pipes Division
Figure 12: PVC Pipes Division Organizational Structure

Plant Operations

Plant Operations is headed by Mr. Luis T. Amores – Operations Manager. He is incharge of the entire plant operations, which includes the Production Department,
Engineering and Maintenance Department (EMD), Warehouse, and Physical
Distribution.
Production Department

This department is responsible for the manufacture of industrial PVC pipes and
fittings in accordance with established production schedules, output quotas, raw
material yields, finished goods quality targets, production cost budgets and
machine utilization goals. It is headed by Engr. Roy P. Pamintuan – Jr. Production
Manager.
Engineering and Maintenance Department (EMD)

This department is responsible for the preventive maintenance as well as the
emergency response repair of all production machinery and equipment and their
ancillary support accessories (e.g. chiller, cooling tower, compressor, etc.). It also
conducts validation of all test and measurement equipment in order to ensure their
accuracy. It is headed by Engr. Efren L. Mendoza, Assistant EMD Manager.
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Warehouse Department
This department is responsible for the warehousing operations – from receiving,
storing, and releasing of all inventoriable goods, including materials, supplies, and
finished goods. This department is accountable for the inventory’s safe-keeping
and accuracy of inventory records. It is headed by Mr. Carmelito M. Lopez,
Assistant Warehouse Manager.
Physical Distribution Department

This department is responsible for the distribution of the Pipes Group’s products to
its customers in a manner that ensures on-time and complete delivery, whether by
land, sea, or air. It also ensures that delivery routes are scheduled in such a way
that minimizes overall cost, including truck utilization, gas and oil expenses, toll
fees, drivers’ overtime, among others. It is headed by Mr. Renato V. Ripay, Jr.,
Physical Distribution Manager.

Quality Assurance (QA) Department

This department is responsible for the quality assurance testing and evaluation of all
raw materials, manufactured finished goods, and traded goods, in order to ensure
compliance with defined quality standards. This department also conducts in-line
quality inspection of manufactured goods under work-in-progress. It also conducts
investigations and evaluations of finished goods either damaged during deliveries or
returned by customers due to product quality issues. It is headed by Engr. Joanne D.
David, QA Supervisor.
Sales and Marketing

Sales and Marketing is headed by Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva – PVC Pipes Division
General Manager. He is in-charge of the entire PVC Field Sales, Project Sales, Marketing
and Business Development, and Sales Administration.
Field Sales, Project Sales, and Business Development Departments

These departments are responsible for selling PVC pipes and fittings to its
customers, either through retail trade outlets or direct to construction projects, as
well as developing and implementing marketing programs to promote the
products’ brand name, Crown Pipes, to key players in the construction industry
(e.g. architects, contractors, electrical/plumbing engineers, etc.). These
departments are headed by Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva – PVC Pipes Division General
Manager.
Sales Admin Section

This department is responsible for providing various sales and marketing
administration support to the sales and marketing department, including handling
of customer queries, preparing sales quotes and Sales Orders (SOs), preparing
sales reports, coordinating with Physical Distribution on delivery issues, preparing
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sales reps’ trip schedules, among others. It is headed by Ms. Pia Aguila – Sales
Admin Supervisor.

Davao Branch Office

This office is responsible for all divisional sales and distribution activities (i.e. sales,
marketing, sales order administration, warehousing and delivery, A/R collection) in
Mindanao. It is headed by Mr. Braxton Dannang – Davao Branch Manager.
Motorpool Department

This department is responsible for the preventive maintenance of the Company’s
delivery truck fleet, service vehicles, as well as forklifts and other auxiliary vehicles to
ensure that they are all in good running condition. This department also conducts offsite emergency response rescue/repairs of delivery trucks that have either stalled on
the road or have been involved in road incidents/accidents. It is headed by Mr. Luis T.
Amores – Officer-In-Charge, Motorpool.

PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division

Figure 13: PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division Organizational Structure

Although the Company has yet to commence full-swing operations of its PP-R/HDPE Pipes
Division, the Company has already set up an organization plan for it with Mr. Walter H.
Villanueva heading it as the General Manager for the division. Assistant to him is Mr. Hans
Joseph T. Perez. The other functions will be filled up when full swing operations of the
division commence. The current operations, sales, and marketing of the HDPE line is
currently piggy-backing on the PVC Pipes’ established set-up.
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This division will have the following functions:
Sales and Marketing Department

This department is responsible for selling the industrial PP-R and HDPE pipes and
fittings to its customers, either through retail trade outlets or direct to construction
projects, as well as developing marketing programs to promote the products’ brand
name, Crown Pipes, to key players in the construction industry (e.g. architects,
contractors, electrical/plumbing engineers, etc.). This department is also responsible
for sales administration activities (e.g. handling of customer queries; preparing sales
quotes and Sales Orders (SOs); preparing sales reports; preparing sales
representatives’ trip schedules; etc.). This section is headed by Mr. Walter H.
Villanueva – the PP-R/HDPE Pipes General Manager
Production Department

This department will be responsible for the manufacture of industrial PP-R and HDPE
pipes and fittings in accordance with established production schedules, output quotas,
raw material yields, finished goods quality targets, production cost budgets, and
machine utilization goals.
Warehouse Department

This department will be responsible for the warehousing operations – from receiving,
storing, and releasing of all inventoriable goods, including materials, supplies, and
finished goods. This department is accountable for the inventory’s safe-keeping and
accuracy of inventory records.
Logistics

This department will coordinate with the Sales Admin and Pipes Delivery Planner for
the daily distribution and delivery of PP-R and/or HDPE pipes and fittings to the
division’s customers. This department will also monitor the delivery status and works
with Sales Admin and Pipes Physical Distribution to resolve cases of non-delivery,
partial delivery, delivery backload, or customer delivery returns.
Quality Assurance Department

This department will be responsible for the quality assurance testing and evaluation of
all raw materials, manufactured finished goods, and traded goods, in order to ensure
compliance with defined quality standards. This department will also conduct in-line
quality inspection of manufactured goods under work-in-progress. It also conducts
investigations and evaluations of finished goods either damaged during deliveries or
returned by customers due to product quality issues.
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General Administration
Figure 14: General Administration Organizational Structure

Comptrollers Department

This department is responsible for all accounting operations – i.e. General Ledger,
Accounts Payables, Accounts Receivables, Inventory Accounting, import/export
administration, tax accounting, financial and management reporting, and government/
statutory and tax reporting. This department also ensures that the Company’s financial
books and statements accurately reflect the true financial position of the Company and
that the accounting methods and practices used are in compliance with generallyacceptable accounting standards. It is also responsible for the stewardship of the
Company’s corporate documents and coordinates all corporate secretarial matters. It
also oversees the development and implementation of the Company’s information
technology (IT) policy as well as the stewardship of the Company’s computerized
accounting system (MAS 500). This department is headed by Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva –
VP Comptroller.
Treasurers Department

This department is responsible for the cash management operations of the Company –
monitoring of cash flows, issuance of check instrument based on approved check
voucher for payment, custodianship and control of blank check instruments,
monitoring of cash balances and projection of cash flow requirements. This
department also coordinates the sourcing of funds through short-term financing
options, when required. It also ensures optimal use of excess funds through short-term
investment/placement options. It is headed by Mr. Nicasio T. Perez – VP Treasurer.
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Human Resources and Legal Services Department

This department is responsible for all human resources-related activities of the
Company including recruitment, training, employee and labor relations, employee
code of discipline administration, salary and benefits administration, payroll
processing, performance evaluation administration, job/salary matrix stewardship
and employee 201 files maintenance and safe-keeping. This department is also
responsible for all legal-related activities of the Company, which includes preparing all
required pleadings, motions, and other legal papers in all judicial cases involving the
Company in accordance with the Rules of Court and the applicable laws. It also
represents the Company in all legal proceedings and hearings before judicial and
quasi-judicial bodies, as well as in instituting legal actions. It assists the: (a) Credit and
Collection in preparation of demand letters sent to delinquent collection accounts, (b)
Corporate Secretary on all corporate secretarial matters (e.g. revisions to Articles of
Incorporation or By-Laws, preparation of board resolutions, etc.). It also provides legal
review of all third-party contracts. Finally, it also does liaison work with outside legal
counsel on specialized legal matters, like tax law, patent/trademark laws, etc. It is
headed by Atty. Alvin L. Alburo – HRLSD Manager.
Credit and Collection

This department is responsible for all credit and collection operations – i.e. conducting
credit investigations on customer credit applications, recommending credit limits and
credit terms for sales management approval, endorsing customer quotations for
approval for customers of good standing (no overdue or over-credit limits), generation
of A/R Aging Report, assisting in A/R collections, conducting customer visits for
collection follow-ups or credit issues discussions, recommending customer account
downgrade to delinquent or bad debt status if warranted, coordinating with the
Company legal function for legal action on collection cases. It is headed by Ms. Sheila P.
de Leon – Credit and Collection Manager.
Purchasing Department

This department is responsible for all procurement–related activities of the Company,
including the canvass and negotiation of prices of items to be purchased based on
approved purchase requisitions (PRs), the preparation of purchase orders (POs) to
awarded suppliers, the monitoring of open POs until delivery, stewarding the supplier
accreditation process based on history of supplier performance and supplier plant
visits. It also ensures best value-added purchases are made based on procurement
price, quality of items procured, correct product specifications, and timeliness of
delivery. It is headed by Ms. Arsenia B. Lacson, Asst. Purchasing Manager.
Office Administration Department

This department is responsible for the tracking of movements of Company assets such
as office equipment, office furniture and fixtures and supplies. This is also responsible
for all office administration operational activities of the Company, which includes
providing office receptionist, messengerial, and office facilities maintenance support;
liaising with 3rd-party administrative service providers (e.g. office space rentals,
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security guards, telephone/PABX, water, photocopying, etc.); coordinating the
assignment and usage of company service vehicles as well as the renewal of LTO
registration, vehicle insurance, regular vehicle preventive maintenance and vehicle
lease payments (if any); reviewing landline and cellphone telecommunication billings
to ensure accuracy as well as tracking cellphone usages by company assignees to
ensure proper usage; monitoring, stewarding and maintaining custody of corporate
give-aways as well as gifts received from customers and suppliers to ensure proper
receipt and issuances/release; administering the Company’s records management
program to ensure orderly and organized archiving and/or disposal actions of
company records/files. This department is headed by Ms. Maria Gloria Rosella M.
Villanueva, Junior Office Admin Supervisor.
Internal Audit Department

This department is responsible for implementing and administering the Company’s
internal audit program as developed by the Board’s Audit Committee. This department
conducts compliance audits (against the Company policies and procedures) as well as
investigative audits on reported/uncovered/alleged irregularities. It also prepares the
audit findings report and presents these to the Audit Committee. It also conducts
follow-up audits as required and instructed. This department is headed by Mr. August
San Antonio, Internal Audit Manager.

Employees

As of March 25, 2015, the Company has 137 regular employees, 36 probationary employees,
and 73 contractual employees, totaling 246 employees.
The Company’s employees are not unionized. They are also not a party to any collective
bargaining agreements. There has been no incidence of employee strikes since CROWN’s
incorporation. Management and employee relations have been cordial.
The following table presents the breakdown of employees per department.
Table 21: CROWN Manpower Complement
Category
Regular
Compounds Group
35
Pipes Group
PVC Pipes Division
66
PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division
3
General Administration
33
Total
137

Probationary
6
15
4
11
36

Contractual
18
55
0
0
73

Total
59
136
7
44
246

In the next 12 months from the date of this Prospectus, the Company foresees that it will
engage an additional 62 employees, 11 from the Compounds Group inclusive of four (4)
managers, nine (9) from the PVC Pipes Division (all rank and file), 42 for the PP-R/HDPE
Pipes Division, with 17 for production inclusive of one (1) assistant production manager and
25 for operations inclusive of one (1) sales and marketing manager.
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Description of Property
The Company owns the following properties covered by individual tax declarations issued
under its name in Km. 33 Mac Arthur Highway Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto, Bulacan where the
manufacturing plant is located:
Lands

Tax Declaration Number
2014-09014-01533
2014-09014-01535
2014-09014-01537
2014-09014-01543
2014-09014-01623

Area
892.00 sq.m.
3,214.00 sq.m.
6,415.00 sq.m.
2,888.00 sq.m.
11,935.00 sq.m.

Classification
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial

Area
140.00 sq.m.
2,184.00 sq.m.
1,150.50 sq.m.
1,980.00 sq.m.
500.00 sq.m.
468.00 sq.m.
2,835.00 sq.m.
3,276.00 sq.m.

Classification
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Commercial
Commercial/Residential
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial

Buildings and Improvements
Tax Declaration Number
2014-09014-01534
2014-09014-01536
2014-09014-01538
2014-09014-01544
2014-09014-01545
2014-09014-01624
2014-09014-01625
2014-09014-01626

Machineries
Tax Declaration Number
2014-09014-01539
2014-09014-01540
2014-09014-01541
2014-09014-01542

Classification
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial

The above properties essentially comprise the Company’s manufacturing plant and
premises in Guiguinto, Bulacan.
Motor Vehicles

The Company owns the following motor vehicles duly registered with the Land
Transportation Office (“LTO”):
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Year Model
1981
1981
1982
1987
1987
1987
1989
1992
1995
1997
1998
1998
1998
1999
1999
1999
2000
2000
2000
2002
2002
2004
2005
2005
2005
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2007
2007
2007
2010
2010
2010
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2014
2014

Brand
Isuzu
Isuzu
Fuso
Isuzu
Isuzu
Isuzu
Isuzu
Isuzu
Isuzu
Hino
Mitsubishi
Nissan
Nissan
Mitsubishi
Ford
Nissan
Isuzu
Isuzu
Isuzu
Toyota
Kia
Honda
Toyota
Kawasaki
Honda
Kawasaki
Isuzu
Toyota
Kawasaki
Toyota
Isuzu
Kawasaki
Honda
Toyota
Toyota
Kawasaki
Kawasaki
Honda
Honda
Honda
Toyota
Toyota
Toyota
Suzuki
Suzuki
Suzuki
Suzuki
Isuzu
Nissan
Toyota
Mitsubishi

Series
Elf w/ Canopy
Aluminum
Cargo
Truck
Forward w/Canopy
Forward
Forward Alum
Truck
Giga
Cab Chassi
Adventure
Power
Ultra Eagle
Adventure
Ranger
Frontier
Hilander
Truck FTR
Hilander
Tamaraw
KC2700
Motorcycle
Vios1.3M/T
CT100
City
CT100
Truck NKR
Vios1.3EM/T
CT100
Vios1.3EM/T
Truck NKR
CT100
ANF100MDP
Vios1.3EM/T
Vios1.3M/T
CT100
CT100
City
City
City
Avanza1.3JM/T
Innova2.5J-DSL
Fortuner 4x4
Alto
Alto
Alto
Alto
Truck NHR
Sentra
Corolla Altis
Mirage GLX1.2G
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Cor Number
CR-5344578-1
CR-5456393-5
CR-4553787-0
CR-8614418-1
CR-4311082-6
CR-9541080-3
CR-4337793-5
CR-5386622-3
CR-6670749-1
CR-155340544
CR-3226753-5
CR-86459747
CR-2890414-2
CR-4439771-0
CR-4528086-3
CR-72620076
CR-2369249-1
CR-153537742
CR-4037742-2
CR-8422753-3
CR-3602313-1
CR-08908953
CR-14054926-4
CR-3765176-2
CR-10717624-1
CR-2384291-0
CR-14859338-4
CR-14054928-6
CR-4491502-1
CR-14054925-3
CR-151823932
CR-2384292-1
CR-4480107-2
CR-14054922-0
CR-14054927-5
CR-4491500-6
CR-4491501-0
CR-10518676-0
CR-14352643-4
CR-14352292-3
CR-10992930-4
CR-11392406-4
CR-10992916-4
CR-12358221-1
CR-12358220-0
CR-12455784-5
CR-12358223-3
CR-12422071-4
CR-12409103-0
CR-194572033
CR-194617975

Date
06/26/07
08/06/07
05/17/07
04/29/09
08/09/06
12/28/09
08/28/06
07/09/07
03/18/08
09/20/12
02/24/05
06/06/03
01/27/05
12/16/06
11/13/06
06/14/01
03/01/06
08/29/12
01/20/06
12/02/09
08/02/05
03/16/04
12/20/11
09/15/05
07/09/10
04/27/06
07/06/12
12/20/11
11/13/06
12/20/11
07/13/12
04/27/06
10/30/06
12/20/11
12/20/11
11/13/06
11/13/06
06/10/10
03/28/12
03/22/12
08/17/10
10/15/10
08/17/10
04/29/11
04/29/11
05/19/11
04/29/11
04/15/11
04/19/11
05/26/14
06/02/14

The properties (lands, buildings and improvements, machineries, and motor vehicles) are
neither subject of any mortgage, lien, or encumbrance nor limitations on its ownership or
usage. Further, the Company is not party to any lease contract involving the said
properties.

The Company intends to purchase a land in Guiguinto, Bulacan, construct a PP-R and
HDPE manufacturing and warehouse facilities, purchase PP-R and HDPE equipment, and
to modernize the existing compounds and pipes plant in the next 12 months, the funding
of which will come primarily from the proceeds of the Offer. The Company is earmarking
P110.00 million for the PP-R and HDPE manufacturing and warehouse facilities, which can
be further broken down to P73.00 million for the plant building, warehouse, and
improvements and P37.00 million for the purchase of PP-R and HDPE equipment, and
P25.00 million for the modernization of the existing compounds and pipes plant.

Legal Proceedings on Properties
There are no pending legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or of which any of its
properties is the subject up to the time of the preparation of this Prospectus.
Trademarks and Copyrights
The Company has various trademarks registered with the Intellectual Property Office, as
follows:
Table 22: CROWN’s Trademarks Under License
Registered
Registration
Trademark
Number
CROWN
4-2006-013655
CROWN SUPREME
4-2006-013659
CROWN BLUE
4-2006-013656
CROWNFLEX
4-2006-013657
ENDURO WITH CROWN DEVICE
4-2006-012499
HI TECH WITH CROWN LOGO
4-2005-006473
PETROVIN & CROWN DEVICE
4-2006-010314
CROWN EXTREME
4-2010-011168
TECHNOVINYL & CROWN DEVICE
4-1997-123430
WITHIN THE CIRCLE
CROWN UNIVERSAL
4-2006-013658

Date of
Registration
August 11, 2008
October 13, 2008
August 11, 2008
August 11, 2008
August 20, 2007
October 23, 2006
July 30, 2007
February 24, 2011

August 11, 2018
October 13, 2018
August 11, 2018
August 11, 2018
August 20, 2017
October 23, 2016
July 30, 2017
February 24, 2021

August 13, 2007

August 13, 2017

February 10, 2003

Valid Until

February 10, 2023

Accreditations
International Organization for Standardization (ISO)
In CROWN’s continuing commitment to maintain the highest level of quality in its
operations and products, the Company continues on updating its ISO certifications. It first
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attained its ISO certification in 1997 from QMS and continues to abide by these standards and
keeps its operations certificated.

On June 26, 2012, CIP issued a certification of registration to CROWN for its Pipes Group,
certifying that CROWN operates a quality management system that has been assessed as
conforming to ISO 9001:2008 for the manufacture and distribution of PVC pipes for potable
water, electrical, sanitary, pressure main pipes, multipurpose pipes, and distribution of pipe
fittings. This certification is valid through June 25, 2015.

In addition, on April 7, 2013, CIP issued a certification of registration to the Company for its
Compounds Group, certifying that CROWN operates a quality management system that has
been assessed as conforming to ISO 9001:2008 for the design, development, manufacture, and
distribution of thermoplastic compounds for various applications in the construction,
telecommunications, automotive, and packaging industries. This certification is valid through
April 6, 2016.
The ISO certifications from CIP are valid for three (3) years.

The following are the Company’s ISO certifications.

Table 23: CROWN’s ISO Certifications for 9001:2008: Quality Management Systems
Issuance Date
Valid Until
PVC Pipes
June 26, 2012
June 25, 2015
Compounds
April 7, 2013
April 6, 2016

CIP is the local arm of Certification International, a multinational company assessor based in
the United Kingdom. CIP has been providing management systems assessment and has
certified more than 900 Philippine and multinational companies since 1995.
Bureau of Product Standards (BPS)

The Company has licenses from the BPS to use the Philippine Standard
Quality Certification Mark for product quality having been assessed and
found as conforming to the requirements of the Department
Administrative Order No. 4 series of 2008 and its future amendments and
revisions. These licenses are valid for a period of three (3) years and are
renewable for the same number of years. As part of the conditions on
these licenses, the BPS makes an annual audit on the Company on its
conformity to the above said requirements.
The following are the Company’s current licenses with the BPS.

Table 24: CROWN’s BPS Licenses
License
Licensed Product
Number
uPVC Pipes for Potable
Water Supply
uPVC Rigid Electrical
Conduits

Q-1743
Q-1780

PNS Number

Issuance Date

Valid Until

PNS 65:1993
(Amd. 01:1987)

February 5, 2014

February 4, 2017

PNS 14:1983
(Amd. 01:1987)
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July 17, 2014

July 16, 2017

INDUSTRY AND COMPETITION
The Philippine Polyvinyl Chloride Industry
Mabuhay Vinyl Corp. was the first manufacturer of PVC thermoplastic resin in the Philippines
in 1967. Prior to this, the manufacture of synthetic resins in the country were limited to alkyd
resins and urea formaldehyde resins, which were first manufactured in 1954 by Philippine
Pigment and Resins Corporation, and Borden Chemicals. Alkyd resins are used chiefly in
making protective coatings and good weathering properties. These resins are useful as film
forming agents in paint, varnished and enamels and as thermosetting plastics that can be
molded into solid objects. 17 Urea formaldehyde resins are used mostly as adhesives for the
bonding of plywood, particleboard, and other structured wood products. 18
Since then, several plastic resin manufacturers set up shop in the Philippines, which include
DFE Chemical Corporation, Rohm and Hass, Philippines, Inc., and Advance Resins. 19

The manufacture of PVC follows an industry chain, starting from upstream to midstream to
downstream, and finally to end users, as shown in the diagram below.
Figure 15: The PVC Production Process Flow 20

Upstream
Basic Petrochemical

Midstream
Ethylene + Chlorine → Ethylene
Dichloride (EDC) → Vinyl Chloride
(VC) → Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)

Crude Oil → Naphtha → Ethylene

Chlor-alkali

Rock Salt → Industrial Grade Salt → Chlorine

End User
Industrial and Consumer Markets

Downstream
PVC Converters

PVC + Additives → PVC Products

The following discusses each stage of the chain, with each corresponding to particular
segments of the whole PVC industry.

17

http://www.niir.org/books/book/alkyd-resins-technology-handbook-h-panda/isbn-9788178331348/zb,,175,a,e,0,3e8/index.html
http://www.britannica.com/EBchecked/topic/619659/urea-formaldehyde-resin
19
PIDS Research Paper Series No. 94-03 by Cesar P. Banzon (1994)
20
http://www.pvc.org/
18
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Upstream
Naphtha

Ethylene

Chlorine

Basic Petrochemical Industry

Rock Salt
Chlor-alkali Industry

The Upstream stage is where the inputs to PVC are produced. Crude oil/natural gas and
rock salt are the starting products for PVC manufacturing. 21

Crude oil is a raw material for naphtha, which when processed through thermal cracking,
produces ethylene in its intermediate stages. On the other hand, rock salt is the raw
material from which chlorine is produced through a process called chlor-alkali
electrolysis. Together, ethylene and chlorine makes up PVC plastic. 22
Midstream
Ethylene
+
Chlorine

Ethylene
Dichloride
(EDC)

Vinyl Chloride
Monomer
(VCM)

Polyvinyl
Chloride
(PVC)

The midstream stage is where the actual production of PVC happens.

In the initial stage of the PVC production process, ethylene and chlorine are combined to
produce an intermediate product called ethylene dichloride (EDC). This is further
processed and transformed into vinyl chloride monomer (VCM), the basic building block
of PVC. The chemical process for making PVC involves taking VCM and linking these
monomer molecules together to create polymers in a process called “polymerization”.23
VCM is produced from ethylene and chloride at a ratio of about 43.00% and 57.00%,
respectively. 24
Downstream

PVC
+
Additives

PVC
Compounds

PVC Products

(e.g. pipes and fittings)

The downstream stage is where PVC is further processed with additives to create PVC
compounds, which is then further processed to become the products we see today like
pipes and fittings.

21

www.renolit.com/fileadmin/renolit/.../Everything_about_PVC.pdf
www.renolit.com/fileadmin/renolit/.../Everything_about_PVC.pdf
23
http://www.pvc.org/
24
www.renolit.com/fileadmin/renolit/.../Everything_about_PVC.pdf
22
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PVC would not be a particularly useful substance without additives. PVC’s compatibility
with a wide range of additives allows it to be softened, made into different colors, and
made more processable and durable, which results in a wide range of potential
applications. 25

The choice of additives depends on the processing procedures and demands of the
finished product. Depending on the choice of additives, PVC as a raw material can be
developed into sturdy, thick-walled pipes for drinking water or extremely thin, flexible
film for packaging fresh meat. Additives provide a wide range of product properties. 26 The
essential additives for PVC materials are stabilizers and lubricants. Plasticizers are also
used as additives to produce flexible PVC. The effects of additives on PVC are summarized
as follows: 27
Stabilizers

The use of stabilizers guarantees sufficient heat stability for PVC during processing
and protects the end product from changes due to heat, UV-light, or oxygen. 28 This is
essential to prevent the chain reaction of decomposition. 29
Lubricants

Lubricants influence the manner in which PVC melts and flows during processing.
Several parameters like energy consumption of the processing equipment, melt
pressure in the machine, productivity, dispersion of fillers and pigments, etc. are
directly affected by the right selection and the optimum dosage of lubricants. 30
Plasticizers

Plasticizers provide PVC with special properties of use similar to those of rubber. This
naturally hard material becomes flexible and elastic through plasticizers while
retaining its shape. 31 PVC products that are softened by plasticizers are called soft or
flexible PVC products.
Once manufactured as a material suitable for further processing, PVC is supplied
downstream to companies collectively known as “converters.” These companies either
make final PVC products for sale or make components for further downstream companies.
The different kinds of PVC converters include:

25

http://www.pvc.org/
www.renolit.com/fileadmin/renolit/.../Everything_about_PVC.pdf
27
http://www.pvc.org/
28
www.renolit.com/fileadmin/renolit/.../Everything_about_PVC.pdf
29
http://www.pvc.org/
30
https://www.honeywell-additives.com/Additives/Literature/honeywell-rheochem-lubricants-rigid-lubricants-PVCprocessing-overview.pdf
31
http://www.pvc.org/
26
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PVC Compounding

Compounding may be carried out by the converters themselves or by separate
“compounders” that supply ready-made blends ready for processing. Various additives
including stabilizers and plasticizers need to be added to PVC resin to create a
“compound” that meets the requirement of the end product and of the processing
technology to be used. 32
PVC Processing: Pipe and Fittings

PVC-containing products are manufactured from compounded resins by a number of
processes, including extrusion, injection molding, calendaring, coating, thermoforming,
blow molding, and blow film processing. The most important of these for the
processing of pipes and fittings are described below: 33
Extrusion

The PVC resin is fed into the extruder and a screw-like shaft is rotated to push the
resin forward where it is extruded through the outlet die. This technology is used
to make pipes.
Injection Molding

This is a manufacturing process that injects PVC resin into a metal mold by
pressure. This process is best suited for production of three-dimensional
structures. This technology is used to produce pipe fittings.
Approximately three-quarters of PVC resin consumption is fabricated into products that
are used in the construction sector. PVC’s largest application is for the manufacture of
pipes and fittings, which is estimated to be at around 42.00% of the global application of
PVC resin for the year 2012. These products are used in residential households,
commercial establishments, industry, and agriculture and in the buried pipe
infrastructure that supplies consumers with drinking water and manages waste water
flows of sewage and storm runoff.

(This space was intentionally left blank)

32
33

http://www.pvc.org/
http://www.pvc.org/upload/documents/The_Economics_of_PVC.pdf
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Figure 16: PVC Global Application in 2012 34
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Domestic PVC Production
Upstream
Ethylene Plants

The Philippines has no ethylene plants upstream and relies on imports for all supplies
of the raw material.

34

JG Summit Holdings intends to rectify this situation by bringing on-stream the
country’s first ethylene plant. JG Summit Olefins Corporation (JGSOC) is a company
wholly-owned by JG Summit Holdings. It was established to operate the country’s first
Naphtha Cracker Plant. The naphtha cracker plant is a backward integration for the
existing Polyethylene (PE) and Polypropylene (PP) plants of JG Summit
Petrochemicals Corporation (JGSPC). Construction of the naphtha cracker plant is
currently in progress in Barangay Simlong, Batangas City, adjacent to the existing
PE/PP Plant of JGSPC. 35 The plant will have a capacity to produce around 320,000
MTPA of ethylene, 190,000 MTPA of propylene, 216,000 MTPA of pyrolysis gas, and
110,000 MTPA of mixed C4. 36 Crude C4 is a primary material for the production of
butadiene, unleaded gasoline, and liquefied petroleum gas (LPG). 37 Once fully
operational, JGSOC expects to generate between $800.00 million and $1.00 billion in
revenues for the JG Summit Group. The start of commercial operations is yet to be
determined. Currently, JGSPC purchases their ethylene requirements from

https://www.vinnolit.com/vinnolit.nsf/id/kunststoffe-developement-pvc-market-en/$file/IPDF%20VINNOLIT_PE111518_PE10_13_.pdf
35
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 2013 Annual Report
36
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 2013 Annual Report
37
http://www.dow.com/hydrocarbons/c4/prod/cc4.htm
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international suppliers which include Japanese trading companies Marubeni
Corporation and Mitsui & Co. Ltd. 38
Philippine Resins Industries, Inc. (PPRI), one of Philippines’ and Asia’s most modern
PVC manufacturing plants, likewise imports its VCM and PVC requirements from
Mitsubishi Corporation. 39

JGSPC and PPRI do not have the same market as the former produces PE and PP resins
while the latter produces PVC resins. Nevertheless, both companies use ethylene as its
principal raw material.
Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation
Key Domestic Chlorine Producer

Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (PSE: MVC) is the first and largest chlor-alkali producer in
the Philippines. It is the country’s leading manufacturer of caustic soda and chlorine
derivatives. It is 45.92% owned by Tosoh Corporation and Mitsubishi Corporation. 40

MVC has manufacturing plants in Iligan City and at the Laguna Technopark in Biñan,
Laguna. The Iligan Plant has a capacity of 30,000 MTPA while the Sta. Rosa Plant has a
highly automated 20,000 MTPA production facility. 41
MVC’s sales amounted to P1.67 billion and P1.41 billion for the years ended December
2012 and 2013, respectively. 42

Midstream

Philippine Resins Industries, Inc.
Key Domestic PVC Resin Producer
PPRI is one of Philippines’ and Asia’s most modern PVC manufacturing plants. Its
capacity can supply almost all the domestic PVC requirements, making the country
self-sufficient in PVC resins supply. Tosoh Corporation owns 80.00% of PPRI’s equity,
while Mitsubishi Corporation owns the remaining 20.00%. 43

PPRI’s plant is located in a 6.5-hectare area within the PAFC Petrochemical Industrial
Park in the province of Bataan. The plant was commissioned in 1998 and has an
existing capacity of 100,000 MTPA PVC resin. The plant however has been designed to
accommodate a potential capacity expansion of 80,000 MTPA in the medium term. 44
38

JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 2013 Annual Report
Philippine Resins Industries, Inc. 2013 SEC Filings
40
Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation 2013 Annual Report
41
Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation 2013 Annual Report
42
Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation 2013 Annual Report
43
http://www.prii.com.ph/
44
Philippine Resins Industries, Inc. 2013 SEC Filings
39
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PPRI’s sales amounted to P3.85 billion and P3.99 billion for the years ended December
2012 and 2013, respectively. 45

Downstream and Competition

PVC Compounds Manufacturers

The key players in the domestic PVC compounding industry are as follows:
D&L Industries, Inc.

D&L Industries, Inc. (PSE: DNL), through its subsidiaries First In Colours,
Incorporated (FIC) and D&L Polymer and Colours, Inc. (DLPC), manufactures and
sells custom-designed and formulated pigment blends, color and additive master
batches and engineered polymers. FIC focuses on the Philippine domestic market
while DLPC focuses primarily on the export market. 46

DLPC’s facility at Canlubang, Laguna has 14 production lines with a rated capacity
of 50,000 MTPA while FIC’s facility at Bagumbayan, Quezon City has 10 production
lines with a rated capacity of 10,000 MTPA. 47

DNL’s colorants and plastic additives accounted for 39.34% and 22.70% of its total
revenues for the years ended December 2012 and 2013, respectively. This business
segment includes the sale of plastic color master batches, plastic additive master
batches, and plastic compounds. 48

Tosoh Polyvin Corporation

Tosoh Polyvin Corporation was incorporated in the Philippines on July 3, 1998. It is
owned by Tosoh Corporation (Tosoh) (49.50%), Plas-Tech Corporation (PlasTech) (25.00%), and Mitsubishi Corporation (10.00%). 49

The Company’s plant is located in the Special Economic Zone of Lima Technology
Center in Lipa City, Batangas. It is reported to have a production output of more
than 170,000 MTPA. 50

The Company’s revenues represent the sale of PVC and ethylene vinyl acetate
compounds.

45

Philippine Resins Industries, Inc. 2013 SEC Filings
D&L Industries, Inc. 2013 Annual Report
47
D&L Industries, Inc. Prospectus
48
D&L Industries, Inc. 2013 Annual Report
49
Tosoh Polyvin Corporation 2013 SEC Filings
50
http://www.tosoh.co.jp/ir/annual/pdfs/2006.pdf
46
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Elastobest Manufacturing Corporation
Elastobest Manufacturing Corporation was incorporated in the Philippines on May
18, 2010 as a processor of compounded raw materials in pelletized form for the
consumption of plastic manufacturers. Its plant is located in Kowloon Subdivision,
Valenzuela City. 51

The following table presents the annual sales of the four (4) companies for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.
Table 25: PVC Compounds Manufacturers in the Philippines
2012
2013
Rank
Company
Sales
Sales
1
D&L
P1,579,872,409
P1,491,101,940
2
Tosoh
975,649,591
1,129,398,162
3
Crown
498,485,357
522,890,527
4
Elastobest
1,558,277
2,562,661

Source: SEC filings

PVC Processors: Pipes and Fittings Manufacturers

The key players in the domestic PVC pipes and fittings manufacturing industry are as
follows:
Neltex Development Company, Inc.

Neltex Development Company, Inc. (Neltex) was incorporated in July 7, 1967. It is
the largest producer of PVC Pipes and Fittings in the country at over 43,000 MTPA.
Its first manufacturing plant is located in Las Piñas City with a capacity of 13,000
MTPA. 52 In 2013, the Company completed the construction of its second plant in
the First Cavite Industrial Estate (FCIE), Dasmariñas, Cavite. This new plant has a
capacity of 30,000 MTPA. 53 54
Moldex Products, Inc.

Moldex Products, Inc. (Moldex) was incorporated in March 17, 1972. Before its
incorporation, it started as a proprietorship involved in the reprocessing of plastic
waste materials into pellets. After a few years, it ended its old business and started
the production of plastic seals and PVC bottle compounds. 55

51

In early 1979, Moldex diversified into the manufacture of PVC, PE, and
polybutylene (PB) pipes and tubings. Other product lines were introduced much

Elastobest Manufacturing Corporation 2013 SEC Filings
http://neltex.com/index.php/about-us
53
http://neltex.com/index.php/news/neltex-the-first-and-the-only-state-of-the-art-pvc-pipe-manufacturing-plant-in-thephilippines.html
54
http://www.livingmarjorney.com/2013/05/breathing-space-neltex-pvc-pipes.html
55
http://mpi.moldex.com.ph/about.html
52
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later, to include corrugated electrical and telecom conduits as well as branded
sanitary sewer pipes and fittings. 56

Moldex’s manufacturing facilities are located in Marilao, Bulacan with a capacity of
35,000 MTPA. The entire site contains a total area of 20 hectares of which only 6.6
hectares are occupied. 57

Moldex’s main product offerings include PVC potable, PVC water pressure, HDPE
water pipes, PVC electrical, and PVC sanitary.
Emerald Vinyl Corporation

Emerald Vinyl Corporation was incorporated on December 22, 1976. It is engaged
in the manufacture of numerous plastic products such as but not limited to PVC
pipes, receptacles, conduit pipes, water and electrical pipes. Its plant office is
located in Balintawak, Quezon City. 58
Atlanta Industries, Inc.

Atlanta Industries, Inc. was registered with the SEC on September 1, 1978. Its
primary purpose is to engage in the manufacture of PVC pipes and fittings. 59 Its
manufacturing plant in A. Mabini, Pasig City has an annual capacity of 18,000 MT of
PVC and PE pipes. It also has a factory in Guangzhou, China with an annual capacity
of 6,000 MT for PVC pipes and 1,500 MT for PE pipes. 60

The following table shows the products offered by each company.

Table 26: Pipes and Fittings Product Matrix
Product Type
Neltex
Pipes and Fittings
PVC Potable
PVC Electrical
PVC Flexible Electrical
UV-Protected PVC Flexible Electrical
PVC Sanitary
UV-Protected PVC Sanitary
PVC Water Pressure
PVC Sewer and Drain Main
PVC Multi-Purpose
PVC Pipe Cement
HDPE Water Pipes
PP-R Hot and Cold Water Lines
PVC Hot and Cold Water Lines
PVC Films

√
√
√

Moldex

Emerald

Atlanta

Crown

√
√
√

√
√

√
√
√

√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√*

√

√

√
√

√

√

√
√
√

√

*to be carried once PP-R/HDPE plant construction has been finished

56

√

http://www.livingmarjorney.com/2013/05/breathing-space-neltex-pvc-pipes.html
http://www.livingmarjorney.com/2013/05/breathing-space-neltex-pvc-pipes.html
58
Emerald Vinyl Corporation 2013 SEC Filings
59
Atlanta Industries, Inc. 2013 SEC Filings
60
http://atlanta.ph/about-us/
57
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√
√
√
√
√
√

The following table shows the annual sales and net income for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2013.

Table 27: PVC Pipes Manufacturers in the Philippines
Rank Company
2012
Net
Net
Sales
Income
Income
(in Pmillions)
(in Pmillions)
Margin
1
Neltex
P1,531.16
P91.18
5.95%
2
Moldex
1,162.29
17.41
1.50%
3
Emerald
923.80
71.28
7.72%
4
Atlanta
916.88
8.66
0.94%
5
Crown
812.04
27.71
3.41%

Source: SEC filings

2013
Sales

(in Pmillions)

Net
Income

(in Pmillions)

P1,648.86
1,016.47
1,038.70
1,034.15
801.82

P154.66
19.33
73.67
12.09
49.75

Net
Income
Margin
9.38%
1.90%
7.09%
1.17%
6.20%

The Philippine Construction Industry
PVC’s versatility allows it to be used for a variety of other applications. As developments in
PVC’s manufacturing and processing technology and additives emerge, more and more uses
for PVC are being discovered and studied.

It is estimated that 80.00% of the PVC products produced locally are used in the Building and
Construction sector. Its durability, versatility, cost effectiveness, and proven track record has
made it the choice of architects and building contractors. From roofing to floorings, PVC
applications keep on growing as newer technologies and design needs emerge. 61

In the Philippines, the major application of PVC is for pipes and fittings, comprising more than
50.00% of the market. In applications ranging from water delivery and landscape irrigation
systems to drain, waste, and vent (DWV) systems and sewage transport and electrical
conduits, PVC plays a vital role in providing dependable piping services. 62 It is estimated that
in a typical house or building, pipes account for 3.00% of the total cost of construction. 63
Preliminary results of construction statistics from approved building permits for 2014
showed that the number of new construction projects nationwide reached to 121,256,
registering an increase of 12.52% from 107,765 in 2013. The table below compares the
number of construction projects by the type of construction for 2013 and 2014.
Table 28: Preliminary Results of Construction Statistics:
Number of Approved Building Permits
Type of Construction
2013
Residential
78,111
Non-Residential
12,874
Additions, Alterations, and Repair
16,780
TOTAL
107,765

Source: NSO

61

http://www.prii.com.ph/index2.php?s=3&p=3-medical
http://www.prii.com.ph/index2.php?s=3&p=3-pipes
63
http://business.inquirer.net/124721/homes-need-tougher-reliable-pipes
62
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2014
86,072
14,415
20,769
121,256

Change
10.19%
11.97%
23.77%
12.52%

The National Statistics Office defines the following terms as: 64

Residential Building is a building for which its major parts or more than half of its gross
floor area is built for dwelling purposes. This type of building can be of the single type,
duplex, quadruplex, apartment and/or accessoria, and residential condominium.

Non-Residential Building includes commercial, industrial, agricultural and institutional
buildings.

Addition refers to any new construction which increases the height or area of an existing
building/structure.

Alteration refers to construction in a structure involving changes in the materials used,
partitioning, location/size of openings, structural parts, existing utilities and equipment
but does not increase the overall area thereof.
Repair refers to remedial work done on any damaged or deteriorated portion/s of a
structure to restore its original condition.
Figure 17: Value of New Construction Projects

Source: NSO

The total value of new construction projects for 2014 rose by 37.74% to P344.18 billion from
P249.87 billion recorded for 2013. The value of non-residential building construction grew
the highest by about P75.31 billion or 72.46%. Of the total construction value, residential
buildings accounted for 39.95% and non-residential buildings for 52.08% for 2014.

Across the Philippines, the combined construction value of the top five regions is estimated to
be around P290.00 billion, comprising about 84.26% of the total construction value for 2014.
NCR consistently remained highest in terms of construction value at around P175.40 billion
or 50.96% of the total. This is followed by CALABARZON with P53.70 billion (15.60%),
Central Visayas with P23.90 billion (6.94%), Central Luzon with P21.90 billion (6.36%) and
Western Visayas with P15.10 billion (4.39%).
64

http://www.census.gov.ph/content/construction-statistics-approved-building-permits-first-quarter-2014-preliminary-results
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In terms of the number of construction projects, CALABARZON ranked the highest with
27,463 or 22.65% of the total for 2014. Other regions that amounted to more than 10.00% of
the total construction projects are Central Luzon with 15,172 (12.51%), National Capital
Region with 12,673 (10.45%) and Central Visayas with 12,386 (10.21%).

The figure below shows the regional distribution of construction projects for 2014.
Figure 18: Distribution of Construction Projects by Region

Source: NSO

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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The table and figure that follow show the breakdown of the residential construction projects.
Table 29: Breakdown of Residential Construction Projects by
Project Type
Type of Project
2014
% of Total
Single House
72,221
83.91%
Apartment / Accessoria
9,927
11.53%
Duplex / Quadruplex
3,781
4.39%
Condominiums
143
0.17%
TOTAL
86,072
100.00%

Source: NSO

Figure 19: Breakdown of Residential Construction Projects by Construction Value

Source: NSO

The table and figure that follow show the breakdown of the non-residential construction
projects.
Table 30: Breakdown of Non-Residential Construction Projects
by Project Type
Type of Project
2014
% of Total
Commercial
8,922
61.89%
Institutional
2,731
18.95%
Industrial
1,770
12.28%
Agricultural
703
4.88%
Others
289
2.00%
TOTAL
14,415
100.00%

Source: NSO
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Figure 20: Breakdown of Non-Residential
Construction Projects by Construction Value

Source: NSO

Philippine Residential Real Estate Sector
The Subdivision and Housing Developers Association (SHDA), the country’s largest
association of real estate developers, estimated that the Philippines is facing a 3.90 million
housing backlog in 2011 that could balloon up to 6.50 million units by 2030. According to
the roadmap created by SHDA, “The Philippine Housing Industry Plan: 2012-2030,” the
country must build one (1) million homes by 2016, two (2) million homes by 2022, and
seven (7) million homes by 2030, for a total of 10.00 million homes from 2012-2030 to
eliminate the housing backlog by the year 2030. 65

The biggest property developers in the country likewise increased their project and
capital expenditures for 2014. Ayala Land, Inc. (PSE: ALI) spent a total of P16.44 billion in
project and capital expenditures for the 1st quarter of 2014, of which about 54.00% was
spent on residential developments. This represents 23.00% of the programmed P70.00
billion spending by year-end to finance the continued rollout of its aggressive growth
plans. 66
Megaworld Corporation (PSE: MEG) disclosed a planned expenditure of up to P230.00
billion for the next five (5) years to further expand its residential, office, hotels,
commercial and retail projects in various townships all throughout the country. MEG
intends to launch at least 10 residential projects and six (6) office towers every year. 67

65

Property developers in the country are also optimistic in the commercial real estate
property sector where demand for office space is strong.

The Philippine Housing Industry Plan: 2012 – 2030 by SHDA
http://ir.ayalaland.com.ph/Financials.aspx?id=27
67
http://www.megaworldcorp.com/megaworld-allocates-p230-b-capex-in-the-next-five-years/
66
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Philippine Commercial Real Estate Sector
The expansion of outsourced services continued to drive the growth of the BPO sector and the
increased presence of multinational firms in the country. BPO companies are also broadening
their services beyond call centers. This in turn accounted for the lower vacancy rates across
the different business districts. Rents across the districts steadily increased during the year
despite the turnover of new supply, indicating a strong demand for office space. 68

Similarly, the retail sector experienced robust activity, especially the major shopping malls
whose newly constructed spaces were primarily built to address the space requirements
coming from the entry of foreign brands in the market.
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. (PSE: SMPH), the country’s largest mall operator, planned a capital
expenditure of $1.50 billion and $1.90 billion for 2014 and 2015. SMPH’s strategy includes
acquisition of strategic land bank, leverage on malls, optimize existing properties, and rollout
development of business process outsourcing offices. 69

Robinsons Land Corporation (PSE: RLC) likewise set its capital expenditures to P16.00 billion
for 2014 to cover land and construction. RLC intends to use P12.80 billion for the construction
and completion of shopping malls, office buildings, and hotels. 70
Waterworks Infrastructure Activities 71

The Philippine government, under its Public-Private Partnership (PPP) program, auctioned off
two waterworks infrastructure contracts worth an estimated project cost of P43.10 billion.
The launching of utility projects in the Government’s PPP scheme comes as it adds more road,
airport, and railway tenders into its program, which is aimed at addressing the
underinvestment in infrastructure.

Among the two (2) contracts auctioned off is the P24.40 billion Bulacan Bulk Water Supply
Project, a 30-year contract to build and operate facilities for treated bulk water in Bulacan.
The project intends to address the water supply requirements of municipalities in the
Province of Bulacan. This will reduce groundwater extraction and the use of deep wells in the
province, which are being discouraged due to its adverse environmental impact.

Second is the P18.70 billion New Centennial Water Project. The project involves constructing
a dam northeast of Metro Manila to help ensure water security in one of the world’s most
densely populated and fastest growing cities. The project intends to increase the capital’s
water supply for it to meet future potable water demand with less dependence on the Angat
Dam Reservoir.
The two Metro Manila water concessionaires, Manila Water Company, Inc. (PSE: MWC) and
Maynilad Water Services, Inc. (Maynilad), are among the applicants of the said projects,
currently at its bidding stage.

68

CBRE Philippines
http://www.smprime.com/smprime/?p=587&type=2&sec=49&aid=16915
70
http://cuervo.com.ph/real-estate/robinsons-land-raises-capex-to-p16-b-this-year.html
71
http://ppp.gov.ph/
69
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MARKET INFORMATION
Table 31: Pre and Post IPO Ownership Structure

Shares owned Prior
to the Offer
Shareholder
Nationality
Number of
Percent to
Shares
Total
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Filipino
94,559,999
20.00%
Walter H. Villanueva
Filipino
70,919,999
15.00%
Jefferson T. Sy
Filipino
47,280,000
10.00%
Christie T. Perez
Filipino
47,280,000
10.00%
Tita P. Villanueva
Filipino
47,279,999
10.00%
Nicasio T. Perez
Filipino
47,279,999
10.00%
Oscar T. Perez
Filipino
23,640,000
5.00%
Gloria P. Go
Filipino
23,640,000
5.00%
Meda T. Perez
Filipino
23,640,000
5.00%
Sofia P. Po
Filipino
23,640,000
5.00%
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
Filipino
11,820,000
2.50%
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
Filipino
3,940,000
0.83%
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
Filipino
3,940,000
0.83%
Natalie V. Peñaranda
Filipino
3,940,000
0.83%
Derrick P. Villanueva
Filipino
1
-nilStephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Filipino
1
-nilMarie Therese G. Santos
Filipino
1
-nilErnesto R. Alberto
Filipino
1
-nilPublic
0.00%
Total
472,800,000
100.00%
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off

Shares owned
After the Offer
Number of
Percent to
Shares
Total
94,559,999
14.99%
70,919,999
11.24%
47,280,000
7.50%
47,280,000
7.50%
47,279,999
7.50%
47,279,999
7.50%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
23,640,000
3.75%
11,820,000
1.87%
3,940,000
0.62%
3,940,000
0.62%
3,940,000
0.62%
1
-nil1
-nil1
-nil1
-nil158,000,000
25.05%
630,800,000
100.00%

Recent Sales of Exempt Securities and Unregistered Securities
On January 25, 2013, the SEC approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of the
Company, from Ten Million Pesos (P10,000,000.00) divided into One Hundred Thousand
(100,000) Shares with a par value of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00) per share to One Billion,
Three Hundred Million Pesos (P1,300,000,000.00) divided into One Billion, Three Hundred
Million (1,300,000,000) shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share. Out of the
increase in authorized capital stock, Three Hundred Forty Two Million, Eight Hundred
Thousand Pesos (P342,800,000.00) worth of shares have been subscribed and fully paid for
through the assignment of stockholders’ advances to the Company for a total subscription
price of Three Hundred Forty Two Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos
(P342,800,000.00). The share issuances in relation to the increase in authorized capital stock
are as follows:
Furthermore, in the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders on
September 5, 2014, it was approved that the Company would issue out 34.01% stock
dividends. Subsequently, the Board of Directors in their meeting on November 3, 2014 set the
distribution date of the stock dividends to November 6, 2014.
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The effects of such issuance are as follows:

Table 32: CROWN Recent Share Issuance
No. of Shares
before
Increase in
Name
ACS and
Stock
Dividends
Eugene H. Villanueva
1,999,999
Walter H. Villanueva
1,499,999
Jefferson T. Sy
1,000,000
Christie T. Perez
1,000,000
Tita P. Villanueva
999,999
Nicasio T. Perez
999,999
Oscar T. Perez
500,000
Gloria P. Go
500,000
Meda T. Perez
500,000
Sofia P. Po
500,000
Elizabeth P. Lee Villanueva
250,000
Warren Michael P. Lee Villanueva
83,333
Johanns P. Lee Villanueva
83,333
Natalie Penaranda
83,333
Derrick P. Villanueva
1
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
1
Marie Therese G. Santos
1
Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto
1
Total
10,000,000

*
**
***

Increase in
ACS

Stock
Dividends

68,560,000
51,420,000
34,280,000
34,280,000
34,280,000
34,280,000
17,140,000
17,140,000
17,140,000
17,140,000
8,570,000
2,856,667
2,856,667
2,856,667
342,800,000

24,000,000
18,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
12,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
120,000,000

No. of Shares
after
Increase in
ACS and
Stock
Dividends
94,559,999
70,919,999
47,280,000
47,280,000
47,279,999
47,279,999
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
23,640,000
11,820,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
3,940,000
1
1
1
1
472,800,000

Assumes that shares before increase in ACS are already at P1.00 par value
Assumes that shares of Mr. Wilson H. Villanueva have already been issued to his heirs.
Assumes that nominee shares to Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva, Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva, Mrs. Marie
Therese G. Santos, and Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto have already been issued prior to the increase in ACS and Stock
Dividends.

The Company paid the taxes involved in the issuance of the shares listed above.
Dividends
The Company declared cash dividends of: (a) P5,000,000 in 2012 at P0.0500 per share
representing a dividend rate of 109.89%; (b) P12,000,000 in 2013 at P0.0254 per share
representing a dividend rate of 43.31%; (c) P7,000,000 in 2014 at P0.0148 per share
representing a dividend rate of 14.07%; and (d) P25,000,000 in January 2015 at P0.0529 per
share representing a dividend rate of 50.25%. In addition, the Company declared stock
dividends of 120,000,000 common shares on September 5, 2014 representing 34.01% of the
issued and outstanding shares prior to the dividend declaration. These shares were issued on
November 6, 2014. The discussion of the Company’s dividends policy and history can be
found in section “Dividends and Dividend Policy” on page 49.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS PROGRAM
This program was introduced purposely to address and attend to investors' inquiries about
the Company and its future plans for its stockholders. This program is comprised of. Atty.
Jason C. Nalupta as the Company’s Chief Information Officer and Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva as the
Company’s Investor Relations Officer.

Atty. Jason C. Nalupta, as the Chief Information Officer, is in-charge of submitting periodic
reports and statements required to be filed on a regular basis with the SEC and the PSE as
well as current reports on material events that have occurred and are required to be
disclosed to the SEC and/or the PSE within a given period from the time of their occurrence.
The reports required to be filed with the SEC include, among others, the following:

• Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) – within 105 days after the end of the fiscal year;
• Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q) - within 45 days after the end of the first three (3)
fiscal quarters of each fiscal year;
• Proxy Statement or Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) – at least 15 business
days prior to the scheduled date of the annual stockholders’ meeting; and
• Current Reports (SEC Form 17-C) – within five (5) days after the occurrence of the
event required to be reported.

As a general rule, listed companies are required to furnish the PSE copies of all reports
submitted to the SEC. The periodic reports required to be filed with the PSE, which are
referred to as Structured Continuing Disclosures, include, among others, the following:
•
•

•
•

Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) – within 105 days after the end of the fiscal year;
Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q) - within 45 days after the end of the first three
(3) fiscal quarters of each fiscal year;
Report on the Top 100 Stockholders – within 15 days after the end of each quarter;
and
Board Lot Report – within five (5) trading days after the end of each month.

Listed companies are required to update the investing public with any material fact that
occurs which would reasonably be expected to affect investors’ decision in relation to trading
of its securities. Such reports, which are referred to as Unstructured Continuing Disclosures,
are required to be disclosed to the PSE within 10 minutes from receipt of the information or
occurrence of the event.
For investor relation matters, investors may contact Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva, the Company’s
Investor Relations Officer, at (+632) 413-8032 to 33, telefax number (+632) 413-8034 local
111, and through her email address tpvillanueva@crownpvc.com.ph.
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MANAGEMENT
Board of Directors
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the over-all management and direction of the
Company. The Board meets to review and monitor the Company’s future plans. Each Board
member serves for a term of one (1) year, subject to re-election. A director who was elected to fill
any vacancy holds office only for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the composition of the Company’s Board of Directors is as
follows. The independent directors were elected on September 5, 2014 while the rest were
elected during the Company’s annual stockholders’ meeting held on March 4, 2014:

Table 33: Board of Directors
Name

Walter H. Villanueva
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
Tita P. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez
Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
Oscar T. Perez
Marie Therese G. Santos
Ernesto R. Alberto

Age Nationality
60
58
59
57
32
31
56
57
53

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Present Position
Chairman of the Board
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Period of Service
in the Company
25 years
25 years
25 years
25 years
1 year
1 year
25 years
less than 1 year
less than 1 year

To describe the business experience of the Company’s directors for the past five (5) years, we
have outlined hereunder their professional and business affiliations, as follows:

Walter H. Villanueva, 60, Filipino, Chairman of the Board, General Manager – Pipes
Group, and General Manager – PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division

Mr. Walter H. Villanueva is concurrently a director and stockholder of Asean Timber
Corporation, Husky Plastics Corporation, WT Derrick Realty Corporation and Guiguinto
Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. He is likewise the President or Chairman and
General Manager of these companies. From 2005-2013, Mr. Villanueva served as the Vice
President for Sales and Marketing and the General Manager for the Pipes Group of Crown Asia
Chemicals Corporation.

Mr. Villanueva holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration and Marketing
from the University of the Philippines Diliman.
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, 58, Filipino, Director, President, and General Manager –
Compounds Group
Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva is concurrently a director and stockholder of Husky Plastics
Corporation. He is an MBA Candidate in the Ateneo De Manila University and holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Pre Medicine from the University of the Philippines.
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Tita P. Villanueva, CPA, 59, Filipino, Director and VP-Comptroller
Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva is concurrently a director and stockholder of Asean Timber
Corporation, Husky Plastics Corporation, WT Derrick Realty Corporation, and Guiguinto
Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. She is likewise serves as the Comptroller and
Chairman of the Board of Asean Timber Corporation, Treasurer of both Husky Plastics
Corporation and WT Derrick Realty Corporation, and Vice President of Guiguinto
Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. Mrs. Villanueva holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Administration and Accountancy from the University of the Philippines
Diliman.
Nicasio T. Perez, 57, Filipino, Director and VP-Treasurer

Mr. Nicasio T. Perez is concurrently a director and stockholder of Asean Timber
Corporation and Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. He likewise serves as
Treasurer of Asean Timber Corporation and Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Commerce from the University of Sto. Tomas.
Derrick P. Villanueva, 32, Filipino, Director and General Manager – PVC Pipes Division

Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva was the Assistant General Manager – PVC Pipes Division position
from July 2009 to December 2013 before he was promoted to General Manager for the
same division. He is concurrently a director and stockholder of WT Derrick Realty
Corporation. Mr. Villanueva holds a Diploma in Chemical Sciences from the British
Columbia Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science degree in Entrepreneur
Management from the University of Asia and the Pacific.

Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva, 31, Filipino, Director and Assistant General
Manager – Compounds Group
Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva holds a Masters degree in Information Technology
and Bachelor of Science degree in Management Information Systems from the Ateneo de
Manila University.
Oscar T. Perez, 55, Filipino, Director

Mr. Oscar T. Perez is concurrently the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and a
stockholder of NSR Rubber Corporation. He also holds directorships in Asean Timber
Corporation and Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation. Mr. Perez received a
Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from the University of the Philippines Diliman.
Marie Therese G. Santos, 57, Filipino, Independent Director

Ms. Marie Therese G. Santos is concurrently a director, stockholder, and administrator of
Gravitas Prime. Ms. Santos also sits as Independent Director of First Abacus Holdings, Inc.
and Treasurer/ Trustee of UP High, Preparatory, Elementary, and Integrated School
Alumni Foundation. She previously served as CFO, and after her resignation, as
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Music Semiconductors
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Corporation. She also served as Director and Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee of both Rural Bank of Solano (Nueva Vizcaya), Inc. and Cordillera Savings and
Loan Association.
Ms. Santos holds a Masters degree in Business Administration and Bachelor of Science
degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of the Philippines. She is a licensed
Chemical Engineer.”
Ernesto R. Alberto, 53, Filipino, Independent Director

Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto is concurrently the Executive Vice President of the Philippine Long
Distance Telephone Company (PLDT). He is also the President and CEO of Telesat, Inc. and
ePLDT, Inc., as well as the President of ePDS, Inc. In addition, he is the Chairman of ACASIA
Communications Sdn Bhd, Bonifacio Communications Corp., PLDT SUBIC TELECOM, INC.
(PLDT Subictel), Clark Telecommunication Company Inc. (PLDT Clarktel), ABM Global
Solutions, iPlus, and Junior Achievement Philippines. He also holds directorships in PLDT
Philcom, PLDT Maratel, Inc., PLDT Global Philippines, PLDT Global Malaysia, Mabuhay
Investments Corp., IP Converge Data Services, Inc., and IBM Analitika Philippines. Mr.
Alberto was a director of the Business Processing Association of the Philippines (BPA/P)
from 2007 to 2011. Mr. Alberto obtained his Master’s Degree in Economic Research from
the University of Asia and the Pacific and his Bachelor’s Degree Major in Economics, Minor
in Mathematics and Political Science from San Beda College.
Principal Officers
As of the date of this Prospectus, the following are the principal officers of the Company:

Table 34: Principal Officers
Name

Age

Nationality

Eugene Lee Villanueva

58

Filipino

Tita P. Villanueva

59

Filipino

Walter H. Villanueva
Nicasio T. Perez

Derrick P. Villanueva
Stephanie Lauren
Lee Villanueva

Hans Joseph T. Perez
Jason C. Nalupta

Ria Carmela C. Cruz

60
57
32
31
25

43
30

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Present Position
President; General Manager Compounds Group
General Manager – Pipes Group;
General Manager – PP-R/HDPE
Pipes Division
Vice President-Comptroller
Vice PresidentTreasurer
General Manager – PVC Pipes
Division
Assistant General Manager –
Compounds Group
Assistant to the General Manager
– PP-R/HDPE Pipes Division
Corporate Secretary and Chief
Information Officer
Assistant Corporate Secretary
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Year Position
was Assumed
1989
2014
2005
1992
2014
2011
2014

2012
2014

The business experience of Mr. Eugene Lee Villanueva, Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, Mrs. Tita P.
Villanueva, Mr. Nicasio T. Perez, Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva, and Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee
Villanueva are all outlined under the Director’s sub-section of this section, presented earlier.
The following outlines the business experience of the other Company’s officers for the past
five (5) years:

Hans Joseph T. Perez, 25, Filipino, Assistant to the General Manager – PP-R/HDPE
Pipes Division

Mr. Hans T. Perez assumed his position as Assistant to the General Manager of the PP-R
/HDPE Pipes Division in 2014. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce major
in Business Management from the De La Salle University.
Jason C. Nalupta, 43, Filipino, Corporate Secretary and Chief Information Officer

Atty. Jason C. Nalupta is also currently the Corporate Secretary of listed firm A Brown
Company, Inc. and Assistant Corporate Secretary of listed firm Pacific Online Systems
Corporation. He is also a Director and/or Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate
Secretary of Lucky Circle Corporation, Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation, Total Gaming
Technologies, Inc., Basic Leisure and Gaming Networks, Inc., Innovative Solutions
Consultancy Group Corporation, Powerball Gaming and Entertainment Corporation, and
Stage Craft International, Inc. Atty. Nalupta is an associate at Tan Venturanza Valdez Law
Offices. He is a member of the Philippine Bar and holds a Juris Doctor degree and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Management Major in Legal Management from the Ateneo
de Manila University.
Ria Carmela C. Cruz, 30, Filipino, Assistant Corporate Secretary

Atty. Ria Carmela R. Cruz concurrently serves as Assistant Corporate Secretary of listed
firms such as TKC Steel Corporation, Coal Asia Holdings Incorporated, Asia United Bank
and private companies Winstone Industrial Manufacturing Corporation, Goodyear Steel
Pipe Corporation, and Campanilla Mineral Resources, Inc., and Corporate Secretary in
Sisco Steel Corporation. Atty. Cruz is an associate at Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices.
She holds a Juris Doctor degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Public Administration,
cum laude, both from the University of the Philippines. She was admitted to the Philippine
Bar in 2011.
Significant Employees
No single person is expected to contribute more significantly than others do to the business
since the Company considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the
overall success of the Company’s performance. Other than standard employment contracts,
there are no arrangements with non-executive employees that will assure the continued stay
of these employees with the Company.
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Family Relationships
Mr. Walter H. Villanueva and Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva are brothers.

Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva, Mr. Nicasio T. Perez, and Mr. Oscar T. Perez are siblings.
Mr. Walter H. Villanueva and Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva are spouses.

Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva is the son of Mr. Walter H. Villanueva and Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva.
Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva is the daughter of Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva.
Mr. Hans Joseph T. Perez is the son of Mr. Nicasio T. Perez.

There are no other family relationships known to the Company among directors, executive
officers, or persons nominated or chose by the registrant to become directors or executive
officers other than the ones disclosed.
Involvement in Legal Proceedings
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there has been no occurrence during the past five
(5) years up to the date of this Prospectus of any of the following events that are material to
an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, any nominee for election as director,
executive officer, underwriter, or controlling person of the Company:
•

•

•

•

any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a
general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two
(2) years prior to that time;
any conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;
being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended
or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and
being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action),
the SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other
organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities
or commodities law or regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended
or vacated.
(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Executive Compensation
The following summarizes the executive compensation received by the President and the top
four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company for 2011, 2012, and 2013 and the
estimates for 2014 and 2015. It also summarizes the aggregate compensation received by all
the officers and directors, unnamed.

Name and Position
Eugene Lee Villanueva/President and
General Manager-Compounds Group
Walter H. Villanueva/ General ManagerPipes Group/ General Manager – PPR/HDPE Pipes Division
Tita P. Villanueva/ VP-Comptroller
Nicasio T. Perez/VP- Treasurer
Derrick P. Villanueva/General ManagerPVC Pipes Division
Eugene Lee Villanueva/President and
General Manager-Compounds Group
Walter H. Villanueva/ General ManagerPipes Group/ General Manager – PPR/HDPE Pipes Division
Tita P. Villanueva/ VP-Comptroller
Nicasio T. Perez/VP- Treasurer
Derrick P. Villanueva/General ManagerPVC Pipes Division
Eugene Lee Villanueva/President and
General Manager-Compounds Group
Walter H. Villanueva/ General ManagerPipes Group/ General Manager – PPR/HDPE Pipes Division
Tita P. Villanueva/ VP-Comptroller
Nicasio T. Perez/VP- Treasurer
Derrick P. Villanueva/General ManagerPVC Pipes Division
CEO and the four (4) most highly
compensated officers named above

Year

Salaries

Bonuses

Others

Total

2012

P9,561,500

-none-

P221,483

P9,782,983

2013

P9,561,500

-none-

P291,821

P9,853,321

2014

P10,284,240

-none-

P84,008

P10,368,247

P12,104,755

-none-

P157,025

P12,261,780

P13,015,210

-none-

P183,914

P13,199,124

2015
(est.)
2012
2013
Aggregate compensation paid to all
officers and directors as a group
2014
unnamed
2015
(est)
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

P10,268,574
P10,315,500
P11,089,365

-none-none-none-

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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P221,483
P291,821
P91,012

P10,490,056
P10,607,321
P11,180,377

Compensation of Directors
Under the By-Laws of the Company, by resolution of the Board, each director shall receive a
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As
compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10.00% of the
net income before income tax of the Company during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of stockholders representing at least a majority of the
outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders.
Standard Arrangements and Other Arrangements
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has no existing arrangements with members of
the Board of Directors, executive officers, and employees.
Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, and Change in Control of
Arrangements
There are no special employment contracts between the Company and its executive officers.
Furthermore, there are no special retirement plans for executives.
There is also no arrangement for compensation to be received from the Company.
Warrants and Options Outstanding
There are no outstanding warrants or options held by directors and officers nor are there any
adjustments in the exercise price of said warrants or options.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND
BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
As of the date of this Prospectus, the following are the owners of record, directly or indirectly, of
more than 5.00% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock, the number of shares and
percentage of shareholdings of each of them:

Table 35: Security Ownership of 5.00% or More
Name of
Beneficial
Name, address of record
Title of
Owner and
owner and relationship
Class
Relationship
with Issuer
with Record
Owner
Eugene H. Lee
Villanueva
Same as record
Common
West Triangle Homes,
owner
Quezon City
Shareholder
Walter H. Villanueva
Corinthian Gardens,
Same as record
Common
Quezon City
owner
Shareholder
Jefferson T. Sy
Damar Village, Quezon
Same as record
Common
City
owner
Shareholder
Christie T. Perez
West Triangle Homes,
Same as record
Common
Quezon City
owner
Shareholder r
Tita P. Villanueva
Corinthian Gardens,
Same as record
Common
Quezon City
owner
Shareholder
Nicasio T. Perez
West Triangle Homes,
Same as record
Common
Quezon City
owner
Shareholder
Oscar T. Perez
Same as record
Common
Philamlife, Quezon City
owner
Shareholder
Gloria P. Go
Ayala Heights , Quezon
Same as record
Common
City
owner
Shareholder
Meda T. Perez
Same as record
Common
Philamlife, Quezon City
owner
Shareholder
Sofia P. Po
Ayala Heights, Quezon
Same as record
Common
City
owner
Shareholder
TOTAL
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Citizenship

No. of Shares Held

Percent
of Class

Filipino

94,559,999

20.00%

Filipino

70,919,999

15.00%

Filipino

47,280,000

10.00%

Filipino

47,280,000

10.00%

Filipino

47,279,999

10.00%

Filipino

47,279,999

10.00%

Filipino

23,640,000

5.00%

Filipino

23,640,000

5.00%

Filipino

23,640,000

5.00%

Filipino

23,640,000

5.00%

449,159,998

95.00%

Security Ownership of Directors and Management
The following are the number of shares owned of record by the directors and executive officers of
the Company and the percentage of shareholdings of each of them as of the date of this
Prospectus:
Table 36: Direct Ownership by Board of Directors and Management
Amount and Nature
Title of
of Beneficial
Name of Beneficial Owner
Class
Ownership
Eugene H. Lee Villanueva
94,559,999
Common
President, General Manager – Compounds
Direct
Group, and Director
Walter H. Villanueva
Chairman of the Board, General Manager –
70,919,999
Common
Direct
Pipes Group, and General Manager – PPR/HDPE Pipes Division
Tita P. Villanueva
47,279,999
Common
Vice President – Comptroller and Director
Direct
Nicasio T. Perez
47,279,999
Common
Vice President – Treasurer and Director
Direct
Oscar T. Perez
23,640,000
Common
Director
Direct
Derrick P. Villanueva
1
Common
General Manager – PVC Pipes Division and
Direct
Director
Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva
1
Common
Assistant General Manager – Compounds
Direct
Group and Director
Marie Therese G. Santos
1
Common
Independent Director
Direct
Ernesto R. Alberto
1
Common
Independent Director
Direct
Total

Citizenship

Percent of
Class

Filipino

20.00%

Filipino

15.00%

Filipino

10.00%

Filipino

5.00%

Filipino
Filipino

10.00%
-nil-

Filipino

-nil-

Filipino

-nil-

Filipino

-nil60.00%

As of the date of this Prospectus, the aggregate direct and indirect ownership of all directors and
officers of the Company as a group is 60.00% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the
Company.
Selling Security Holders

None of the Offer Shares is to be offered for the account of security holders.
Voting Trust

The Company knows of no person holding more than 5.00% of shares under a voting trust of
similar agreement.
Changes in Control

There are no existing provisions in the amended Articles of Incorporation and amended By-Laws
of the Company, which may cause delay, deferment, or in any manner prevent a change in control
of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
The table below presents the summary of operating and financial information of the Company for periods ending
December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014, and as at December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014. The summary financial data
below are based on its audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (“PFRS”). The summary financial information should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s reports
and the financial statements and notes thereto contained in this Prospectus and the sections entitled
“Management’s Discussion”.
The information below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations or financial condition of the
Company.
Table 37: CROWN Summary of Comprehensive Income
Amounts in P millions
2012
Revenues
P812.04
Cost of Goods Sold
655.37
Gross Profit
156.67
Other Operating Expenses
107.00
Other Income (Charges)
(10.70)
Profit Before Tax
38.97
Tax Expense
11.26
Net Profit
P27.71
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.
Table 38: CROWN Summary of Financial Position
Amounts in P millions
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets - net
Total Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment – net
Deferred tax assets – net
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Liabilities and Equity
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payable
Total Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liability –net
Post-employment defined benefit obligation
Advances from stockholders
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Capital stock
Amounts for future stock subscription
Revaluation reserves
Retained earnings
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

2012
(Restated)
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2013
P801.82
628.53
173.29
103.86
1.64
71.07
21.32
P49.75

2014
P850.74
639.43
211.31
115.96
(1.63)
93.72
28.34
P65.38

2013
(Restated)

2014

P73.69
168.94
154.16
39.16
P435.95
P170.75
6.45
P177.20
P613.15

P 99.25
154.99
181.87
44.06
P480.18
P171.26
6.20
P177.46
P657.63

P34.32
212.38
303.78
53.75
P604.24
P214.93
9.88
P224.81
P829.05

P118.71
1.81
7.78
P128.30
P3.96
4.78
15.12
0.05
P23.90
P152.20
P10.00
342.80
26.27
81.88
P460.94
P613.15

P126.76
2.74
9.97
P139.47
P4.71
6.53
4.84
0.05
P16.14
P155.61
P352.80
29.60
119.62
P502.02
P657.63

P172.05
71.28
7.78
P251.10
P3.63
7.39
3.97
0.05
P15.05
P266.15
472.80
32.10
58.00
P562.90
P829.05

Twelve months ended December 31, 2014 vs. Twelve months ended December 31, 2013

Material Changes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
period ended December 31, 2013 (increase/ decrease of 5.00% or more)
Revenues

For the period ended December 31, 2014, revenues increased from P801.82 million in
2013 to P850.74 million, showing a year on year increase of 6.10%. The net increase in
revenues primarily came from the 6.57% increase in compounds sales and the 5.22%
increase in pipes sales.
The breakdown of revenues is shown below:

Table 39: Breakdown of Revenues 2013 vs. 2014
December 31
2013
2014
Compounds
P522,461,322
P556,807,749
Pipes
279,357,912
293,933,875
Revenues
P801,819,234
P850,741,623

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

Breakdown
2013
2014
65.16%
65.45%
34.84%
34.55%
100.00% 100.00%

Growth
6.57%
5.22%
6.10%

The Compounds sales increased due to the following factors: (a) addition of three (3)
local customers with volume purchases; (b) increase in the volume of export orders;
(c) depreciation of peso from an exchange rate of an average of P42.42 in 2013 versus
P44.39 in 2014; and increase in compounds prices for both local and export sales.

Pipe sales increased due to the following factors: (a) increase in project sales by
P16.02 million; (b) increase in the volume of Crownflex sales; (c) sale of telecom pipes
during the year; and increase in selling price ranging from 3.00% to 6.00%.
Cost of Goods Sold

In 2014, cost of goods sold increased by 1.73% from P628.53 million to P639.43
million. The marginal increase is mainly due to the increases in overhead albeit the
decreases in direct labor.
During the year, supplies increased by 272,172.23% equivalent to P5.26 million and
outside services by 148.18% equivalent to P2.65 million.

Supplies increased due to the resumption of the production of Crownflex, the
increased prices of packaging supplies, and the additional requirement for shrink
packaging for finished goods.

Outside services increased due to the hiring of more contractual workers during the
year. These increases were mitigated by decreases in salaries and employee benefits
by 16.43% equivalent to P2.06 million and utilities by 7.78% equivalent to P2.42
million.
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The Company’s raw materials used accounted for 89.90% of manufacturing costs,
while overhead and direct labor accounted for 8.61% and 1.49% of manufacturing
costs, respectively.
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit grew from P173.29 million for the full year 2013 to P211.31 million for
the full year 2014, equivalent to a 21.94% growth.

The gross profit margin improved from 21.61% for the full year 2013 to 24.84% for
the full year 2014. The improvement was due to the improved gross profit margins
due to efficiencies.
Other Operating Expenses

For the full year 2014, other operating expenses increased by 11.65% from P103.86
million for the full year 2013 to P115.96 million for the full year 2014. The increase
was mostly due to the 114.76% increase in outside services equivalent to P5.70
million, 29.76% increase in transportation and travel equivalent to P3.31 million,
35.76% increase in advertising and promotions equivalent to P2.60 million, 20.43%
increase in depreciation and amortization equivalent to P1.30 million, and 51.97%
increase in utilities equivalent to P1.23 million.
Outside services increased due to the hiring of more contractual workers in both
business groups, especially in the Warehouse & Physical Distribution, Pipes
Warehouse, and Logistics Departments.

Transportation and travel increased due to the increase in sales and marketing
personnel, transportation and travel of foreign consultants and technicians who set up
the new machinery and equipment, and travel expenses for the Company technicians
set for training abroad.
Advertising and promotion expenses increased due to the increased marketing and
business development activities during the year.

Depreciation expenses increased due to the addition of delivery trucks and Company
vehicles, and the major replacement of office equipment.

Lastly, utilities increased due to the two (2) additional office units (Units 1809 and
1810) leased during the year.
Other Income (Charges)

In 2014, other income turned around to other charges due to the lower foreign
currency gains from P1.98 million in 2013 to P0.70 million in 2014. Furthermore, no
income were earned on gain on sale of property and equipment and other income in
2014.
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Profit before Tax

The Company’s profit before tax in 2014 improved by 31.87% from P71.07 million in
2013 to P93.72 million in 2014. The improvement was due to the increased revenues
and improved gross profit margins due to efficiencies.
Tax Expense

Tax expenses increased by 32.91% due to the improved profitability in 2014 versus
2013.
Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Company ended 2014 with P65.38 million in net profits, which is a 31.42%
increase from P49.75 million in 2013. Ultimately, the increase is due to the increased
revenues and improved gross profit margins due to efficiencies.
Net profit margins improved from 6.20% to 7.69%.

Material Changes to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014
compared to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2013 (increase/
decrease of 5.00% or more)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 65.42% as at December 31, 2014 from P99.25
million as at year-end 2013 to P34.32 million as at December 31, 2014. The decrease
was primarily due to increased working capital requirements, with trades and other
receivable increasing by P54.08 million, inventories increasing by P121.91 million, and
prepayments and other current assets by P9.69 million, acquisition of property, plant,
and equipment amounting to P63.40 million, and payment of cash dividends of P7.00
million despite the increase in trade and other payables amounting to P45.31 million
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings amounting to P67.26 million.
Trade and Other Receivables - Net

Trade and other receivables – net increased by 37.03% as at December 31, 2014 from
P154.99 million as at year-end 2013 to P212.38 million. The increase was primarily
due to the P38.21 million increase in trade receivables, and the P13.12 million
increase in advances to suppliers for machineries and equipment and to contractors
for building improvements.
Trade and other receivables – net accounted for 25.62% of the Company’s total assets.
Inventories

Inventories increased by 67.03% as at December 31, 2014, from P181.87 million as at
year-end 2013 to P303.78 million as at period-ended December 31, 2014. This is due
primarily to the increase in finished goods and raw materials inventories. Finished
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goods inventory increased by P63.66 million due to the anticipated increase in
customer orders. Raw materials increased by P50.66 million due to the anticipated lag
in delivery of imported raw materials in light of the port congestion.
Inventories accounted for 36.64% of the Company’s total assets.
Prepayment and Other Current Assets

Prepayment and other current assets increased by 21.99% as at December 31, 2014,
from P44.06 million as at year-end 2013 to P53.75 million as at period-ended
December 31, 2014. The net increase was mainly due to the P21.39 million increase in
input VAT and the P12.04 million decrease in tax credit certificate.
Property, Plant, and Equipment – net

Property, plant, and equipment – net increased by 25.50% from P171.26 as at yearended 2013 to P214.93 million as at period-ended December 31, 2014. The increase
was due primarily to the P31.50 million increase in construction in progress and
P11.30 million net increase in machineries, factory, and other equipment.
The breakdown of property, plant, and equipment is shown below:

Table 40: Breakdown of Property, Plant, and Equipment – net
December 31, 2013 vs. December 31, 2014
2013
Land
P73,356,000
Land Improvements
483,009
Building and Improvements
62,244,157
Transportation Equipment
27,316,054
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
266,084,393
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
12,432,940
Construction in Progress
9,722,236
Property, Plant and Equipment – Cost
P451,638,789
Land Improvements
P104,652
Building and Improvements
29,102,100
Transportation Equipment
18,545,197
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
221,163,094
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
11,461,791
Accumulated Depreciation
P280,376,834
Land
P73,356,000
Land Improvements
378,357
Building and Improvements
33,142,057
Transportation Equipment
8,770,857
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
44,921,299
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
971,149
Construction in Progress
9,722,236
Property, Plant, and Equipment – Net
P171,261,955

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.
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2014
P78,246,000
483,009
62,244,157
29,618,491
289,908,412
18,447,217
41,223,655
P520,170,941
P201,254
33,812,720
21,874,645
233,685,224
15,665,463
P305,239,306
P78,246,000
281,755
28,431,437
7,743,846
56,223,188
2,781,754
41,223,655
P214,931,635

Change
6.67%
0.00%
0.00%
8.43%
8.95%
48.37%
324.01%
15.17%
92.31%
16.19%
17.95%
5.66%
36.68%
8.87%
6.67%
-25.53%
-14.21%
-11.71%
25.16%
186.44%
324.01%
25.50%

Construction in progress pertains to accumulated costs incurred in the construction of
the PP-R/HDPE factory building, PP-R/HDPE machineries installation, PP-R/HDPE
warehouse, plant electricity consolidation, flood control system, and elevated flooring
of warehouse, including capitalized borrowing costs. The percentage of completion of
construction in progress ranges from 11.00% to 97.00% as at December 31, 2014,
respectively. These projects in 2014 are on-going and are expected to be completed by
the second quarter of 2015.
Property, plant, and equipment – net accounted for 25.93% of the Company’s total
assets.
Other Non-current Assets

Other non-current assets increased by 59.48% from P6.20 million in as at year end
2013 to P9.88 million as at year end 2014. The increase was mainly due to the P3.70
million increase in Deferred input VAT.
Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables accounted for 64.64% of the Total Liabilities of the Company
as at December 31, 2014.
This account increased by 35.73% by year-end 2014 due to the P30.30 million
increase in trust receipt payables and the P13.60 million increase in trade payables.

The trust receipt payables relating to the purchase of certain raw materials in 2014
are payable within six (6) months, which bears an interest of 4.25% per annum
Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings - Current

For the year-ended, December 31, 2014, interest-bearing loans and borrowings –
current increased by 2,502.87% from P2.74 million as at year-end 2013 to P71.28
million as at year-ended December 2014. This account is composed of bank loans
totaling to P68.80 million and P2.48 million in car loans.

In 2014, the Company obtained certain bank loan totaling P68.80 million, supported
by the executed, unsecured, short-term promissory notes with Security Bank
Corporation for additional operating capital requirements and the financing of certain
construction projects. This new bank loan is payable within six months and bears an
interest of 4.25% per annum. Portions of the bank loan obtained amounting P21.05
million were specifically earmarked for the construction of the PP-R and HDPE
manufacturing plant and amounting to P22.75 million for the purchase of PP-R and
HDPE equipment. These loans are under JSS (joint and solidary signature) guaranty of
certain stockholders of the Company (Sps. Walter H. Villanueva and Tita P. Villanueva
and Sps. Nicasio T. Perez and Christie T. Perez).
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Car loans represent the acquisition of certain transportation equipment and motor
vehicles through loan financing agreements with commercial banks, bearing annual
effective interest that ranges from 9.95% to 12.75% and have terms of five (5) years
payable monthly.
Income tax payables

Income tax payables decreased by 22.05% from P9.97 million to P7.78 million. The
increase was due to the increase in Net Income for the year.
Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings – net of current portion

Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings – net of current portion decreased by 22.91%
from P4.71 million by the 2013 year-end to P3.63 million by the December 2014 yearend.
Deferred tax liability - net

Deferred tax liability – net increased by 13.20% from P6.53 million to P7.39 million.
The increase was due to the deferred tax liabilities relating to the revaluation
increment in the value of land during in 2014.
Post-Employment Defined Benefit Obligations

Post-employment defined benefit obligation decreased by 17.97% from P4.84 million
to P3.97 million. The increase was due to the higher increase in the fair value of the
plan assets by 23.38% versus the 14.13% increase in the present value of the
obligation.

The Company maintains a tax-qualified, partially funded, non-contributory postemployment defined benefit plan covering all regular full-time employees. The
actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions.
Capital Stock

Capital stock increased by 34.01% from P352.80 million to P472.80 million due to the
stock dividends declared and issued during the year.
Revaluation Reserves

Revaluation reserves increased by 8.43% from P29.60 million to P32.10 million. The
increase was due to the revaluation increment in the value of land in 2014.
Retained Earnings

As at December 31, 2014, retained earnings decreased by 51.51% from P119.62
million as at year-end 2013 to P58.00 million as at year- end 2014. The net decrease is
primarily due to the P120.00 million stock dividends and the P7.00 million cash
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dividends declared for the period, which was mitigated by the P65.38 million net
profits reported for the year.

Twelve months ended December 31, 2013 vs. Twelve months ended December 31, 2012

Material Changes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
period ended December 31, 2012 (increase/ decrease of 5.00% or more)
Revenues

For the period ended December 31, 2013, revenues decreased from P812.04 million in
2012 to P801.82 million, showing a year on year decrease of 1.26%. The net decrease
in revenues primarily came from the 4.81% increase in compounds sales and 10.91%
decrease in pipes sales.
The breakdown of revenues is shown below:

Table 41: Breakdown of Revenues 2012-2013
December 31
2012
2013
Compounds
P498,485,357
P522,461,322
Pipes
313,556,035
279,357,912
Revenues
P812,041,392
P801,819,234

Breakdown
2012
2013
61.39%
65.16%
38.61%
34.84%
100.00% 100.00%

Growth
4.81%
-10.91%
-1.26%

Cost of Goods Sold

In 2013, cost of goods sold decreased by 4.10% from P655.37 million in 2012 to
P628.53 million in 2013. The decrease is mainly due to the decrease in depreciation by
11.59% equivalent to P1.84 million caused by fully-depreciated machinery, and the
decrease in packaging supplies by 30.23% amounting to P978,869 and decrease in
light and water by 2.59% amounting to P827,641, both caused by the decrease in the
production of Crownflex.
The Company’s raw materials used accounted for 89.45% of manufacturing costs,
while overhead and direct labor accounted for 8.63% and 1.93% of manufacturing
costs, respectively.
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

In 2013, gross profit increased by 10.61% from P156.67 million in 2012 to P173.29
million, equivalent to improvement in gross profit margin, from 19.29% in 2012 to
21.61% in 2013. The improvement was due to the improved gross profit margins with
the change in product mix.
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Other Operating Expenses

In 2013, Other Operating Expenses decreased marginally by 2.93% from P107.00
million in 2012 to P103.86 million in 2013. The decrease was mostly due to the
decreases in salaries and employee benefits, depreciation, outside services, and taxes
and licenses albeit the increases in supplies, delivery, repairs and maintenance, and
miscellaneous expenses. Employee benefits decreased due to the conversion of rice
subsidy to de minimis benefits. Depreciation decreased due to the disposal of
Company vehicles and full depreciation of certain machineries. Outside services
decreased due to the reduced hiring of contract workers in the Pipes Logistics
Department and the regularization of certain employees in the General Administration
Group.
Other Income (Charges)

In 2013, other charges turned around to other income due to the P7.17 million
decrease in Finance Costs, the Foreign Currency Gain of P1.98 million versus the
Foreign Currency Losses in the previous year of P1.56 million, and the P1.02 million
increase in Finance Income.
Profit before Tax

Due to the Company’s improved gross profit margins with the change in product mix,
efficiency in costs, and improvement in other income (charges), the Company’s profit
before tax increased by 82.38%, from P38.97 million in 2012 to P71.07 million in
2013.
Tax Expenses

The Company’s tax expenses in 2013 increased by 89.33% from P11.26 million in
2012 to P21.32 million in 2013. The increase was basically due to the improved
profitability in 2013.
Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Company ended 2013 with P49.75 million in net profit, a 79.55% increase from
P27.71 million in 2012. The increase is due to the improved gross profit margins with
the change in product mix, lower finance costs, effect of foreign currency movements,
and higher finance income.
Net profit margins improved from 3.41% to 6.20%.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Material Changes to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2013
compared to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2012 (increase/
decrease of 5.00% or more)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 34.68% as at December 31, 2013 from P73.69
million as at year-end 2012 to P99.25 million. The increase was primarily due to the
P91.18 million cash provided by operations despite the increase in inventories
amounting to P27.72 million, acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting
to P20.96 million, payment of cash dividends amounting to P12.00 million, and the
increase in post-employment defined benefit obligation amounting to P5.19 million.
Trade and Other Receivables - Net

Trade and other receivables – net decreased by 8.25% as at December 31, 2013 from
P168.94 million as at year-end 2012 to P154.99 million. The decrease was primarily
due to the P28.85 million decrease in trade receivables, even with the increase in
advances to related parties, suppliers and contractors, and officers and employees of
P14.70 million.
Trade and other receivables – net accounted for 23.57% of the Company’s total assets.
Inventories

Inventories increased by 17.98% in 2013 due to the ramping up of inventories in light
of foreseen demand of pipes in the succeeding year, with finished goods inventory
increasing by 30.18% from P69.24 million in 2012 to P90.13 million in 2013 and raw
materials inventories increasing by 9.18% from P78.80 million in 2012 to P86.04
million in 2013.
Inventories accounted for 27.66% of the Company’s total assets.
Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets increased by 12.51% from P39.16 million in
2012 to P44.06 million in 2013. The increase is due to increases in input VAT of
P10.48 million, tax credit certificate (TCC) of P9.30 million, albeit the P13.73 million
decrease in application for TCC.
Property, Plant, and Equipment – net

Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) – net was practically the same with a marginal
increase of 0.30% from P170.75 million as at year-end 2012 to P171.26 million as at
year-end 2013 as no major changes were booked in the Company’s PPE during the
year.
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Table 42: Breakdown of Property, Plant and Equipment – net
December 31, 2012 vs. December 31, 2013
2012
Land
P73,356,000
Land Improvements
483,009
Building and Improvements
59,023,351
Transportation Equipment
23,338,903
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
266,605,782
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
10,897,950
Construction In Progress
1,327,157
Property, Plant And Equipment – Cost
P435,032,152
Land Improvements
8,050
Building and Improvements
24,360,858
Transportation Equipment
17,132,647
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
212,207,994
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
10,577,520
Accumulated Depreciation
P264,287,069
Land
P73,356,000
Land Improvements
474,959
Building and Improvements
34,662,493
Transportation Equipment
6,206,256
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
54,397,789
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
320,429
Construction in Progress
1,327,157
Property, Plant and Equipment – Net
P170,745,083

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

2013
P73,356,000
483,009
62,244,157
27,316,054
266,084,393
12,432,940
9,722,236
P451,638,789
P104,652
29,102,100
18,545,197
221,163,094
11,461,791
P280,376,834
P73,356,000
378,357
33,142,057
8,770,857
44,921,299
971,149
9,722,236
P171,261,955

Change
0.00%
0.00%
5.46%
17.04%
-0.20%
14.09%
632.56%
3.82%
1,200.02%
19.46%
8.24%
4.22%
8.36%
6.09%
0.00%
-20.34%
-4.39%
41.32%
-17.42%
203.08%
632.56%
632.56%

Construction in progress pertains to accumulated costs incurred in the installation of
PP-R/HDPE machineries, flood control system, warehouse racking system, and
installation of CCTV. The percentage of completion of construction in progress ranges
from 5.25% to 99.99% as at December 31, 2013, respectively. Some of the projects
were expected to be completed by the first quarter 2014 while the others are for the
first half of 2015.
Property, plant, and equipment – net accounted for 26.04% of the Company’s total
assets.
Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables accounted for 81.46% of total liabilities of the Company in
2013.

This account increased by 6.78% by year-end 2013 due to the 5.28% increase in trade
payables, 32.44% increase in advances from customers, and 15.80% increase in other
payables by P5.62 million, P2.17 million and P0.48 million, respectively, albeit the
decrease in accrued expenses by 9.12% by P0.23 million.
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Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings - Current

For the year ended, December 31, 2013, interest-bearing loans and borrowings –
current increased by 51.09% from P1.81 million by end of 2012 to P2.74 million by
end of 2013. The Company entered into chattel mortgage agreements for the
acquisition of certain transportation equipment and motor vehicles through loan
financing agreement with local commercial banks, bearing an annual effective interest
that ranges from 9.95% to 12.75% for a term of five (5) years.
Income Tax Payable

Income tax payable increased by 28.18% by year-end 2013 due to the increase in Net
Income for the year.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings – net of current portion

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings – net of current increased by 19.19% by yearend 2013 from P3.96 million by the 2012 year-end to P4.71 million by the 2013 yearend.
Deferred tax liabilities - net

Deferred tax liabilities – net increased by 36.63% from P4.78 million in 2012 to P6.53
million in 2013. This is due to the revaluation of the land.
Post-Employment Defined Benefit Obligation

Post-employment defined benefit obligation decreased by 67.96% from P15.12 million
to P4.84 million. The decrease was due to the decrease in present value of the
obligation by P1.65 million and the increase in the fair value of plan assets by P8.63
million.

The Company maintains a partially funded and non-contributory post-employment
defined benefit plan covering all regular full-time employees. The actuarial valuations
are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the amount of
contributions.
Capital Stock

The Company’s capital stock increased by 3,428.00% from year-end 2012 to year-end
2013.

On October 17, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the increase in the
Company’s authorized capital stock from P10.0 million divided into 100,000 common
shares with par value of P100 per share to P1.30 billion divided into 1.30 billion
common shares with the par value of P1.00 per share. The payment for the
subscription of the increase in authorized capital stock was made by way of
conversion of the Company’s amounts for future stock subscription to equity. The
application for increase in authorized capital stock and conversion of the Amounts for
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Future Stock Subscription to equity was filed with the SEC on December 11, 2012 and
was approved on January 25, 2013. In 2013, the balance of Amounts for Future Stock
Subscription has been transferred to capital stock upon issuance of the shares.
Amounts for Future Stock Subscription

The Amounts for Future Stock Subscription decreased by 100.00% in light of the
conversion of this account to capital stock.
Revaluation Reserves

By the end of 2013, the revaluation reserves increased by 12.68% from P26.27 million
in 2012 to P29.60 million in 2013. This is in light of the revaluation increment in the
value of land.
Retained Earnings

By the end of 2013, retained earnings increased to P119.62 million from P81.88
million by the end of 2012, equivalent to an increase of 46.10% increase. This is
primarily due to net profits amounting to P49.75 million less Cash Dividends of P12.00
million for the year.
Twelve months ended December 31, 2012 vs. Twelve months ended December 31, 2011

Material Changes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period ended
December 31, 2012 compared to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
period ended December 31, 2011 (increase/ decrease of 5.00% or more)
Revenues

For the period ended December 31, 2012, revenues decreased from P863.95 million in
2011 to P812.04 million, showing a year on year decrease of 6.01%. The decrease in
revenues came from the decreases of 8.76% in compounds sales and 1.27% in pipes
sales.
The breakdown of revenues is shown below:

Table 43: Breakdown of Revenues 2011-2012
December 31
Breakdown
2011
2012
2011
2012
Compounds
P546,366,795
P498,485,357 63.24%
61.39%
Pipes
317,585,594
313,556,035 36.76%
38.61%
Revenues
P863,952,389
P812,041,392 100.00% 100.00%

Growth
-8.76%
-1.27%
-6.01%

The decrease in Compounds revenues was primarily due to the decrease in export
sales and the appreciation of the US Dollar against the Philippine Peso.
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Cost of Goods Sold

In 2012, cost of goods sold decreased by 12.09% from P745.54 million in 2011 to
P655.37 million in 2012. The decrease is due to the decrease in raw materials usage by
14.91% equivalent to P100.27 million and decrease in direct labor and other contract
services by 15.47% equivalent to P2.53 million, both due to the decrease in
compounds production output, and decrease in depreciation by 8.33% amounting to
P1.44 million caused by fully depreciated machinery.
The Company’s raw materials used accounted for 89.16% of manufacturing costs,
while overhead and direct labor accounted for 8.72% and 2.12% of manufacturing
costs, respectively.
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

In 2012, gross profit increased by 32.31% from P118.41 million in 2011 to P156.67
million. This is mainly due to the bigger decline in costs versus the decline in revenues.
As a result, the gross profit margin improved, from 13.71% in 2011 to 19.29% in 2012.
Other Operating Expenses

In 2012, other operating expenses increased marginally by 2.78% from P104.11
million in 2011 to P107.00 million in 2012. The increase was mostly due to the
increases in taxes and licenses, representation, and depreciation despite the decreases
in salaries and employee benefits and advertising and promotions. Taxes and licenses
increased in relation to the fees due to the SEC for the application of increase in
authorized capital stock. Representation increased due to the increased customer
representations from both the Pipes and Compounds Groups. Depreciation increased
due to the additional warehouse building and improvements during the year and the
acquisition of several Company vehicles. Salaries expense decreased due to the
separation of employees under the Compounds Group’s retrenchment program.
Advertising and promotion decreased due to the discontinuance of incentive rebate
program of the Pipes Group for distributors, wholesalers, and dealers.
Other Income (Charges)

In 2012, operating charges increased by 44.00% from P7.43 million in 2011 to P10.70
million. Although the Company earned additional finance income of P0.25 million from
the gain on sale of property and equipment, the Company still posted huge increase in
other charges due to the P2.11 million increase in foreign currency losses and finance
cost of P1.44 million.
Profit before Tax

Due to the Company’s efficiency in its costs and expenses, the Company’s profit before
tax increased by 466.64%, from P6.88 million in 2011 to P38.97 million in 2012.
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Tax Expenses

The Company’s tax expenses in 2012 increased by 383.61% from P2.33 million in
2011 to P11.26 million in 2012. The increase was basically due to the improved
profitability in 2013.
Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Company ended 2012 with P27.71 million in net profit, a 509.16% increase from
P4.55 million in 2011. The increase is due to the efficiencies in operations.
Net profit margins improved from 0.53% to 3.41%.

Material Changes to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2012
compared to the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2011 (increase/
decrease of 5.00% or more)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 172.19% as at December 31, 2012 from
P27.07 million as at year-end 2011 to P73.69 million. The increase was primarily due
to the P70.61 million cash provided by operations, the P54.15 million increase in trade
and other payables, and the P23.89 million decrease in inventories. The net increase
was mitigated by the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to
P43.72 million, increase in trade and other receivables amounting to P18.93 million,
repayments of advances from stockholders amounting to P12.58 million, and the
increase in prepayments and other current assets amounting to P10.16 million.
Trade and Other Receivables - Net

Trade and other receivables – net increased by 8.25% as at December 31, 2012 from
P156.06 million as at year-end 2011 to P168.94 million. The increase was primarily
due to the P49.49 million increase in trade receivables.
Trade and other receivables – net accounted for 27.55% of the Company’s total assets.
Inventories

Inventories decreased by 13.42% in 2012 due to the decrease in finished goods
inventory by P13.49 million and raw materials inventory by P10.60 million. This is in
anticipation of lower customer orders in the first part of 2013.
Inventories accounted for 25.14% of the Company’s total assets.
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Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets increased by 35.05% from P29.00 million in
2011 to P39.16 million in 2012. The increase is due to increased input VAT of P4.58
million, application for tax credit certificate of P4.32 million, and prepaid expenses of
P1.26 million.
Property, Plant, and Equipment – net

Property, plant, and equipment – net increased by 54.95% from P110.19 million as at
year-end 2011 to P170.75 million as at year-end 2012, due primarily to the
revaluation increment in the value of land by P58.81 million, increase in building and
improvements by P17.18 million, and increase in machineries, factory, and other
equipment of P6.14 million.

Table 44: Breakdown of Property, Plant and Equipment – net
December 31, 2011 vs. December 31, 2012
2011
Land
P14,548,500
Land Improvements
Building and Improvements
41,838,866
Transportation Equipment
22,682,171
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
260,464,664
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
10,742,318
Construction In Progress
3,469,575
Property, Plant And Equipment – Cost
P353,746,094
Land Improvements
Building and Improvements
20,902,760
Transportation Equipment
15,306,036
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
197,126,742
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
10,215,656
Accumulated Depreciation
P243,551,194
Land
14,548,500
Land Improvements
Building and Improvements
20,936,106
Transportation Equipment
7,376,135
Machineries, Factory, and Other Equipment
63,337,922
Furniture, Fixtures, & Other Office Equipment
526,662
Construction In Progress
3,469,575
Property, Plant and Equipment – Net
P110,194,900

Differences in decimal numbers are due to rounding off.

2012
P73,356,000
483,009
59,023,351
23,338,903
266,605,782
10,897,950
1,327,157
P435,032,152
8,050
24,360,858
17,132,647
212,207,994
10,577,520
P264,287,069
73,356,000
474,959
34,662,493
6,206,256
54,397,789
320,429
1,327,157
P170,745,083

Change
404.22%

Not applicable

41.07%
2.90%
2.36%
1.45%
-61.75%
22.98%

Not applicable

16.54%
11.93%
7.65%
3.54%
8.51%
404.22%
#DIV/0!

65.56%
-15.86%
-14.11%
-39.16%
-61.75%
54.95%

Construction in progress pertains to accumulated costs incurred on the extension and
rehabilitation of roofing on the factory building, warehouse racking system, and the
relocation of machines. The percentage of completion of construction in progress
ranges from 60.00% to 85.00% as at December 31, 2012, respectively. These projects
were expected to be completed in the second to third quarters of 2013.
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Property, plant, and equipment – net accounted for 27.85% of the Company’s total
assets.
Deferred tax assets - net

Deferred tax assets – net decreased by 100.00% due to the reclassification of the
account to deferred tax liabilities – net. The reclassification is associated with the
revaluation increment in the value of land.
Other Non-Current Assets

Other non-current assets decreased by 27.46% from P8.90 million as at year-end 2011
to P6.45 million as at year-end 2012, due to the decreases in security deposits by
P0.89 million, deferred input VAT by P0.11 million, and others by P1.44 million.
Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables accounted for 77.99% of Total Liabilities of the Company in
2012. This account decreased by 60.02% by year-end 2012 due to the decrease in
trade payables of 62.47% amounting to P177.25 million and advances from customers
amounting to P3.21 million.
Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings - Current

For the year ended, December 31, 2012, interest-bearing loans and borrowings –
current are composed of mortgage payables and trust receipts payable. In 2012, this
account decreased by P5.84 million from P7.65 million in 2011 to P1.81 million in
2012.
Income Tax Payable

Income tax payable increased by 6,209.00% by year-end 2012 due to the increase in
net profit for the year.
Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings – net of current

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings – net of current increased by 169.36% by yearend 2012 from P1.47 million by the 2011 year-end to P3.96 million by the 2012 yearend. This payable is in relation to the acquisition of certain transportation equipment
and motor vehicles through loan financing agreements with commercial banks. The
loans bear annual effective interest that ranges from 9.95% to 12.75% and have terms
of five (5) years.
Advances from Stockholders

Advances from stockholders amounting to P125.0 million in 2011 decreased by
99.96% to P46,057 in 2012 due to the reclassification of a portion of Advances from
stockholders to Amounts for Future Stock Subscription. This is in relation to the
Company’s planned increase in authorized capital stock.
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Deferred tax liabilities - net

In 2012, P4.78 million was recorded in this account due to the reclassification of this
account to liabilities from deferred tax assets – net in the previous year. The
reclassification is due to the revaluation increment in the value of land.
Post-Employment Defined Benefit Obligation

Post-employment defined benefit obligation decreased by 8.09% from P16.45 million
to P15.12 million. The decrease was due to the net change in the decrease in present
value of the obligation by P3.06 million and the increase in the fair value of plan assets
by P4.39 million.

The Company maintains a partially funded and non-contributory post-employment
defined benefit plan covering all regular full-time employees. The actuarial valuations
are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the amount of
contributions.
Amounts for Future Stock Subscription

There were no amounts for future stock subscription in 2011. In 2012, the Company
reclassified a portion of the Advances from Stockholders amounting to P342.80 million
to Amounts for Future Stock Subscription that is intended to be applied for future
subscription of the Company’s stockholders in relation to the increase in authorized
capital Stock of the Company.
Revaluation Reserves

Revaluation reserves reversed from negative P1.19 million in 2011 to positive P26.27
million in 2012. The change is as a result of the re-measurement of a post-employment
defined benefit plan based on the accumulated balances of actuarial gains or losses
and arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions used in
the determination of post-employment defined benefit obligation. It also includes the
gains and losses due to the revaluation of land under property, plant, and equipment.
Retained Earnings

In 2012, retained earnings increased to P81.88 million from P59.17 million in 2011,
equivalent to an increase of 38.38% increase. This is primarily due to net profits
amounting to P27.71 million less Cash Dividends of P5.00 million for the year.
(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Earnings Per Share
The Company’s earnings per share for the full years 2012 to 2014 are as follows:
Table 45: Earnings Per Share

2012
P27,706,900
13,401,000
100,000

(a) Net profit for the year
(b) Weighted average number of common shares
(c) Number of common shares as of period end
Earnings per share:
Basic (a/b)
Fully Diluted (a/c)

P2.0675
P277.0690

2013
P49,747,945
453,755,556
352,800,000

P0.1096
P0.1410

2014
P65,380,323
472,800,000
472,800,000

P0.1383
P0.1383

Other Financial Information
As at December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014, the Company is a lessee under non-cancellable
operating leases covering its warehouse in Davao and office spaces in Quezon City. The lease
for the warehouse in Davao has a term of two years and include annual escalation rate of
5.00%, while the leases for the office spaces have terms of five (5) to 10 years with escalation
rates ranging from 5.00% to 10.00%. All leases have renewal options. The following is the
future minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable operating leases as of
December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014:
Table 46: Operating Leases

Within one year
After one (1) year but not more than five (5) years
Operating Leases

2012
P1,139,665
380,218
P1,519,883

2013
P898,554
2,736,563
P3,635,117

Furthermore, as at and for the years-ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014:
•
•

•
•

•

2014
P999,732
1,736,831
P2,736,563

There are no other material changes in the Company’s financial position (changes of
5.00% or more) and condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion.
The Company is not aware of any known trends, or any known demands, commitments,
events, or uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the
Company’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.
It is not aware of any event that would trigger direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
There are no known trends, events, or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have materially favorable or unfavorable impact on net revenues or profit
from continuing operations.
The Company is not aware of any significant elements of profit and loss that did not arise
from the Company’s continuing operations.
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Key Performance Indicators
The Company uses the following measures to assess its performance from period to period.
Table 47: Key Performance Indicators

2012
-6.01%
19.29%
3.41%
4.52%
6.01%

Revenue Growth (Contraction)
Gross Profit Margin
Net Profit Margin
Return on Assets
Return on Equity

2013
-1.26%
21.61%
6.20%
7.56%
9.91%

2014
6.10%
24.84%
7.69%
7.89%
11.61%

The following defines the above ratios:
Revenue Growth (Contraction)

The revenue growth (contraction) is the Company’s increase (decrease) in revenues for a
given period. This growth (contraction) rate is computed from the current revenues less
revenues of the comparative period, divided by the revenues of the comparative period.
This result is expressed in percentage.
Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin

The gross profit margin reflects the profitability of the Company’s core business. This is
computed by dividing gross profit (total revenues less cost of goods sold) by total
revenues, and is expressed in percentage.

Net profit margin is the ratio of the Company’s net profit after tax versus its revenues for a
given period. This is computed by dividing net profit after tax by total revenues. The result
is likewise expressed in percentages.

Gross profit and net profit margins measure the Company’s profitability and shows that
the Company can keep its costs under control. It is also used by the Company as a measure
that revenues are increasing faster than its costs, thus, placing the Company in a liquid
position and vice versa.
Return on Assets and Return on Equity

The return on asset ratio is the ratio of the Company’s net profit to total assets. This
measures the Company’s ability to generate returns on its assets. This is computed by
dividing net profit after tax by the total assets. The result is expressed in percentage.

The return of assets shows the Company’s underlying operational performance without
considering its funding decisions. It measures how much profit is generated for each peso
of assets used. The Company considers how effectively assets are utilized to generate
profit and how well costs are managed to maintain profitability.
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Return on equity is the ratio of the Company’s net profit to stockholders’ equity. This
likewise measures the Company’s ability to generate returns on investments made by the
stockholders. This is computed by dividing net profit after tax by the total stockholders’
equity. The result is expressed in percentage.
The return on equity shows the amount of profit achieved for each peso invested by the
Company’s stockholders.

Changes in Auditors and/or Accounting Procedure/s
The Company contracted the independent auditing services of Punongbayan & Araullo for the
calendar years 2012, 2013, and 2014.
There are no plans to change independent auditors for the succeeding years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS
During the stockholders’ meeting held on February 25, 2012, the stockholders decided to
engage Punongbayan & Araullo due to its plans to do an Initial Public Offering, whereby an
SEC-Class A Accredited independent auditor is required to audit the Company’s financial
statements. There have been no disagreements between Punongbayan & Araullo and the
Company’s former external auditor, Mr. Ruben E. Zurbano, CPA, on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure for its
audit of the calendar years December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014.
Punongbayan & Araullo has neither shareholdings in the Company nor any right, whether
legally enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe to the securities in the
Company. Both these independent public accountants will not receive any direct or indirect
interest in the Company and in any securities thereof (including options, warrants, or rights
thereto) pursuant to or in connection with the Listing. The foregoing is in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines set by the Board of
Accountancy and approved by the Professional Regulation Committee.
Audit and Audit Related Fees

Punongbayan & Araullo billed the Company P290,000.00, P320,000.00, and P225,000.00 for
the examination of the financial statements for the calendar years December 31, 2012, 2013,
and 2014, respectively, and P125,000.00 for the nine-month period ending September 30,
2014, exclusive of out of pocket expenses.
Tax Fees

Punongbayan & Araullo did not render professional services to the Company for tax
accounting, compliance, advice, planning, and any other form of tax services.
All Other Fees

Punongbayan & Araullo billed the Company P315,000.00 for additional work done in relation
to the IPO of the Company.
Audit Committee Approval Policies

Under the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance, the policies and procedures for the
audit rendered by the independent public auditors are to be taken up, discussed, and
approved by the Company’s Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s decisions are based on the standards set forth by the Company for the
purpose of audit or tax services, as the case may be. If the proposal submitted by the
independent public auditor is within the standards set forth, then the proposal is forwarded
to the Company’s Board of Directors for approval.
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REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
Philippine Constitution
Lands of the public domain are classified as follows: (a) agricultural, (b) forest or timber, (c)
mineral lands, and (d) national parks. Agricultural lands may be further classified by law
according to the uses for which they may be devoted. Of the classes of public lands, only
agricultural lands may be alienated.

Ownership of agricultural land is limited to natural persons who are Filipino citizens. A
private corporation or association may only lease an agricultural land for a period not
exceeding twenty-five (25) years, renewable for a period not exceeding twenty-five (25)
years, and not to exceed one thousand (1,000) hectares in area.
A natural person who is a Filipino citizen may lease an agricultural land of an area not
exceeding five hundred (500) hectares or acquire an area not exceeding twelve (12) hectares
by purchase, homestead or grant.

On the other hand, except in cases of hereditary succession, private lands may only be
transferred or conveyed to individuals, corporations or associations subject to qualifications
and limitations provided by law.
Corporation Code
For an enterprise organized for holding property to be incorporated and duly registered
under Philippine law, it must register with the SEC and comply with the ownership
requirements provided under applicable laws.
National Internal Revenue Code
Rental payment for lease of property located in the Philippines, whether personal or real, is
subject to income tax based on the amount payable to the lessor.

Rental payment is also subject to VAT at the rate of twelve percent (12.00%) based on gross
receipts, regardless of the place of execution of the contract of lease. ‘Gross receipts’ pertains
to the total amount of money or its equivalent representing the contract price or rent,
including the amount charged for materials supplied with the lease and deposits and
advanced payments actually or constructively received during the taxable quarter, excluding
VAT.
Revenue Regulations No. 02-98, as amended
Gross rental for the continued use or possession of real property used in business, which the
obligor has not taken or is not taking title or in which the obligor has no equity, is subject to
creditable withholding income tax at the rate of five percent (5.00%).
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The obligation to deduct and withhold said tax arises at the time rent is paid or becomes due,
demandable or legally enforceable.

Income payments made to any person enjoying exemption from payment of income taxes
pursuant to the provisions of any law, such as the Omnibus Investments Code, are exempted
from creditable withholding income tax.
Consolidated VAT Regulations of 2005 (Revenue Regulations No. 16-05)
In a lease contract, an advance payment made by the lessee may be: (a) a loan to the lessor
from the lessee, (b) an option money for the property, (c) a security deposit to insure the
faithful performance of certain obligations of the lessee to the lessor, or (d) a pre-paid rental.

If the advance payment falls under any of items (a), (b) or (c), then said payment is not
subject to VAT. However, an advance payment that falls under item (c) but is applied to rental
is subject to VAT.

If the advance payment falls under item (d), then said payment is subject to VAT in the month
or quarter received by the lessor.
Omnibus Investment Code
The Board of Investments (“BOI”) regulates and promotes investments in the Philippines.

To qualify for incentives under E.O. 226, particularly under the preferred areas of
investments declared by the BOI through the Investment Priorities Plan (“IPP”), which may
be either pioneer or non-pioneer, the project proponent must comply with the following
requirements for registration under the IPP:
The project proponent must comply with the following requirements for registration under
the IPP:

(a) Must be a Filipino citizen, or a corporation, partnership, cooperative or association
organized under the laws of the Philippines and at least 60.00% of capital owned and
controlled by Filipino citizens. If it does not possess the required degree of ownership,
the project proponent must establish:

(i) That it proposes to engage in a pioneer project, which considering the nature and
extent of capital requirements, processes, technical skills and relative business
risks involved, is in the opinion of the BOI of such nature that the available
measured capacity thereof cannot be readily and adequately filled by Filipino
citizens; or if the project proponent is exporting at least 70.00% of its total
production, the export requirement may be reduced as may be determined by the
BOI;
170

(ii) That it obligates itself to attain the status of a Philippine national within 30 years
from the date of registration or within such longer period as the BOI may require
given the export potential of the proposed project, provided that a BOI-registered
enterprise which exports 100.00% of its total production need not comply with
this requirement;

That the pioneer area in which it will engage is one that is not within the activities
reserved to Filipino citizens or to corporations owned and controlled by Filipino
citizens;

(b) Must propose to engage in a preferred project listed or authorized in the current IPP
within a reasonable time to be fixed by the BOI. If not listed in the IPP, at least 50.00%
of its total production is for export or it is an existing producer which will export part
of its production under such conditions and/or limited incentives as the BOI may
determine; or that the project proponent is engaged or proposing to engage in the sale
abroad of export products bought by it from one or more export producers; or the
enterprise is engaged or proposing to engage in rendering technical, professional or
other services or in exporting television and motion pictures and musical recordings
made or produced in the Philippines, either directly or through a registered trader;
(c) Must be capable of operating on a sound and efficient basis and of contributing to the
national development of the preferred area in particular and of the national economy
in general; and

(d) If the project proponent is engaged or proposes to engage in undertakings or activities
other than preferred projects, must have installed or undertakes to install an
accounting system adequate to identify the investments, revenues, costs, profits and
losses of each preferred project undertaken separately from the aggregate investment,
revenues, costs and profits or losses of the whole enterprise or to establish a separate
corporation for each preferred project, if the BOI should so require.
E.O. 226 provides basic rights to registered enterprises.

All BOI-registered enterprises are granted incentives to the extent they are engaged in a
preferred area of investment. In so far as the Company is concerned, the following incentives
under its BOI registration, with registered capacity of 1,200 MTPA, are still applicable:
(a) Additional deduction for incremental labor expense;
(b) Employment of foreign nationals;

(c) Simplified of customs procedures;

(d) Exemption from contractor’s tax, whether national or local;
(e) Tax Credit on Domestic Capital Equipment;
(f) Unrestricted use of consigned equipment;
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(g) Access to Customs Bonded Manufacturing Warehouse (CBMW) System;

(h) Tax and duty exemption on imported spare parts and supplies brought in through
CBMW;

(i) Tax credit for taxes and duties paid on imported raw materials used for exported
products; and
(j) Exemption from wharfage dues and any export tax, duty impost or fees.

Additional incentives are granted to BOI-registered enterprises located in less developed
areas identified by the BOI with the National Economic and Development Authority.
Ownership and Operation of Land Vehicles
Land Transportation and Traffic Code
A motor vehicle is any vehicle propelled by any power other than muscular power using
the public highways, excluding road rollers, trolley cars, street-sweepers, sprinklers, lawn
mowers, bulldozers, graders, forklifts, amphibian trucks and cranes not used on public
highways, vehicles that run only on rails or tracks, and tractors, trailers and traction
engines of all kinds used exclusively for agricultural purposes.

A passenger automobile is a pneumatic-tire vehicle of a type similar to those usually
known as touring car, command car, speedster, sports car, roadster, jeep, cycle car (except
motor wheel and similar small outfits classified with motorcycles), coupe, landaulet,
closed car, limousine, cabriolet and sedan. A motor vehicle with change or rebuilt body
such as jeepney, jitney or station wagon, using a chassis of the usual pneumatic-tire
passenger automobile type is classified as a passenger automobile if its net allowable
carrying capacity does not exceed nine (9) passengers and it is not used primarily for
carrying freight or merchandise.
All motor vehicles used or operated on or upon any highway of the Philippines must be
registered with the LTO for the current year under any of the following classes: (a)
private, (b) for hire, (c) government or (d) diplomatic. Any registration of motor vehicles
not renewed will become delinquent and invalid.

A motor vehicle classified as for hire must secure a certificate of public convenience or a
special permit from the Land Transportation Franchising and Regulatory Board.

Any mortgage, attachment or other encumbrance or voluntary transaction of motor
vehicles must be recorded with the LTO in order to be valid against third persons.
A motor vehicle may only transport passengers, freight or cargo in accordance with its
registered carrying capacity. A passenger is prohibited from riding on the cover or on the
top of motor vehicles. However, baggage or freight may be carried on top of a truck,
172

subject to conditions contained in the permit issued by the LTO for said vehicle. A
passenger is also prohibited from riding on the running board, step board or mudguard of
the motor vehicle while said vehicle is in motion.
Any conductor employed by a public service operator must secure a permit or license
from the LTO. Said license or permit is valid for three (3) years, renewable on or before
the last working day prior to or on the conductor’s birthday.
Road User’s Tax Law

A motor vehicle user’s charge will be collected by the LTO from road users as part of the
annual vehicle registration in accordance with the schedule of fees issued by the DPWH
and the DOTC. No other charge of similar nature will be collected by any government unit
or agency.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS
Contract of Services for Temporary Staffing
The Company has existing agreements with two (2) independent job contractors namely (a)
Direct Sales Support & Personnel Services Inc. and (b) Metro Jobs & Payments Solutions Inc.
for the supply to the Company of services generally performed by these contractors in the
usual line of their business, including but not limited to, providing temporary and substitute
services for absent employees, additional work required by abnormal increase in the demand
of the Company’s products and services, and other exigencies. Both agreements were
renewed on June 11, 2014 and will end on June 10, 2015 unless sooner terminated by either
party for any reasonable cause with prior written notice of at least fifteen (15) days.
Contracts of Lease
CROWN, as lessee, entered into a Contract of Lease with WTDRC in 2006 and in 2012 for the
lease of a 48 sqm office space and a 140 sqm residential house/warehouse, respectively,
located at Airport Road, Sasa, Davao City. The term of the lease for the office space is ten (10)
years, beginning December 1, 2006 and expiring on November 30, 2016, while the term for
residential house/warehouse is two (2) years, beginning January 1, 2013 and expiring on
December 31, 2014. The monthly rentals for the leased properties are currently at P8,820.00
and P38,587.51, respectively, subject to an escalation of five percent (5.00%) per annum.

Further, CROWN, as lessee, entered into a Contract of Lease with WTDRC in 2013 and 2014
for the lease of Unit No. 1810 with an area of 83.57 sqm and Unit No. 1809 with an area of
84.70 sqm, respectively, in President Tower, 81 Timog Ave., Quezon City. The term of the
lease for Unit No. 1810 is five (5) years beginning November 1, 2013 and expiring on October
31, 2018, while the term for Unit No. 1809 is also five (5) years beginning April 1, 2014 and
expiring on March 31, 2019. The monthly rentals for the leased properties are currently at
P20,500.00 and P21,000.00, respectively, both subject to an escalation of five percent
(5.00%) for the 2nd and 3rd year and ten percent (10.00%) for the 4th and 5th year.
Fire Insurance Policy for the Manufacturing Plant Complex

The Company’s manufacturing plant complex is insured by Charter Ping An Insurance
Corporation through an insurance policy effective from October 11, 2014 to October 11, 2015.
The coverage of the policy is in the total amount of P188,000,000.00 distributed as follows:
P42,500,000.00 for the buildings; P25,500,000.00 for the machineries and equipment; and
P120,000,000.00 for the stock inventory. For such insurance coverage, the total premium
paid by the Company was P476,094.96.
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MANUAL ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance (the “Manual”) was approved by the Board
of Directors on September 5, 2014. The Manual is a supplement to the Company’s Amended
By-Laws.
Adoption and Implementation
The Company is in the process of implementing the abovementioned Manual. In the meeting
of the Board of Directors of the Company on September 5, 2014, the Board elected two (2)
directors, Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos and Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto, who qualify as “independent”
pursuant to Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code.
The Manual also provides for the formation of the following committees: Nomination,
Compensation and Remuneration, Audit, Risk, and Executive.

To measure the level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with
its Manual of Corporate Governance, the Manual mandates the establishment by the Company
of an evaluation system consisting of a self-rating assessment and performance system by
Management and submission of certifications by the Compliance Officer on the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Manual.
Furthermore, to ensure the Company’s adherence to corporate principles and best
practices, the Board is mandated to appoint a Compliance Officer who shall perform the
following duties:
•

•
•
•
•

Monitor compliance with the provisions and requirements of this Manual and the rules
and regulations of regulatory agencies and, if any violations are found, report the
matter to the Board and recommend imposition of appropriate disciplinary action on
the responsible parties and the adoption of measures to prevent a repetition of the
violation;
Appear before the Securities and Exchange Commission upon summons on matters
relative to corporate governance that need to be clarified;
Determine violations of the Manual and recommend the appropriate penalty for
violation thereof for further review and approval of the Board;
After the end of each year, issue a certification or attest on the extent of the Company’s
compliance with this Manual for the completed year, explaining the reasons for the
deviation from the same; and
Identify, monitor and control compliance risks.

Independent Directors
The amended By-laws require the Company to have at least two (2) independent directors in
its Board of Directors. The Manual requires that there must be at least one (1) independent
director voting in the Company’s Nomination Committee, Compensation and Remuneration
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Committee, Audit Committee, and Risk Management Committee. Apart from his fees and
shareholdings, an independent director must hold no interests or relationships with the
Company that may hinder his independence from the Company or its management and would
interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a
director.
Under the SEC Code of Corporate Governance, an independent director is required to attend
board meetings for quorum requirements, unless he is duly notified of the meeting but
deliberately and without justifiable cause fails to attend the meeting.

Nomination Committee
The Manual requires that the Nomination Committee be composed of at least three (3) voting
members of the Board of Directors, one of whom must be an independent director. The
Nomination Committee is tasked to review and evaluate the qualifications of all persons
nominated to the Board and other appointments that require Board approval and to assess
the effectiveness of the Board’s processes and procedures in the election or replacement of
directors.

At present, the Company has a Nomination Committee composed of five (5) members, one of
whom is an independent director. The Nomination Committee’s specific duties and
responsibilities include:
•

•
•
•
•
•

Pre-screening and short-listing all candidates nominated to become a member of the
Board; and
Developing and recommending a set of criteria for Board membership;
Redefining the role, duties, and responsibilities of the CEO;
Assessing the contributions and independence of incumbent Directors;
Making recommendations to the Board on such matters as the retirement age,
tenure, and removal of Directors; and
Reviewing directorships in other public or private companies held by or offered to
Directors and executive officers of the Company.

Mr. Walter H. Villanueva was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee during
the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Company on
September 5, 2014. On the same meeting, Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, Mr. Ernesto R.
Alberto, Ms. Tita P. Villanueva, and Mr. Nicasio T. Perez were also appointed as members of
the Nomination Committee.
Compensation and Remuneration Committee
The Manual requires that the Compensation and Remuneration Committee be composed of at
least three (3) members of the Board of Directors, one of whom must be an independent
director. The Compensation and Remuneration Committee is tasked to establish a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a policy on remuneration of directors and officers to
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ensure that their compensation is consistent with the Company’s culture, strategy and
business environment in which it operates.

At present, the Company has a Compensation and Remuneration Committee composed of five
(5) members, one of whom is an independent director. The Compensation and Remuneration
Committee’s specific duties and responsibilities include:
•

•

•

•
•
•

Establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on
executive remuneration and for fixing remuneration packages of corporate officers
and directors;
Providing Management and the Board assistance in defining the remuneration of
senior management and other key personnel ensuring that compensation is
consistent with the Company’s financial capability as well as reasonable industry
standards;
Developing a form on Full Business Interest Disclosure as part of the preemployment requirements for all officers and directors to require them to declare
all their existing business interests or shareholdings that may directly or indirectly
conflict with their performance of duties to the Company;
Evaluating the performance of each of the Chief Executive Officer/President and
the Company’s other officers;
Administering the Company’s incentive compensation and equity-based plans and
other equity-based incentive awards; and
Annually review the Company’s Compensation Disclosure.

Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva was appointed as the Chairman of the Compensation and
Remuneration Committee during the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and
stockholders of the Company on September 5, 2014. On the same meeting, Mr. Walter H.
Villanueva, Ms. Tita P. Villanueva, Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos, and Mr. Nicasio T. Perez were
also appointed as members of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee.
Audit Committee
The Manual requires that the Audit Committee be composed of at least three (3) members of
the Board of Directors, one of whom must be an independent director. The Independent
Director member shall also serve as the Chairman of the Board. Each member is required to
be financially literate, have an adequate understanding of the Company’s financial
management systems and environment. At least one member of the Committee is required to
have accounting or related financial management expertise or relevant business experience
as determined by the Board.
At present, the Company has an Audit Committee composed of five (5) members, one of
whom is an independent director. The independent director also serves as the Chairperson of
the Committee.
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The Audit Committee’s duties and responsibilities include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Overseeing the Company’s financial controls and reporting processes on behalf of
the Board and reporting the results of its activities to the Board;
Performing oversight financial management functions, with the Risk Committee,
specifically in the areas of managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, and
other risks of the Company;
Performing oversight functions over the Company’s internal and external auditors
to ensure that they act independently from each other and that they are given
adequate access to all pertinent records of the Company;
Appointing and overseeing the work of the independent auditor/s engaged by the
Company for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or performing
other audit review or attesting services for the Company;
Pre-approving all audit plans, scope and frequency before the conduct of the
external and internal audit;
Establishing policies and procedures for the engagement of the independent
external auditors to provide permissible non-audit services;
Reviewing of financial reports and their compliance with both the internal financial
management handbook and pertinent accounting standards, including regulatory
requirements;
Organizing an internal audit department;
Establishing procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, and auditing matters, including
procedures for confidential, anonymous submission of concerns by employees
regarding accounting and auditing matters; and
Reviewing and pre-approving related-party transactions.

Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee during the
joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Company on
September 5, 2014. On the same meeting, Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, Mr. Eugene H. Lee
Villanueva, Ms. Tita P. Villanueva, and Mr. Nicasio T. Perez were also appointed as members
of the Audit Committee.

The above enumeration comprises the general duties and responsibilities of the Company’s
Audit Committee. In accordance with the requirements of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4,
Series of 2012, the Company shall promulgate an Audit Charter, which shall provide, among
others, the purpose, membership, structure, operations, reporting process, and resources of
the Committee. The Charter shall likewise serve as basis for the Company’s assessment of the
performance of its Audit Committee.
Risk Committee
The Manual requires that the Risk Committee be composed of at least three (3) members of
the Board of Directors, one of whom must be an independent director. The Independent
Director member shall also serve as the Chairman of the Board.
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At present, the Company has a Risk Committee composed of seven (7) members, one of whom
is an independent director. The independent director also serves as the Chairperson of the
Committee. Each member is required to meet the financial-literacy and independence
standards of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
The Risk Management Committee’s duties and responsibilities include:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Overseeing the company’s risk management function;
Developing a formal risk management policy that guides the Company’s risk
management and compliance processes and procedures;
Designing and undertaking its enterprise-wide risk management activities in
accordance with internationally-recognized frameworks;
Discussing and reviewing policies with respect to risk assessment and risk
management including the Company’s major financial and business risk exposures and
the actions Management has undertaken to control them;
Setting the tone and influencing the culture of risk management which includes
determining the appropriate risk appetite (risk-taker or risk-averse) or level of
exposure as a whole or on any relevant individual issue, as well as determining what
types of risk are acceptable;
Monitoring the management of significant risk to reduce the likelihood of unwelcome
surprises; and
Annually reviewing the Company’s approaches to risk management and
recommend to the Board changes or improvements to key elements of its processes
and procedures.

Mr. Ernesto R. Alberto was appointed as the Chairman of the Risk Committee during the joint
special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Company on September 5,
2014. On the same meeting, Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, Ms. Tita
P. Villanueva, Mr. Nicasio T. Perez, Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva, and Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee
Villanueva were also appointed as members of the Risk Committee.
Executive Committee
The Manual requires that the Executive Committee be composed of at least three (3)
members of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board shall be the Chair of the
Committee. The other members of the Committee shall be appointed annually by the Board.

At present, the Company has an Executive Committee composed of one (1) Chairperson and
six (6) members, all of whom are regular directors.
The Committee shall have all the authority of the Board of Directors or such authority as may
be delegated by the Board. However, it shall not have the authority to:
•
•
•

Approve any action for which stockholders approval is also required;
Fill vacancies in the Board or in any committee thereof;
Amend or repeal the By-laws or adopt new By-laws;
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board that which, by its express terms, is not so
amenable or repealable;
Distribute cash dividends to the stockholders;
Fix the compensation of Directors for serving on the Board or any committee thereof;
Fix or amend the compensation, benefits, or prerequisites of the Chief Executive
Officer;
Take any action that the Corporation Code of the Philippines or the Company’s ByLaws prohibit the Board from delegating to a committee; or
Take any action required by the rules or regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission or the Philippine Stock Exchange to be approved by the full Board or by
another committee of the Board.

Mr. Walter H. Villanueva was appointed as the Chairman of the Executive Committee during
the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Company on
September 5, 2014. On the same meeting, Mr. Eugene H. Lee Villanueva, Ms. Tita P. Villanueva,
Mr. Nicasio T. Perez, Mr. Derrick P. Villanueva, Ms. Stephanie Lauren Lee Villanueva, and Mr.
Hans Joseph T. Perez were also appointed as members of the Risk Committee.
Compliance with Rules on Corporate Governance
The Company is not aware of any non-compliance with or deviation from its Manual. The
Company will continue to monitor compliance with the Rules on Corporate Governance
issued by the SEC and will remain committed in ensuring the adoption of other systems and
practices of good corporate governance to enhance its value for its stockholders.
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LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS
Legal matters in connection with the Offer have been passed upon by Tan Venturanza Valdez
Law Offices with address at Unit 2704 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, and Pasig City.
Copies of the following documents may be inspected during business hours at the Company’s
principal office:
•
•

•

Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company as amended

Financial Statements and Independent Auditors' Report as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Report of Independent Auditors to Accompany Supplementary Information Required
by the SEC Filed Separately from the Basic Financial Statements
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following agreements have been entered into by the parties at arm’s length, under terms
and conditions normally acceptable between willing parties that are unrelated and acting
independently of each other and pursuing their own best interest. All related party
transactions are pursued for the purpose of furthering the business of the Company by
tapping the expertise and competencies of related parties. The respective transaction prices
have been determined at arm’s length basis.
Advances from Stockholders
The Company obtains non-interest-bearing unsecured advances from stockholders for
working capital purposes. As of December 31, 2014, the amount of advances from
stockholders granted in favor of the Company amounts to Forty Six Thousand, Fifty Six Pesos
and Fifty Five Centavos (P46,056.55).
Advances to Guiguinto Integrated Wood Industries Corporation
The Company granted a non-interest-bearing unsecured advance to GIWICO, a related party
under common ownership by the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, and the
Director and VP-Comptroller, Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva, for the future for the purchase of a
parcel of lot with an area of 5,462 sqm., adjacent to the Company’s lot in Bo. Tuktukan,
Guiguinto, Bulacan amounting to Thirty Three Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos
(P33,800,000.00). As of December 31, 2014, the amount of advances granted by the Company
in favor of related parties amounts to Twenty Four Million, Eight Hundred Thousand Pesos
(P24,800,000.00).
Lease Agreements with WT Derrick Realty Corporation
CROWN is a party to four (4) Contracts of Lease with WTDRC, a related party under common
ownership by the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Walter H. Villanueva, and the Director and VPComptroller, Mrs. Tita P. Villanueva.

CROWN, as lessee, entered into a Contract of Lease with WTDRC in 2006 and in 2012 for the
lease of a 48-sqm office space and a 140-sqm residential house/warehouse, respectively,
located at Airport Road, Sasa, Davao City. The term of the lease for the office space is ten (10)
years, beginning December 1, 2006 and expiring on November 30, 2016, while the term for
residential house/warehouse is two (2) years, beginning January 1, 2013 and expiring on
December 31, 2014. The monthly rentals for the leased properties are currently at P8,820.00
and P38,587.51, respectively, subject to an escalation of five percent (5.00%) per annum.

Further, CROWN, as lessee, entered into a Contract of Lease with WTDRC in 2013 and 2014
for the lease of Unit No. 1810 with an area of 83.57 sqm and Unit No. 1809 with an area of
84.70 sqm, respectively, in President Tower, 81 Timog Ave., Quezon City. The term of the
lease for Unit No. 1810 is five (5) years beginning November 1, 2013 and expiring on October
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31, 2018, while the term for Unit No. 1809 is also five (5) years beginning April 1, 2014 and
expiring on March 31, 2019. The monthly rentals for the leased properties are currently at
P20,500.00 and P21,000.00, respectively, both subject to an escalation of five percent
(5.00%) for the 2nd and 3rd year and ten percent (10.00%) for the 4th and 5th year.
Subcontract with Husky Plastics Corporation
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, subcontracts the manufacture of some pipe
fittings from Husky Plastics Corporation. The cost of such services amounted to
P20,209,900.13 in 2012, P29,541,721.67 in 2013, and P31,857,981.51 in 2014. Husky Plastics
Corporation is a related party under common ownership. The Company subcontracts from
Husky Plastics Corporation due to the low prices it offers to the Company and the assured
quality of the products it produces for the Company.
Exclusive Distributorship Agreement with and Sale of Vehicles to Asean Timber
Corporation
Asean Timber Corporation is a company engaged in the construction supplies business. It is a
related party under common ownership with the Company. Among the products it carries are
lumber, plywood and PVC pipes. In the Exclusive Distributorship Agreement dated July 12,
2006, the Company and Asean Timber Corporation agreed that the latter shall be the sole
distributor of the Company for its pipes, fittings and accessories, and that the same shall
distribute only CROWN brand.

Further, the Company sold its two (2) units of Suzuki Alto to Asean Timber Corporation in the
aggregate amount of P770,759.00 in the year 2011. As of December 31, 2014, the remaining
unpaid balance stood at P176,910.00.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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THE PHILIPPINE STOCK MARKET
The information presented in this section has been extracted from publicly available documents
that have not been prepared or independently verified by the Company, or any of their respective
subsidiaries, associates or advisors in connection with listing of the Subject Shares.
Brief History
The Philippines initially had two (2) stock exchanges, the Manila Stock Exchange, which was
organized in 1927, and the Makati Stock Exchange, which began operations in 1963. Each
exchange was self-regulating, governed by its respective Board of Governors elected annually
by its members.

Several steps initiated by the Government have resulted in the unification of the two bourses
into the PSE. The PSE was incorporated in 1992 by officers of both the Makati and the Manila
Stock Exchanges. In March 1994, the licenses of the two (2) separate exchanges were
revoked. While the PSE maintains two (2) trading floors, one in Makati City and the other in
Pasig City, these floors are linked by an automated trading system that integrates all bids and
ask quotations from the bourses.

In June 1998, the SEC granted the Self-Regulatory Organization status to the PSE, allowing it
to impose rules as well as implement penalties on erring TPs and listed companies. On
August 8, 2001, the PSE completed its demutualization, converting from a non-stock membergoverned institution into a stock corporation in compliance with the requirements of the SRC.
Each of the 184 member-brokers was granted 50,000 common shares of the new PSE at a par
value of P1.00 per share. In addition, a trading right evidenced by a “Trading Participant
Certificate” was immediately conferred on each member broker allowing the use of the PSE’s
trading facilities. As a result of the demutualization, the composition of the PSE Board of
Governors was changed, requiring the inclusion of seven (7) brokers and eight (8) nonbrokers, one of whom is the President. On December 15, 2003, the PSE listed its shares by
way of introduction at its own bourse as part of a series of reforms aimed at strengthening
the Philippine securities industry.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the PSE has an authorized capital stock of One Hundred
Twenty Million Pesos (P120,000,000.00), of which Seventy Three Million, Four Hundred
Eighty Thousand, Three Hundred Ninety Six Pesos (P73,480,396.00) is subscribed and fully
paid-up.

Classified into financial, industrial, holding firms, property, services, and mining and oil
sectors, companies are listed either on the PSE’s Main Board or the Small, Medium, and
Emerging Board. With the issuance by the PSE of Memorandum No. CN-No. 2013-0023 dated
June 6, 2013, revisions to the PSE Listing Rules were made, among which changes are the
removal of the Second Board listing and the requirement that lock-up rules be embodied in
the articles of incorporation of the issuer. Each index, however, represents the numerical
average of the prices of component stocks. The PSE shifted from full market capitalization to
free float market capitalization effective April 3, 2006 simultaneous with the migration to the
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free float index and the renaming of the PHISIX to PSEi. The PSEi is composed of stocks of 30
selected companies listed on the PSE.

With the increasing calls for good corporate governance, the PSE has adopted an online daily
disclosure system to improve the transparency of listed companies and to protect the
investing public.
The table below sets out movements in the composite index as of the last business day of each
calendar year from 1995 to 2013 and shows the number of listed companies, market
capitalization, and value of shares traded for the same period:
Table 48: Selected Stock Exchange Data
Year

Composite Index
at Closing

Number of
Listed
Companies

1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2,594.2
3,170.6
1,869.2
1,968.8
2,142.9
1,494.5
1,168.1
1,018.4
1,442.4
1,822.8
2,096.0
2,982.5
3,621.6
1,872.9
3,052.7
4,201.1
4,372.0
5,812.7
5,889.8
7,230.6

205
216
221
222
225
229
231
234
236
235
237
239
244
246
248
253
253
254
257
263

Source: PSE

Aggregate
Market
Capitalization
(in Pbillions)
1,545.7
2,121.1
1,261.3
1,373.7
1,938.6
2,577.6
2,142.6
2,083.2
2,973.8
4,766.3
5,948.4
7,172.8
7,978.5
4,069.2
6,029.1
4,472.1
8,687.0
10,952.7
11,931.3
14,251.7

Combined Value
of Turnover
(in Pbillions)
379.0
668.9
588.0
408.7
713.9
357.6
159.5
159.7
145.4
206.6
383.5
572.6
1,338.3
763.9
994.2
1,207.4
422.6
1,771.7
2,546.3
2,130.1

Trading
The PSE is a double auction market. Buyers and sellers are each represented by stockbrokers.
To trade, bid or ask prices are posted on the PSE’s electronic trading system. A buy (or sell)
order that matches the lowest asked (or highest bid) price is automatically executed. Buy and
sell orders received by one broker at the same price are crossed at the PSE at the indicated
price. Payment of purchases of listed securities must be made by the buyer on or before the
third trading day (the settlement date) after the trade.
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Trading on the PSE starts at 9:30 a.m. until 12:00 p.m., when there will be a one and a half
hour lunch break. In the afternoon, trading resumes at 1:30 p.m. and ends at 3:30 p.m. with a
10-minute extension during which transactions may be conducted, provided that they are
executed at the last traded price set prior to the market run-off and are only for the purpose
of completing unfinished orders. Trading days are Monday to Friday, except legal holidays
and days when the BSP clearing house is closed.

Minimum trading lots range from five (5) to 1,000,000 shares depending on the price range
and nature of the security traded. Odd-sized lots are traded by brokers on a board specifically
designed for odd lot trading.

To maintain stability in the stock market, daily price swings are monitored and regulated.
Under current PSE regulations, when the price of a listed security moves up by 50.00% or
down by 50.00% in one day (based on the previous closing price or last posted bid price,
whichever is higher), the price of that security is automatically frozen by the PSE, unless there
is an official statement from the company or a government agency justifying such price
fluctuation, in which case the affected security can still be traded but only at the frozen price.
If the issuer fails to submit such explanation, a trading halt is imposed by the PSE on the listed
security the following day. Resumption of trading shall be allowed only when the disclosure
of the company is disseminated, subject again to the trading ban.
Non-Resident Transactions

When the purchase/sale of Philippine shares of stock involves a non-resident, whether the
transaction is effected in the domestic or foreign market, it will be the responsibility of the
securities dealer/broker to register the transaction with the BSP. The local securities
dealer/broker shall file with the BSP, within three (3) business days from the transaction
date, an application in the prescribed registration form. After compliance with other required
undertakings, the BSP shall issue a Certificate of Registration. Under BSP rules, all registered
foreign investments in Philippine securities including profits and dividends, net of taxes and
charges, may be repatriated.
Settlement
The Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines (“SCCP”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of the PSE, and was organized primarily as a clearance and settlement agency for SCCPeligible trades executed through the facilities of the PSE. SCCP received its permanent license
to operate on January 17, 2002. It is responsible for:
•

•
•

Synchronizing the settlement of funds and the transfer of securities through Delivery
versus Payment clearing and settlement of transactions of Clearing Members, who are
also TPs;
Guaranteeing the settlement of trades in the event of a Trading Participant’s default
through the implementation of its Fails Management System and administration of the
Clearing and trade Guaranty Fund; and
Performance of Risk Management and Monitoring to ensure final and irrevocable
settlement.
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The SCCP settles the PSE trades on a three (3) -day rolling settlement environment, which
means that settlement of trades takes place three trading days after transaction date (T+3).
The deadline for settlement of trades is 12:00 n.n. of T+3. Securities sold should be in
scripless form and lodged under the book-entry system of the PDTC. Each PSE Broker
maintains a Cash Settlement Account with one of the four (4) existing Settlement Banks of
SCCP, which are Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc., Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation,
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, and Union Bank of the Philippines. Payment for
securities bought should be in good, cleared funds and should be final and irrevocable.
Settlement is presently on a broker level.
SCCP implemented its Central Clearing and Central Settlement system on May 29, 2006.
Central Clearing & Central Settlement employs multilateral netting, whereby the system
automatically offsets “buy” and “sell” transactions on a per issue and a per flag basis to arrive
at a net receipt or a net delivery security position for each Clearing Member. All cash debits
and credits are also netted into a single net cash position for each Clearing Member. Novation
of the original PSE trade contracts occurs, and SCCP stands between the original trading
parties and becomes the Central Counterparty to each PSE-eligible trade cleared through it.
Scripless Trading
In 1995, the PDTC (formerly the Philippine Central Depository, Inc.), was organized to
establish a central depository in the Philippines and introduce scripless or book-entry trading
in the Philippines. In December 2006, PDTC was issued a temporary license to operate by the
SEC as a depository for equity securities. In 2002, a permanent license as a depository of
equity securities and a temporary license as a depository of debt securities. In September
2003, PDTC was granted a permanent license as a depository of debt securities.
All listed securities at the PSE have been converted into book-entry settlement in the PDTC.
The depository service of the PDTC provides the infrastructure for lodgment (deposit) and
upliftment (withdrawal) of securities, pledge of securities, securities lending and borrowing
and corporate actions including stockholders’ meetings, dividend declarations, and rights
offerings. The PDTC also provides depository and settlement services for non-PSE trades of
listed equity securities. For transactions on the PSE, the security element of the trade will be
settled through the book-entry system, while the cash element will be settled through the
current settlement banks, Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation, Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.,
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, and Union Bank of the Philippines.

In order to benefit from the book-entry system, securities must be immobilized into the PDTC
system through a process called lodgment. Lodgment is the process by which stockholders
transfer legal title (but not beneficial title) over their shares of stock in favor of the PCD
Nominee Corporation (“PCD Nominee”), a corporation wholly-owned by the PDTC, whose
sole purpose is to act as nominee and legal title holder of all shares of stock lodged in the
PDTC. “Immobilization” is the process by which the warrant or share certificates of lodging
holders are canceled by the transfer agent and a new warrant or stock certificate (“Jumbo
Certificate”) covering all the warrants or shares lodged is issued in the name of the PCD
Nominee. This trust arrangement between the participants and PDTC through the PCD
Nominee is established by and explained in the PDTC Rules and Operating Procedures
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approved by the SEC. No consideration is paid for the transfer of legal title to the PCD
Nominee. Once lodged, transfers of beneficial title of the securities are accomplished via
book-entry settlement.

Under the current PDTC system, only participants (e.g. brokers and custodians) will be
recognized by the PDTC as the beneficial owners of the lodged equity securities. Thus, each
beneficial owner of shares, through his participant, will be the beneficial owner to the extent
of the number of shares held by such participant in the records of the PCD Nominee. All
lodgments, trades and uplifts on these shares will have to be coursed through a participant.
Ownership and transfers of beneficial interests in the shares will be reflected, with respect to
the participant’s aggregate holdings, in the PDTC system, and with respect to each beneficial
owner’s holdings, in the records of the participants. Beneficial owners are thus advised that in
order to exercise their rights as beneficial owners of the lodged shares, they must rely on
their participant-brokers and/or participant custodians.

Any beneficial owner of shares who wishes to trade his interests in the shares must course
the trade through a participant. The participant can execute PSE trades and non-PSE trades of
lodged equity securities through the PDTC system. All matched transactions in the PSE
trading system will be fed through the SCCP, and into the PDTC system. Once it is determined
on the settlement date (T+3) that there are adequate securities in the securities settlement
account of the participant-seller and adequate cleared funds in the settlement bank account
the participant-buyer, the PSE trades are automatically settled in the PDTC system, in
accordance with the PDTC Rules and Operating Procedures. Once settled, the beneficial
ownership of the securities is transferred from the participant-seller to the participant-buyer
without the physical transfer of stock certificates covering the traded securities.

If a shareholder wishes to withdraw his stockholdings from the PDTC system, the PDTC has a
procedure of upliftment under which PCD Nominee will transfer back to the shareholder the
legal title to the shares lodged by surrendering its Jumbo Certificate to a transfer agent, that
then issues a new stock certificate in the name of the shareholder and a new Jumbo Certificate
to the PCD Nominee for the balance of the lodged shares. The expenses for upliftment are for
the account of the uplifting shareholder.

The difference between the depository and the registry would be on the recording of
ownership of the shares in the issuing corporations’ books. In the depository set-up, shares
are simply immobilized, wherein customers’ certificates are canceled and a new Jumbo
Certificate is issued in the name of PCD Nominee Corp. Transfers among/between broker
and/or custodian accounts, as the case may be, will only be made within the book-entry
system of the PDTC. However, as far as the issuing corporation is concerned, the underlying
certificates are in the PCD Nominee’s name. In the registry set-up, settlement and recording of
ownership of traded securities will already be directly made in the corresponding issuing
company’s transfer agents’ books or system. Likewise, recording will already be at the
beneficiary level (whether it be a client or a registered custodian holding securities for its
clients), thereby removing from the broker its current “de facto” custodianship role.
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Amended Rule on Lodgment of Securities
On June 24, 2009, the PSE apprised all listed companies and market participants through
Memorandum No. 2009-0320 that commencing on July 1, 2009, as a condition for the listing
and trading of the securities of an applicant company, the applicant company shall
electronically lodge its registered securities with the PDTC or any other entity duly
authorized by the SEC, without any jumbo or mother certificate in compliance with the
requirements of Section 43 of the SRC. Actual listing and trading of securities on the
scheduled listing date shall take effect only after submission by the applicant company of the
documentary requirements stated in Article III Part A of the Revised Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the said amendment, the PDTC issued an implementing procedure in support
thereof to wit:
•
•

For a new company to be listed at the PSE as of July 1, 2009, the usual procedure will
be observed but the transfer agent of the company shall no longer issue a certificate to
PCD Nominee but shall issue a Registry Confirmation Advice, which shall be the basis
for the PDTC to credit the holdings of the depository participants on listing date.

For existing listed companies, the PDTC shall wait for the advice of the transfer agent
that it is ready to accept surrender of PCD Nominee Jumbo Certificates and upon such
advice, the PDTC shall surrender all PCD Nominee Jumbo Certificates to the transfer
agent for cancellation. The transfer agent shall issue a Registry Confirmation Advice to
PCD Nominee evidencing the total number of shares registered in the name of PCD
Nominee in the listed company’s registry as of confirmation date.

Issuance of Stock Certificates for Certificated Shares
On or after the listing of the shares on the PSE, any beneficial owner of the shares may apply
with PDTC through his broker or custodian-participant for a withdrawal from the book-entry
system and return to the conventional paper-based settlement. If a shareholder wishes to
withdraw his stockholdings from the PDTC system, the PDTC has a procedure of upliftment
under which PCD Nominee will transfer back to the shareholder the legal title to the shares
lodged. The uplifting shareholder shall follow the Rules and Operating Procedures of the
PDTC for the uplifting of the shares lodged under the name of the PCD Nominee. The transfer
agent shall prepare and send a Registry Confirmation Advice to the PDTC covering the new
number of shares lodged under PCD Nominee. The expenses for upliftment are on the account
of the uplifting shareholder. Upon the issuance of stock certificates for the shares in the name
of the person applying for upliftment, such shares shall be deemed to be withdrawn from the
PDTC book-entry settlement system, and trading on such shares will follow the normal
process for settlement of certificated securities. The expenses for upliftment of the shares
into certificated securities will be charged to the person applying for upliftment. Pending
completion of the upliftment process, the beneficial interest in the shares covered by the
application for upliftment is frozen and no trading and book-entry settlement will be
permitted until the relevant stock certificates in the name of the person applying for
upliftment shall have been issued by the relevant company’s transfer agent.
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PHILIPPINE TAXATION
The following is a general description of certain Philippine tax aspects of the investment in the
Company. This discussion is based upon laws, regulations, rulings, income tax conventions,
treaties, administrative practices, and judicial decisions in effect at the date of this Prospectus.
Subsequent legislative, judicial, or administrative changes or interpretations may be retroactive
and could affect the tax consequence to the prospective investor.
The tax treatment of a prospective investor may vary depending on such investor’s particular
situation and certain investors may be subject to special rules not discussed below. This
summary does not purport to address all tax aspects that may be important to an investor.
This general description does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the Philippine
tax aspects of the investment in shares and no information is provided regarding the tax aspects
of acquiring, owning, holding, or disposing of the shares under applicable tax laws of other
applicable jurisdictions and the specific Philippine tax consequence in light of particular
situations of acquiring, owning, holding, and disposing of the shares in such other jurisdictions.
EACH PROSPECTIVE HOLDER SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OWN TAX ADVISER AS TO THE
PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ACQUISITION, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF
THE SUBJECT SHARES, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL
AND NATIONAL TAX LAWS.
As used in this Section, the term “resident alien” refers to an individual whose residence is within
the Philippines and who is not a citizen thereof.
A “non-resident alien” is an individual whose residence is not within the Philippines and who is
not a citizen thereof. A non-resident alien who is actually within the Philippines for an
aggregate period of more than 180 days during any calendar year is considered a non-resident
alien engaged in trade or business in the Philippines; otherwise, such non-resident alien who is
actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period of 180 days or less during any calendar
year is considered a non-resident alien not engaged in trade or business in the Philippines.
A “domestic corporation” is created or organized under the laws of the Philippines; while a
“foreign corporation” is one which is not domestic.
A “resident foreign corporation” is a foreign corporation engaged in trade or business in the
Philippines; and a “non-resident foreign corporation” is a foreign corporation not engaged in
trade or business in the Philippines.
Individual Income Tax
A resident citizen is taxed on income from all sources within and without the Philippines at
progressive rates ranging from five percent (5.00%) to thirty two percent (32.00%) of net
taxable income (other than certain passive income and capital gains which are subject to final
taxes). A resident alien, non-resident citizen, or non-resident alien engaged in trade or
business in the Philippines is generally subject to an income tax in the same manner and at
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the same progressive tax rates on taxable income from all sources within the Philippines
(other than certain passive income and capital gains which are subject to final taxes).

A non-resident alien not engaged in trade or business in the Philippines is taxed on gross
income from Philippine sources such as interest, cash and/or property dividends, rents,
salaries, wages, premiums, annuities, compensation, remuneration, emoluments, or other
fixed or determinable annual or periodic or casual gains, profits, and income, and capital
gains (other than capital gains from the sale of shares of stock in a domestic corporation and
real property) at the rate of twenty five percent (25.00%) withheld at source.
A "non-resident citizen" is a citizen of the Philippines who (a) establishes to the satisfaction of
the Commissioner of Internal Revenue the fact of his physical presence abroad with a definite
intention to reside therein, or (b) leaves the Philippines during the taxable year to reside
abroad, either as an immigrant or for employment on a permanent basis, or (c) works and
derives income from abroad and whose employment thereat requires him to be physically
present abroad most of the time during the taxable year. A citizen of the Philippines who has
been previously considered as a non-resident citizen and who arrives in the Philippines at
any time during the taxable year to reside permanently in the Philippines shall likewise be
treated as a non-resident citizen for the taxable year in which he arrives in the Philippines
with respect to his income derived from sources abroad until the date of his arrival in the
Philippines.
Corporate Income Tax
A domestic corporation is subject to regular corporate income tax at the rate of 30.00%
(effective January 1, 2009 pursuant to R.A. No. 9337) on its taxable income (gross income less
allowable deductions) from all income sources within and outside the Philippines except,
those items of income that are subject to final withholding tax, such as: (a) gross interest
income from Philippine currency bank deposits and yield or any other monetary benefit from
deposit substitutes, trust funds, and similar arrangements as well as royalties from sources
within the Philippines that are generally taxed at the lower final withholding tax rate of
20.00% of the gross amount of such income; and (b) interest income from a depository bank
under the expanded foreign exchange deposit system that is subject to a final tax at the rate of
7.50% of such income; (c) net capital gains from the sale, exchange or other disposition of
shares of stock in a domestic corporation not traded in the stock exchange is subject to tax at
the rate of 5.00%/10.00%; and (d) capital gains presumed to have been realized on the sale,
exchange, or disposition of lands and/or buildings which are treated as capital assets is
subject to tax at the rate of 6.00% based on the gross selling price or fair market value,
whichever is higher.
A resident foreign corporation (except certain types of corporations enumerated in the Tax
Code) is subject to a tax of thirty percent (30.00%) of its taxable income (gross income less
allowable deductions) from all sources within the Philippines except those items of income
that are subject to final withholding tax, such as: (a) gross interest income from Philippine
currency bank deposits and yield or any other monetary benefit from deposit substitutes,
trust funds, and similar arrangements as well as royalties from sources within the Philippines
that are generally taxed at the lower final withholding tax rate of twenty percent (20.00%) of
the gross amount of such income; (b) interest income from a depository bank under the
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expanded foreign currency deposit system that is subject to a final tax at the rate of 7.50% of
such income; and (c) net capital gains from the sale, exchange or other disposition of shares of
stock in a domestic corporation not traded in the stock exchange is subject to tax at the rate of
5.00%/10.00%.
A minimum corporate income tax of 2.00% of the gross income as of the end of the taxable
year is imposed on domestic corporations and resident foreign corporations beginning on the
fourth taxable year immediately following the year in which such corporation commenced its
business operations, when the minimum corporate income tax is greater than the regular
corporate income tax for the taxable year.

Nevertheless, any excess of the minimum corporate income tax over the regular corporate
income tax shall be carried forward and credited against the latter for the three (3)
immediately succeeding taxable years. Further, subject to certain conditions, the minimum
corporate income tax may be suspended with respect to a corporation that suffers losses on
account of a prolonged labor dispute, force majeure, or legitimate business reasons.
The President of the Philippines may, upon the recommendation of the Secretary of Finance
and upon the occurrence of certain macroeconomic conditions, allow domestic and resident
foreign corporations the option to be taxed on a gross basis at the rate of fifteen percent
(15.00%). This authority has not been exercised to date.
A final withholding tax of 30.00% is imposed, as a general rule, upon the gross income
received during each taxable year of a non-resident foreign corporation from all sources
within the Philippines, subject to the provisions of tax treaties between the Philippines and
the country of residence of such foreign corporation.
Tax on Dividends
Cash and property dividends received from a domestic corporation by individual
stockholders who are either citizens or residents of the Philippines are subject to tax at the
rate of 10.00%. Cash and property dividends received by non-resident alien individuals
engaged in trade or business in the Philippines are subject to a 20.00% tax on the gross
amount thereof, while cash and property dividends received by non-resident alien individuals
not engaged in trade or business in the Philippines or business in the Philippines from a
domestic corporation are generally subject to tax at the rate of 25.00% of the gross amount
subject, however, to the applicable preferential tax rates under tax treaties executed between
the Philippines and the country of residence or domicile of such non-resident foreign
individuals.
Cash and property dividends received from a domestic corporation by another domestic
corporation or by resident foreign corporations are not subject to tax while those received by
non-resident foreign corporations (i.e. foreign corporations not engaged in trade or business
in the Philippines) are subject to a final withholding tax at the rate of 30.00% (pursuant to R.
A. No. 9337 effective January 2009).
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The 30.00% rate for dividends paid to a non-resident foreign corporation may be reduced
depending on whether the country of residence of such foreign corporation has an existing
tax treaty with the Philippines. A country with a tax treaty may have a reduced preferential
tax rate depending on the provisions of the corresponding tax treaties. The 30.00% rate may
be reduced to 15.00% if the country in which the non-resident foreign corporation is
domiciled: (a) imposes no tax on foreign sourced dividends; or (b) allows a credit against the
tax due from the non-resident foreign corporation, for taxes deemed to have been paid in the
Philippines equivalent to 15.00%, which represents the difference between the regular
income tax of thirty percent (30%) and the fifteen percent (15%) tax on dividends.
Stock dividends distributed pro-rata to any holder of shares of stock are not subject to
Philippine income tax. However, the sale, exchange, or disposition of shares received as stock
dividends by the holder is subject to the capital gains or stock transaction tax.

Philippine tax authorities have prescribed certain procedures, through an administrative
issuance, for availment of tax treaty relief. Subject to the approval by the BIR of the recipient’s
application for tax treaty relief, the Company shall withhold taxes at a reduced rate on
dividends to be paid to a non-resident holder, if such non-resident holder provides the
Company with proof of residence and, if applicable, individual or corporate status. Proof of
residence for an individual consists of certification from his embassy, consulate, or other
equivalent certifications issued by the proper government authority, or any other official
document proving residence. If the regular tax rate is withheld by the paying corporation
instead of the reduced rates applicable under a treaty, the non-resident holder of the shares
may file a claim for refund from the BIR. However, because the refund process in the
Philippines requires the filing of an administrative claim and the submission of supporting
information, and may also involve the filing of a judicial appeal, it may be impractical to
pursue such a refund.
However, the Supreme Court clarified in the recent case of Deutsche Bank AG Manila Branch
vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue (G.R. No. 188550, promulgated on August 19, 2013)
that as the Philippines is bound to honor its treaty obligations, a prior application for a tax
treaty relief within the period provided in the BIR’s regulation cannot negate any entitlement
to the relief. According to the Supreme Court, such tax treaty application or ruling “should
merely operate to confirm the entitlement of the taxpayer to the relief.” Thus, failure to file a
tax treaty relief application (TTRA) prior to the occurrence of the transaction will not
disqualify a person from availing of the relief under the tax treaty.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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Tax Treaties
The following table lists some countries with which the Philippines has tax treaties and the
tax rates currently applicable to non-resident holders who are residents of those countries:
Table 49: Countries with which the Philippines has Tax Treaties
Dividends
(%)
Canada
China
France
Germany
Japan
Singapore
United Kingdom
USA

251
152
153
154
155
256
257
258

Stock transaction tax on sale
or disposition effected
through the PSE (%)9
0.5
Exempt10
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.5

Capital Gains tax due
on disposition of
shares outside the PSE
(%)
Exempt11
Exempt11
Exempt11
5/1012
Exempt11
Exempt11
Exempt13
Exempt11

Notes:
1. 15.00% if recipient company controls at least 10.00% of the voting power of the company paying the
dividends.
2. 10.00% if the recipient company holds directly at least 10.00% of the capital of the company paying the
dividends
3. 15.00% if the recipient company holds directly at least 15.00% of the voting shares of the company paying
the dividends
4. 10.00% if the recipient company owns directly at least 25.00% of the capital of the company paying the
dividends
5. 10.00% if the recipient company owns directly at least 25.00% of either the voting shares of the company
paying the dividends or of the total shares issued by that company during the period of six (6) months
immediately preceding the date of payment of the dividends
6. 15.00% if during the part of the paying company’s taxable year which precedes the date of payment of
dividends and during the whole of its prior taxable year at least 15.00% of the outstanding shares of the
voting stock of the paying company were owned by the recipient company.
7. 15.00% if the recipient company is a company which controls directly or indirectly at least 10.00% if the
voting power of the company paying the dividends
8. 20.00% if during the part of the paying corporation’s taxable year which precedes the date of payment of
dividends and during the whole year of its prior taxable year at least 10.00% of the outstanding shares of the
voting stock of the paying corporation was owned by the recipient corporation
9. Exempt if the stock transaction tax is expressly covered by the applicable tax treaty or is deemed by the
relevant authorities as an identical or substantially similar tax to the Philippine income tax. In BIR ruling no.
ITAD 22-07 dated February 9, 2007, the BIR held that the stock transaction tax cannot be considered as an
identical or substantially similar tax on income, and, consequently, ruled that a Singapore resident is not
exempt from the stock transaction tax on the sale of its shares in a Philippine corporation through PSE.
10. Exempt under Article 2(b) of the RP-China Tax Treaty
11. Capital gains are taxable only in the country where the seller is a resident, provided the shares are not those
of a corporation, the assets of which consist principally of real property situated in the Philippines, in which
case the sale is subject to Philippine taxes.
12. Under the RP-Germany Tax Treaty, capital gains from the alienation of shares of a Philippine corporation
may be taxed in the Philippines irrespective of the nature of the assets of the Philippine corporation. Tax
rates are 5% on the net capital gains realized during the taxable year not in excess of P100,000.00 and
10.00% on the net capital gains realized during the taxable year in excess of P100,000.00.
13. Under the RP-UK Tax Treaty, capital gains on the sale of the stock of Philippine corporations are subject to
tax only in the country where the seller is a resident, irrespective of the nature of the assets of the Philippine
corporation.
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Sale, Exchange, or Disposition of Common Shares
Capital Gains
Net capital gains realized by a resident or non-resident other than a dealer in securities
during each taxable year from the sale, exchange, or disposition of shares outside the
facilities of the PSE, unless an applicable treaty exempts such gains from tax or provides
for preferential rates, are subject to tax as follows: 5.00% on gains not exceeding
P100,000.00 and 10.00% on gains over P100,000.00. An application for tax treaty relief
must be filed with (and approved) by the Philippine tax authorities in order to obtain an
exemption under a tax treaty.
The rate of tax is the same for both individual and corporation regardless of nationality
and domicile. The capital gains tax described above shall apply (unless an applicable
treaty exempts such gains from tax or provides for preferential rates) to the secondary
sale of the common shares by the holder thereof to another party made outside the
facilities of the PSE.

Gains from the sale or disposition of shares in a Philippine corporation may be exempt
from capital gains tax or subject to a preferential rate under a tax treaty as noted above.

The transfer of shares shall not be recorded in the books of the Company unless the BIR
certifies, through the issuance of a Certificate Authorizing Registration, that capital gains
tax and documentary stamp tax (“DST”) relating to the transfer have been paid or other
conditions to qualify for exemption or reduction in tax rate have been met.
Taxes on Transfer of Shares Listed and Traded at the PSE

A sale or other disposition of shares of stock listed and traded through the facilities of the
PSE by a resident or a non-resident holder, other than a dealer in securities, is generally
subject to a stock transaction tax at the rate of one-half of one percent (1/2 of 1.00%) of
the gross selling price or gross value in money of the shares of stock sold or otherwise
disposed, unless an applicable treaty exempts such sale from said tax. This tax is required
to be collected by and paid to the Government by the selling stockbroker on behalf of his
client. The stock transaction tax is classified as a percentage tax in lieu of a capital gains
tax. Under certain tax treaties, the exemptions from capital gains tax discussed herein may
not be applicable to stock transaction tax.

On November 7, 2012, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations 16-2012 which requires all
publicly listed companies to maintain, at all times, a minimum public float of ten percent
(10.00%) of their issued and outstanding shares, exclusive of treasury shares. After
December 31, 2012, every sale, barter, exchange or other disposition of the shares of stock
of a non-compliant company shall be subject to a final tax of 5.00% or 10.00%, as
described in the preceding paragraph, instead of the stock transaction tax of one-half of
one percent (1/2 of 1.00%).
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In connection with the foregoing, the PSE has issued Memo Circular No. 2012-0003 which
states that listed companies that become non-compliant with the minimum public
ownership requirement on or after January 1, 2013 shall be suspended from trading for a
period of not more than six (6) months, and shall automatically be delisted if it remains
non-compliant after the lapse of the trading suspension. The non-compliant company may
request for a grace period from the PSE. The PSE may grant the same if it determines that
there is a justifiable cause to do so.
Value Added Tax
A Value-Added Tax of 12.00% is imposed on the commission earned by the PSE-registered
broker, which is generally passed on to the client.
Documentary Stamp Tax
The original issue of shares of stock is subject to DST tax of P1.00 for each P200 par value or a
fraction thereof, of the shares of stock issued. The secondary transfer of shares of stock is
subject to a documentary stamp tax of P0.75 for each P200 par value or a fractional part
thereof of the shares of stock transferred.

On June 30, 2009, Republic Act 9648 was signed into law and it permanently exempts the
sale, barter or exchange of shares of stock listed and traded through the local stock exchange
from the payment of documentary stamp tax and was made retroactive to March 20, 2009.

BIR RR 16-2012, which was issued on November 7, 2012, however imposes a DST in
accordance with the above-mentioned rates on transfers of shares of stock of listed
companies that are not compliant with the minimum public ownership requirement, upon
execution of the deed transferring ownership or rights thereto, or upon delivery, assignment
or indorsement of such shares in favor of another, and no transfer of shares of stock shall be
recorded unless DST thereon has been duly paid for.

In addition, the borrowing and lending of securities, which will be executed under the
securities borrowing and lending program to be implemented by a registered exchange, or
which are in accordance with regulations prescribed by the appropriate regulatory authority,
will likewise be exempt from DST. However, the securities borrowing and lending agreement
should be duly covered by a master securities borrowing and lending agreement acceptable
to the appropriate regulatory authority, and should be duly registered and approved by the
BIR. Otherwise, such agreement would be subject to the DST on debt instruments at the rate
of P1.00 on each P200.00 or the fractional part thereof of the issue price of such debt
instrument.
Tax Treatment of Securities Borrowing and Lending Transactions Involving Shares of
Stock or Securities Listed in the PSE
Pursuant to Section 2 of Revenue Regulations No. 001-08, Securities Borrowing and Lending
(SBL) involves the lending of shares of stocks or securities by the Lender, who owns or
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controls them, to the Borrower who needs the shares of stocks/securities borrowed to
support trading strategies or settlement obligations, in exchange for a collateral and the
promise to return the equivalent shares of stocks/securities at the end of the borrowing
period. The borrowing period in any agreement cannot be more than two (2) years. Typically,
the Borrower will use or dispose of the shares of stocks/securities borrowed strictly in
connection with a particular purpose or purposes as herein mentioned. Being fungible in
nature, the borrowed shares of stocks/securities are transferred from the Lender to the
Borrower. For the duration of the borrowing and lending period under the agreement, the
Lender temporarily loses ownership of the shares of stock/securities lent but acquires a
contractual right to receive all benefits accruing to the shares of stock/securities. The
objective is to put the Lender into the same economic position as the Lender would have been
had the securities not been lent. This means that in case of corporate actions like stock rights,
dividend declarations, and other benefits accruing to the shares of stock, the Borrower would
have to "manufacture" the corresponding benefits thereon and return the same to the Lender
as if the shares of stock/securities "never left his hands". Upon demand of the Lender or at the
end of the stipulated borrowing period, the Borrower is then obligated to return the
equivalent shares of stock/securities and the Lender, in turn, returns the collateral put up by
the Borrower. If the borrower fails to return the shares of stock/securities or the equivalent
Shares of Stock/Securities, the Lender/Lending Agent, as part of the SBL transactions, may
purchase shares of stock/securities from the stock exchange. In effect, SBL is similar to a
simple collateralized cash loan transaction. However, instead of cash, what is borrowed are
listed shares of stock/securities and what is provided as collateral is either cash, government
or equity securities, or standby letter of credit issued by a bank.

Section 5 of Revenue Regulations No. 001-08 provides that the Securities Borrowing and
Lending transactions of shares of stock/securities listed in the PSE, as well as the delivery to,
and return by, the Lender/Lending Agent of collateral appurtenant thereto or the Equivalent
Shares of Stock/Securities, shall not be subject to the stock transaction tax, capital gains tax,
and documentary stamp taxes; provided, that, a valid Master Securities Lending Agreement
(MSLA), which is a written contract between the Borrower and the Lender or the Lending
Agent embodying the general terms and conditions for the conduct of SBL transactions, is
executed by the parties and registered with and approved by the BIR, the SBL Program is in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC, and such SBL Program is under the
administration and supervision of the PSE. Otherwise, all other applicable taxes prescribed by
the Tax Code and special laws shall continue to apply.
Tax on Initial Public Offering
A sale or other disposition through IPO of shares of stock in closely held corporations as
defined in the Tax Code is subject to a tax based on the gross selling price or gross value in
money of the shares of stock sold or disposed. The tax rates applicable are graduated and
dependent upon the proportion of shares of stock sold or disposed to the total outstanding
shares of stock after listing on the PSE. These tax rates are presented below:
Percentage of Stocks Sold to Outstanding Capital
Stock
Up to 25.00%
Over 25.00% but not over 33 & 1/3%
Over 33 & 1/3%`
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Rate

4.00%
2.00%
1.00%

The Tax Code defines a “closely-held corporation” to mean either: (a) a corporation at least
50.00% in value of the outstanding capital stock; or (b) a corporation at least 50.00% of the
total combined voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote, is owned directly or
indirectly by or for not more than 20 individuals, to be determined based on certain rules.
The person liable for the payment of the tax is either the issuing corporation in a primary
offering or the selling stockholder in a secondary offering.
Estate and Gift Taxes
Shares issued by a corporation organized under Philippine laws are deemed to have a
Philippine situs, and any transfer thereof by way of donation or succession, even if made by a
non-resident decedent or donor outside the Philippines, is subject to Philippine estate and
donor’s tax.
Subject to certain exceptions, the transfer of shares upon the death of an individual holder to
his heirs by way of succession, whether such holder was a citizen of the Philippines or an
alien, regardless of residence, will be subject to Philippine taxes at progressive rates ranging
from 5.00% to 20.00%, if the net estate is over P200,000.00. On the other hand, individuals,
whether or not citizen or residents of the Philippines, who transfer shares by way of gift or
donation will be liable to Donor’s tax on such transfers at a progressive rates ranging from
2.00% to 15.00% of the net gifts made during the year exceeding P100,000.00. In case of a
corporate donor or an individual who donates to a person other than his brother, sister,
spouse, ancestors, lineal descendants or relatives by consanguinity within the 4th civil degree,
the donor’s tax rate will be a flat rate of 30.00%.

Estate and donor’s taxes, however, shall not be collected in respect of intangible personal
property, such as shares of stock: (a) if the decedent at the time of his death or the donor at
the time of the donation was a citizen and resident of a foreign country which at the time of
his death or donation did not impose a transfer tax of any character, in respect of intangible
personal property of citizens of the Philippines not residing in that foreign country; or (b) if
the laws of the foreign country of which the decedent or donor was a citizen and resident at
the time of his death or donation allows a similar exemption from transfer or death taxes of
every character or description in respect of intangible personal property owned by citizens of
the Philippines not residing in that foreign country.
Taxation outside the Philippines
Shares of stock in a domestic corporation are considered under Philippine law as situated in
the Philippines and the gain derived from their sale is entirely from Philippine sources; hence,
such gain is generally subject to Philippine income tax and the transfer of such shares by gift
(donation), or succession, is generally subject to the donor’s or estate taxes as above-stated.
Sales or other dispositions of shares of stock in a domestic corporation through the facilities
of the PSE by a resident or a non-resident holder, other than a dealer in securities, are,
however, subject to a stock transaction tax at the rate of 0.50% of the gross selling price or
gross value in money of the shares of stock sold or otherwise disposed, unless an applicable
treaty exempts such sale from the stock transaction tax.
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The tax treatment of a non-resident holder of shares of stock in jurisdictions outside the
Philippines may vary depending on the tax laws applicable to such holder by reason of
domicile or business activities and such holder’s particular situation. This Prospectus does
not fully discuss the tax consideration on non-resident holders of shares of stock under laws
other than those of the Philippines.
EACH PROSPECTIVE HOLDER SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS/HER OWN TAX ADVISER AS
TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO SUCH HOLDER OF PURCHASING,
OWNING, AND DISPOSING OF THE SUBJECT SHARES, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY
AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL, AND NATIONAL TAX LAWS.

(This space was intentionally left blank)
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PHILIPPINE FOREIGN INVESTMENT, EXCHANGE CONTROLS, AND
FOREIGN OWNERSHIP
Foreign Investment
Foreign investors are permitted to invest in the securities of a Philippine corporation unless
otherwise limited by restrictions on foreign ownership imposed under the Constitution and
Philippine statutes, as provided in the Foreign Investment Negative List. Among the principal
restricted business activities is the ownership of private land where the Constitution, in
relation to Commonwealth Act No. 141, states that no private land shall be transferred or
conveyed except to citizens of the Philippines or to corporations or associations organized
under the laws of the Philippines at least 60.00% of whose capital is owned by such citizens.
Registration of Foreign Investment and Exchange Controls
Under current BSP regulations, a foreign investment in listed Philippine securities (such as
the Company’s Common Shares) must be registered with the BSP if the foreign exchange
needed to service the repatriation of capital and the remittance of dividends, profits, and
earnings that accrue thereon will be sourced from the Philippine banking system. If the
foreign exchange required to service capital repatriation or dividend remittance will be
sourced outside the Philippine banking system, registration is not required.

The application for registration must be filed by a stockbroker/dealer or an underwriter
directly with the BSP or with a custodian bank designated by the investor. A custodian bank
may be any Authorized Agent Bank or offshore banking unit in the Philippines appointed by
the investor to register the investment, hold shares for the investor, and represent the
investor in all necessary actions in connection with his investments in the Philippines.
Applications for registration must be accompanied by: (a) a purchase invoice, or subscription
agreement and/or proof of listing in the PSE, and (b) a credit advice or bank certification
showing the amount of foreign currency inwardly remitted and converted to Pesos through a
commercial bank; and (c) in certain instances, transfer instructions from the shareholder
and/or dealer, as the case may be. Upon submission of the required documents, a Bangko
Sentral Registration Document will be issued by the BSP or the investor’s custodian bank.
Proceeds of divestments or dividends of registered investments are repatriable or remittable
immediately in full through the Philippine commercial banking system, net of applicable tax,
without need of BSP approval. Remittance is allowed upon presentation of the Bangko Sentral
Registration Document, at the exchange rate applicable on the date of actual remittance.
Pending repatriation or reinvestment, divestment proceeds, as well as dividends of registered
investments, may be lodged temporarily in interest-bearing deposit accounts. Interest earned
thereon, net of taxes, and is also remittable in full. Remittance of divestment proceeds of
dividends of registered investments may be reinvested in the Philippines if the investments
are registered with the BSP or the investor’s custodian bank.
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The foregoing is subject to the power of the Monetary Board of the BSP, with the approval of
the President of the Philippines, to restrict the availability of foreign exchange during an
exchange crisis, when an exchange crisis is imminent or in times of national emergency.
Furthermore, there can be no assurance that BSP foreign exchange regulations will not be
made more restrictive in the future.

The registration with the BSP of all foreign investments in the Subject Shares shall be the
responsibility of the foreign investor.
Restriction on Foreign Ownership
Foreign investors are permitted to invest in only a limited number of securities of Philippine
corporations due to restrictions on foreign ownership imposed under the Constitution and by
Philippine statutes, particularly in respect of securities of corporations engaged in restricted
business activities. The principal restricted business activities are the ownership of land,
exploitation and development of natural resources, ownership of educational institutions,
operation of public utilities, and advertising, commercial banking, mass media, retail trade
and rural banking activities.

Under the Foreign Investments Act of 1991, as amended, foreign investments in any
Philippine corporation not engaged in a restricted business activity may not exceed 40.00%
of a corporation’s outstanding capital stock unless such foreign investment represents an
inward remittance of at least Two Hundred Thousand US Dollars (US$ 200,000.00).
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ANNEX I:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013, AND 2012

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Km 33 Mc Arthur Highwav. Tuktukan Guiguinto, Bulacan

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management of Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 (including the unaudited comparative financial
statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. Th.is responsibility includes designing and implementing
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.
Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors, appointed by the Board of Directors, has
reviewed the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the Board of Directors has expressed its conclusion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such teview.
by the following

E

E H. VILLANUEVA

~
t1;~P. ~LLANUEVA
Chief Financial Officer

pftv
Signed this /_ _ day of

Punongbayan &.Araullo
An instinct for growth"

Report of Independent Auditors

19th and 20th Floors, Tower 1
The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue

1200 Makati City
Philippines
T +63 2 988 2288
F +63 2 886 5506
www.punongbayan-araullo.com

The Board of Directors
Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation
(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
Km. 33, Mc Arthur Highway
Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto
Bulacan

W c have audited the accompanying financial statements of Crown Asia Chemicals
Corporation which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management:r ReJponsibili(y.for the f<lnamial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Certified Public Accountants
P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Cebu, Davao, Cavite

BONPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002
SEC Group A Accreditation No. 0002-FR-3

Punongbayan &.Araullo
An instinct for growth'"
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Auditors' Responsihili(y
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
arc free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation as at December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Certified Public Accountants

P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd

Punongbayan &.Araullo
An instinct for growth"
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year
ended December 31, 2014 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in
Note 25 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. Such supplementary information is
the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By:

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 4748317,January 5, 2015, l\Iakati City
SEC Group "-\ "-\ccreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (until Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (until Mar. 31, 2015)
BIR :\N 08-002511-22-2013 (until Nov. 7, 2016)
Firm's BnVPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)

February 12, 2015

CertHied Public Accountants
P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2013
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

2014

Notes

2012
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets - net

4
5
6
7

P

Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment - net
Other non-current assets - net

8
9

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

34,317,966
212,384,476
303,779,812
53,753,786

P

99,246,341
154,993,264
181,874,566
44,062,939

P

73,690,335
168,938,255
154,156,527
39,163,939

604,236,040

480,177,110

435,949,056

214,931,635
9,880,423

171,261,955
6,195,445

170,745,083
6,453,489

224,812,058

177,457,400

177,198,572

P

829,048,098

P

657,634,510

P

613,147,628

P

172,048,287
71,277,398
7,775,606

P

126,760,514
2,738,417
9,974,625

P

118,707,618
1,812,385
7,782,030

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payable

10
11

Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities - net
Post-employment defined benefit obligation
Advances from stockholders

11
15
14
16

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
EQUITY
Capital stock
Amount for future stock subscription
Revaluation reserves
Retained earnings

17
17
8, 14
17

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P

251,101,291

139,473,556

128,302,033

3,634,620
7,393,247
3,973,464
46,057

4,714,742
6,531,317
4,843,976
46,057

3,955,814
4,780,373
15,118,435
46,057

15,047,388

16,136,092

23,900,679

266,148,679

155,609,648

152,202,712

472,800,000
32,095,999
58,003,420

352,800,000
29,601,765
119,623,097

10,000,000
342,800,000
26,269,764
81,875,152

562,899,419

502,024,862

460,944,916

829,048,098

See Notes to Financial Statements.

P

657,634,510

P

613,147,628

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2014

Notes
REVENUES

P

2, 16

COST OF GOODS SOLD

12

GROSS PROFIT
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

13

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Finance costs
Finance income
Foreign currency gains (losses) - net
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Other income

5, 10, 11, 14
4, 5

(

15

NET PROFIT

P

(
(

211,310,701

173,292,674

156,668,336

115,958,689

103,861,565

107,000,382

(

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

18

2,352,445 )
1,272,291
1,977,938
406,183
337,571

(
(

9,525,961 )
247,535
1,563,143 )
143,734
-

1,641,538

(

10,697,835 )

93,721,975

71,072,647

38,970,119

28,341,652

21,324,702

11,263,220

65,380,323

49,747,945

27,706,899

1,326,808 )
1,068,958 )

P

812,041,392
655,373,056

-

(

2,494,234

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

801,819,234
628,526,560

4,890,000

8
14
15

P

1,630,037 )

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Revaluation of land
Remeasurements of post-employment defined
benefit plan
Tax income (expense)

2012
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

639,430,922

3,392,988 )
1,065,853
697,098
-

(

TAX EXPENSE

850,741,623

2013
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

67,874,557

0.14

See Notes to Financial Statements.

P

-

4,760,001
1,428,000 )

(

1,223,798 )
367,139

3,332,001

(

856,659 )

53,079,946

26,850,240

0.11

2.07

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2014

Notes
CAPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year
Issuance of shares during the year

P

-

(

-

10,000,000
342,800,000

P

10,000,000
-

352,800,000

10,000,000

342,800,000
342,800,000 )

342,800,000
-

8
14

-

1,288,020
28,313,745
29,601,765
3,423,000

17

(

(

928,766 )
32,095,999

Balance at end of year

17

40,000,000
40,000,000 )
-

(

Balance at end of year

79,623,097
65,380,323
40,000,000
120,000,000 )
7,000,000 )

17
17
17

(
(

Total Retained Earnings

P

342,800,000

2,043,981 )
28,313,745
26,269,764
-

(

1,187,322 )
28,313,745
27,126,423
-

3,332,001

(

856,659 )

29,601,765

72,000,000
32,000,000 )
-

(

-

Balance at end of year

TOTAL EQUITY

P

16, 17

Balance at end of year

Unappropriated
Balance at beginning of year
Net profit for the year
Reversal of appropriation made
Appropriation during the year
Stock dividend
Cash dividend

352,800,000
120,000,000
472,800,000

AMOUNT FOR FUTURE STOCK SUBSCRIPTION
Balance at beginning of year
Conversion to stocks during the year

RETAINED EARNINGS
Appropriated
Balance at beginning of year
Reversal of appropriation
Appropriation during the year

2012
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

17

Balance at end of year

REVALUATION RESERVES
Balance at beginning of year
As previously reported
Effect of revaluation of land - net of tax
As restated
Revaluation of land during the year - net of tax
Remeasurement of post-employment defined
benefit - net of tax

2013
(As Restated –
see Note 17)

(

26,269,764

43,500,000
43,500,000 )
72,000,000

(

40,000,000

72,000,000

9,875,152
49,747,945
32,000,000
12,000,000 )

15,668,253
27,706,899
43,500,000
72,000,000 )
5,000,000 )

(
(

58,003,420

79,623,097

9,875,152

58,003,420

119,623,097

81,875,152

562,899,419

See Notes to Financial Statements.

P

502,024,862

P

460,944,916

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized foreign currency gains
Interest expense
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Finance income
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase (decrease) in trade and other receivables
Increase (decrease) in inventories
Increase in prepayments and other current assets
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in post-employment defined benefit obligation
Cash generated from (used in) operations
Cash paid for income taxes

P

22,033,067
4,564,476 )
2,189,021
1,203,967
1,065,853 )

(

(

8

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Payments to interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Repayments of advances from stockholders

11, 16
17
11

20,408,837
974,660 )
1,309,073
1,043,372
1,272,291 )
406,183 )
91,180,795
12,274,062
27,718,039 )
4,899,001 )
258,045
8,624,335
5,191,515 )
74,528,682
18,890,817 )

(

(
(

23,075,531
573,869 )
3,055,176
6,470,785
247,535 )
143,734 )
70,606,473
18,926,814 )
23,887,195
10,164,126 )
2,442,993
52,854,684
2,554,305 )
118,146,100
4,261,326 )

(

(
(

(

63,399,360 )
2,884,707
993,483

(

20,964,537 )
445,011
1,030,844

(

43,715,250 )
681,478
247,535

(

59,521,170 )

(

19,488,682 )

(

42,786,237 )

(
(
(

68,800,000
7,000,000 )
2,149,745 )
1,537,650 )

(
(
(

3,490,949
12,000,000 )
1,251,796 )
1,806,989 )

(
(
(
(

1,694,101
5,000,000 )
1,919,944 )
5,044,351 )
12,577,380 )

(

22,847,574 )

(

1,633,669 )

(
(

(

11,567,836 )
974,660

52,153

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash
(

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

P

(
(

(
(

55,637,865

58,112,605

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

38,970,119

63,571,963 )

(
(

-

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

P

(

8

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

71,072,647

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

2012

113,517,701
54,082,856 )
121,905,246 )
9,690,847 )
3,846,193 )
45,308,127
2,197,320 )
32,896,634 )
30,675,329 )

8

Net Cash From (Used In) Operating Activities

P

93,721,975

8, 9
11
5
4

2013

2014

113,884,774

64,928,375 )

25,556,006

46,617,294

99,246,341

73,690,335

27,073,041

34,317,966

P

99,246,341

Supplemental Information on Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
(i) On September 5, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the declaration of stock dividends equivalent to
34.01% of the total issued and outstanding shares of stock amounting to P120.0 million (P1.0 par value) (see Note 17).
(ii) The Company capitalized borrowing costs amounting to P0.1 million representing the actual borrowing costs incurred on loans obtained
to fund the construction project (see Note 11).
(iii) On January 25, 2013, the balance of Amount for future stock subscription has been transferred to capital stock upon approval by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of the increase in the Company's authorized capital stock and the subsequent issuance
of the shares (see Note 17).

See Notes to Financial Statements.

P

73,690,335

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation (the Company) was incorporated and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 10, 1989
primarily to engage in, operate, conduct and maintain the business of manufacturing,
importing, exporting, buying, selling or otherwise dealing in, at wholesale and retail
such goods as plastic and/or synthetic resins and compounds and other allied or
related products of similar nature.
The Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the change in name of the
Company from Crown Asia Compounders Corporation to Crown Asia Chemicals
Corporation on March 4, 2014. The SEC approved the change in name of the
Company and the corresponding amendment in the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation on September 29, 2014.
On September 5, 2014, the BOD and shareholders approved the Company’s
application for the registration of 630.8 million of its common shares with the SEC
and apply for the listing thereof in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The BOD’s
approval covered the planned initial public offering of 158.0 million unissued
common shares of the Company, pending PSE and SEC approval to date.
The Company’s registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Km. 33, Mc Arthur Highway, Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto, Bulacan. The
Company’s administrative office is located at Units 506 and 508 President’s Tower,
No. 81 Timog Ave, South Triangle, Quezon City.
The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014 (including the comparative financial statements as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) were authorized for issue by the
Company’s BOD on February 12, 2015.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarized below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine
Board of Accountancy (BOA).
The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies below and
in the succeeding pages.
(b) Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Company presents all
items of income and expense in a single statement of comprehensive income.
The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items
that has a material effect on the information in the statement of financial
position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related notes to the third
statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.
In 2014, the Company changed its accounting policy on the measurement of
land from cost model to revaluation model. Accordingly, the Company
presented the effect of the restatement in the affected asset, liability and equity
components in Note 17.3.
(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Company’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using its
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amendments to PFRS
(a) Effective in 2014 that are Relevant to the Company
In 2014, the Company adopted for the first time the following amendments and
interpretation to PFRS that are relevant to the Company and effective for
financial statements for the annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2014:
PAS 32 (Amendment)

:

PAS 36 (Amendment)

:

PAS 39 (Amendment)

:

Philippine Interpretation
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 21 :

Financial Instruments: Presentation –
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Impairment of Assets – Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement – Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Levies

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards and
interpretation.
(i)

PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendment provides guidance to
address inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. It clarifies that an entity must currently have
a right of set-off that is not contingent on a future event, and must be
legally enforceable in the normal course of business; in the event of
default; and, in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all
of the counterparties. The amendment also clarifies that gross settlement
mechanisms (such as through a clearing house) with features that both
eliminate credit and liquidity risks and process receivables and payables in
a single settlement process, will satisfy the criterion for net settlement. As
the Company does not currently presents any of its financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis in accordance with the provisions of
PAS 32, the amendment had no material effect on the Company’s financial
statements for any periods presented.

(ii)

PAS 36 (Amendment), Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-financial Assets. The amendment clarifies that disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount of individual asset
(including goodwill) or a cash-generating unit is required only when an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is determined based on the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal, additional disclosures
on fair value measurement required under PFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, such as but not limited to the fair value hierarchy, valuation
technique used and key assumptions applied should be provided in the
financial statements. This amendment did not result in additional
disclosures in the financial statements since there is no impairment loss
recognized on the Company’s non-financial assets (see Note 8).
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(iii) PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement –
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting. The amendment
provides some relief from the requirements on hedge accounting by
allowing entities to continue the use of hedge accounting when a derivative
is novated to a clearing counterparty resulting in termination or expiration
of the original hedging instrument as a consequence of laws and regulations,
or the introduction thereof. As the Company neither enters into
transactions involving derivative instruments nor it applies hedge
accounting, the amendment has no impact on the financial statements.
(iv) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies. This interpretation clarifies
that the obligating event as one of the criteria under PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, for the recognition of a liability
for levy imposed by a government is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. Accordingly, the liability
is recognized in the financial statements progressively if the obligating
event occurs over a period of time and if an obligation is triggered on
reaching a minimum threshold, the liability is recognized when that
minimum threshold is reached. This amendment had no significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
(b) Effective in 2014 that are not Relevant to the Company
Among the amendments to PFRS which are effective for the annual period
beginning or after January 1, 2014, the Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 27,
Separate Financial Statements, in relation to the exception from consolidation of an
investment in a subsidiary created as an investment entity are not relevant to the
Company.
(c) Effective Subsequent to 2014 but not Adopted Early
There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2014 which are adopted by
the FRSC, subject to the approval of the BOA. Management will adopt the
following relevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitional
provisions, and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements:
(i) PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans – Employee
Contributions (effective from July 1, 2014). The amendment clarifies that if
the amount of the contributions from employees or third parties is
dependent on the number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the
contributions to periods of service using the same attribution method
(i.e., either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straight-line
basis) for the gross benefit.

-5-

(ii) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative
(effective from January 1, 2016). The amendment encourages entities to
apply professional judgment in presenting and disclosing information in
the financial statements. Accordingly, it clarifies that materiality applies to
the whole financial statements and an entity shall not reduce the
understandability of the financial statements by obscuring material
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions. Moreover, the amendment
clarifies that an entity’s share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using equity method should be presented
based on whether or not such other comprehensive income item will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. It further clarifies that in
determining the order of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity
shall consider the understandability and comparability of the financial
statements.
(iii) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38
(Amendment), Intangible Assets – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is
not appropriate for property, plant and equipment. In addition,
amendment to PAS 38 introduces a rebuttable presumption that an
amortization method that is based on the revenue generated by an activity
that includes the use of an intangible asset is not appropriate, which can
only be overcome in limited circumstances where the intangible asset is
expressed as a measure of revenue, or when it can be demonstrated that
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of an intangible
asset are highly correlated. The amendment also provides guidance that
the expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that was
produced using the asset could indicate an expectation of technological or
commercial obsolescence of an asset, which may reflect a reduction of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
(iv) PFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (effective from January 1, 2018). This
new standard on financial instruments will replace PAS 39 and PFRS 9
(2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This standard contains, among others, the
following:
•

three principal classification categories for financial assets based on
the business model on how an entity is managing its financial
instruments;

•

an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), which generally depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a financial
asset; and,

•

a new model on hedge accounting that provides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely
with the risk management activities undertaken by entities when
hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

-6-

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9
(2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the
asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding.
Moreover, a financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI criterion
and is held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All other
financial assets are measured at FVTPL.
In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that
is not held for trading in other comprehensive income.
The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are
financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider
whether or not they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does
not require separation from the host contract.
For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires
changes in the fair value of an entity’s own debt instruments caused by
changes in its own credit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive
income rather than in profit or loss.
The Company does not expect to implement and adopt any version of
PFRS 9 until its effective date. In addition, management is currently
assessing the impact of PFRS 9 on the financial statements of the
Company and it will conduct a comprehensive study of the potential
impact of this standard prior to its mandatory adoption date to assess the
impact of all changes.
(v)

Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS
(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, and to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle)
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, made
minor amendments to a number of PFRS. Among those improvements,
the following amendments are relevant to the Company but management
does not expect those to have material impact on the Company’s financial
statements:
Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 Cycle)
•

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38
(Amendment), Intangible Assets. The amendments clarify that when an
item of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets is
revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is
consistent with a revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset.
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•

PAS 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. The amendment
clarifies that an entity providing key management services to a
reporting entity is deemed to be a related party of the latter. It also
clarifies that the information required to be disclosed in the financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that are provided by a separate
management entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or
payable by the management entity to its employees or directors.

•

PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurement. The amendment in
the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13 clarifies that issuing PFRS 13 and
amending certain provisions of PFRS 9 and PAS 39 related to
discounting of financial instruments did not remove the ability to
measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest
rate on an undiscounted basis, when the effect of not discounting is
immaterial.

Annual Improvement to PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle)
PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurement. The amendment clarifies
that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis (the portfolio exception)
applies to all contracts within the scope of and accounted for in accordance
with PAS 39 or PFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet the definition of
financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in PAS 32.
Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle)
•

PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments – Disclosures. The
amendment provides additional guidance to help entities identify the
circumstances under which a contract to “service” financial assets is
considered to be a continuing involvement in those assets for the
purposes of applying the disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such
circumstances commonly arise when, for example, the servicing is
dependent on the amount or timing of cash flows collected from the
transferred asset or when a fixed fee is not paid in full due to nonperformance of that asset.

•

PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits. The amendment clarifies that
the currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were
used to determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit
obligations shall be made consistent with the currency and estimated
term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

2.3 Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instrument. Financial assets other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments are classified into the following categories:
FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
(AFS) financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by
management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired.
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Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are
initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized in
profit or loss.
The only financial asset category that is relevant to the Company is loans and
receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the
Company provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivables. They are included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are
classified as non-current assets.
The Company’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables (except Advances to
suppliers and contractors) and Security deposits (presented under Other
Non-current Assets account) in the statement of financial position. Cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there
is an objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
to it in accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate or current effective interest rate determined under the contract if the loan
has a variable interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of
an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognized in the profit or loss.
Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial
assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured.
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The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all
substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.4 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. Finished goods include the cost of
raw materials, direct labor and a proportion of manufacturing overhead based on
normal operating capacity. The cost of raw materials include all costs directly
attributable to acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes
that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Net realizable value of raw materials is the current replacement cost.

2.5 Prepayments and Other Current Assets
Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the
Company as a result of past events. They are recognized in the financial statements
when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.
Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the Company beyond one year after the end of the reporting
period or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as
non-current assets.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value. As no infinite useful life for
land can be determines, the related carrying amount is not depreciated.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.
Following initial recognition at cost, land is carried at revalued amount which is the
fair value at the date of the revaluation as determined by independent appraisers.
Revalued amount is the fair market value determined based on appraisal by external
professional valuers once every two years or more frequently if market factors
indicate a material change in fair value (see Note 22.3).
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Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to
the Revaluation Reserves account in the statement of changes in equity. Any
revaluation deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus in the same asset is charged to
other comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity
relating to this asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recognized in profit or loss.
Upon disposal of revalued assets, amounts included in Revaluation Reserves relating
to the assets are transferred to Retained Earnings, net of tax.
Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Building and improvements
Transportation equipment
Machineries, factory, and other equipment
Land improvements
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

3-10 years
3-5 years
3-15 years
5 years
3-5 years

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost.
This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing costs (see Notes 2.16 and 8)
and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets
are completed and available for use.
The asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(see Note 2.14).
The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
An item of property, plant and equipment, including the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.7 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include registered trademarks which are accounted for under the
cost model. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid
or the fair value of the other considerations given up to acquire an asset at the
time of its acquisition or production. Capitalized costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives over ten years as the lives of
these intangible assets are considered finite. Intangible assets are subject to
impairment testing as described in Note 2.14. The carrying amounts of the
intangible assets are presented as Trademarks account under Other Non-current
Assets account in the statement of financial position (see Note 9).
When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined
as the difference between the proceeds received and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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2.8 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities, which include Trade and Other Payables (except Advances from
customers and tax-related payables), Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings, and
Advances from Stockholders are recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on
financial liabilities are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption
Finance Costs in the statement of comprehensive income.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings arise from the purchase of certain
transportation equipment, funding of certain construction projects and working
capital loans raised for support of short-term funding of operations. Finance charges
are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are
not settled in the period in which they arise.
Trade and other payables and advances from stockholders are recognized initially at
their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using effective interest
method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement payments.
Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Company’s BOD.
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled
within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer), or the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current
liabilities.
Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.9 Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount,
considered as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available
at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must
also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in
the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity
and all counterparties to the financial instruments.
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2.10 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or
amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the
presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to
their present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for
cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet
the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not
recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that
the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the
obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related
provision.

2.11 Revenue and Expense Recognition
Revenue comprises revenue from sale of goods measured by reference to the fair
value of consideration received or receivable by the Company for goods sold,
excluding value-added tax (VAT), rebates and trade discounts.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company; and the costs
incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
(a) Sale of goods – Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer, i.e., generally when the customer has
acknowledged delivery of goods.
(b) Finance income – This is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.
Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of goods or
services or at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or
loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs, which are included as
part of the cost of the related qualifying asset (see Note 2.16).
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2.12 Leases – Company as Lessee
Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense
in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs,
such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.
The Company determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on
the substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation
The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign
currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.
Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

2.14 Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Company’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other
non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing. All other individual assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result,
assets are tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating
unit and determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects
of asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each
cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles,
such as market and asset-specific risk factors.
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss
previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the
asset’s or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.
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2.15 Employee Benefits
The Company provides post-employment benefits to employees through defined
benefit plan and other employee benefits which are recognized and measured as
follows:
(a)

Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan
remains with the Company, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit
plan have been acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated
to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The
Company’s defined benefit post-employment plan covers all regular full-time
employees. The pension plan is partially funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory
and administered by a trustee.
The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate derived
from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond, as published by the
Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation, that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related post-employment liability.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on
plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately
in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest is
reported as part of Finance Costs or Finance Income account in the statement
of comprehensive income.
Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment and curtailment.

(b)

Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after
payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in respect of
defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets
may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a
short-term nature.
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(c)

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the
Company before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer
of such benefits and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

(d)

Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period.
They are included in the Trade and Other Payables account in the statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.16 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
(i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing
costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are
complete.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

2.17 Income Taxes
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and
current tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.
Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the end of each reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method,
with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such
tax rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
For purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities for land that is measured using the
fair value model (see Note 2.6), the land’s carrying amount is presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale as an ordinary asset.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax effect is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

2.18 Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between
the Company and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under
common control with the Company; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant
influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such individual;
and, (d) the Company’s funded retirement plan.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.
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2.19 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
Amount for future stock subscription represents amounts intended for future
subscription of shares of stock of the Company pending receipt of the approval of
the SEC for the increase in the authorized capital stock of the Company.
Revaluation reserves account pertains to remeasurement of a post-employment
defined benefit plan based on the accumulated balances of actuarial gains or losses
and arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions used in
the determination of post-employment defined benefit obligation. It also includes the
fair value gains and losses due to the revaluation of land.
Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results of operations as
reported in the profit or loss section of the statement of comprehensive income,
reduced by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.20 Events After the End of the Reporting Period
Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in
the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when material to the financial statements.
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1

Critical Management Judgment in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
(a)

Determining Cost of Inventories
In inventory costing, management uses estimates and judgment in properly
allocating the labor and overhead between the cost of inventories on hand and
cost of goods sold. Currently, the Company allocates production overhead on
the basis of units produced. However, the amount of costs charged to finished
goods inventories would differ if the Company utilized a different allocation
base. Changes in allocated cost would affect the carrying cost of inventories
and could potentially affect the valuation based on lower of cost and net
realizable value.
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(b)

Distinguishing Operating and Finance Leases
The Company has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was
exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an
operating or a finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements.
Failure to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or
understatement of assets and liabilities. Management has assessed that the
Company’s lease arrangements are operating leases.

(c)

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are
discussed in Note 2.10 and disclosures on relevant provisions and contingencies
are presented in Note 19.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next reporting period:
(a)

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables
Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The
Company evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available
facts and circumstances affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including,
but not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the customers,
the customers’ current credit status, average age of accounts, collection
experience and historical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions
used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Company to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance
for impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 5.

(b)

Determining Net Realizable Value of Inventories
In determining the net realizable value of inventories, management takes into
account the most reliable evidence available at the dates the estimates are made.
The Company’s core business is continuously subject to rapid technology
changes which may cause inventory obsolescence. Moreover, future realization
of the carrying amounts of inventories as presented in Note 6 is affected by
price changes. Both aspects are considered key sources of estimation
uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the Company’s inventories
within the next financial reporting period.
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(c)

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(Trademarks under Other Non-current Assets account) are presented in
Notes 8 and 9, respectively. Based on management’s assessment as at
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there is no change in estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during those years.
Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above.

(d)

Measurement of Fair Value of Land
The Company’s land is carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting
period. In determining its fair value, the Company engages the services of
professional and independent appraisers applying the relevant valuation
methodology (see Note 22.3).
When the appraisal is conducted prior to the end of the current reporting
period, management determines whether there are significant circumstances
during the intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the
disclosure of fair value of those properties.
A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the
assets. The amount of revaluation increment recognized is disclosed in Note 8.

(e)

Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets
The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period
and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets
recognized as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 will be fully utilized in the
coming years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets netted against deferred
tax liabilities as of those dates is disclosed in Note 15.

(f)

Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Company’s policy on estimating the impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and other non-financial assets is discussed in
Note 2.14. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the
estimation of fair values are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in
these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values
and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the
results of operations.
There was no impairment loss recognized on non-financial assets in 2014, 2013
and 2012.
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(g)

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation
The determination of the Company’s obligation and cost of post-employment
defined benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by
actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among
others, discount rates and salary rate increase. A significant change in any of
these actuarial assumptions may generally affect the recognized expense and the
carrying amount of the post-employment defined benefit obligation in the next
reporting period.
The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an
analysis of the movements in the estimated present value of post-employment
benefit, as well as the significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation
are presented in Note 14.2.

4.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:
2014
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term placements

2013

2012

P 33,351,523 P 58,752,532 P36,626,112
966,443 40,493,809 37,064,223
P 34,317,966 P 99,246,341 P73,690,335

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term placements have maturity of 30 days and earn effective interest rates
ranging from 1.00% to 1.25% in 2014 and 3.88% and 4.38% both in 2013 and 2012.
5.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
This account is composed of the following:
Notes
Trade receivables
Advances to:
Suppliers and contractors
Related parties
Officers and employees
Other receivables
Allowance for impairment

16.1
16.3
16.6

2014

2013

2012

P 168,190,000 P 129,976,092 P 158,830,193
26,058,086
12,936,552
3,112,978
24,800,000
19,118,438
13,259,966
530,312
555,242
1,535,829
559,473
139,573
117,922
220,137,871
162,725,897
176,856,888
(
7,753,395) ( 7,732,633 ) (
7,918,633)
P 212,384,476 P 154,993,264 P 168,938,255

Trade receivables are due from various customers and have credit terms of
30 to 90 days. These receivables are normally settled in cash within three to six
months. Of the total outstanding trade receivables, P28.4 million, P28.3 million and
P29.9 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are guaranteed
by customers’ post-dated checks in the custody of the Company.
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Advances to suppliers and contractors pertain to down payments made by the
Company to the suppliers for the purchase of goods and machineries. The advance
payments will be set-off as partial payments of the amounts due to the suppliers once
full delivery of goods are made and the subsequent billing has been made by the
supplier.
Advances to officers and employees are operations-related disbursements that are
subject to liquidation or are settled through salary deduction.
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2014,
2013 and 2012 is shown below.
2014

2013

2012

Balance at beginning of year
Impairment losses
Write-off
Reversal of allowance

P 7,732,633 P7,918,633 P 6,648,483
1,203,967
1,043,372
6,470,785
( 686,296) ( 891,801) ( 5,200,635)
( 496,909) ( 337,571)
-

Balance at end of year

P 7,753,395 P 7,732,633 P 7,918,633

All of the Company’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications
of impairment. Certain trade receivables, which are mostly past due, were found to
be impaired, hence, adequate amounts of allowance for impairment have been
recognized. The amount of impairment losses or any reversal of allowance is
presented as part of Finance Costs and Finance Income, respectively, in the
statements of comprehensive income.
6.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are all stated at cost which is lower than their net realizable value.
The details of inventories are shown below.
2014
Finished goods
Raw materials
Packaging materials
Supplies

2013

2012

P153,794,162 P 90,130,860 P 69,238,179
136,701,929
86,038,846 78,802,884
4,511,723
1,821,596
2,983,338
8,771,998
3,883,264
3,132,126
P303,779,812 P181,874,566 P154,156,527

As of December 31, 2014, certain raw materials costing P30.3 million are covered by trust
receipts payables to a local bank (see Note 10).
An analysis of the cost of inventories included in cost of goods sold for the year is
presented in Note 12.

- 22 -

7.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
The composition of this account is shown below.
Note
Input VAT – net
Application for Tax Credit
Certificate (TCC)
Prepaid expenses
TCC

25.1(b)

2013

2014

2012

P 43,256,679 P 21,870,397 P 11,394,383
7,015,497
1,451,781
13,725,264

7,015,497
1,799,280
1,682,330

20,740,761
2,600,080
4,428,715

P 53,753,786 P 44,062,939 P 39,163,939

Application for TCC pertains to input VAT and custom duties from the Company’s
importations of raw materials which are under application, awaiting approval, with the
Department of Finance (DOF) for the granting of TCC as of December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012. Management has assessed that it is highly probable that the DOF will
issue the TCCs to be available for use by the Company. Consequently, no allowance
for impairment loss has been provided on these TCCs waiting for approval.
8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment at the beginning and end of 2014, 2013 and 2012 are shown below.
Land
December 31, 2014
Cost or valuation
Accumulated
depreciation
and amortization

P78,246,000
-

Net carrying amount P78,246,000
December 31, 2013
Cost or valuation,
as restated
Accumulated
depreciation
and amortization

P 73,356,000
-

Net carrying amount P 73,356,000
December 31, 2012
Cost or valuation,
as restated
Accumulated
depreciation

P 73,356,000
-

Net carrying amount P 73,356,000
January 1, 2012
Cost or valuation,
as restated
Accumulated
depreciation

P 54,996,708

Land
Improvements

Building
and
Transportation
Improvements
Equipment

P

P

62,244,157

(

201,254 ) (

P 29,618,491

33,812,720 ) (

21,874,645 )

P 289,908,412
(

Furniture,
Fixtures
and Office
Equipment
P

233,685,224 ) (

18,447,217

Construction
in Progress
P

41,223,655

15,665,463 )

-

Total
P 520,170,941
(

305,239,306)

P

281,755

P

28,431,437

P

7,743,846

P 56,223,188

P

2,781,754

P

41,223,655

P 214,931,635

P

483,009

P

62,244,157

P 27,316,054

P 266,084,393

P

12,432,940

P

9,722,236

P 451,638,789

(

104,652 ) (

P

378,357

P

33,142,057

P

P

483,009

P

59,023,351

P 23,338,903

(

29,102,100 ) (

8,050 ) (
474,959

P

P

-

P 41,838,866

P

18,545,197 )

24,360,858 ) (

P

-

Net carrying amount P 54,996,708

483,009

Machineries,
Factory, and
Other
Equipment

34,662,493

-

(

20,902,760) (

-

P

20,936,106

17,132,647 )
P

(

8,770,857

(

221,163,094 ) (

11,461,791 )

-

P 44,921,299

P

971,149

P

9,722,236

P 266,605,783

P

10,897,949

P

1,327,157

212,207,994 ) (

10,577,520 )

-

(

280,376,834 )
P 171,261,955

P 435,032,152
(

264,287,069 )

6,206,256

P 54,397,789

P

320,429

P

1,327,157

P 170,745,083

P 22,682,171

P 260,464,664

P

10,742,318

P

3,469,575

P 394,194,302

P

3,469,575

15,306,036 )
P

7,376,135

(

197,126,742 ) (
P 63,337,922

10,215,656 )
P

526,662

-

(

243,551,194 )
P 150,643,108
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the
beginning and end of 2014, 2013 and 2012 is shown below.
Land
Improvement s

Land

Balance at January 1,
2014, net of
accumulated
depreciation
and amortization,
As previously
reported
P 32,907,792 P
Revaluation
40,448,208
As restated
73,356,000
Additions
Revaluation
4,890,000
Disposal
Reclassification
Depreciation
and amortization
charges for the
year
(
Balance at
December 31, 2014,
net of accumulated
depreciation
and amortization

P78,246,000

P

Balance at January 1,
2013, net of
accumulated
depreciation
and amortization,
as previously
reported
P 32,907,792 P
Revaluation
40,448,208
As restated
73,356,000
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
Depreciation
and amortization
charges for the
year
(
Balance at
December 31, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation
and amortization,
As restated
Balance at January 1,
2012, net of
accumulated
depreciation,
as previously
reported
Revaluation
As restated
Additions
Reclassification
Disposals
Depreciation charges
for the year

378,357
378,357
-

96,602 ) (

Building
and
Transportation
Improvements Equipment

P 33,142,057
33,142,057
-

P

8,770,857
8,770,857
2,302,438
-

4,710,620) (

Machineries,
Factory, and
Other
Equipment

P

(

3,329,449) (

44,921,299
44,921,299
26,708,727
2,884,707 )
-

P 28,431,437 P

7,743,846

P 56,223,188

474,959
474,959
-

P 34,662,493 P
34,662,493
(
3,220,806

6,206,256
6,206,256
5,344,429
38,828 )
-

P 54,397,789
54,397,789
2,469,233
-

4,741,242 ) (

2,741,000 ) (

P

12,522,131 ) (

281,755

96,602 ) (

Furniture,
Fixtures
and Office
Equipment

971,149
971,149
1,967,307
1,056,348

Construction
-in-Progress

P

(

1,213,050 )

P

P

11,945,723 ) (

41,223,655 P 214,931,635

320,429
320,429
852,355
682,635

P

1,327,157 P130,296,875
40,448,208
1,327,157
170,745,083
12,298,520
20,964,537
(
38,828 )
3,903,441 )
-

(

884,270 )

-

P 33,142,057 P

8,770,857

P 44,921,299

P

971,149

P

P 14,548,500
40,448,208
54,996,708
18,359,292
-

P

483,009
-

P 20,936,106
20,936,106
5,613,613
11,570,872
-

P 63,337,922
63,337,922
5,587,972
663,125
(
12,220 )

P

526,662
526,662
155,632
-

P

(

7,376,135
7,376,135
3,424,153
525,524 )

3,458,098 ) (

4,068,508 )

(

Balance at December 31,
2012, net of
accumulated
depreciation,
As restated
P 73,356,000

8,050 ) (

P

474,959

P 34,662,493

P

6,206,256

15,179,010 ) (

P 54,397,789

(

361,865 )

P

21,871,852 )

P

378,357

(

(

2,781,754

P

-

9,722,236 P 130,813,747
40,448,208
9,722,236
171,261,955
32,557,767
63,536,239
4,890,000
(
2,884,707 )
1,056,348 )
-

-

P 73,356,000

P

Total

320,429

9,722,236

20,408,837 )

P 171,261,955

3,469,575 P 110,194,900
40,448,208
3,469,575
150,643,108
10,574,588
43,715,250
12,717,006 )
(
537,744 )
-

P

(

1,327,157

(

23,075,531 )

P170,745,083

Land is stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation in
2014 and 2012. The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred tax expense, is
presented as part of the Revaluation Reserves account in the statements of financial
position (see Note 17.3).
Had the land been carried using the cost model, the carrying amount would have been
P32.9 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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The fair value of land is determined on the basis of the appraisals performed by an
independent appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. To some extent, the
valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in discussion with the Company’s
management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the size, age, and
condition of the land, and the comparable prices in the corresponding property
location. Other information on the basis of fair value measurement and disclosures
related to land is presented in Note 22.3.
Construction in progress pertains to accumulated costs incurred in the construction
of the Polypropylene Random Copolymer Type 3 (PP-R) and High-density
Polyethylene (HDPE) factory building, PP-R/HDPE warehouse, plant electricity
consolidation, flood control system, elevated flooring of warehouse and
PP-R/HDPE machineries installation. The percentage of completion of
construction in progress ranges from 11.00% to 97.00%, 20.31% to 94.47% and
60.00% to 85.00% as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These
projects that are on-going in 2014 are expected to be completed by the second
quarter of 2015.
Included as part of construction in progress pertaining particularly to the factory
building project is the 2014 capitalized borrowing cost amounting to P0.1 million
(see Note 11).
The amount of depreciation and amortization (see Note 13) is allocated and presented
in the statements of comprehensive income under the following line items:
2014
Cost of goods sold
Operating expenses

2013

2012

P14,362,020 P14,039,164 P15,880,464
7,509,832
6,369,673
7,195,067
P21,871,852 P20,408,837 P23,075,531

The machinery disposed in 2014 was sold to a related party at net book value which
was paid in cash. Accordingly, no gain or loss is recognized. In 2013 and 2012, the
Company recognized a gain on disposal of office furniture and equipment and
transportation equipment totaling P0.4 million and P0.1 million, respectively.
Transportation equipment with a total carrying value of P7.5 million, P8.6 million
and P6.5 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are used as
collaterals for car loans (see Note 11).
As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the gross carrying amounts of the
Company’s fully-depreciated property, plant and equipment that are still in use are
P12.2 million, P11.5 million and P11.0 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Company has no idle properties in any of the years presented.
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9.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
The composition of this account is shown below.
2014
Deferred input VAT
Security deposits
Trademarks – net
Others

2013

2012

P 6,206,266 P 2,506,065 P 3,092,057
3,042,695
2,995,380 2,923,630
340,372
394,875
138,677
291,090
299,125
299,125
P 9,880,423 P 6,195,445 P 6,453,489

Deferred input VAT [see Note 25.1(b)] pertains to the unamortized input VAT from
acquisition of capital assets required by the Bureau of Internal Revenues (BIR) to be
amortized and reported for VAT reporting purposes over a period of 60 months.
Security deposits are payments made to utility companies and lessors of office spaces
upon execution of the service contracts. These payments will be refunded at the
termination of the contract. As the utility services and lease contracts are expected to
be renewed indefinitely, the present value of these financial assets cannot be
determined and thus, are carried at cost. As such, the carrying amount of the security
deposits is a reasonable approximation of its fair value (see Note 21.1).
Trademarks pertain to the capitalized costs of application and registration with the
Intellectual Property Office and Bureau of Product Standards of the Company’s logo
or brand emblems used as identifying markers of the Company’s products. The
carrying amounts of trademarks were presented, net of accumulated amortization
amounting to P0.2 million as of December 31, 2014.
10.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The composition of this account is shown below.
Notes
Trade payables
Trust receipt payables
Advances from customers
Accrued expenses
Others

16.2
6

2014

2013

2012

P 125,707,441 P 112,107,015 P 106,482,576
30,295,918
7,220,725
8,878,175
6,703,531
5,596,217
2,256,275
2,482,653
3,227,986
3,519,049
3,038,858
P 172,048,287 P 126,760,514 P 118,707,618

The trust receipt payables are payable within six months which bear an interest of
4.25% per annum. Interest expense related to the trust receipts payables amounted to
P0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and is shown as part of Finance
Costs in the statements of comprehensive income.
Advances from customers pertain to advance payments received from customers to
guarantee purchases of goods ordered from the Company. Upon delivery of goods
ordered by the customer, the Company will set-off these advances to the total amount
of due from customer.
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Accrued expenses are liabilities arising from unpaid salaries, interest, utilities and
other operating expenses.
Others include withholding taxes, government insurance and retention commissions
payable withheld by the Company from its commission agents as security bond for
any unliquidated cash advances.
11.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are broken down as follows:
2014
Current:
Bank loan
Car loans
Noncurrent –
Car loans

2013

2012

P68,800,000 P
P
2,477,398
2,738,417 1,812,385
71,277,398
2,738,417 1,812,385
3,634,620

4,714,742

3,955,814

P 74,912,018 P 7,453,159 P 5,769,199
In 2014, the Company obtained certain bank loan totaling P68.8 million which is
supported by the executed, unsecured, short-term promissory notes with a local bank
for additional operating capital requirements and the financing of certain construction
projects (see Note 8). This new bank loan is payable within six months and bears an
interest of 4.25% per annum. Portion of the bank loan obtained amounting
P21.1 million were specifically earmarked for on-going construction projects. The
related capitalized borrowing cost in 2014 amounted to P0.1 million, which formed
part of construction in progress account (see Note 8). These loans are under JSS
(joint and solidary signature) guaranty of the major stockholders and corporate
officers of the Company (see Note 16.8).
In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company also entered into car loan agreements with
local banks for the acquisition of certain transportation equipment and motor
vehicles, which are then mortgaged to the banks. The car loans bear fixed annual
effective interest which ranges from 9.95% to 12.75% and have terms of five years
payable monthly.
Interest expense incurred related to interest-bearing loans and borrowings amounted
to P1.8 million (excluding capitalized borrowing cost), P0.7 million and P0.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are shown
as part of Finance Costs account in the statements of comprehensive income.
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12.

COST OF GOODS SOLD
The details of cost of goods sold are shown below.
Notes
Finished goods at
beginning of year
Cost of goods manufactured:
Raw materials at
beginning of year
Net purchases during
the year
Direct labor
Manufacturing overhead
Raw materials at
end of year

2013

2014

6

P 90,130,860 P

69,238,179 P 82,725,913

6

86,038,846

78,802,884

89,407,751

14.1

682,773,490
10,472,285
60,511,532

588,110,904
12,530,563
56,013,736

561,743,086
13,592,311
55,945,058

6

( 136,701,929)(

86,038,846 ) (
649,419,241

703,094,224
Finished goods at end of year

2012

6

90,130,860 ) (

( 153,794,162)(

78,802,884)
641,885,322
69,238,179)

P639,430,922 P 628,526,560 P 655,373,056

13.

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE
The details of operating expenses by nature are shown below.
Notes
Materials used in production
Changes in finished goods
Salaries and employee benefits
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Outside services
Transportation and travel
Advertising and promotions
Supplies
Taxes and licenses
Repairs and maintenance
Representation
Delivery
Professional fees
Rentals
Insurance
Miscellaneous

14
8, 9

25.1(f)

16.5, 19.1

2014

2013

2012

P 632,110,407 P580,874,942 P 572,347,953
( 63,663,302 ) ( 20,892,681 )
13,487,734
53,461,356
59,234,255
62,268,204
32,330,542
33,524,552
34,302,691
22,033,067
20,408,837
23,075,531
15,101,203
6,753,084
5,795,956
14,797,314
11,480,893
11,485,721
9,885,400
7,281,663
7,233,092
7,399,334
1,523,892
1,184,392
6,185,745
6,732,894
7,112,202
4,920,368
4,731,562
4,910,115
4,096,148
3,981,491
4,060,973
2,452,255
2,021,244
1,689,553
2,336,150
2,776,575
2,606,823
1,375,607
1,069,365
1,112,210
1,243,002
1,292,983
1,309,208
9,325,015
9,592,574
8,391,079
P 755,389,611

P732,388,125 P 762,373,437

These expenses are classified in the statements of comprehensive income as follows:
Note
Cost of goods sold
Other operating expenses

12

2014

2013

2012

P 639,430,922 P 628,526,560 P 655,373,056
115,958,689
103,861,565
107,000,382
P 755,389,611 P 732,388,125 P 762,373,438
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14.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

14.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits
Details of salaries and employee benefits are presented below.
Note
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment defined benefit

14.2

2014

2013

2012

P 52,016,420 P 56,998,912 P 60,499,424
1,444,936
2,235,343
1,768,780
P 53,461,356 P 59,234,255 P 62,268,204

Salaries and employee benefits are allocated in the statements of comprehensive
income as follows:
Note
Cost of goods sold
Other operating expenses

12

2014

2013

2012

P 10,472,285 P 12,530,563 P 13,592,311
42,989,071
46,703,692
48,675,893
P 53,461,356 P 59,234,255 P 62,268,204

14.2 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
(a)

Characteristics of Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
The Company maintains a tax-qualified, partially funded and non-contributory
post-employment defined benefit plan covering all regular full-time employees.
The Company conforms to the minimum regulatory benefit of Republic
Act 7641, Retirement Pay Law, which is of a defined benefit type and provides for
a lump sum retirement benefit equal to 22.5-day pay for every year of credited
service. The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of five years of
credited service.

(b)

Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Financial Statements
Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs
and the amount of contributions. All amounts presented below are based on
the actuarial valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2014,
2013 and 2012.
The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation recognized in the
statements of financial position are determined as follows:
2014
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2013

2012

P 24,710,567 P 21,649,741 P 23,296,757
( 20,737,103) ( 16,805,765 ) (
8,178,322)
P 3,973,464 P

4,843,976 P 15,118,435
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The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation recognized in the books are as follows:
2014
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Past service cost
Remeasurement – actuarial losses
(gains) arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in financial
assumptions

2013

2012

P 21,649,741 P 23,296,757 P 20,233,900
1,444,936
1,945,229
1,768,780
852,459
1,290,640
1,272,712
(
293,423 ) (
839,035 ) (
1,183,407 )
290,114
782,538 (

4,814,363 ) (
480,399

1,265,842

P 24,710,567 P 21,649,741

P 23,296,757

274,316

Balance at end of year

61,070)

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below.
2014
Balance at beginning of year
Contributions to the plan
Interest income
Benefits paid
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest)
Balance at end of year

P 16,805,765 P
3,838,765
655,950
(
293,423) (
(

2013

2012

8,178,322 P
7,781,447
661,923
241,964 )

3,784,959
4,047,036
365,353
-

426,037 (

269,954 )

P 20,737,103 P 16,805,765 P

19,026)
8,178,322

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting
period by category and risk characteristics is shown below.
2014
Cash and cash equivalents
Debt securities:
Philippine government bonds
Corporate bonds (rated AA
and above)
Unitized investment trust funds (UITF)
Others

2013

P 13,547,860 P 11,075,481 P

2012
4,569,174

3,852,821

2,999,777

1,080,599

1,500,572
5,353,393

1,679,072
4,678,849

1,635,222
2,715,821

491,742
1,345,108

1,051,435
-

893,327
-

P 20,738,103 P 16,805,765 P

8,178,322

Others comprise of accrued interest and other receivables.
The fair values of the above UITF and debt securities are determined based on
quoted market prices in active markets (classified as Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy).
Plan assets do not comprise any of the Company’s own financial instruments.
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The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other
comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan
are as follows:

Recognized in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Net interest expense
Past service cost

Recognized in other comprehensive income –
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in financial assumptions
Return on plan assets

2014

2013

2012

P

1,444,936 P
196,509
-

1,945,229 P
628,717
290,114

1,768,780
907,359
-

P

1,641,445 P

2,864,060 P

2,676,139

P

782,538 ( P
274,316
269,954 (

4,814,363 ) (P
480,399
426,037 )

61,070)
1,265,842
19,026

P

1,326,808 (P

4,760,001 ) P

1,223,798

Current service and past service costs are included as part of Salaries and
employee benefits under Other Operating Expenses account in the statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 13).
The net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs account in the
statements of comprehensive income.
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income were included within
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.
In determining the amounts of the post-employment benefit obligation, the
following significant assumptions were used:

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

2014

2013

2012

5.09%
5.00%

5.25%
5.00%

5.54%
5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published
statistics and mortality tables. The average remaining working lives of an
individual retiring at the age of 60 is 33.9 years. These assumptions were
developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.
Discount factors are determined close to the end of each reporting period by
reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond, with terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the post-employment obligation. Other
assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s
historical experience.
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(c) Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan
The plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest
rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
(i) Investment and Interest Risks
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bonds will increase the plan
obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s investments in debt securities and if the return on plan asset falls below this
rate, it will create a deficit in the plan.
(ii) Longevity and Salary Risks
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their
employment and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.
(d) Other Information
The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial
assumptions, the Company’s asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows related to the post-employment defined benefit
plan are described in the succeeding pages.
(i) Sensitivity Analysis
The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation as of December 31:
Impact on Post-Employment Defined
Benefit Obligation
Change in
Increase in
Decrease in
Assumption
Assumption
Assumption
2014:
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

+/- 1.0%
+/- 1.0%

(P

2013:
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

+/- 1.0%
+/- 1.0%

(P

1,579,886 )
1,706,078

(

1,550,529 )
1,680,326

(

P

1,935,502
1,411,714 )

P

1,884,270
1,405,816 )
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The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the actual
change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized in the
statements of financial position.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years.
(ii) Asset-liability Matching Strategies
To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Company through its BOD,
ensures that the investment positions are managed in accordance with its assetliability matching strategy to achieve that long-term investments are in line with
the obligations under the retirement scheme. This strategy aims to match the plan
assets to the retirement obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest
securities (i.e., government or corporate bonds) with maturities that match the
benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. The Company
actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are
matching the expected cash outflows arising from the retirement obligations.
In view of this, investments are made in reasonably diversified portfolio, such that
the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the
overall level of assets.
A large portion of the plan assets as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
consists of debt securities and readily available cash and cash equivalents, pending
placement in investments with balanced risks and rewards optimization.
There has been no change in the Company’s strategies to manage its risks from
previous periods.
(iii) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions
The Company has yet to decide the amount of contribution to the retirement plan
for the succeeding year.
The Company is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under
the plan assets before they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing of
contributions to the plan assets are at the Company’s discretion. However, in the
event a benefit claim arises and the plan assets are insufficient to pay the claim, the
shortfall will be due, demandable and payable from the Company to the plan assets.
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The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan
follows:
2013

2014
Within one year
More than one year to five years
More than five years to ten years

P

7,309,955
11,010,650
5,370,081

P

2,291,137
13,361,118
4,612,216

P

23,690,686

P

20,264,471

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 9.60 years.
15.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES
The components of tax expense as reported in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income follow:
2014
Reported in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30%
Final tax at 20% and 7.5%

Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary differences

2013

2012

P 28,476,310 P 20,760,471
72,370
241,288
28,548,680
21,001,759

(

207,028)

11,884,945
35,062
11,920,007

322,943 (

656,787 )

P 28,341,652 P 21,324,702 P 11,263,220
Reported in other comprehensive income –
Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to remeasurements of
post-employment benefit plan

P

1,068,958 P

1,428,000 (P

367,139)

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense reported in profit or loss follows:
2014
Tax on pretax profit at 30%
Adjustment for income
subjected to lower tax rates
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expenses
Recognition of previously
unrecognized deferred assets
Tax expense reported in profit or loss

2013

2012

P 28,116,593 P 21,321,794 P 11,691,036
52,912) (

(

277,971
-

140,636 ) (

39,199)

143,544

45,737

-

(

434,354)

P 28,341,652 P 21,324,702 P 11,263,220
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The net deferred tax liabilities relate to the following as of December 31:
Statements of Financial Position

Deferred tax assets:
Post-employment benefit obligation
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Unamortized past service cost
Unrealized foreign currency losses – net

P

Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaluation reserve on property, plant and
equipment
Unrealized foreign currency gains – net

(
(

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities

2013

2012

1,192,039 P

1,453,193 P

4,535,531

2,326,019
2,525,460
164,697
6,208,215

2,319,790
2,122,560
5,895,543

2,375,590
615,129
7,526,250

13,601,462) (
(
13,601,642) (

12,134,462 ) (
292,398 ) (
12,426,860 ) (

12,134,462)
172,161 )
12,306,623 )

6,531,317)( P

4,780,373)

(P 7,393,247) ( P

2014
Deferred tax assets:
Post-employment benefit
obligation
P
Impairment loss in trade
and other receivables (
Unamortized past service
cost
(

2014

Profit or Loss
2013

659,196 P
6,229)
402,900) (
250,067

Statements of Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income
2012
2014
2013
2012

1,654,337 P
55,800 (
1,507,431)(
202,706 (

Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaluation reserve on
property, plant and
equipment
Unrealized foreign
currency gains

(

457,095)

120,237

Deferred Tax Expense
(Income)

(P

207,028) P

322,943 (P

-

-

766,292 (P

398,042) P

815,399)

-

615,129 )
664,236 )(

398,042)

-

1,467,000
7,449

656,787) P

1,068,958 P

1,428,000 (P

367,139)

1,428,000 (

367,139)

-

-

-

-

1,428,000 (P

367,139)

The Company is subject to the minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) which is
computed at 2% of gross income, as defined under the tax regulations, or RCIT,
whichever is higher. No MCIT was accrued for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 as the RCIT was higher than MCIT in those years.
In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company claimed itemized deductions in computing for its
income tax due.
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16.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s related parties include entities under common ownership,
stockholders and key management personnel as described below.
The summary of the Company’s transactions and outstanding balances with its related
parties as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:
Notes

2014

Amounts of Transactions
2013
2012

Related Parties Under
Common Ownership:
Sale of goods
Purchase of goods and services
Advances granted
Security deposit
Other receivables

16.1
16.2
16.3
16.5
16.6

Stockholders –
Loan guarantee
Advances obtained

16.8
16.4

68,800,000
-

Key Management Personnel:
Compensation

16.7

24,348,833

P 22,597,352 P 28,673,341 P 41,275,499
33,683,244
30,012,196
35,144,236
6,000,000
5,858,472
13,662,027
685,580
461,071
176,910
-

Notes
Related Parties Under
Common Ownership:
Sale of goods
Purchase of goods and services
Advances granted
Security deposit
Other receivables

16.1
16.2
16.3
16.5
16.6

Stockholders –
Loan guarantee
Advances obtained

16.8
16.4

2014

P

23,257,487

217,846,057
23,089,131

Outstanding Balances
2013
2012

8,309,511 P 4,372,920 P 12,388,436
4,284,191
2,878,273
12,318,617
24,800,000
19,118,438
13,259,966
177,815
177,815
176,910
68,800,000
46,057

46,057

46,057

16.1 Sale of Goods
The Company sells finished goods to related parties under common ownership.
Goods are sold on the basis of the price lists in force and terms that would be available
to non-related parties. The outstanding receivables from sale of goods, which are
generally noninterest-bearing, unsecured and settled through cash within three to six
months, are presented as part of Trade receivables under the Trade and Other
Receivables account in the statements of financial position (see Note 5). Based on
management’s assessment, no impairment losses are required to be recognized on these
receivables.
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16.2 Purchase of Goods and Services
Goods and services are purchased on the basis of the price lists in force with nonrelated parties. The related outstanding payables for goods and services purchased in
2014, 2013 and 2012 are presented as part of Trade payables under the Trade and
Other Payables account in the statements of financial position (see Note 10). The
outstanding payables from purchase of goods and services are generally noninterestbearing, unsecured and settled through cash within three to six months.
The Company also acquires the services of Husky Plastics Corporation (Husky), a
related party under common ownership, for the conversion of its pipe fittings. The
Company provides its own raw materials to Husky for processing into finished goods.
Once the processing is completed, the Company records the amount paid for the
services of Husky as part of the finished goods based on the billings received. The
basis of the price charged to the Company is in line with Husky’s prevailing market
rates.

16.3 Advances to Related Parties
The Company grants unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances to its related parties
under common ownership. Included in this account are advances made for the
purpose of a future land acquisition. These advances are noninterest-bearing,
unsecured and are repayable in cash. Based on management assessment, no
impairment loss was required to be recognized on these advances to related parties in
2014, 2013 and 2012.

16.4 Advances from Stockholders
The Company obtains unsecured and noninterest-bearing advances from certain
stockholders for working capital requirements. In 2012, the Company reclassified
portion of those Advances from Stockholders amounting to P342.8 million to
Amount for Future Stock Subscription (see Note 17.1) in connection with the
Company’s debt to equity conversion which was executed and approved by the SEC
in 2013.

16.5 Lease of Properties
The Company entered into operating lease agreements with a related party under
common ownership covering its office spaces with lease terms of two and
ten years. Rental expense related to this transaction is shown as part of Rentals under
Other Operating Expenses account in the statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 13). There are no unpaid rentals as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012.
The related deposit as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, which is refundable at
the termination of the lease term, is presented as part of Security Deposits under
Other Non-current Assets in the statements of financial position (see Note 9).
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16.6 Other Receivables
Other receivables represent unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances for miscellaneous
business-related expenditures that are presented as part of Other receivables under
Trade and Other Receivables account (see Note 5). Based on management assessment,
these receivables are not impaired.

16.7 Key Management Personnel Compensation
The total compensation of key management personnel, which include all managers
and executives, is shown below.
2013

2014
Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

P 23,720,015 P
628,818

2012

22,493,721 P 22,433,265
763,766
655,866

P 24,348,833 P 23,257,487 P 23,089,131

16.8 Loan Guarantee
In 2014, the stockholders guaranteed the Company’s loan from a local bank
amounting to P68.8 million (see Note 11).
17.

EQUITY

17.1 Capital Stock
Capital stock consists of:
Shares
2013

2014
Common shares – P1 par value
Authorized

2012

1,300,000,000

1,300,000,000

10,000,000

352,800,000
120,000,000
-

10,000,000
342,800,000

10,000,000
-

472,800,000

352,800,000

10,000,000

2014

Amount
2013

2012

Common shares – P1 par value
Authorized

P1,300,000,000

P 1,300,000,000

P

10,000,000

Issued and outstanding:
Balance at the beginning of year
Stock dividends distributed
Issued during the year

P 352,800,000
120,000,000
-

P

10,000,000
342,800,000

P

10,000,000
-

P 472,800,000

P 352,800,000

P

10,000,000

Issued and outstanding:
Balance at the beginning of year
Stock dividends distributed
Issued during the year
Balance at the end of year

Balance at the end of year
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On October 17, 2012, the BOD approved the increase in the Company’s authorized
capital stock from P10.0 million divided into 100,000 common shares with par
value of P100 per share to P1,300.0 million divided into 1,300.0 million common
shares with the par value of P1 per share. The payment for the subscription of the
increase in authorized capital stock was made by way of conversion of the Company’s
Amount for Future Stock Subscription to Equity (see Note 16.4). The application for
increase in authorized capital stock and conversion of the Amount for Future Stock
Subscription to equity was approved by the SEC on January 25, 2013. In 2013, the
balance of Amount for Future Stock Subscription was transferred to Capital Stock
account upon issuance of the shares of stocks.
As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company has 14 stockholders owning
100 or more shares each of the Company’s capital stock.

17.2 Retained Earnings
On September 5, 2014, the Company’s BOD and stockholders approved the
declaration of stock dividends equivalent to 34.01% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of stock amounting to P120.0 million (P1.0 par value).
The stock dividends were distributed on November 6, 2014.
On May 27, 2014, the Company’s BOD approved the release of the appropriation
originally intended for construction of the Company’s new factory building and for
purchase of machineries for new product lines amounting to P40.0 million.
On March 4, 2014, the Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend
amounting to P7.0 million or P0.02 per share which was paid on May 30, 2014 to
stockholders of record as of March 31, 2014. Similarly, on May 16, 2013, the Company’s
BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend amounting to P7.0 million or P0.02 per
share payable on May 31, 2013 to stockholders of record as of May 16, 2013. On
December 9, 2013, the Company declared another cash dividend amounting to
P5.0 million or P.01 per share payable on December 19, 2013 to stockholders of record as
of November 30, 2013. On December 4, 2012, the Company’s BOD approved the
declaration of cash dividend amounting to P5.0 million or P0.5 per share which was paid
on December 27, 2012 to stockholders of record as of November 30, 2012.

17.3 Prior Period Adjustments
In 2014, the Company presented its land at revalued amount as allowed under PAS 16
whereas, previously, it was measured at cost. Consequently, it restated the
comparative financial statements as of December 31, 2013 and the corresponding
financial statements for the earliest period presented or as of December 31, 2012.
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The effect of the restatement on the affected asset, liability, and equity components is
shown below.
2013
Effect of
Change in
Accounting
Policy

As Previously
Reported
Changes in assets and liability:
Property, plant and
equipment - net
Deferred tax asset (liability)

P

130,813,748 P
5,603,147 (

Increase in equity
Change in a component of equity –
Revaluation reserves

P

28,313,745 P
2012
Effect of
Change in
Accounting
Policy

130,296,876 P
7,354,089 (

Increase in equity
Change in a component of equity –
Revaluation reserves

28,313,745

1,288,020 P

As Previously
Reported
Changes in assets and liability:
Property, plant and
equipment - net
Deferred tax asset (liability)

40,448,207 P 171,261,955
12,134,462 ) (
6,531,317 )

P
P

P
(P

As Restated

2,043,981 ) P

29,601,765

As Restated

40,448,207 P
12,134,462 ) (

170,745,083
4,780,373 )

28,313,745
28,313,745 P

26,269,764

The change in accounting policy did not have a material impact on the Company’s
statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
18.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share (EPS) were computed as follows:
2013

2014

∗

2012

Net profit
Divided by weighted average number of
outstanding common shares*

P 65,380,323 P 49,747,945 P 27,706,899

Basic and diluted earnings per share

P

472,800,000
0.14 P

453,755,556

13,401,000

0.11 P

After giving retroactive effect to the stock dividends declared (see Note 17.2).

The Company does not have dilutive potential common shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; hence, diluted EPS is equal to the basic EPS.

2.07

- 40 -

19.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the
Company:

19.1 Operating Lease Commitments – Company as Lessee
The Company is a lessee under non-cancellable operating leases covering its
warehouse and office spaces. The lease for warehouse has a term of two years
and includes annual escalation rate of 5.00%, while the leases for office space
have terms of five to ten years with escalation rates ranging from 5.00% to
10.00%. All leases have renewal options. The following is the future minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31:
2014
Within one year
After one year but not
more than five years

P

999,732 P
1,736,831

P 2,736,563 P

2013
898,554 P
2,736,563
3,635,117 P

2012
1,139,665
380,218
1,519,883

Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to
P1.4 million, P1.0 million and P1.1 million, respectively (see Note 13).

19.2

Unused Credit Lines

The Company had P41.2 million of unused credit lines of the approved Omnibus
Line of Credit from a local bank granted as of December 31, 2014.

19.3 Others
There are other commitments and contingent liabilities that arise in the normal course of
the Company’s operations which are not reflected in the financial statements. As of
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, management and its legal counsel are of the opinion
that losses, if any, from these items will not have a material effect on the Company’s
financial statements.
20.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial
instruments. The Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities by category are
summarized in Note 21. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk.
The Company’s risk management is coordinated by its BOD, and focuses on actively
securing the Company’s closely short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing the
exposure to financial markets.
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The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to
which the Company is exposed to are described below and in the succeeding
paragraphs.

20.1 Market Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its
operating, investing and financing activities.
(a) Foreign Currency Risk
Most of the Company’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Company’s overseas
sales and purchases, which are primarily denominated in US dollars. The Company also
holds US dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.
To mitigate the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash
flows are monitored.
Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Philippine
pesos at the closing rate follow:
2013

2014
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

2012

P42,455,324 P52,583,187 P64,820,673
( 4,432,451) ( 4,290,559) ( 9,251,002)

Net exposure

P38,022,873 P48,292,628 P55,569,671

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit before tax with
respect to changes in Philippine peso against US dollar exchange rates. The
percentage changes in rates have been determined based on the average market
volatility in exchange rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a
99% confidence level.
2014
27.84%
Effect in profit before tax
Effect in equity

10,585,568
7,409,898

Increase
2013
19.20%
9,272,185
6,490,530

2012
13.83%
7,685,285 (
5,379,700 (

2014
27.84%
10,585,568)(
7,409,898)(

Decrease
2013
19.20%
9,272,185) (
6,490,530) (

2012
13.83%
7,685,285)
5,379,700)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the period depending on the volume of
foreign currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Company’s currency risk.
(b) Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on
long-term financing. Longer-term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed
rates. At December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company is exposed to changes in
market interest rates through its cash and cash equivalents, which are subject to
variable interest rates (see Note 4). All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed
rates.
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The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit before tax and
equity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/- 1.24%, +/- 4.60% and
+/-1.54% in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These changes are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions. The
calculations are based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period,
and the financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period that are
sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.
2014
1.24%
Effect in profit before tax
Effect in equity

11,983
9,587

Increase
2013
4.60%

2012
1.54%

1,862,715
1,490,172

Decrease
2013
4.60%

2014
1.24%

570,789 (
456,631 (

11,983) (
9,587) (

2012
1.54%%

1,862,715) (
1,490,172) (

570,789)
456,631)

20.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the
Company. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. The Company’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties.
The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the statements of financial position (or in the detailed
analysis provided in the notes to financial statements), as summarized below.
Notes
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables – net
(except Advances to
suppliers and contractors)
Security deposits

4
5
9

2014

2013

2012

P 34,317,966 P 99,246,341 P 73,690,335
186,326,390
3,042,695

142,056,712
2,995,380

165,825,277
2,923,630

P 223,687,051 P 244,298,433 P 242,439,242

None of the financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements except
for cash and cash equivalents and certain trade receivables with entrusted and on hand
post-dated checks issued by customers (see Note 5). Bank deposits are only maintained
with reputable financial institutions, as a matter of Company policy. Cash in banks are
insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of
P500 thousand per depositor per banking institution.
The credit risk with respect to trade and other receivable is not concentrated to any
single counterparty as these are due from various customers located in a widely dispersed
geographical area but generally within the Philippines.
Management assessed that the past due trade and other receivables over 120 days but
less than one year amounting to P0.7 million, P1.1 million and P0.9 million as of
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are not impaired as of those dates.
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20.3 Liquidity Risk
The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments, if any, for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows
due in a day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands,
on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day
projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a six-month and one-year period are
identified monthly.
The Company maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day
periods. Excess cash is invested in short-term placements. Funding for long-term
liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities (see Note 19.2).
As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities
which are presented below.
2014
Current
Within
6 Months
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings
P
Trade and other payables
(except Advances from customers
and tax-related payables)
Advances from stockholders
P

6 to 12
Months

70,970,968 P

Non-current
1 to 5
Years

1,297,230 P

3,891,085

163,698,772
-

-

-

234,669,740 P

1,297,230 P

3,937,142

46,057

This compares to the maturity of the Company’s financial liabilities as of December 31
as follows:
2013
Current
Within
6 Months
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings
P
Trade and other payables
(except Advances from customers
and tax-related payables)
Advances from stockholders
P

6 to 12
Months

1,545,498 P
115,642,037
117,187,535 P

1,642,143 P
1,642,143 P

Non-current
1 to 5
Years
5,060,590
46,057
5,106,647

2012
Current
Within
6 Months
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings
P
Trade and other payables
(except Advances from customers
and tax-related payables)
Advances from stockholders
P

1,162,698 P
97,060,614
98,223,312 P

6 to 12
Months

Non-current
1 to 5
Years

1,162,698 P

4,475,211

9,421,962
-

-

10,584,660 P

46,057
4,521,268
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The contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the
carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.
21.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

21.1

Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented in the statements of financial position at amortized cost are shown
below (see Note 22.2).
Notes

2014

Carrying Amounts
2013

2012

Financial assets –
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
(except Advances to
suppliers and contractors)
Security deposits

4
5
9

P 34,317,966 P 99,246,341 P 73,690,335
142,056,712
2,995,380

186,326,390
3,042,695

165,825,277
2,923,630

P 223,687,051 P 244,298,433 P 242,439,242

Financial liabilities –
At amortized cost
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
(except Advances from customers
and tax-related payables)
Advances from stockholders

11
10
16.4

P 74,912,018 P

7,453,159 P
115,642,037
46,057

163,056,068
46,057

5,768,199
106,482,576
46,057

P 238,014,143 P 123,141,253 P 112,296,832

Notes

2014

Fair Values
2013

2012

Financial assets –
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
(except Advances to
suppliers and contractors)
Security deposits

4
5
9

P 34,317,966 P 99,246,341 P 73,690,335
142,056,712
2,995,380

186,326,390
3,042,695

165,825,277
2,923,630

P 223,687,051 P 244,298,433 P 242,439,242
Notes

2014

Fair Values
2013

2012

Financial liabilities –
At amortized cost
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
(except Advances from customers
and tax-related payables)
Advances from stockholders

11
10
16.4

P 74,912,018 P
163,056,068
46,057

7,453,159 P
115,642,037
46,057

5,768,199
106,482,576
46,057

P 238,014,143 P 123,141,253 P 112,296,832
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See Notes 2.3 and 2.8 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments. A description of the Company’s risk management objectives and
policies for financial instruments is provided in Note 20.

21.2 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The Company’s interest-bearing loans presented in the statements of financial
position at gross amounts are covered by enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar arrangements as of December 31, 2014:
Gross Amounts

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

11

Related Amount
Not Set-off

Net Amount

P 68,800,000 ( P 26,308,381 ) P 42,491,619

For financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
agreements or similar arrangements above, each agreement between the Company
and counterparties (i.e., related parties including subsidiaries and associates) allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to
settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities
will be settled on a gross basis; however, each party to the master netting agreement
or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in
the event of default of the other party.
By default, the Company does not elect to settle financial assets and financial
liabilities with counterparties through offsetting. Gross settlement is generally
practiced.
22.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or nonrecurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized
into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
a)

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that an entity can access at the measurement date;

b)

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and,

c)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined
by using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference
to the current market of another instrument which is substantially the same after
taking into account the related credit risk of counterparties, or is calculated based on
the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the instrument.
When the Company uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable
market data where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is
included in Level 3.
The Company has no financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair values.

22.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value
is Disclosed
The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial
assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the statements
of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed (see Note 21.1).
.

2014
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Security deposits

P 34,317,966
186,326,390
3,042,695

P

-

P

-

P 34,317,966
186,326,390
3,042,695

P223,687,051 P

-

P

-

P 223,687,051

P 71,277,398
163,056,068
46,057

P

-

P

3,634,620 P 74,912,018
163,056,068
46,057

P234,379,523 P

-

P

3,634,620 P 238,014,143

Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Advances from stockholders

2013
Level 1
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Security deposits

Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Advances from stockholders

Level 2

.

Level 3

Total

P 99,246,341
142,056,712
2,995,380

P

-

P

-

P 99,246,341
142,056,712
2,995,380

P 145,052,092

P

-

P

-

P 244,298,433

P 2,738,417
115,642,037
46,057

P

-

P

4,714,742 P 7,453,159
115,642,037
46,057

P118,426,511

P

-

P

4,714,742

P123,141,253
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Level 1
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Security deposits

Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Advances from stockholders

Level 2

2012
Level 3

.

Total

P 73,690,335
165,825,277
2,923,630

P

-

P

-

P 73,690,335
165,825,277
2,923,630

P 168,748,907

P

-

P

-

P 242,439,242

P 1,812,385
106,482,576
46,057

P

-

P

3,955,814 P 5,768,199
106,482,576
46,057

P 108,341,018

P

-

P

3,955,814 P 112,296,832

For financial assets and financial liabilities with fair values included in Level 1,
management considers that the carrying amounts of these short-term financial
instruments approximate their fair values.

22.3 Fair Value Measurement for Non-financial Assets
The fair value of the Company’s land amounting to P78.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and P73.4 million as of December 31, 2012 is classified
under Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The Level 3 fair value of land was derived using
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties in
nearby locations, adjusted for key attributes such as property size, age, condition and
accessibility of the land. The most significant input into this valuation approach is the
price per square foot; hence, the higher the price per square foot, the higher the fair value.
There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Company during
the year for its non-financial assets. Also, there were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 fair value hierarchy in 2014, 2013 and 2012.
23.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES
The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing products and services commensurate with the level of risk.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as
presented in the statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods
under review is summarized as follows:
2014
Total liabilities
Total equity
Debt-to-equity ratio

2013

2012

P 266,148,679 P 155,609,648 P152,202,712
562,889,419 502,024,862 460,944,916
0.47:1

0.31:1

0.33:1
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There were no internally and externally imposed capital requirements to be complied
with as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
24.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
On January 16, 2015, the Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend
amounting to P25.0 million or P0.05 per share to stockholders of record as of
January 16, 2015, on which P12.5 million was paid on January 30, 2015, while the
remaining P12.5 million will be paid on February 25, 2015.

25.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BIR
Presented below is the supplementary information which is required by the BIR
under its existing revenue regulations to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial
statements. This supplementary information is not a required disclosure under PFRS.

25.1 Requirements under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010
The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable
year required under RR 15-2010 are as follows:
(a)

Output VAT
In 2014, the Company declared output VAT as follows:
Tax Base
Sale of goods:
Taxable sales
Zero-rated sales

Output VAT

P 607,804,091
242,937,532

P

72,936,491
-

P 850,741,623

P

72,936,491

The Company’s zero-rated receipts from sale of goods were determined
pursuant to Section 106 (A), VAT on Sale of Goods or Properties, of the National
Internal Revenue Code of 1997.
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(b)

Input VAT
The movements in input VAT in 2014 are presented below.
Balance at beginning of year
Goods other than capital goods
VAT on importation of goods
Services lodged under other accounts
Capital goods subject to amortization
Capital goods not subject to
amortization
Applied against output VAT
Balance at end of year

P

21,870,397
52,771,716
29,732,100
10,322,941
1,281,870
214,146
72,936,491 )

(
P

43,256,679

The outstanding balance of input VAT is presented under the Prepayment and
Other Current Assets account in the 2014 statement of financial position
(see Note 7).
Deferred input VAT amounting to P6,206,266 pertains to the unamortized input
VAT on purchases of capital goods exceeding P1.0 million. Deferred input VAT
is to be amortized and credited against output tax evenly over 60 months or the
life of the asset, whichever is shorter. The outstanding balance is presented as
part of Other Non-current Assets in the 2014 statement of financial position
(see Note 9).
(c)

Taxes on Importation
In 2014, the total landed cost of the Company’s importations for use in business
amounted to P258,236,703. This also includes customs duties and tariff fees
totaling to P1,788,576 which are capitalized as part of the cost of the raw
materials inventory.

(d)

Excise Tax
The Company did not have any transactions in 2014 which are subject to excise
tax.

(e)

Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)
DST paid and accrued in 2014 is presented below.
Bank transactions
Shares of stock
Loan instruments
Others

P

646,175
600,000
293,301
148,804

P

1,688,280
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(f)

Taxes and Licenses
The composition of Taxes and Licenses account in 2014 is shown below.
Note
Registration and license fees
DST
Real property tax
Deficiency tax
Residence tax
Miscellaneous

P

2,704,568
1,688,280
1,106,088
465,432
13,120
208,257

P

6,185,745

25.1(e)

The amount of Taxes and licences is presented as part of Other Operating
Expenses account in the 2014 statement of comprehensive income
(see Note 13).
(g)

Withholding Taxes
The details of total withholding taxes in 2014 are shown below.
Compensation and benefits
Expanded
Final tax on dividends

(h)

P

6,939,382
6,787,294
700,000

P

14,426,676

Deficiency Tax Assessments
In 2014, the Company was assessed for deficiency taxes on VAT, withholding
taxes and income taxes amounting to P465,432 for taxable year 2012. The tax
assessment was fully settled in 2014.
As of December 31, 2014, the Company does not have any final deficiency tax
assessments from the BIR nor does it have tax cases outstanding or pending in
courts or bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open years.
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25.2 Requirements under RR 19-2011
RR 19-2011 requires schedules of taxable revenues and other non-operating income,
cost of goods sold, and itemized deductions and other significant tax information to
be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The amounts of taxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses
presented below are based on relevant tax regulations issued by the BIR, hence, may
not be the same as the amounts reflected in the 2014 statement of comprehensive
income.
(a)

Taxable Revenues
The Company’s taxable revenues from sale of goods for the year ended
December 31, 2014 subject to regular tax rate amounted to P850,741,623.

(b)

Deductible Cost of Goods Sold
Deductible cost of goods sold subject to the regular tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2014 comprises the following:
Finished goods at beginning of year
Cost of goods manufactured
Total goods available for sale
Finished goods at end of year

P
(

90,130,860
703,094,224
793,225,084
153,794,162)

P 639,430,922
(c)

Taxable Non-operating and Other Income
The details of taxable non-operating and other income in 2014 which are
subject to regular tax rate are shown below.
Realized foreign currency gains – net
Others

P

2,220,748
151,338

P

2,372,086
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(d)

Itemized Deductions
The amounts of itemized deductions for the year ended December 31, 2014 are
shown below.
Salaries and allowances
Transportation and travel
Outside services
Advertising and promotions
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes and licenses
Representation and entertainment
Communication, light and water
Repairs and maintenance
Retirement benefit expense
Delivery expense
Professional fees
Office supplies
Interest
Rentals
Insurance
Bad debts
Miscellaneous

P

40,607,054
14,448,572
10,659,403
9,885,400
7,671,047
5,244,475
4,094,088
3,595,210
2,939,522
2,495,766
2,447,676
2,336,150
2,139,334
1,854,702
1,375,607
1,210,618
686,296
5,070,835

P 118,761,755

ANNEX II:

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO ACCOMPANY
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FILED
SEPARATELY FROM THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0

Punongbayan &..Araullo
An instinct for growth'"

Report of Independent Auditors
to Accompany Supplementary Information
Required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission Filed Separately from the
Basic Financial Statements

19th and 20th Floors, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City

Philippines

T +63 2 988 2288
F +63 2 886 5506
www.punongbayan-araullo.com

The Board of Directors
Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation
(Formerly Crown Asia Compounders Corporation)
Km. 33, Mc Arthur Highway
Bo. Tuktukan, Guiguinto
Bulacan

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing the
financial statements of Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation (the Company) for
the year ended December 31, 2014, on which we have rendered our report dated
Febmary 12, 2015. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The applicable supplementary
information (sec List of Supplementary Information) is presented for purposes of
additional analysis in compliance with the requirements of the Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of the Company's management. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By:

V. Murcia III

CP.\ Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 4748317,January 5, 2015, l\lakati City
SEC Group ~\ ~\ccreditation
Partner - No. 0628-.\R-2 (until Sept. 5, 2016)
Fitm - No. 0002-FR-3 (until l\lar. 31, 2015)
BIR .\N 08-002511-22-2013 (until Nov. 7, 2016)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)
Certified Pub!!c Accountants
P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd
Offices in Cebu, Davao, Cavite
BONPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002
SEC Group A Accreditation No. 0002·FR·3

Febmary 12, 2015

-1CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule A
Financial Assets - Fair Value Through Profit or Loss and Available for Sale

December 31, 2014

Name of Issuing Entity and
Association of Each Issue

Amount Shown in
Valued Based on
the Statement
Market Quotation at
Principal Amount of Financial Positon as
End of Reporting
Bonds or Notes
of Reporting Period
Period

Number of Shares or

(;)

N/A

Income Received
and Accrued (ii)

-2CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Sc:heduleB
Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees,
Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Panics)
December 31, 2014

N=•

Balance at ~eginningll
ofPenod

I

Deductions

Additions
11

Amounts Collected

II

Written Off

II

Reclassified

I

Ending Balance
Current

II

Balance at End of

Non-current

I11

Period

Asean Timber Corp.

39,553
4,333,367

2,901,850
19,695,502

2,941,403
15,719,358

8,309,511

8,309,511

Tota/A((()1m/J &rdral>les

4,372,920

22,597,352

18,660,761

8,309,511

8,30'J,511

24,800,000

24,800,000

24,800,000

24,800,000

Husky Plastics Corp.

.118,.-!38)

318,438

Ascan Timber Coi:p.
Guiguinto Integrated \\1oods Industry Corp.

18,800,000

6,000,000

TQ!al Ad1¥Jncrs Gm11ttd

19,118,438

6,000,000

318,438)

Ascan Timber Corp.

141,528

318,438

176,910

176,910

Tota/Other &rri1¥JbltJ

1-!1,528

318,-BS

176,910

176,910

Guiguinm Integrated \Voods Industry Corp.

Total S ttmi(J Drposit

177,815
177,815

177,815
177,815

177,815

177,815
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CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule C
Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation ofFinancial Statements
December 31, 2014

Name and Designation of
Deb1or

Balance at
Beginning of
Period

I
Additions

Deductions

Amounts Collected

N/A

Written Off

I

Ending Balance
Current

Non-current

I
Balance at End of
Period
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CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule D
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
December 31, 2014

I
Description (i)

ITradema!kS

Beginning
Ba1ance

394,875

Additions at Cost (ii) Charged to Cost Charged to Other
and Expenses
Accounts
(iii)
106,712

(

I

Deduction
Other Changes
Additions
(Deductions)

161,2!5)

Supplementary infonnation on Intangible Assets
Trademarh pertain to tht capitali-:;fd rosts of applkalirm and registmtion wilh the lntdlec/11al Proper()• Office and Burrm1 of Product Standards.

Ending Balance

340,3721

-5CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule E
Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2014

Title oflssue and Type of
Obligation

Car loans

Amount Authorized
by Indenture

p

Amount Shown Under
Caption" Current
Portion of Long-term
Debt" in Related
Statement of Financial
Position

6,112,018 p

2,477,398

Amount Shown Under
Caption"Long-Term
Debt" in Related
Statement of Financial
Position
p

Supplementary information on Long-term Debt

The Company entered into car loan agreements with local banks far the acquisition of certain transportation equipment
and motor vehicles, which are then mortgaged to the banks.

3,634,620
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CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule F
Indebtedness to Related Parties
December 31, 2014

I

Name of Related Party

Related Parties under common ownership:
Husky Plastics Coro.
Asean Timber Corp.
WT Derrick Realty Coro.

I

Balance at Beginning of
Period

2,766,536
93,209
18,528

Balance at End of
Period

3,392,020
892,171
-

2,878,273

4,284,191

46,057

46,057

Stockho/der Tita P. Villanueva

- 7CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule H
Capital Stock
December 31, 2014

Number of Shares Held By

Title of Issue

Common

Number of Shares
Reserved for Options,
Warrants, Covcrsion
and Other Rights

Number ofShares Issued and
Outstanding as Shown Under the
Number of Shares Authorized
Related Statement of Financial
Postion Caption

472.800,000

I

472.800,000

I

Related Parties

Directors, Officers
and Employees

472,800.000

Others

I

-8CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
KM 33, MC. ARTHUR HIGHWAY,
BO. TUKTUKAN, GUI GUINTO BULACAN
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For Year Ended December 31, 2014

Unappropriated Retained Earnings of the Company at Beginning ofYear

p

79,623,097

Prior Periods' Outstanding Reconciling Item, net of tax
Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at Beginning ofYcar, as Adjusted

79,623,097

Net Profit of the Company Realized during the Year
Net profit per audited financial statements
Non-actual/unrealized income, net of tax
Deferred tax income

65,380,323
866,224

Other Transactions During the Year

40,000,000

Reversal of appropriation
Stock dividends

12n,ooo,oon)
7.ooo,oou)

Cash dividends

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at End of Year

p

58,869,644
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CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations
Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2014

No(

;Appljcalile
1"'

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase .t\: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics

Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Finandal Reporting Standards (PFRS}

PFRSl
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

§

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters**

§

Amendment to PFR.S 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters**

§

.Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe I-Iyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for
First-time Adopters **

§

Amendment to PFRS 1: Government Loans

**

§

Share-based Payment

§

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

§

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

§

Business Combinations

§

Insurance Contracts

§

.A.mendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

§

PFRSS

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued ()perations

§

PFRS6

Exploration for and Evaluation ofl\fineral Resources

§

PFRS2

PFRS3
(Revised)

PFRS4

PFRS7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

§

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

§

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets

§

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date and
Transition

§

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

§

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

§

.Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsettin Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

§

Amendment to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures (defemd

PFRSS
PFRS9
PFRS 10

PFRS 11
PFRS12

application) *

§

Operating Segments

§

Financial Instruments (deferred application) *

§

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures (defemd

application) *

§

Consolidated Financial Statements

§

Amendment to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

§

Amendment to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

§

Joint Arrangements

§

Amendment to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

§

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

§

Amendment to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance

§

Amendment to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

PFRS13

Fair Value Measurement

-10 Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
Presentation of Financial Statements

PASl
(Revised)

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation**
.r\mendment to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

PAS2

Inventories

PAS7

Statement of Cash Flows

PASS

.r\ccounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

PASlO

Events after the Reporting Period

PASll

Construction Contracts

PAS12

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

PAS16

Property, Plant and Equipment

PAS17

Leases

PAS18

Revenue
Employee Benefits

PAS19
(Revised)

Amendment: Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions

PAS20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

PAS21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation**

PAS23
(Revised)
PAS24
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs
Related Party Disclosures
§

PAS26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS27
(Revised)

Separate Financial Statements

§

Amendment to PAS 27: Investment Entities

§

PAS28
(Revised)

Ip.vestments in .A.ssociates and Joint \Tentures

§

PAS29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

§

Financial Instruments: Presentation

§

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations .Arising on
Liquidation**

§

.Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

§

Amendments to P.AS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

§

PAS33

Earnings per Share

§

PAS34

Interim Financial Reporting

PAS32

§

Impairment of Assets

§

Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets

§

PAS37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

§

PAS38

Intangible Assets

§

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

§

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

§

PAS36

No.t

~pplit:able ·
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions**
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option**

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS}

PAS39

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts**

§

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets

§

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date and
Transition

§

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFIUC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives**

§

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items**

§

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting**

§

PAS40

Investment Property

§

PAS41

Agriculture

JI

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC}
IFRICl

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Llabilities

IFRIC2

Members' Share in

Co~operative

**

§
§

Entities and Similar Instruments

IFRIC4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

§

IFRICS

Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds**

§

IFRIC 6

Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment

§

IFRIC 7

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

§

IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives**

§

Amendments to Philinnine Intemretation IFRIC--9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives**

§

IFRIC 10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

§

IFRIC 12

Service Concession Arrangements

§

IFRIC13

Customer Loyalty Programmes

§

IFRIC 14

PAS 19 -The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

§

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement and their Interaction

§
§

IFRIC16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

IFRIC17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners**

§

IFRIClS

Transfers of Assets from Customers**

§

IFRIC19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instnunents**

§

IFRIC20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

IFRIC21

Levies

§
§

Philippine Interpretations - Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC}
SIC-7

Introduction of the Euro

§

SIC-10

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities

§

SIC-13

Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers

§

SIC-15

Operating Leases - Incentives

§

SIC-25

I,ncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders**

§

SIC-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

®

SIC-29

Service Concession .£\rrangements: Disclosures

§

SIC-31

Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

§

SIC-32

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

§

*

These standards will be effective for periods subsequent to 2014 and are not early adopted by the Company.

**

These standards have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements but the Company has no significant transactions covered
in both years presented.

-12CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
MAP SHOWING THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ITS RELATED EN'TITIES
December 31, 2014
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CHEMICAI.s

CORPORATION

-13 CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule of Relevant Financial Ratios as Required
Under SRC Rule 68, as amended
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Amount
I.

Current/liquidity ratios

a.

Current Ratio
p

Total Current Assets

b.

b.

V.

VI.

+ Trade and other

receivables

246,702,442

Total Current Liabilities

251,101,291

0.98

Solvency ratios
a.

IV.

2.41

Quick Ratio
Cash and cash equivalents

III.

604,236,040
251,101,291

Total Current Liabilities

II.

Ratio

Solvency Ratio
(Earnings Before Interest and Taxes)

96,049,110

Total Liabilities

266,148,679

0.36

Debt-co-Equity Ratio
Total Liabilities

266,148,679

Total Equity

562,899,419

0.47

Asset-to-equity ratio
Total Assets

829,048,098

Total Equity

562,899,419

Total Assets

.829,048,098

Total Liabilities

266,148,679

1.47

Asset-to-liability ratio

3.11

Interest Coverage Ratio
(Earnings Bet-Ore Interest and 'l'axes)

96,049,110

Interest Expense

3,392,988

28.31

Profitability Ratios

a.

Gross Profit Margin
Gross Profit

211,310,701

Revenues

850,741,623

0.25

b. Net Profit l\fargin
Net Profit

65,380,323

Revenues

850,741,623

-14-

0.08

CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Schedule of Relevant Financial Ratios as Required
Under SRC Rule 68, as amended
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
c.

d.

Return on Equity
Net profit

65,380,321

Average Equity

532,462,141

0.12

Return on Assets
Net profit

65,380,323

Average Assets

743,341,304

0.09

VII. Market Ratios
a.

Book Value per Share Attributable to
Owners of Parent Company

b.

Total Equity

562,899,419

Outstanding Shares

472,800,000

1.19

Earnings per Share Attributable to
Owners of Parent Company

Net Profit

65,380,323

Average Outstanding Shares

472,800,000

0.14

